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PART |

| TEM 1. BUSINESS
Background

Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc. (formerly known asws Corporation), a Delaware corporation, is ardified global media and
entertainment company with operations in the folfaypfive industry segments: (i) Cable Network Pargming; (ii) Television; (iii) Filmed
Entertainment; (iv) Direct Broadcast Satellite M&d@n; and (v) Other, Corporate and Eliminatiofise activities of Twenty=irst Century Fo»
Inc. are conducted principally in the United Stathe United Kingdom, Continental Europe, Asia &atin America. For financial information
regarding Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc.’s segmeartd operations in geographic areas, see “ltenm@nEial Statements and Supplementary
Data.” Unless otherwise indicated, referencesimAmnual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal yeaded June 30, 2014 (the “Annual Repprt”
to “we,” “us,” “our,” “21st Century Fox,” “Twenty-kFst Century Fox” or the “Company” means TwentysEi€entury Fox, Inc. and its
subsidiaries.

On June 28, 2013, the Company completed the s@parstits business into two independent publichded companies (the
“Separation”) by distributing to its stockholdefsages of the new News Corporation (“News Corp”)e TTompany retained its interests in a
global portfolio of cable, broadcast, film, pay-Bvid satellite assets spanning six continents. N&wwp holds the Company’s former
businesses including newspapers, information ses\and integrated marketing services, digital estdte services, book publishing, digital
education and sports programming and pay-TV digtidln in Australia. The Company completed the Safam by distributing to its
stockholders one share of News Corp Class A constawk for every four shares of the Company’s CRasemmon stock held on June 21,
2013, and one share of News Corp Class B commahk &0 every four shares of the Compan€lass B common stock held on June 21, 2
The Company’s stockholders received cash in ligluagtional shares. Following the Separation then@any does not beneficially own any
shares of News Corp Class A common stock or Newp Ctass B common stock. See “ltem 1A. Risk Fattfunscertain risk factors relating
to the Separation.

In July 2011, the Company announced that it wolddeca publication of a News Corp subsididiye News of the Worldafter
allegations of phone hacking and payments to pulfficials. The Company and News Corp are subciigoing investigations by U.K. and
U.S. regulators and governmental authorities mgdatidb phone hacking, illegal data access and imggiate payments to officials @he News «
the WorldandThe Surand related matters (the “U.K. Newspaper Mattelsi’zonnection with the Separation, the CompanyNeds Corp
entered into a separation and distribution agreéiftlee “Separation and Distribution Agreement”)ttheovides that the Company will
indemnify News Corp, on an after-tax basis, forrpayts made after the Separation arising out of ci&ims and investigations relating to the
U.K. Newspaper Matters, as well as legal and peidesl| fees and expenses paid in connection withiglated criminal matters, other than
fees, expenses and costs relating to employeeswehoot (i) directors, officers or certain desigua¢mployees or (ii) with respect to civil
matters, co-defendants with News Corp.

The Company'’s fiscal year ends on June 30 of eaah Y¥hrough its predecessor, the Company waspocated in 1979 under the
Company Act 1961 of South Australia, Australia.Jane 30, 2014, the Company had approximately 27 @iBme employees. The
Company’s principal executive offices are locatedzl1 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New Yofl036 and its telephone number is
(212) 852-7000. The Company’s websitavisw.21cf.com The Company’s Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Qubrteeports on Form 10-Q,
Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to treysats filed or furnished pursuant to Sectiora] 8¢ 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), ar@lable, free of charge, through the Company’'ssitebas soon as reasonably practicable
after the material is electronically filed with farnished to the U.S. Securities and Exchange Casion (the “SEC”). Such reports may also
be obtained without charge from the Company, ame:peopies of any exhibits to such reports are asdlable for a reasonable fee per page
charge to the requesting stockholder. Any matetissthe Company filed with the SEC also may la&lr@nd copied at the SEC’s Public
Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washingtd@, B0549. The public may obtain information on diperation of the Public Reference
Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The &&@itains an Internet site that contains reportsgypand information statements, and
other information regarding issuers that file aleaically with the SEC (http://www.sec.gov).
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Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This document and the documents incorporated keyer€e into this Annual Report, including “ltemiVfanagement’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiiems,” contain statements that constitute “fodvimoking statements” within the meaning
of Section 21E of the Exchange Act and Section 87the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The svtedpect,” “estimate,” “anticipate,”
“predict,” “believe” and similar expressions andiations thereof are intended to identify forwaobking statements. These statements appe:
in a number of places and include statements ragatle intent, belief or current expectationshaf Company, its directors or its officers with
respect to, among other things, trends affectieg@bmpanys financial condition or results of operations #mel outcome of contingencies s
as litigation and investigations. Readers are oaetl that any forward-looking statements are natajutees of future performance and involve
risks and uncertainties. More information regardimese risks, uncertainties and other factorstifosthn under the heading “Item 1A. Risk
Factors” in this Annual Report. The Company doesomndinarily make projections of its future openatiresults and undertakes no obligation
(and expressly disclaims any obligation) to pulglighdate or revise any forward-looking statementsther as a result of new information,
future events or otherwise, except as requirechly Readers should carefully review this documedtthe other documents filed by the
Company with the SEC. This section should be regdther with the Consolidated Financial Statemehglst Century Fox and related notes
set forth elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Recent Developments

In July 2014, the Company entered into agreemeitksByitish Sky Broadcasting Group plc (“BSkyB™p sell its 100% and 57% (on a
fully diluted basis) ownership stakes in Sky Itai@d Sky Deutschland AG (“Sky Deutschland”), resipety, for approximately $9.3 billion
(based on foreign currency exchange rates as afdteeof the agreements), comprised of approxim&®I6 billion in cash and the transfer to
the Company of BSkyB'’s 21% interest in National Gephic Channels International, increasing the Camg{s ownership stake to 73%. In
connection with this transaction, the Company pgudited in BSkyB's equity offering in July 2014 pyrchasing additional shares in BSkyB
for approximately $900 million and maintained then@pany’s approximate 39% ownership interest. Theegents are subject to regulatory
approvals, the approval of BSkyB stockholders amstamary closing conditions.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Company is a diversified global media and e¢ait@ment company, which manages and reports itsi&sses in the five segments
described below.

Cable Network Programming

The Company produces and licenses news, business sgorts, general entertainment and movie progiagfor distribution
primarily through cable television systems, didectadcast satellite operators, telecommunicationspanies and online video distributors in
the United States and internationally.

FOX News and Fox Business NetwoROX News owns and operates the FOX News Chatireetop rated 24/7 all news national ce
channel currently available in approximately 96lianl U.S. households according to Nielsen Mediadaesh, as well as the FOX Business
Network which is currently available in nearly 79lan U.S. households

FOX News also produces a weekend political commmgrstaow,FOX News Sundayfor broadcast on local FOX television stations
throughout the United States. FOX News, throughr@X News Edge service, licenses news feeds to Affikates and other subscribers to
use as part of local news broadcasts throughoufitlited States and abroad. FOX News also produtesums the websites, FOXNews.com
and FOXBusiness.com, and owns and produces thenah##OX News Radio Network, which licenses newdaigs and long form programs
local radio stations and to satellite radio provéde

FSN. Fox Sports Net, Inc. (“FSN, Inc.”) is the largesgional sports network (“RSN”) programmer in theited States, focusing on
live professional and major collegiate home teanrtspevents. FSN, Inc.’s sports
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programming business currently consists primarilgwnership interests in 15 RSNs, including an 8d&fership interest in the Yankees
Entertainment and Sports Network as a result oatwiisition of an additional 31% equity interesFebruary 2014, and numerous sub-
regional feeds (the “FSN RSNs") and National SpBrisgramming, which operates FSN (“FSN”), a nati@p@rts programming service. FSN
is affiliated with an additional five RSNs that aret owned by FSN, Inc. (the “FSN Affiliated RSNsPSN provides the FSN RSNs and the
FSN Affiliated RSNs with national sports programumyifieaturing original and licensed sports-relatemjpamming, as well as live and replay
sporting events. In the aggregate, the FSN RSNshenBSN Affiliated RSNs currently have approxinta®@l million subscribers and have
rights to telecast live games of 51 of 81 U.S. @ssfonal sports teams in Major League Baseball BRjLthe National Basketball Association
and the National Hockey League; collegiate confegspand numerous college and high school spamsse

Fox Sports 1ln August 2013, the Company launched Fox Sporgsrhulti-sport national cable network. During calengear 2014,
Fox Sports 1 will feature over 700 live events)uing college football and basketball, UEFA Chaomsi League an d other premier soccer,
National Association of Stock Car Auto Racii‘NASCAR”), and Ultimate Fighting Championship (“UFCas well as regular season and
post-season MLB games. Beginning in 2015, Fox Spbwill also feature United States Golf AssociatfdtJSGA") events and the
International Federation of Football AssociatioIiFA") Women’s World Cup events. In addition todi events, Fox Sports 1 features a
nightly multi-hour live national sports news shdvax Sports Live an afternoon multi-sport news and highlight shAmerica’s Pregame
Show, original and documentary programming and dailglgt programming.

Fox Sports 2 In August 2013, FUEL TV became Fox Sports 2, &irgports national cable network featuring live evdram the UFC
and NASCAR, along with college basketball, rugbyshalian Football League, world-class soccer antbmsports programming. Since its
launch, Fox Sports 2 has featured over 350 livesve

SPEED. SPEED is a 24-hour programming service consisifngotorsports programming , including NASCAR rscevents and
original programming (with exclusive coverage of timnual NASCAR Sprint All-Star Race , NASCAR HafllIFame cer emonies and
NASCAR Camping World Truck Serie, The 24 Hours of Le Mans, AMA Supercross, Mongam and MotoGP. SPEED was distributed in
the United States until August 2013, and contirtodse distributed to subscribers in Canada an€#rébean. SPEED is also distributed by
Foxtel in Australia.

Fox College SportsFox College Sports consists of three regiondilyr@d networks, FCS Pacific, FCS Central and F@8mic. Fox
College Sports provides live and delayed collegéatents from a variety of collegiate conferencesctes’ shows and collegiate highlight and
magazine-format programming from the FSN RSNs actios country.

Fox Soccer PlusLaunched in fiscal 2010, Fox Soccer Plus is anjpren cable network showcasing nearly 700 exclubigesoccer an
rugby competitions. Soccer events include matctms the UEFA Champions League and FA Cup. Rugbg@ge includes matches from -
Heineken Cup, Aviva Premiership and the NationajRuLeague.

Big Ten Network The Company owns an approximate 51% interestarBig Ten Network, a 24-hour national programmgagrice
dedicated to the collegiate Big Ten ConferenceRigdlen athletics, academics and related programngnd Big Ten Network HD, a 24-hour
national programming service produced a nd disteithin HD.

FX . Currently reaching close to 100 million U.S. heluslds according to Nielsen Media Research, FX Niksy LLC (“FX”) is a
general entertainment network that telecasts aiggpwoster of original series, as well as acquieddvision series and motion pictures. FX’s
lineup for the 2014-2015 season includes the alitfi@acclaimedSons of Anarchy, Justified, American Horror Stdiye AmericanandThe
Bridge, as well as the first seasonsItife StrainandTyrant. Also included in the 2014-2015 season line-uptlaeecomedieéircher, Louie,
Wilfred and the premiere seasondMdirried andYou're the Worst FX televises acquired series includihgo and a Half MenAnger
Managemenand, later in 2014Vlike and Molly, and showcases the television premieres of tlvahirotion pictures, which in the 2014-2015
season will includ&he Avengers, The Amazing Spider-Man, The Bourgadyelce Age: Continental Drift, Zero Dark Thirfyast & Furious
6, Life of Piandldentity Thiefamong




others. The Company also produces and distribitedB, FXX HD and FXM HD, 24-hour national progranmgi services produced and
distributed in high definition (“HD").

FXX. In September 2013, the Company launched FXXnam¢ entertainment channel aimed primarily at ypadults. FXX's line-up
includes the comedy seri#s Always Sunny in Philadelphialhe LeaguandAli G: Rezurection In addition, FXX will showcase the
television premieres of an extensive slate of tiegtmotion pictures includined, Madagascar 3: Europe’s Most Wanted, Hotel
Transylvania, The LoraandSnow White & the Huntsmarin November 2013, FXX acquired the exclusive eaights to air all 552 episodes
of The Simpsons

FXM . FXM splits its programming into two day partsoffr 3AM to 3PM, the network airs films from the loist library of Twentieth
Century Fox, uncut and commercial free. From 3PRAM, the network utilizes FX’s roster of box offidblockbuster modern day films. Also
featured throughout both day parts are documentarid original series that explore the moviemakiragess from script to screen. During the
2014-2015 season, FXM will showcase the televigimmieres of theatrical motion pictures, includires Misérables among others.

National Geographic U.SThe National Geographic Channels air non-fictiod dacumentary programming on such topics as natural
history, adventure, science, exploration and celtthe Company holds an approximate 70% intereStG@ Network US LLC, which
produces and distributes the National Geographen@él, National Geographic Channel HD, Nat Geo Wildt Geo Wild HD and Nat Geo
Mundo in the United States, with NGT, LLC, a sulemiygl of the National Geographic Society, holding temaining interest. National
Geographic Channel and National Geographic Chadbeturrently reach more than 85 million househatdthe United States and Nat Geo
Wild and Nat Geo Wild HD reach more than 56 millgubscribers in the United States according toddieMedia Research.

Internet Distribution.The Company also distributes programming througinétwork-branded websites and applications aeddies
programming for distribution through the websitasl applications of cable television systems, dibeohdcast sate llite operators,
telecommunications companies and online videoiligirs. The Company’s applications provide livel @m-demand streaming of network-
related programming, and currently include Fox $p@o, which launched in October 2013, Big Ten Netlws application, BTN2Go and
FX's application, FX Now, which will offer all exigg episodes ofhe Simpsonis an immersive interactive area of the applicatated
“Simpsons World.”

Fox International Channels (“FIC")FIC operates, develops and distributes primarityual, sports, lifestyle and general entertainmer
channels in various countries in Europe, Latin AingerAfrica and Asia, including, but not limited, the Fox Channel, Fox Life (which is also
distributed in the United States), FX, Fox Crim&)>Traveller, the Voyage Channel, Fox Sports, STWRrld, STAR Movies (also known as
Fox Movies Premium in certain countries) and Chénlesguage television programming targeted at Geispeaking audiences in Asia. Thes
channels are distributed either in HD or in stadd#efinition (“SD”) or in certain cases, in both HIbd SD.

FIC owns a 52.2% interest in NGC Network InternadiloLLC and NGC Network Latin America LLC (colleatlly “NGC
International”), with NGT, LLC holding a 26.8% ime&st and a subsidiary of BSkyB holding a 21% irgeria July 2014, the Company entered
into an agreement with BSkyB, where the Companj/redeive the 21% interest in NGC Internationaddhigy a subsidiary of BSkyB as part of
the consideration for the transfer of the Compaimtarests in Sky Italia. Upon completion of thiartsaction, FIC’s ownership stake in NGC
International will increase to 73%. NGC Internatibproduces the National Geographic Channel, th@ha Geographic Channel HD, the [
Geo Adventure channel (in both HD and SD), the Glad Wild channel (in both HD and SD) and the Nab GRisic channel, and these
channels are also distributed in various intermationarkets. The National Geographic Channel isettily shown in 48 languages and in
approximately 171 countries internationally, indhglthe United States.

In September 2013, FIC acquired an additional @stieof approximately 22% in LAPTV, increasing FI@igerest from approximately
78% to 100%. LAPTV distributes 10 premium pay t&@n channels (Moviecity Premieres HD, Moviecitye®ieres, Moviecity Action HD,
Moviecity Action, Moviecity Family HD, Moviecity Raily, Moviecity Hollywood HD, Moviecity HollywoodMoviecity Classics and
Moviecity Mundo) and four basic television chann@m Zone HD, Film Zone, Cinecanal and CinecadtBl) in Latin America (excluding
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Brazil). Such channels primarily feature theatrivaition pictures of Twentieth Century Fox and tho#teer studios dubbed in Spanish and/c
the English language with Spanish subtitles.

FIC owns a 50.1% equity interest in Elite Sportaitéd, a company that owns and distributes Babya 24-hour channel dedicated to
infants and toddlers under three years old. TheyBabchannel is currently shown in more than 10Qrdaes, including the United States.

In November 2012, FIC acquired a controlling 51%nevship stake in Eredivisie Media & Marketing C\EfM”), a media company
that holds the collective media and sponsorshiptsigf the Dutch Premier League. The remaining 49®MM is owned by the Dutch Prem
League and the global TV production company Endemol

FIC operates Fox Pan American Sports LLC, doingrass as Fox Sports Latin America (“FSLA”), an imegional sports
programming and production entity. FSLA owns andrapes the Fox Sports networks in Latin Americachtare comprised of Spanish-
language sports networks that are distributed bieaibers in Mexico and certain Caribbean and @éatrd South American countries, as well
as Fox Sports Brazil, a Portuguese-language spetigork specifically geared to the Brazilian aud®nThe Company also owns 100% of Fox
Deportes, a Spanish-language sports programmirgsatistributed in the United States. Fox Depoffesnerly known as Fox Sports en
Espafiol), has more than 2,100 hours of live antlueike programming, including exclusive coverag@miere soccer matches (such as (
Libertadores and Copa Sudamericana) and MLB, imatpdll- Star, NLCS and World Series games. Fox Deporteshesamore than 21 millic
cable and satellite households in the United Stafeshich more than 6.5 million are Hispanic.

FIC owns a 50% interest in MundoFox Broadcastin€Lh joint venture with RCN MF Holdings, Inc., atirekAmerican television
network and production company. In August 2012 jofre venture launched MundoFox, a Spanish-languzgadcast television network
targeted at the U.S. Hispanic market. MundoFoxuiest original news and original and syndicatedréaitenent programming.

FIC manages Channel [V] Thailand in which the Conypawns a 49% interest. Channel [V] Thailand owA$hai language music
channel. FIC licenses its Channel [V] brand toiadtharty in Australia to operate a music channel.

FIC has a joint venture with CJ E&M (formerly CJ tla), a Korean media conglomerate for the distridyubf the M channel, a 24-
hour general entertainment channel featuring Kooeeatent, such as original dramas, variety shoeajty and lifestyle programs.

In July 2012, FIC entered into a joint venture withh Bank Corporation for the operation of the Jagslanguage pay-TV sports
channel, Fox Sports. FIC owns a 60% interest irjdimt venture.

STAR India STAR India develops, produces and broadcasthdfrels in seven languages, which are distributieapily via satellite
to local cable, internet protocol television (“IPT\And direct-to-home (“DTH") operators for disttition throughout Asia, the United
Kingdom, Continental Europe, North America and paftAfrica to their subscribers. STAR India’s chats include the flagship Hindi general
entertainment channels STAR Plus and Life OK, thedHmovie channels Star Gold and Movies OK, thglish general entertainment
channels Star World, Star World Premier HD, FX &oa Crime, the English movie channels Star Movies @tar Movies Action, the Bengali
general entertainment channel STAR Jalsha, the &8iemgvie channel Jalsha Movies, the Marathi gdremtertainment channel STAR
Pravah, the South Indian languages general entaréait channels Asianet, Suvarna, Suvarna Plus gag W, and six STAR Sports
channels. STAR India’s primary sources of prograngnior its channels include original programmingdurced, commissioned or acquired by
STAR India. STAR India also owns a Hindi film lilyacomprised of approximately 1,182 titles, a Sduattian languages film library
comprised of approximately 2,599 titles, a Benfjhti library comprised of approximately 264 titles Marathi film library comprised of
approximately 151 titles, a Hindi television progrébrary comprised of approximately 868 titlessauth Indian languages program library
comprised of approximately 4,363 titles, a Bengadigram library comprised of approximately 1878tla Marathi program library comprised
of approximately 115 titles, an English prograntdity comprised of approximately 307 titles and aglsh movie library comprised of
approximately 609 titles.




In November 2013, STAR India launched six STAR $paoetworks, which broadcast in India, among ofiperts, the BCCI Domestic
and International Cricket Series matches in Infdiaywhich Star India has acquired media rights tigto 2018, the International Cricket Council
matches, for which Star India has acquired mediatsithrough 2015, the England and Wales Cricketr@matches, for which Star India has
acquired media rights through 2017, and Crickettdalis matches, for which Star India has acquirediia rights through 2017.

In May 2014, the Company acquired additional irdesén Asianet Communications Limited (“Asianet Gommications”), increasing
the Company'’s interest from 87% to approximatel@%0 Asianet Communications broadcasts and opettatdglalayalam language channels
Asianet and Asianet Plus and the Kannada languzgyenel Suvarna. The Company also owns 100% of Miggvision Private Limited,
which broadcasts and operates the Tamil languagenet Vijay.

The Company also owns an approximate 26% stakalaiBrelefilms Limited (“Balaji”), which is one ahe largest television content
production companies in India, the shares of whiehlisted on The Stock Exchange, Mumbai and th@Nh& Stock Exchange of India. Balaji
currently produces serials broadcast on generattamment channels in India.

In May 2011, Star Den, a 50/50 joint venture wittnDNetworks Limited, entered into a 50/50 joint tvea, Media Pro Enterprise India
Private Limited (“Media Pro”), with Zee Turner Lited and Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited (“EBHEo distribute and market all
channels owned by the Company and ZEEL, their ctsmeaffiliated channels and other third partymhels in India, Nepal and Bhutan. In
February 2014, the Telecom Regulatory Authoritynofia (the “TRAI”) issued regulations prohibitingmtent aggregators from bundling
channels of third party broadcasters. As a rebidtlia Pro ceased operations in August 2014.

Middle East.The Company has an approximate 19% interest inrRdi#olding FZ-LLC (“Rotana”), a diversified mediarapany in the
Middle East and North Africa. The Company also amspproximate 36.8% interest in Moby Group Holdibhgnited (“MGH"). MGH
operates television, radio, production and otheadimbusinesses in Afghanistan and elsewhere inr@learid South Asia.

Fox Sports Asialn November 2012, the Company acquired the remgiB0% interest in ESPN STAR Sports, now operadisifrox
Sports Asia and STAR Sports, that it did not alyeadn for approximately $220 million, net of cagiyaired, and the Company now, through
its wholly owned subsidiaries, owns 100% of Fox i&pésia. Fox Sports Asia is a leading sports bcaater in Asia and operates 27 channels
in different languages.

Phoenix. In November 2013, the Company sold its remaidia® interest in Phoenix Satellite Television Hofgir imited
(“Phoenix”), which owns and operates Chinese laggugeneral entertainment, movie and current afthiennels, as well as a new media
business, for approximately $210 million.

PT Visi Media AsiaThe Company owns an approximate 6.7% interest iviBiTMedia Asia Tbk, a company which listed on the
Indonesia Stock Exchange in November 2011. PT Mesilia Asia Tbk owns and operates television chanaetl an online news portal, all of
which are targeted at audiences in Indonesia.

Competition

General.Cable network programming is a highly competitiusiness. Cable networks compete for content aridhdison and, when
distribution is obtained, for viewers and adversseith free-to-air broadcast television, radianpmedia, motion picture theaters, DVDs, Blu-
ray high definition format discs (“Blu-rays’iternet, wireless and portable viewing devices athér sources of information and entertainn
Important competitive factors include the pricearged for programming, the quantity, quality andetgt of programming offered and the
effectiveness of marketing efforts.

FOX NewsFOX News Channel’s primary competition comes friwa ¢able networks CNN, HLN (CNN'’s Headline Newsjd a
MSNBC. Fox Business Network’s primary competitianes from the cable networks CNBC and Bloombergvision. FOX News Channel
and FOX Business Network also compete for viewats a




advertisers within a broad spectrum of televisietworks, including other non -news cable networks free-to-air broadcast television
networks.

Sports programming operation&.number of basic and pay television programmingises, such as ESPN and NBC Sports Network,
as well as free-to-air stations and broadcast mésy@rovide programming that also targets Fox 8&pbrFox Sports 2 and the FSN RSNs’
respective audience. On a national level, the pgimampetitors to Fox Sports 1, Fox Sports 2 and B& ESPN, ESPN2, NBC Sports
Network and CBS Sports Net. In regional markets,RBN RSNs compete with other regional sports nédsyancluding those operated
team owners, cable television systems, local brastdelevision stations and other sports programgminviders and distributors. Fox Sport:
Fox Sports 2 and FSN also face competition onliomfMajor League Baseball Advanced Media, YahoorSp&SPN.com, NBCSports.com
and CBSSports.com, among others.

In addition, Fox Sports 1, Fox Sports 2, the FSNNR&nd FSN compete, to varying degrees, for spootigramming rights. The FSN
RSNs compete for local and regional rights withaldaroadcast television stations, other local agional sports networks, including sports
networks launched by team owners, and distributigtfets, such as cable television systems. Foxt$AoiFox Sports 2 and FSN compete for
national rights principally with a number of natadrrable and broadcast services that specialine éarry sports programming, including sp
networks launched by the leagues and conferenoddgesevision “superstationsghat distribute sports. Independent syndicators etsnpete b
acquiring and reselling such rights nationally joeglly and locally. Distribution outlets, such @able television systems, sometimes contract
directly with the sports teams in their serviceaali@ the right to distribute a number of thoserieagames on their systems. In certain market:
the owners of distribution outlets, such as cablievision systems, also own one or more of thegsgibnal teams in the region, increasing 1
ability to launch competing networks and also lingtthe professional sports rights available faguasition by FSN RSNs.

FX and FXXFX and FXX face competition from a number of basible and pay television programming services, siscdSA
Network (‘USA”"), TNT, Spike TV, Home Box Office, Inc. (*HBQ"and Showtime Networks (“Showtime”), as well asefito-air broadcast
networks and Internet subscription and rental sessthat provide programming that targets the saeveing audience as FX and FXX. FX &
FXX also face competition from these programmingises in the acquisition of distribution rightsrwvie and series programming.

National Geographic U.National Geographic Channel and Nat Geo Wild fammapetition for viewers and advertising from a numbe
of basic cable and broadcast television channet$) as Discovery Channel, History Channel, AnimahBt, Travel Channel, Science Chan
H2, Military Channel, Biography and Tru TV, as wa# free-to-air broadcast networks and sports, m@ggeneral entertainment networks
which have acquired or produced competing progrargmi

FIC. Internationally, the Company’s cable businessespatenwith various local and foreign television $egg providers and
distribution networks for audiences, advertisingptent acquisition and distribution platforms.

STAR India In India, the pay television broadcasting indus$iss several participants, and STAR India’s eatemient channels
compete with both pay and free-to-air channelsesthey are delivered by common cable, direct-to-damd IPTV. STAR India also competes
in India to acquire Hindi and other Indian langua§jen and programming rights, and internationddly English film and programming rights.
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Television

The Company is engaged in the operation of broadekevision stations and the broadcasting of neétvpoogramming in the United
States.

Fox Television Stations

Fox Television Stations, Inc. (“Fox Television &tas”) owns and operates 28 full power stationsluiding stations located in nine of
the top ten largest designated market areas (“DMASIx Television Stations owns and operates duepat 10 DMAs, including the three
largest DMAs, New York, Los Angeles and Chicago.

Of the 28 full power stations, 18 stations ardliaféés of FOX (“FOX Affiliates”). For a descriptioof the programming offered to FOX
Affiliates, see “—FOX Broadcasting Company.” In #&ttth, Fox Television Stations owns and operatesta€ions affiliated with Master
Distribution Service, Inc. (“MyNetworkTV”).

In June 2014, Fox Television Stations entered amagreement with Cox Media Group (“CMG”) to swepHOX affiliated stations in
the Memphis and Boston markets for two CMG stationated in the San Francisco-Bay Area market. @ribe CMG stations is a FOX
Affiliate, and the other is independent. After ttiesing, CMG will continue to operate the Bosto &femphis stations as FOX Affiliates. The
transaction is subject to regulatory approvals@theér closing conditions.
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The following table lists certain information abastch of the television stations owned and opetaydebx Television Stations. Unless
otherwise noted, all stations are FOX Affiliates.

Fox Television Stations

Percentage of U.S

Television
Digital Households
DMA/Rank Station Channel Type Reached®

New York, NY 1 WNYW 44(5) UHF 6.4%
WWOR®) 38(9) UHF

Los Angeles, C/ 2 KTTV 11(11) VHF 4.€%
KCOF®) 13(13) VHF

Chicago, IL 3 WFLD 31(32) UHF 3.1%
WPWHR® 51(50) UHF

Philadelphia, P# 4 WTXF 42(29) UHF 2.6%

Dallas, TX 5 KDFW 35(4) UHF 2.2%
KDFI® 36(27) UHF

Boston, MA(©) 7 WEXT 31(25) UHF 2.1%

Washington, DC 8 WTTG 36(5) UHF 2.1%
WDCA®) 35(20) UHF

Atlanta, GA 9 WAGA 27(5) UHF 2.1%

Houston, TX 10 KRIV 26(26) UHF 2.C%
KTXH® 19(20) UHF

Detroit, Ml 11 WJBK 7(2) VHF 1.€%

Phoenix, AZ 12 KSAZ 10(10) VHF 1.€%
KUTP®) 26(45) UHF

Tampa, FL 14 WTVT 12(13) VHF 1.€%

Minneapolis, MN(®) 15 KMSP 9(9) VHF 1.5%
WFTC®) 29(29) UHF

Orlando, FL 18 WOFL 22(35) UHF 1.2%
WRBW(®) 41(65) UHF

Charlotte, NC 25 WJZY 47(46) UHF 1.C%
WMYT ®) 39(55) UHF

Austin, TX 40 KTBC 7(7) VHF 0.6%

Memphis, TN®©) 50 WHBQ 13(13) VHF 0.€%

Gainesville, FL 163 WOGX 31(51) UHF 0.1%

TOTAL 37.5%

Source: Nielsen Media Research, January .

(a8)  VHF television stations transmit on Channels 2tiglto13 and UHF television stations on Channelshigugh 51. The Federal
Communications Commission (the “FCC") applies adist (the “UHF Discount”) which attributes only%Qof the television
households in a local television market to the anicik reach of a UHF television station for purpadeslculating whether that statien’
owner complies with the national station ownerstap imposed by FCC regulations and by statute;akimg this calculation, only the
stations actual (digital) broadcast channel is considdredddition, the coverage of two commonly ownediens in the same marke
counted only once. The percentages listed are emiadd do not take into account the UHF Discoumt.nkore information regarding
the FCCs national station ownership cap, “Government Regulati—Televisior” in this Annual Repori

(d)  MyNetworkTV affiliate.

(©) In June 2014, Fox Television Stations entered am@agreement to acquire two San Francisco-Baytal®asion stations from CMG in
exchange for the Fox Television Stations’ FOX &fféd stations WHBQ-TV FOX 13 and WFXT-TV FOX 2dcéated in the Memphis
and Boston markets, respectively. After the closbigIG will continue to operate the Boston and Mempstations as FOX Affiliates.
The transaction is subject to regulatory appro&als other closing condition

(@) The Company also owns and operates full powernstdFTC, Channel 26, Bemidji, MN as a satellitdistaof WFTC, Channel 29,
Minneapolis, MN. Station KFTC is in addition to tB8 full power stations described in this sect
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FOX Broadcasting Company (“FOX")

FOX has 205 FOX Affiliates, including 18 stationsreed and operated by the Company, which reach appately 99% of all U.S.
television households. In general, each week F@Xlezly delivers to its affiliates 15 hours of peaime programming and 60 minutes of late
night programming on Saturday. FOX’s prime-timeegt@inment programming features such serids$eag Girl, Sleepy Hollow The
Following, The Simpsor, andGlee;unscripted series such American Idol, Hell's KitchemndSo You Think You Can Dangevent series
such a®4: Live Another Dayand various specials. In addition, a significamhponent of FOX’s programming consists of sports
programming, with FOX providing to its affiliateivé coverage (including post-season) of the Natioatball Conference of the National
Football League (the “NFL") and MLB, as well asdizoverage of the Sprint Cup Series of the NASCédRege football and basketball, UFC
and international soccer, including, beginning @12, the FIFA Women’s World Cup. FOX also airs a#our block of direct response
programming on Saturday mornings provided by WarldVentures (“Worldlink”), a media sales firm. FGXagreement with Worldlink
extends through the 2014-2015 broadcast season.

FOX’s prime-time line-up is intended to appeal iity to target audiences of 18 to 49-year old tsjuhe demographic group that
advertisers seek to reach most often, with an esiplaa the difficult to reach 18 to 34-year old lademographic coveted by advertisers.
During the 2013-2014 traditional September to Meyablcast season, FOX ranked first (tied with NB@aklicast network (“NBC”)) in prime-
time programming among adults ages 18 to 34 armmhskio prime-time programming based on viewersliipdults ages 18 to 49 (based on
Live+7 ratings). This is the 1®consecutive year FOX has ranked first among adgks 18 to 34 (2002-2003 to 2013-2014) and the 14
consecutive year FOX has ranked first among teges &2 to 17 (2000-2001 to 2013-2014). FOX hasadiiikst among adults ages 18 to 49
eight out of the past 10 years. The median ageeoFOX viewer is 49 years, as compared to 52 yeafdBC, 53 years for ABC Television
Network (‘ABC”) and 57 years for CBS Television Network (“GB).

FOX obtains programming from major television stisdand independent television production compgmiesuant to license
agreements. The terms of those agreements gengrallide FOX with the right to broadcast a telestisseries for a minimum of four seasons.

National sports programming is obtained througbrige agreements with professional or collegiatetSpeagues or organizations.
FOX'’s current licenses with the NFL, MLB, collegeotball conferences, NASCAR, FIFA and UFC are seginy long-term agreements,
including a new long-term agreement with the USG#hwevents on FOX beginning in 2015.

FOX provides programming to the FOX Affiliates iocardance with affiliation agreements of varyingations, which grant to each
affiliate the right to broadcast network televisigmmgramming on the affiliated station. Such agreets typically run three or more years and
have staggered expiration dates. These affiligneements generally require FOX Affiliates to g&©X programming in all time periods in
which FOX programming is offered to those affiligteubject to certain exceptions stated in thdatftin agreements.

FOX also distributes programming through its netwioranded website and FoxNow application and liesnqgogramming for
distribution through the websites and applicatiohsable television systems, direct broadcast l#atelperators, telecommunications compa
and online video distributors.

In addition, FOX produces multi-platform originaiathatic series and original online animated sexmeksshorts under its Animation
Domination High-Def brand.
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MyNetworkTV

The programming distribution service, Master Disition Service, Inc. (branded as MyNetworkTV), disites two hours per night,
Monday through Friday, of original and off- netwgrkogramming from Twentieth Television and otherdiparty syndicators to its licensee
stations. As of June 30, 2014, MyNetworkTV hadriee and delivery agreements covering 182 statindsiding 10 stations owned and
operated by the Company, reaching approximately 864 S. households.

Competition.The network television broadcasting business iklfsigompetitive. FOX and MyNetworkTV compete witther broadca:
networks, such as ABC, NBC, CBS and The CW Telewidietwork, independent television stations, cabile direct broadcast satellite
(“DBS”) program services, as well as other medialuding DVDs, Blu-rays, digital video recorder®{R"), video games, print and the
Internet for audiences, programming and, in the cd$-OX, advertising revenues. In addition, FOX afyNetworkTV compete with other
broadcast networks and other programming distidiousiervices to secure affiliations or station agrets with independently owned televis
stations in markets across the United States. ABL; and CBS each broadcasts a significantly greaterber of hours of programming than
FOX and, accordingly, may be able to designatéhange time periods in which programming is to bmalcast with greater flexibility than
FOX. In addition, future technological developmemizy affect competition within the television magkace.

Each of the stations owned and operated by FoxiBaba Stations also competes for advertising reresrwith other television stations
and radio and cable systems in its respective rharka, along with other advertising media, suchexgspapers, magazines, outdoor
advertising, direct mail and Internet websites. dlthe stations owned and operated by Fox TelewiSitations are located in highly
competitive markets. Additional elements that aegarial to the competitive position of each of thlevision stations include management
experience, authorized power and assigned frequefityt station. Competition for sales of broadeatvertising time is based primarily on
the anticipated and actually delivered size andatgaphic characteristics of audiences as deterntigadrious rating services, price, the time
of day when the advertising is to be broadcast,paiition from the other broadcast networks, cablevision systems, DBS services and othel
media and general economic conditions. Competfiormudiences is based primarily on the selectfgorogramming, the acceptance of which
is dependent on the reaction of the viewing publitich is often difficult to predict.

Filmed Entertainment

The Company is engaged in the production and aitigni®f live-action and animated motion pictures distribution and licensing in
all formats in all entertainment media worldwidedahe production and licensing of television pesgming worldwide.

Motion Picture Production and Distributior

One of the world’s largest producers and distribgitif motion pictures, Twentieth Century Fox FilfiCFF") produces, acquires and
distributes motion pictures throughout the worldl@na variety of arrangements. During fiscal 200@FF placed 24 motion pictures in gent
release in the United States. The motion pictuf@$CéF are produced and/or distributed by the feit@ units of TCFF: Twentieth Century
Fox and Fox 2000, which produce and acquire maiiotures for mainstream audiences; Fox SearchRgtitres, which produces and acqu
specialized motion pictures; and Twentieth Cenfoy Animation, which produces feature length anadanotion pictures. In addition, Fox
International Productions, Inc. co-produces, cedfites and acquires local-language motion pictutesded for distribution outside the United
States. The motion pictures produced and/or digiih by TCFF in the United States and internatioemitories in fiscal 2014 includethe
Wolverine, 12 Years a Slave, The Grand Budapest!HRio 2, The Other Woman, X-Men: Days of FutustPThe Fault in Our Starand
How To Train Your Dragon . TCFF has already released or currently planslemse approximately 26 motion pictures in the éthitates in
fiscal 2015, includingpawn of the Planet of the Apes, Gone Girl, Exodiig Penguins of Madagascar, Night at the Museurtresef the
Tomb, Taken 3, Spy, The Fantastic Four, \@itdBest Exotic Marigold Hotel Pursuant to an agreement with Monarchy Enterptikddings
B.V. (“MEH"), the parent company of New Regencywhich the Company has a 20% interest, and cerfdifdd’s subsidiaries, TCFF
distributes certain New Regency films and all filowsfinanced by TCFF and New Regency in all media
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worldwide, excluding a number of international it@mies with respect to television rights. Amongfiscal 2015 releases, TCFF currently
expects to distribute three New Regency films.

The Company has an arrangement with DreamWorks atmem SKG, Inc. (“DWA”) to distribute new releaseimated motion pictures
produced by DWA, as well as certain other libramytion pictures and programming conlied by DWA, domestically and internationally irl
media including theatrical, all home media formeatsl certain forms of television. Among TCFF's fis2@15 releases, TCFF currently expects
to distribute three DWA films.

Motion picture companies, such as TCFF, typicadigksto generate revenues from various distributiannels. TCFF derives its
worldwide revenues from motion pictures and othregpam distribution primarily from four basic soasc(set forth in general chronology of
exploitation): (i) distribution of motion picturdsr theatrical exhibition in the United States @ahada and markets outside of the United
States and Canada (“international” markets); {gjribution of motion pictures and other programgiin various home media formats,
including digital distribution; (iii) distributiorof motion pictures and other programming for extidioi on premium pay and subscription video-
on-demand (“SVOD"); and (iv) distribution of motiguictures and other programming for exhibition ceeftelevision networks, other
broadcast program services, independent televigations and basic cable programming servicegjdimy certain services which are affiliates
of the Company. The Company does not always haWsrin all media of exhibitio n to all motion pices that it releases, and does not
necessarily distribute a given motion picture iroéthe foregoing media in all markets. The Comphbalieves that the pnelease marketing
a feature film is an integral part of its motiortpire distribution strategy and generally beginskating efforts three to six months in advance
of a film's release date in any given territory.elGompany markets and distributes its films worttevprincipally through its own distribution
and marketing companies.

Through Twentieth Century Fox Home Entertainmen€land TCFF, the Company distributes motion pictaresd other programming
produced by units of TCFF, its affiliates and othevducers in the United States, Canada and irtterra markets in all home media formats,
including the sale and rental of DVDs and Blu-rdysfiscal 2014, the domestic home entertainmevisidin released or re-released
approximately 1,249 produced and acquired titledpiding 19 new TCFF film releases, approximatdly 8atalog titles and approximately :
television and non-theatrical titles. In internatdmarkets, the Company distributed, producedamuoglired titles both directly and through
foreign distribution channels, with approximatel@d4 releases in fiscal 2014, including approxitya2® new TCFF film releases,
approximately 723 catalog titles and approximagdy television and non-theatrical releases. The 2oy enters into domestic and
international license arrangements with third arfor distribution by electronic sell-through (“E%, video-on-demand (“VYOD”) and/or pay-
per-view (“PPV"). Distribution on an EST basis eleshconsumers to acquire the right to retain prmogran a permanent basis. The EST, VOL
and PPV arrangements generally provide for licdess based on a percentage of the licensee’s grosipts received from consumers and in
some cases a guaranteed minimum fee per conswuaneattion. In addition, these arrangements geggralvide for a minimum number of
scheduled PPV exhibitions per program and for cowtiis VOD availability of each program to consuntzning a fixed period. In fiscal 201
the Company continued its arrangement to distribete release animated motion pictures producedWlas well as certain other catalog
motion pictures and programming controlled by DWi\fiscal 2014, the Company continued its worldwidene video distribution
arrangement with Metro-Goldwyn-Mayer (“MGM”"), reldag approximately 520 MGM home entertainment thiealt catalog and television
programs domestically and 558 internationally. Tlmenpany also continued its domestic home videailligton arrangements with Lions G.
Films Inc. (“Lions Gate”) (U.S. only) and Anchor B&ntertainment, LLC (“Anchor Bay”) (U.S. and Camadreleasing approximately 1,536
Lions Gate home entertainment theatrical, catafmjtalevision programs and approximately 696 Anday home entertainment theatrical,
catalog and television programs. During fiscal 2ahé domestic home entertainment division reledgddBlu-ray titles, including 19 new
TCFF film releases, 350 catalog titles and 72 islem and non-theatrical releases. In internationatkets, the Company released 326 Blu-ray
titles, including 20 new TCFF film releases and 886alog titles. The Company also distributed B8Lray titles from MGM domestically
and 127 titles internationally, 313 Blu-ray titiesm Lions Gate domestically, and 169 Blu-ray stfeom Anchor Bay domestically.

Units of TCFF license motion pictures and othergpaonming in the United States and internationalkeigrto various third party and
certain affiliated subscription pay television &MOD services as well as to free television netwankd basic cable programming services fol
distribution by means of various media, which may
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include DBS, cable television systems and the heterThe license agreements reflecting the suligmmipay television arrangements generally
provide for a specified number of exhibitions of fhrogram during a fixed term in exchange for arlae fee that is based on a variety of
factors, including the box office performance ofle@rogram and the number of subscribers to thecgeor system. Among third party license
arrangements that units of TCFF have in placeerthited States for subscription pay televisionileition of motion pictures is an exclusive
license agreement with HBO, providing for the lising of films initially released for theatrical eékhion. Units of TCFF also license
programming to SVOD services in the United StaBesh licenses enable the consumer to view individiggramming selected by the viewer
for a subscription fee, typically on a monthly lsash international markets, units of TCFF licensation pictures and other programming to
subscription pay television and SVOD services deeray leading third parties, as well as to suchises operated by various affiliated
entities. In addition, units of TCFF license motjaintures and other programming in internationatkets for exhibition on free television
networks, including basic cable programming sesjit@th to independent third party broadcastersedisas to services operated by affiliated
entities of the Company.

Competition. Motion picture production and distribution arglilly competitive businesses. The Company compeithsother film
studios, independent production companies and ®foethe acquisition of artistic properties, tleevices of creative and technical personnel,
exhibition outlets and the public’s interest inpt®ducts. The number of motion pictures releagethé Company’s competitors, particularly
the other major film studios, in any given periodyntreate an oversupply of product in the markeicivmay reduce the Company’s shares o
gross box office admissions and may make it mdfecdit for the Company’s motion pictures to sucde&@he commercial success of the
motion pictures produced and/or distributed byGleenpany is affected substantially by the publigipredictable response to them. The
competitive risks affecting the Company’s home gatement business include the number of home &itenent titles released by the
Company’s competitors that may create an oversugigbyoduct in the market, competition among honssglia formats, such as DVDs and
Blu-rays, and other methods of distribution, susfE&T and VOD services.

The Company faces ongoing risks associated witkralting unauthorized copying and distribution bétCompany’s programs. For a
further discussion of issues relating to unautleatizopying and distribution of the Company’s progsasee “—Intellectual Property.”

Television Programming, Production and Domestic Sljcation Distribution

Twentieth Century Fox Television (“TCFTV."During fiscal 2014, TCFTV produced television grams for FOX, FX, ABC, CBS,
NBC and Netflix. TCFTV currently produces, or haders to produce, episodes of the following telieviseriesBackstrom Bob's Burgers
Bones, Bordertown, Empire, Family Guy, Glee, The Last Man on Earth, New Girl, The Simpsons,@léllowandWeird Lonerdor FOX;
American Horror Stonfor FX; Cristela, Fresh Off the Boat, Last Man StandamgiModern Familyfor ABC; andAmerican Dador Turner
Broadcasting System. Generally, a television networcable network will license a specified numbgepisodes for exhibition during the
license period. All other distribution rights, inding international and off-network syndicationhtg, are typically retained by TCFTV, utilized
by other units of the Company or sold to third it

Fox 21, Inc. (“Fox 21").Fox 21 produces television programs for major d&ble networks. The company produess of Anarchy
andTyrantfor FX; Homelandfor ShowtimeBrickleberryfor Comedy PartnerSalemfor WGN Am ericajLegenddor TNT , Witches of East
Endfor Lifetime; andRushfor USA.

Television programs generally are produced undetraots that provide for license fees that may cowdy a portion of the anticipated
production costs. As these costs have increasegtént years, the resulting deficit between pradoatosts and license fees for domestic first-
run programming also has increased. Thereforetiaddl licensing is often critical to the financ&lccess of a series. Successful U.S. networ
television series are typically (i) licensed fasfirun exhibition in international markets, (iéleased in DVD and Blu-ray box sets, (iii) made
available for EST, including individual episodesldull series, (iv) licensed for VOD, PPV and SV@Brvices, including individual episodes
and full series, (v) licensed for off-network exititn in the United States (including in syndicatiand to cable programmers) and (vi) license
for further television exhibition in internationadarkets. Typically, a series must be broadcasaffteast three to four television seasons for
there to be a sufficient number of episodes tordffe series in syndication or to cable and DBjmmers in the United
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States. The decision of a television network tatiooe a series through an entire television seasoo renew a series for another television
season depends largely on the series’ audienceysati

Twentieth TelevisionTwentieth Television licenses both television pesgming and feature films for domestic syndication
television stations and basic cable services irUthiged States. Twentieth Television distributgg@gram portfolio that includes the
Company’s library of television and film assetsd dinst-run programming produced by its productocmmpanies for sales to local stations,
including stations owned and operated by the Compamwell as to basic cable networks. First-ruogpams distributed by Twentieth
Television include the court shdwivorce Courtand the entertainment magazine progfaish Nation.

Twentieth Television derives revenue from off-netkydheatrical and first-run program sales in thierf of cash license fees paid by
both broadcast and cable licensees, and from the shnational advertising units retained by Tvietht Television in its programs. Twentieth
Television licenses such showsMsdern Family, Archer, It's Always Sunny in Philfatéa , Burn Notice, Family GuyThe Simpsons, Bones,
How | Met Your Mother, The Cleveland Show, s Burgers, GleandThe Simpson® cable and broadcast networks. Twentieth TeleRisi
also sells national advertising on behalf of othénd party syndicators.

Fox Television Studios (“FtvS”)FtvS is a program supplier to the major U.S. iatelnational broadcast and cable networks. FtvS is
currently producing the seri®ghite Collar, Graceland, SirerendComplicationdor USA, The AmericanandThe Comedian®r FX, The
Killing for Netflix andMaronfor IFC.

Shine Limited (“Shine”)Shine is an international television production digdribution group with 26 operating companiesoasrll
countries creating and exploiting scripted and soripted content in the global marketplace. Shoraganies include award-winning genre
specialists such as U.K.-based Kudos (drama), Drfag(factual), Princess Productions (entertainnmard multi-genre) and Shine TV (factual
and factual entertainment); U.S. producer Shine daagformerly Reveille); and Shine Nordics (preyvsty Metronome Film & Television), tl
Nordic regior's largest production group. The group also inctuSine 360°, a group-wide global brand and comialenights division, and
Shine International, its dedicated internationatribhution arm. Shine International distributesatatogue of approximately 3,800 hours of
broadcast content to 265 territories worldwide fathe end of fiscal 2014. Internationally distribdtshows from the Shine group include
MasterChe(now sold for adaptation in 52 territorie3he Biggest Loserand drama3he BridgeandBroadchurchwhich is being remade in
the U.S. assracepoint. Shine has established businesses in GermanycdsrAnstralia, Spain and Portugal. Shine also tdigital and direct
to consumer business through its multi-platform ggmoducer Bossa Studios and its online originatexat producer and YouTube multi-
channel network, ChannelFlip Media.

In May 2014, the Company and certain funds managefipollo Global Management (“Apollo”) entered irdgpreliminary agreement,
subject to a number of conditions, to form a jeienture with Apollo to combine three leading crestproducers and distributors of
multiplatform entertainment: Shine, Endemol andeCdiedia Group. The new joint venture will be jojntiwned and managed by the
Company and Apollo. There can be no assurancehbairoposed transaction will be completed.

Competition. Similar to motion picture production and disttilon, production and distribution of television gramming is extremely
competitive. The Company competes with other fitmd®s, independent production companies and ofbetbe acquisition of artistic
properties, the services of creative and techpieedonnel, exhibition outlets and the public’siies in its products. In addition, television
networks have affiliated production companies frghich they are increasingly obtaining their prognaimg, which has reduced the demand
for programming from other non-affiliated parties.

Motion Picture and Television Libran

The Company’s motion picture and television libréthe “Fox Library”) consists of varying ownerstapd distribution rights to several
thousand previously released motion pictures anaymeell-known television programs. Motion pictuiaghe Fox Library include many
successful and well-known titles, suchTéme Sound of MusiaVirs. Doubtfire, Home Aloneg theStar Warsseries, th&X-Menseries,
Independence Day, The Day After Tomor), thelce Ageseries,The Planet of the Apesries Sideways Walk the Lineg The Devil Wears
Prada, Little Miss SunshinetheNight at the Museurseries, thélvin and the Chipmunkseries Slumdog Millionaire, Life of Pi
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andTaken,as well as four of the top 20 domestic box officesging films of all time, which ar&vatar, Titanic (together with Paramount
Pictures Corporationftar Wars Episode IV: A New HopedStar Wars Episode I: The Phantom Menace.

The Fox Library contains varying ownership andribsition rights to many television series and méatetelevision motion pictures.
The television programming in the Fox Library catsiof such classic series2b, How | Met Your Mother King of the Hill, Prison Break
Boston Legal, My Name is Earl, The Mary Tyler MoStow, M*A*S*H , Hill Street Blues Doogie Howser, M.D, L.A. Law, The Wonder
Years, The Practice Ally McBeal, Angel, Dharma & Greg, In Living Color, The X-Files Buffy the Vampire Slayer, The Cleveland Show,
Arrested Development, Futurama, Raising HandNYPD Blue, as well as prior seasons of such current sesigh@ SimpsonsBones,
Family Guy, Glee, Modern Family, Sons of Anarchy, New Girl, Last Man StandamglAmerican Dad

Direct Broadcast Satellite Television

The Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiafgy 8alia, and its majority-owned subsidiary, Skgudschland, engages in the
broadcast service business directly to subscribdtaly (in the case of Sky Italia) and Germanyl &ustria (in the case of Sky Deutschland).
The Company also owns a significant equity inteire&SkyB, which is engaged in the DBS businessdfdescription of the business of
BSkyB, please see discussion under heading “Edjpiigyests”).

Sky ltalia

Sky ltalia currently distributes more than 170 alela of basic, premium and pay-per-view programnsiexyices via satellite and
broadband directly to subscribers in Italy. Thisggamming includes exclusive rights to popular 8pgrevents, newly-released movies and
Sky ltalia’s original programming, such 8KY TG 24 Italy’s first 24-hour news channel. As of June 2014, Sky ltalia had approximately
4.73 million subscribers.

Sky Deutschlanc

In January 2013, the Company increased to 55%witeoship in Sky Deutschland, the leading pay tslewi operator in Germany and
Austria. Sky Deutschland currently distributes mitr@n 70 channels of basic, premium and pay-per-pi®gramming services via satellite,
cable and broadband to subscribers in Germany asttiA. Sky Deutschland also can be received vieclé in Switzerland. Sky
Deutschland’s program offering includes currentdeafilms, new series, children’s channels, docotigrées and live sports, such as the
German Bundesliga and UEFA Champions League. Asioé 30, 2014, Sky Deutschland had approximat8ly Biillion subscribers.

Combination of European Satellite Television Holdis

In July 2014, the Company entered into agreemeittsBEkyB to sell its 100% and 57% (on a fully dédd basis) ownership stakes in
Sky ltalia and Sky Deutschland, respectively. Assideration for the transfer, the Company will ieeeapproximately $9.3 billion (based on
foreign currency exchange rates as of the dateeodgireements) in value from BSkyB, including agpnately $8.6 billion in cash. The
agreements are subject to regulatory approvalsppeoval of BSkyB stockholders and customary algsionditions. The Company will
remain engaged in the DBS business through itsoappate 39% interest in BSkyB, which is more fullgscribed under the heading “Recent
Developments.”

Competition. Sky Italia and Sky Deutschland compete with comgmathat offer video, audio, interactive programgjitelephony, data
and other information and entertainment servicgeduding broadcasters of free-to-air televisionrafels, broadband Internet providers, digital
terrestrial transmission (“DTT") services, wirelessnpanies and companies that are developing naliartechnologies.

17




Other, Corporate and Eliminations

The Other, Corporate and Eliminations segment stsprimarily of corporate eliminations and othesibesses.

Equity Interests
BSkyB

The Company holds an approximate 39% interest ikyBSBSkyB'’s ordinary shares are listed on the Lam&tock Exchange under
the symbol “BSY”. BSkyB is the U.K.’s leading ertinment and communications provider, operatinghlest comprehensive multichannel,
multi-platform pay television service in the U.kndalreland. BSkyB retails subscription televisisrdaommunications services to residential
and commercial premises in the UK and Ireland dditéon to the retail and broadcast operations, \HSé#perates a number of other businesse
including wholesaling its channel portfolio, sefliadvertising on its own and partner channelsSkigbetting and gaming business and its
international distribution operation. In July 2014e Company entered into an agreement with BSky&ell to BSkyB its 100% and 57% (on a
fully diluted basis) ownership stakes in Sky Itali@d Sky Deutschland, respectively, which is matly described under the heading “Recent
Developments.” In connection with this transactithre, Company participated in BSkyB'’s equity offgrin July 2014 by purchasing additional
shares in BSkyB for approximately $900 million andintained the Company’s approximate 39% ownerisit@pest.

Hulu

The Company has an approximate 33% equity intérdstilu, LLC (“Hulu”) which operates an online videervice that offers video
content from Fox, the other one-third partners itlliINBCUniversal and The Walt Disney Company, &l as over 525 other third party
content licensors. Hulu’s premium programming iaitable free of charge to viewers at Hulu.com awer &5 destination sites online,
including AOL, IMDb, MSN, Myspace and Yahoo!. Addihal premium programming is available on a mongufscription basis at Hulu.cc
and through software applications on Internet-cotetedevices, including smart phones, tablets, ggrmonsoles and set-top boxes. In July
2013, the Company, NBCUniversal and The Walt DisGeynpany announced that they will maintain thespegetive ownership positions in
Hulu and together provide a cash infusion of $7%50an. As a result, the Company invested an addai $125 million in Hulu and has
committed to invest an additional $125 million inlH.

Tata Sky
The Company holds an approximate 30% interest ta &y Limited which owns and operates a DTH platfin India.

Bona Film Group

In fiscal 2012, the Company acquired a 17% intdareBiona Film Group (“Bona”), a film distributor i@hina listed on NASDAQ, for
approximately $70 million in cash. In July 2014e tiompany sold its entire interest in Bona for agpnately $70 million in cash.

CMC-News Asia

In June 2014, the Company sold its approximate #itétest in CMC-News Asia, a joint venture with GhiMedia Capital, a media
investment fund in China, for approximately $95limil in cash.

Other Investments

The Company has a minority equity interest in \Wtmding Inc., a digital media company.
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Government Regulation
General

Various aspects of the Company’s activities argesatlto regulation in numerous jurisdictions arotinel world. The Company believes
that it is in material compliance with the requikams imposed by those laws and regulations desthibeein. The introduction of new laws :
regulations in countries where the Compargyroducts and services are produced or distribjated changes in the enforcement of existing
and regulations in those countries) could havegatide impact on the interests of the Company.

Cable Network Programming and Direct Broadcast Siite Television

Asia. The Company broadcasts television programming avévotprint” covering approximately 53 Asian cotigs. Most countries in
which the Company operates have a regulatory frarefor the satellite and cable television indus@pvernment regulation of direct
reception and redistribution via cable or other nseaf satellite television signals, where it is mdded at all, is treated differently in each
country. At one extreme are absolute bans on grigatnership of satellite receiving equipment. Seoentries, however, have adopted a less
restrictive approach, opting to allow ownershigsafellite receiving equipment by certain institaand individuals but allowing them to
receive only authorized broadcasts. At the oppe@sitbof the spectrum are countries where privatdliga dish ownership is allowed and laws
and regulations have been adopted which suppotla@oaccess to satellite services through localecadalistribution.

Most television services within Asia, whether fteeair or pay television, are also subject to |&iag requirements. In addition, most
countries in which the Company operates controttirgent offered by local broadcast operators tiinczensorship requirements to which
program suppliers, such as the Company, are sulgectain countries also require a minimum peragntat local content. Other countries
require local broadcast operators to obtain govemrapproval to retransmit foreign programming.

Additional categories of regulation of actual otgrtial significance to the Company are restricion foreign investment in
distribution platforms, television programming puation, limitations on exclusive arrangements foamnel distribution and non-
discrimination requirements for supply or carria@rogramming and anti-competition or anti-triegislation. Such restrictions are different
in each country.

India. In India, private satellite dish ownership, inclogliDTH, is allowed. Television viewers receive latoast television signals
primarily through terrestrial and cable deliverdam more recent years, through DTH and IPTV dgliv Terrestrial broadcasting remains the
domain of government-owned broadcast stations.

All cable television operators are required to gaertain government-operated channels. Retranemgssf foreign satellite channels,
such as STAR India’s channels, are permitted, stibpdicensing requirements and compliance wittal@pplicable laws, including
programming and advertisement codes. The Indiaemovent requires that all film and media conteritethier produced in India or abroad, be
certified by the Central Board of Film Certificatigrior to exhibition in India and also places a@rtrestrictions on advertising content. The
Indian Broadcasting Foundation has issued Self Rémy Guidelines that apply to the programmingnom-news and current affairs channels.

Certain wholesale and retail channel tariffs arganireview after intervention by the Indian courhile there is no tariff regulation for
DTH at the retail level, broadcasters are requinredier an interim order by the court to offer thefiannels to DTH platforms at 42% of the r¢
charged to analog cable. Broadcasters are alsareddo provide their channels on non-discrimingtigrms to all distributors if no carriage
charges are being sought from broadcasters. In,20& Cable Television Act was amended and nevs mukre issued mandating that cable
networks switch from analog to digital systems. TiRAI issued rules that mandated, among other fhihgsic service tiers comprised of free-
to-air channels be compulsorily offered to consisn€&his new regime, which will bring digital cakdecing in line with DTH, is expected to
be fully implemented by the end of calendar yedr2@’he TRAI has recently enacted a 27.5% incregasbkannel rates that will be
implemented by January 1, 2015.

19




The TRAI enacted new regulations in March 2013,clhimit the amount of advertising time allowedtefevision channels. These
new regulations replace the regulations enactetidoyr RAI in May 2012 which had been challengechim indian courts. The March 2013
regulations have also been challenged and suclkenbak are currently pending in the Indian courts.

The Indian government has mandated sports coriggis rowners to simultaneously share a feed freleértisements of the live
broadcasting signal of sporting events of natiamglortance with the Indian government owned broatitao enable it to rransmit the sign:
on its terrestrial networks and DTH networks. Ragtsshared events, the regulations also providstfaring of advertising revenue, 75% to
content rights owners and 25% to the governmenedmoadcaster.

The Copyright laws in India were amended in JurE220 provide, inter alia, for rights to receiveatiies for authors of underlying
work and to permit broadcasters to access contetferia statutory license at royalty rates to berdened by the Copyright Board.

Latin America.The Company broadcasts television programming tittout approximately 18 Latin American countriesyad$l as the
Caribbean. Certain countries in which the Compargrates have a regulatory framework for the stdadind cable television industry. These
regulations vary in each country as does their ohpa the Company’s business. In Argentina, theegawent imposes restrictions on the
ability to effectuate price increases on rates @haito pay TV operators and has also implementddineneasures in currency exchange
controls which have caused significant impedimamis limitations to any person or entity moving mypoeat of the co untry resulting in
exposure to currency devaluation. Pay TV operaipegequired to carry certain government operatethicels. Argentina regulations reduced
the available advertising inventory on the chanbglbalf to six minutes and impose a withholding éa advertisers purchasing advertising
inventory on international channels. The Companytinaes to work to minimize the impact of the retiluc of advertising inventory and tax
implications on advertisers. In Mexico, internaibprogrammers were granted a temporary injuncatibith allowed them the right to transmit
up to an average of 12 minutes per hour of adwegtiwithin a 24 hour period, however a new law wexently passed that could require
compliance with a six minute per hour limitation.Brazil, regulations require, among other thin@sthat all channels distributed in the region
contain at least three hours and thirty minutesngak of Brazilian content during prime time hows,increase from the previous requiremen
of two hours and twenty minutes per week, half bfcle must be produced by a Brazilian independendypeer; (ii) registration of all channels,
programmers, local content and advertisementywe@bsite disclosure of programming and advertisioigtent to ensure compliance with tax
and other regulations; and (iv) mediation of loagéncy requirements and taxation on all advertigiagis contracted abroad. While such tax
shall primarily be paid by advertisers, programnaesultimately responsible for the tax paymend failure by advertisers to pay the required
tax could subject programmers to fines or penal@@npliance with these regulations increases ¢tiseaf doing business by imposing
additional production/acquisition costs as welttasd party administrative and legal expenses.

Europe.The sectors in which the Company operates in Euappeubject to both general competition laws amutios specific
regulation. The regulatory regime applicable todleetronic communications and broadcasting setpte a large extent, based on European
Union (“EU”) law comprised in various EU directivigat require EU member states to adopt natioggd|ition to give effect to the directives’
objectives, while leaving the precise manner amdhfof the national legislation to the discretioneaich member state. The Electronic
Communications Directives regulate the provisioc@hmunication services, including networks andgmaission services that are involved in
the broadcasting of television services as wethagrovisions of services and facilities assodiatéh the operation of digital television
platforms. The AudioVisual Media Services Directsats out the basic principles for the regulatibtelevision broadcasting activity,
including broadcasting licensing, advertising andtent regulation and imposes production and imvest quotas, obligations to transmit
European content for at least 50% of the day anidtions on advertising time. Each European cquaio has the right to adopt more strict
rules.

In January 2014, the European Commission (“EC't)ated formal antitrust proceedings to examineatemprovisions in licensing
agreements between several U.S. film studios, dietuTwentieth Century Fox, and a number of Europgsay-TV broadcasters, including Sky
Italia, Sky Deutschland and BSkyB. The EC is inigding whether provisions which prevent broadaast®m providing their services across
borders, for
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example by refusing potential subscribers from i0Elg countries or blocking crosmrder access to their services, may constitutachref EL
law. It is not possible to predict the timing otteame of the EC’s proceedings or the impact ondbmpany’s business.

Television

In general, the television broadcast industry althnited States is highly regulated by federal land regulations issued and
administered by various federal agencies, includliegF-CC. The FCC regulates television broadcaséing certain aspects of the operations c
cable, satellite and other electronic media thatmete with broadcasting, pursuant to the CommuioicatAct of 1934, as amended (the
“Communications Act”).

The Communications Act permits the operation aftiion broadcast stations only in accordance wiihense issued by the FCC uj
a finding that the grant of the license would sehespublic interest, convenience and necessitg. AHBC grants television broadcast station
licenses for specific periods of time and, uponligppon, may renew the licenses for additionafrter Under the Communications Act,
television broadcast licenses may be granted foaximum permitted term of eight years. Generalig, ECC renews broadcast licenses upon
finding that: (i) the television station has sertied public interest, convenience and necessijyth@re have been no serious violations by the
licensee of the Communications Act or FCC rules ragalilations; and (iii) there have been no othelations by the licensee of the
Communications Act or FCC rules and regulationsciwhiaken together, indicate a pattern of abuskrAbnsidering these factors, the FCC
may grant the license renewal application with @ghoawut conditions, including renewal for a lessennt than the maximum otherwise permit
or hold an evidentiary hearing. Fox Television Bted has pending renewal applications for a nurobés television station licenses. Seven of
the pending applications have been opposed by plairties. On June 13, 2007 and May 15, 2008, Féew/igon Stations entered into
agreements with the FCC that preclude it from dbjg¢on the grounds that such action is barreddstain statutes of limitations, to FCC or
other governmental action relating to (i) petiti@agleny or complaints that have been filed agaasgeral owned and operated stations relatin
to programming that is alleged to violate the pbitfon against indecent broadcasts or (ii) inqsifiom the FCC regarding compliance with its
sponsorship identification rules. For informatiantbe television stations owned and operated by tirapany, see “—Fox Television Stations
above.

In March 2010, the FCC delivered its national Bimaul Plan to Congress, which reviews the natiordadband Internet infrastructure
and recommends a number of initiatives to spurdivsaad deployment and use. In order to free up rsyeeetrum for wireless broadband
services, the Broadband Plan proposes to makerspeavailable, including 120 megahertz of broadspsttrum, by incentivizing current
private-sector spectrum holders to return soméaif spectrum to the government by 2015 through #itiatives as voluntary “incentive”
spectrum auctions (with current licensees permitbeshare in the auction proceeds) and “repackiigthannel assignments to increase
efficient spectrum usage. If voluntary measurdsdayield the amount of spectrum the FCC deemessary for wireless broadband
deployment, the Broadband Plan proposes variouslates to reclaim spectrum, such as forced chahaeihg. In response to the Broadband
Plan, Congress passed legislation in February 201#rizing the FCC to conduct voluntary auctiohtetevision broadcast station spectrum.
Stations that continue their operations may hawhsmge channels once the FCC “repacks” broadpastrsm. The legislation requires the
FCC to assist stations in retaining their currenterage areas, provides that no stations will beefibinto the VHF band and establishes a func
to reimburse broadcasters for reasonable chanloehteon expenses. The FCC is taking steps to imefe the legislation and has said that it
expects to conduct the voluntary auction in mid&®00he FCC also has announced a plan to “repaektefevision broadcast stations that do
not participate in the auction over the subseq@6months; the FCC indicated that it will use reedne efforts to try to preserve stations’
current coverage areas. The broadcast industrypisrng additional uses for currently allocate@sfpum. In April 2010, Fox Television
Stations and eleven other major broadcast statimmpgowners formed Mobile Content Venture (“MCVé)joint venture to develop a new
national mobile content service utilizing the sia#i’ digital broadcast spectrum. MCV launched D¥emobile television service, which is
currently in 37 markets. It is expected that FCClimns and repacking will involve multiple rulemagiproceedings and may take several y
to complete. It is not possible to predict the tighdr outcome of implementation of the BroadbarahPFCC spectrum auctions and repacking
or their effect on the Company.

On December 22, 2011, the FCC commenced the nexirganial review of its broadcast ownership redutatrequired by the 1996
Telecom Act, proposing only minor modificationsit®rules. That review was
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never completed. In early 2014 the FCC announaeadtintion to combine the 2011 review with thedyeanial review scheduled for 2014. In
the 2014 review, which is pending, the FCC agaappsed minor modifications that are not likely ffeet the impact of the FCC ownership
rules on the Company’s ownership of media propertie

Fox Television Stations is in compliance with thées governing ownership of multiple stations ia #ame market and with the
national station ownership cap established by Gesgyrin September 2013, the FCC commenced a pinggedconsider elimination of the so-
called “UHF discount” under which UHF stations at&ibuted with only 50% of the television housetwoin their markets for purposes of
calculating compliance with the national statiomewship cap. If the FCC decides to eliminate thé=Uliscount it may affect the Company’s
ability to acquire television stations in additibnzarkets. It is not possible to predict the timorgoutcome of the pending proceeding.

Fox Television Stations owns two television stasiamthe New York DMA. By virtue of its common owsaip with News Corp due to
the Murdoch Family Trus$ ownership interest in both News Corp and the GompFox Television Stations also retains an attable interes
in The New York Posa, daily newspaper in the New York DMA. On OctobeR606, the FCC reaffirmed the Company’s permanginer of
the newspaper/broadcast cross-ownership rule, valiotvs the common ownership of tRestand WNYW(TV), and granted a two-year
temporary waiver of the rule to continue to alldve tommon ownership of tiostand WWOR-TV (the “October 2006 Order”). The
Company has asked the FCC to extend the permarsngmto WWORTV. The temporary waiver remains in effect pursuarffCC precede!
pending FCC action on this request. Parties opptusttte October 2006 Order filed a petition foraesideration with the FCC, which was
denied on May 22, 2009. Other opponents of the l6art8006 Order have asked the FCC to reconsidbtais22, 2009 decision and have fi
an opposition to the Company’s request for a peenawaiver. It is not possible to predict the tignior outcome of the FCC'’s action on this
request for reconsideration or its effect on thenBany.

In addition, as a result of these rules, the Comiganiture conduct, including the acquisition ofyasroadcast networks, or stations or
any newspapers, in the same local markets in wi@lis Corp owns or operates newspapers or has addeievision stations, may affect
News Cor|s ability to own and operate its newspapers ortetgvision stations it acquires or otherwise comwaith the rules. Therefore, the
Company and News Corp agreed in the Separatioatdbution Agreement that if the Company acquiegter the Separation, newspapers,
radio or television broadcast stations or televidicoadcast networks in the U.S. and such acquisitiould impede or be reasonably likely to
impede News Corp’s business, then the Companybeitequired to take certain actions, including slivey assets, in order to permit News
Corp to hold its media interests and to comply \gitich rules.

Under the Communications Act, no broadcast stdit@msees may be owned by a corporation if more 26 of the corporation’s
stock is owned or voted by non-U.S. persons, tlegiresentatives, or by any other corporation omgghunder the laws of a foreign country.
The Company owns broadcast station licensees inemion with its ownership and operation of U.$e\sion stations. On April 18, 2012, t
Company announced that it had suspended 50% ebtivg rights of the Class B Common Stock held byp+.S. stockholders in order to
maintain compliance with U.S. law. As of Octobef.30the suspension of voting rights of shares as€B Common Stock held by non-U.S.
stockholders was 35%. This suspension will remaiplace for as long as the Company deems it negessmaintain compliance with the A
The FCC could review the Company’s compliance with Act in connection with its consideration of Fbalevision Stations’ license renewal
applications.

FCC regulations implementing the Cable Televisiam&imer Protection and Competition Act of 1992 meqgeiach television
broadcaster to elect, at three-year intervalseeii (i) require carriage of its signal by cablstems in the station’s market (“must carry”) or
(ii) negotiate the terms on which that broadcaai@t would permit transmission of its signal bg ttable systems within its market
(“retransmission consent”). Generally, the Comphay elected retransmission consent for the statiomgd and operated by Fox Television
Stations. The Satellite Home Viewer Improvement éfct 999 requires satellite carriers to carry upgnuest all television stations located in
markets in which the satellite carrier retransrattieast one local station pursuant to the copytiganse provided in the statute (“Carry One,
Carry All"). FCC regulations implementing this sitdry provision require affected stations to ekgitter mandatory carriage at the same three
year intervals applicable to cat‘must carry”or negotiate carriage terms with the satellite afms. Several cable and satellite operators &
petition for rulemaking with the FCC seeking changethe retransmission consent regulations, inetuthe
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imposition of mandatory arbitration and requiretéiim carriage in the event the broadcaster artdlalisor fail to reach a carriage agreement.
In March 2011, the FCC responded by initiatinglamaking to explore changes to its retransmisswrsent regulations. The FCC tentatively
concluded that it does not have the power to amBardatory arbitration or interim carriage and iadtsought comment on modifications to its
rules affecting retransmission consent negotiatiomduding providing more guidance under the FC@®od faith negotiation” standard,
improving notice to consumers in advance of possilisruptions of TV station carriage and elimingtprogram exclusivity rules that restrict
cable and satellite operators’ ability to negotfatealternative access to network programming. Aghother things, the FCC sought comment
on whether it should be a per se violation of “gdaith negotiation” requirements for a station gpee to give its network the right to approve
retransmission consent agreements or to complysuith an approval requirement in the network affiin agreement. In March 2014, the
FCC adopted limited changes to its retransmissimsent rules to prohibit a television broadcagtstaanked among the top four stations (as
measured by audience share) from negotiating rem@sion consent jointly with another top four istain the same geographic market if the
stations are not commonly owned. The FCC alsoaddtiefurther comment on whether to eliminate thegpam exclusivity rules. The
broadcast industry, including Fox Entertainmentprand FoxTelevision Stations, has filed comments opposirogter changes to the curr
retransmission consent regime. It is not possiblerédict the timing or outcome of the rulemakimgte effect on the Company.

Legislation enacted in 1990 limits the amount ahatercial matter that may be broadcast during pragreng designed for children 12
years of age and younger. In addition, under F€€nhBe renewal processing guidelines, televisidioatare generally required to broadca
minimum of three hours per week of programming,clihemong other requirements, must serve, as aifisignt purpose,the educational ai
informational needs of children 16 years of age amdkr. A television station found not to have cbetpwith the programming requirements
or commercial limitations could face sanctions)udig monetary fines and the possible non-renefis license.

FCC rules prohibit the broadcast by television eadio stations of indecent or profane material leetvthe hours of 6:00 a.m. and
10:00 p.m. Beginning in March 2004, the FCC implated a new policy regarding this prohibition andemlly stepped up its enforcement of
indecency violations. Under the new policy, thegleruse of certain forbidden expletives, or vapiasi of those expletives, were deemed
“indecent” and “profane.” The FCC also warned bizesders that serious multiple violations of thesicehcy prohibition could lead to license
revocation proceedings, and that fines could beosag for each incident in a single broadcast. Utitenew FCC policy, both complaints
about indecency and FCC enforcement actions havedsed, and several complaints alleging the bestad alleged indecent or profane
material by Fox Television Stations are pendinthatFCC. As of June 2006, the law authorizes th€ EOmpose fines of up to $325,000 per
incident for violation of the prohibition againstdecent and profane broadcasts.

On March 15, 2006, the FCC determined that the 20@2200Billboard Music Awardprograms, both live broadcasts on FOX,
violated the prohibitions against indecent and amefbroadcasts because they contained isolatediuthesforbidden expletives. On June 21,
2012, the Supreme Court decided that the FCC faalgive FOX fair notice that the isolated use xgbletives could violate the indecency
prohibition and therefore the Commission’s standaslapplied to the broadcasts in question werenstitutionally vague. The Court vacated
the violations for th&illboard Music Award$roadcasts. On April 1, 2013, the FCC announchddtreduced the backlog of pending
indecency complaints and would focus its enforcearmerfegregious” cases. The FCC also sought publimment on whether its indecency
policies should be altered in light of the Supre@uairt's decision. It is not possible to predict thecome of the FCC's inquiry or how it will
enforce its indecency rules in the future.

On February 22, 2008, the FCC issued an order imgdsrfeitures of $7,000 each on 13 FOX Affiliatéscluding five stations owned
and operated by the Company, on the grounds thapeh7, 2003 episode of the progravtarried by Americaviolated the prohibition against
indecent broadcasts. On April 4, 2008, the UnitedeS commenced an action in federal district cioutthie District of Columbia against the
five Company-owned stations to collect the forfeggiimposed by the FCC. In 2012, the governmenintalily dismissed this collection
action. The Company subsequently petitioned the EC@cate the forfeitures against the Companyadher FOX stations that had been fo
to have violated the indecency prohibition. Thetjmet remains pending and it is not possible tadprethe timing or outcome of FCC action.
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Modifications to the Company’s programming to regltize risk of indecency violations could have avease effect on the competitive
position of Fox Television Stations and FOX. If @m@ncy regulation is extended to cable and sat@ihgramming, and such extension was
found to be constitutional, some of the Compangisle programming services could be subject to abdit regulation that might affect
subscription and viewership levels.

The FCC continues to enforce strictly its regulasiconcerning political advertising, children’setgkion, environmental concerns,
equal employment opportunity, technical operatiragters and antenna tower maintenance. FCC rulefredt)e closed captioning of almost
all broadcast and cable programming. A federaldaacted in late 2010 requires affiliates of the fatgest broadcast networks in the 25
largest markets to carry 50 hours of prime timelaldren’s programming per calendar quarter witthea descriptions, i.e., a verbal description
of key visual elements inserted into natural paurséise audio and broadcast over a separate abditnel. Cable and satellite operators with
50,000 or more subscribers must do the same onaddbh top five non-broadcast networks they cabigmpliance has been required since
July 1, 2012 and applies to FOX affiliates in thapTR25 markets. Fox News Channel, which is amongapédive non-broadcast networks, falls
within the statutory exemption for “live or neavdl’ programming. The same statute requires progragthat was captioned on television to
retain captions when distributed via Internet Peot@pps or services. Although not required by F€gulation, the Company has committe:
provide program ratings information for its broastcaetwork programming for use in conjunction WitiChip technology, which blocks the
display of television programming based on itshgitiThe Company has also agreed to make this saiifigrmation available for all fullength
entertainment programs that stream on website€dimepany controls. FCC regulations governing netvedfikiation agreements mandate that
television broadcast station licensees retainitite to reject or refuse network programming intaigr circumstances or to substitute
programming that the licensee reasonably beliavée tof greater local or national importance. Miola of FCC regulations can result in
substantial monetary forfeitures, periodic repartionditions, short-term license renewals andgiegious cases, denial of license renewal or
revocation of license.

Filmed Entertainment

United StatesTCFF is subject to the provisions of so-calledd&gractice laws” in effect in 25 states relatinghteatrical distribution
of motion pictures. These laws substantially resthie licensing of motion pictures unless theateners are first invited to attend a screening
of the motion pictures and, in certain instancésg) prohibit payment of advances and guaranteesot®mn picture distributors by exhibitors.
Further, pursuant to various consent judgments,F&#d certain other motion picture companies abgestito certain restrictions on their tri
practices in the United States, including a reemést to offer motion pictures for exhibition to #ters on a theater-by-theater basis and, in
some cases, a prohibition against the ownershiipeatters.

Other International Regulatiorin countries outside of the United States, theeeaavariety of existing or contemplated governmlenta
laws and regulations that may affect the abilityf @FF to distribute and/or license its motion pietand television products to cinema,
television or in-home media, including copyrightvgaand regulations that may or may not be adeduogieotect its interests, cinema screen
guotas, television quotas, contract term limitegiadiscriminatory taxes and other discriminatoeatment of U.S. products. The ability of
countries to deny market access or refuse nattoeatinent to products originating outside theiriteries is regulated under various
international agreements, including the World Tr&dganization’s General Agreement on Tariffs andd&rand General Agreement on Trade
and Services; however, these agreements havedimitelication with respect to preventing the deafaharket access to audusual product:
originating outside the European Union.

Internet

The Children’s Online Privacy Protection Act of B3@COPPA") prohibits websites from collecting pensilly identifiable information
online from children under age 13 without priorgraal consent. The Controlling the Assault of Nati<ted Pornography and Marketing Act
of 2003 (“CAN-SPAM") regulates the distribution ofsolicited commercial emails, or “spam.” The Viderivacy Protection Act (“VPPA”)
prohibits the knowing disclosure of information ttidentifies a person as having requested or obtbgpecific video materials from a “video
tape service provider.” Online services providedh® Company may be subject to COPPA, CAN-SPAM\ARRA requirements.
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Federal regulators’ interest in issues of privagjaersecurity and data security has been steaditgasing. On February 23, 2012, the
Administration issued a white paper on consumea gavacy that includes a Consumer Privacy BilRights. The Administration convened
multi-stakeholder processes to implement the BiRights through industry codes of conduct that lddae enforceable by the Federal Trade
Commission (“FTC") and State Attorneys General. Naeninistration also announced it would work witbr@@ress to implement these rights
through legislation. The first multi-stakeholdeogp focused on creation of a Do-Not-Track standartcho agreement was reached by the
participants. On March 26, 2012, the FTC releasegpart on consumer privacy, which sets forth aitkd privacy framework and urges
industry to accelerate the pace of adoption ofregtilatory measures, including more widespreaghtoio of a Do-Not-Track browser
mechanism. The report also recommends that Congoeséder baseline privacy legislation incorporgtine principles articulated in the
framework. In May 2014 additional reports were &$by the Administration and the FTC on Big Datd data brokers, and the
Administration called for public comments on howel®pments related to “big data” impact the ConsuRrévacy Bill of Rights.

A number of privacy and data security bills haverbstroduced in both Houses of Congress that addhe collection, maintenance
and use of personal information, web browsing aemla@ration data, data security and breach notificatequirements, and cybersecurity.
Some state legislatures have already adoptedadgigisithat regulates how businesses operate dntimet, including measures relating to
privacy, data security and data breaches. The indtedeased a set of self-regulatory online betvaliadvertising principles in 2009, which
have been implemented by web publishers, onlinertiders and online advertising networks. In Novenf011, these principles were
extended to the use of online consumer data fqyqaes other than advertising and in July 2013éarhbbile environment. The industry is also
working on principles that would establish a selfulatory browser-based Do-Not-Track regime. itrislear whether these and other industry
self-regulatory efforts alone will address the @nns expressed by some federal and state offaimiat the collection of anonymous data
online or via mobile applications to serve targatedtent and advertising. It is not possible tadiewhether proposed privacy and data
security legislation will be enacted or to deterenivhat effect such legislation might have on thenany’s business.

Foreign governments are raising similar privacy dath security concerns. In particular, the EUgraposed a new privacy regulation
(the “EU Regulation”) that would replace the cutrBrata Protection Directive, would tighten regudatiof the collection, use and security of
online data and would continue to restrict thegrborder flow of data. Several European countreaghssued new guidelines under the EU
Cookie Directive that require robust disclosured eonsumer choice before a user can be trackedeorfiuropean industry has implemented &
self-regulatory regime for online behavioral adigéng that is largely consistent with the U.S. geljulatory framework. The proposed EU
Regulation will not be effective for at least a yaad may undergo many changes before it is adofitesdunclear how the final EU Regulation
would affect the Compang’business. Canada, Australia and countries inhBattn America and Asia are also strengtheningy fhvévacy law:
and the enforcement of privacy and data securgyirements.

The Company monitors pending legislation and reiguanitiatives to ascertain relevance, analyzpant and develop strategic
direction surrounding regulatory trends and develepts.

Intellectual Property

The Companys intellectual property assets include: copyrightsiotion pictures, television programming, bogksblications, website
and technologies; trademarks in names, logos aacters; domain names; patents or patent applisafor inventions related to its products,
business methods and/or services; and licensesadieictual property rights of various kinds. Then@pany derives value from these assets
through the theatrical release of films and thalpotion, distribution and/or licensing of its filnagd television programming to domestic and
international television and cable networks, pdgvision services, pay-per-view, video-on-demandises and DTH satellite services,
operation of websites, and through the sale ofywrtsd such as DVDs, Blu-rays, books and publicatiamong others.

The Company devotes significant resources to ptiotgis intellectual property in the United Statesl other key foreign territories.
protect these assets, the Company relies upon bication of copyright, trademark, unfair competitipatent, trade secret and other laws anc
contract provisions. However, there can be no
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assurance of the degree to which these measuldsevgiiccessful in any given case. Policing unaizbd use of the Company’s products and
services and related intellectual property is oftificult and the steps taken may not in everyegaevent the infringement by unauthorized
third parties of the Company’s intellectual progefhe Company seeks to limit that threat througlombination of approaches, including
offering legitimate market alternatives, deployitigital rights management technologies, pursuigallsanctions for infringement, promoting
appropriate legislative initiatives and internatibtreaties and enhancing public awareness of #aning and value of intellectual property anc
intellectual property laws. Piracy, including irettigital environment, continues to present a thieeaevenues from products and services
based on intellectual property.

Third parties may challenge the validity or scopghe Company'’s intellectual property from timetitme, and such challenges could
result in the limitation or loss of intellectualgperty rights. Irrespective of their validity, suclaims may result in substantial costs and
diversion of resources that could have an advdfseten the Company’s operations. Moreover, effecintellectual property protection may
be either unavailable or limited in certain foretgrritories. Therefore, the Company engages iorefto strengthen and update intellectual
property protection around the world, includingoef§ to ensure the effective enforcement of intéllal property laws and remedies for
infringement.

| TEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Prospective investors should consider carefullyrisliefactors set forth below before making an stugent in the Company’s securities.

A Decline in Advertising Expenditures Could Cause€ompar’s Revenues and Operating Results to Decline $ignidy in any Given
Period or in Specific Market:

The Company derives substantial revenues fromateeas advertising on or in its television statiphsadcast and cable networks and
direct broadcast satellite services. Expendituyeadvertisers tend to be cyclical, reflecting olleaonomic conditions, as well as budgeting
and buying patterns. A decline in the economic pects of advertisers or the economy in generaldcaltiér current or prospective advertisers’
spending priorities. Demand for the Company’s patslis also a factor in determining advertisingsator example, ratings points for the
Company’s television stations and broadcast antécsiworks are factors that are weighed when datémng advertising rates, and with
respect to the Company’s television stations awddrast and television networks, when determirtiecgffiliate rates received by the
Company. In addition, newer technologies, includiegv video formats, streaming and downloading ciiiab via the Internet, video-on-
demand, personal video recorders and other deaimsechnologies are increasing the number of nauizentertainment choices available to
audiences. Some of these devices and technoldipesisers to view television or motion picturesrfr a remote location or on a tindelayec
basis and provide users the ability to fast-forwaeavind, pause and skip programming and advertsgsn These technological developments
which are increasing the number of media and aitenent choices available to audiences could neggtimpact not only consumer demand
for our content and services but also could affeetattractiveness of the Compangfferings to viewers, advertisers and/or distiobst Failure
to effectively anticipate or adapt to emerging teabgies or changes in consumer behavior could hawedverse effect on our business.
Further, a decrease in advertising expendituresiced demand for the Company'’s offerings or theilitg to obtain market ratings that
adequately measure demand for the Company’s cootepérsonal video recorders and mobile devicekldead to a reduction in pricing and
advertising spending, which could have an adveffseteon the Company’s businesses and assets.

The Company is exposed to risks associated withk deaestic and global economic conditions and iaseel volatility and disruption in the
financial markets

The Company’s businesses, financial condition @&sdlts of operations may be adversely affected égkvwdomestic and global
economic conditions. Factors that affect econoraitditions include the rate of unemployment, theel®f consumer confidence and changes
in consumer spending habits. The Company also fésles including currency volatility and the stitigiof global local economies, associated
with the impact of weak domestic and global ecomocoinditions on advertisers, affiliates, suppliereplesale distributors, retailers, insurers,
theater operators and others with which it doesnless.
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Increased volatility and disruptions in the finaieharkets could make it more difficult and mor@ensive for the Company to
refinance outstanding indebtedness and obtain mamding. Disruptions in the financial markets edso adversely affect the Company’s
lenders, insurers, customers and counterpartielsidimg vendors, retailers and film co-financingtpars. For instance, the inability of the
Company’s counterparties to obtain capital on atat#e terms could impair their ability to performder their agreements with the Company
and lead to negative effects on the Company, imetutdusiness disruptions, decreased revenues arghses in bad debt expenses.

Acceptance of the Compé's Films and Television Programming by the Pubdidifficult to Predict, Which Could Lead to Fluctigms in
Revenues

Feature film and television production and disttid are speculative businesses since the revetaraged from the production and
distribution of a feature film or television seri@spend primarily upon its acceptance by the publidch is difficult to predict. The commerc
success of a feature film or television series digpends upon the quality and acceptance of otimepeting films and television series relea
into the marketplace at or near the same timeavthdability of a growing number of alternative iiag of entertainment and leisure time
activities, general economic conditions and th#&as on consumer spending and other tangibleraadgible factors, all of which can change
and cannot be predicted with certainty. Furthes ttieatrical success of a feature film and theemt ratings for a television series are
generally key factors in generating revenues fréimeiodistribution channels, such as home entertaimmand premium pay television, with
respect to feature films, and syndication, wittpees to television series.

The Company Could Suffer Losses Due to Asset ImpairCharges for Goodwill, Intangible Assets andgPamming.

In accordance with applicable generally acceptedwaating principles, the Company performs an animphirment assessment of its
recorded goodwill and indefinitéred intangible assets, including FCC licensesirduthe fourth quarter of each fiscal year. Thenpany alst
continually evaluates whether current factors digators, such as the prevailing conditions indhgital markets, require the performance ¢
interim impairment assessment of those assetselh&svother investments and other long-lived asgety significant shortfall, now or in the
future, in advertising revenue and/or the expeptasllarity of the programming for which the Compdrag acquired rights could lead to a
downward revision in the fair value of certain repag units. A downward revision in the fair valaga reporting unit, indefinite-lived
intangible assets, investments or long-lived assmtid result in an impairment and a nhon-cash eharguld be required. Any such charge
could be material to the Company'’s reported netiegs.

Fluctuations in Foreign Exchange Rates Could Have\dverse Effect on the Comp’s Results of Operations.

The Company has significant operations in a nurobésreign jurisdictions and certain of the Compaperations are conducted in
foreign currencies. The value of these currendiggfates relative to the U.S. dollar. As a reghkt, Company is exposed to exchange rate
fluctuations, which could have an adverse effedt®results of operations in a given period ospecific markets.

For example, our business activities in Venezupkxate in a highly inflationary economy. Recerithgre have been significant
changes to the foreign currency exchange rate @mvient in Venezuela governing the conversion ofézerlan Bolivars (“Bolivars”) to U.S.
Dollars. Companies generally have used the offex@hange rate controlled by Venezuela’s Commisfiothe Administration of Foreign
Exchange (“CADIVI"), which is 6.3 Bolivars per U.Bollar unless they had transactions or were antbagntities the Venezuelan
government had specifically authorized to use thygp&mentary Foreign Currency Administration Sys(E®ICAD”) auction rate. In January
2014, the Venezuelan government significantly exlearthe use of the SICAD rate and, more recemtlijarch 2014, the Venezuelan
government created a third currency exchange mérhasalled SICAD 2 and said it may be used by rities for all transactions. Until
March 31, 2014, our Bolivar denominated net moyedasets were translated at the official exchaatgeof 6.3 Bolivars per U.S. Dollar.
During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014, we webdeato use the SICAD 2 mechanism to convert a omif our Bolivar denominated cash to
U.S. Dollars. Accordingly, we remeasured all outi®r denominated net monetary assets at the SIZA&Rchange rate resulting in a
devaluation loss of approximately $100 million facal 2014. The Venezuelan government may issue megulations or take other steps that
might introduce significant
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uncertainty regarding the exchange rate that weacaass to convert our Venezuelan Bolivar denoméhatonetary assets to U.S. Dollars.
Such measures can also affect our decision on wehichange rate(s) to use for financial reportingppses.

The Loss of Carriage Agreements Could Cause thep@oys Revenue and Operating Results to Declineif@igntly in any Given Period or
in Specific Markets.

The Company’s broadcast stations and cable netwodkstain affiliation and carriage arrangements émable them to reach a large
percentage of cable and direct broadcast sathiiseholds across the United States. The lossigh#icant number of these arrangements or
the loss of carriage on basic programming tierdccoeduce the distribution of the Company’s broatlsgations and cable networks, which
may adversely affect those networks’ revenues fsabscriber fees and their ability to sell natiomad local advertising time. The Company is
dependent upon the maintenance of affiliation ageres with third party owned television stationd #mere can be no assurance that these
affiliation agreements will be renewed in the fetan terms acceptable to the Company. The lossiginéficant number of these affiliation
arrangements could reduce the distribution of FQX MyNetworkTV and adversely affect the Companysity to sell national advertising
time.

The Inability to Renew Sports Programming Rightsl@&ause the Company’s Affiliate and Advertisimyé&hue to Decline Significantly in
any Given Period or in Specific Markets.

The sports rights contracts between the Companth@one hand, and various professional sportsitsagnd teams, on the other, have
varying duration and renewal terms. As these cotgraxpire, renewals on favorable terms may belgphgwever, third parties may outbid
current rights holders for the rights contractsadidition, professional sports leagues or teamsareste their own networks or the renewal
costs could substantially exceed the original @mttcost. The loss of rights could impact the extéthe sports coverage offered by the
Company and its affiliates, as it relates to FOXd aould adversely affect the Company’s advertising affiliate revenues. Upon renewal, the
Company’s results could be adversely affecteddéikegions in sports programming rights costs areatohed by increases in advertising rates
and, in the case of cable networks, subscriber fees

The Company Relies on Network and Information 8ystnd Other Technology Whose Failure or MisusedCGause a Disruption of
Services or Improper Disclosure of Personal Dat&Confidential Information, Resulting in Increasedsts or Loss of Revenue.

Network and information systems and other techrieldncluding those related to the Company’s neétwmeanagement, are important
to its business activities. Network and informatiystems-related events, such as computer hacldiagguter viruses, worms or other
destructive or disruptive software, process breakd denial of service attacks, malicious socigieeering or other malicious activities, or
any combination of the foregoing, as well as pomgages, natural disasters (including extreme vegptterrorist activities or human error that
may affect such systems, could result in disruptibaur services or improper disclosure of persaiadh or confidential information. In recent
years, there has been a rise in the number of atterks on compani’ network and information systems by both statersjpoed and criminal
organizations, and as a result, the risks assalcigith such an event continue to increase. A siggrift failure, compromise, breach or
interruption of the Company’s systems could reisuét disruption of its operations, customer or atiser dissatisfaction, damage to its
reputation or brands and a loss of customers @mn@as. If any such failure, interruption or simiaent results in the improper disclosure of
information maintained in the Company'’s informataystems and networks or those of its vendorsydiiey personnel, customer and vendor
information, the Company could also be subjeciability under relevant contractual obligations dads and regulations protecting personal
data and privacy. Efforts by the Company and itsdees to develop, implement and maintain securiasares may not be successful
in preventing these events from occurring, andratyork and information systems-related eventsctcoedjuire the Company to expend
significant resources to remedy such event. Moredkie development and maintenance of these measucestly and requires ongoing
monitoring and updating as tech nologies changesffiodts to overcome security measures become suapRisticated.

Technological Developments May Increase the Thoé&ontent Piracy and Signal Theft and Limit thex@any’s Ability to Protect Its
Intellectual Property Rights

Content piracy and signal theft present a threttiedCompany’s revenues from products and servicelsiding, but not limited to,
films, television shows, cable and other programgnithe Company seeks to limit the
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threat of content piracy and direct broadcast E&t@rogramming signal theft; however, policingauthorized use of the Company’s products
and services and related intellectual propertyftsnadifficult and the steps taken by the Comparay mot in every case prevent the
infringement by unauthorized third parties. Devehgnts in technology, including digital copyinggfitompressing and the growing penetre
of high-bandwidth Internet connections, increasettireat of content piracy by making it easieruplatate and widely distribute high-quality
pirated material. In addition, developments inwafie or devices that circumvent encryption techgpland the falling prices of devices
incorporating such technologies increase the ttokahauthorized use and distribution of directdatcast satellite programming signals and th
proliferation of user-generated content sites areldnd stored video streaming sites, which delivezuthorized copies of copyrighted content
including those emanating from other countriesariaus languages, may adversely impact the Compdnginesses. The proliferation of
unauthorized distribution and use of the Compangigtent could have an adverse effect on the Companginesses and profitability because
it reduces the revenue that the Company could patlgrreceive from the legitimate sale and distitibn of its products and services.

The Company has taken, and will continue to takeraety of actions to combat piracy and signafttH®th individually and, in some
instances, together with industry associations. éi@w, protection of the Company’s intellectual pdp rights is dependent on the scope and
duration of the Company’s rights as defined by &ple laws in the United States and abroad anddmner in which those laws are
construed. If those laws are drafted or interpr@teslays that limit the extent or duration of ther@pany’s rights, or if existing laws are
changed, the Company’s ability to generate revémume intellectual property may decrease, or the obsbtaining and enforcing our rights
may increase. There can be no assurance that thpaly’s efforts to enforce its rights and protégipiroducts, services and intellectual
property will be successful in preventing conteiraqy or signal theft. Further, while piracy andhaology tools continue to escalate, if any
U.S. or international laws intended to combat pirad protect intellectual property are repealed/@akened or not adequately enforced, or if
the legal system fails to evolve and adapt to reshriologies that facilitate piracy, we may be uedbleffectively protect our rights and the
value of our intellectual property may be negathieipacted and our costs of enforcing our rightslddncrease.

The Company Must Respond to Changes in ConsumeriBelas a Result of New Technologies in OrdereamBin Competitive.

Technology, particularly digital technology usedtlie entertainment industry, continues to evolyedlg, leading to alternative
methods for the delivery and storage of digitalteah These technological advancements have ddlranges in consumer behavior and have
empowered consumers to seek more control over witggre and how they consume digital content. Cdrademers are increasingly deliver
their content directly to consumers over the Interoften without charge, and innovations in disttion platforms have enabled consumers to
view such Internet-delivered content on televisiand portable devices. There is a risk that the @amy's responses to these changes and
strategies to remain competitive, including disttibn of its content on a “pay” basis, may not de@ed by consumers. In addition, enhancec
Internet capabilities and other new media may redalevision viewership, the demand for DVDs and-&lys and the desire to see motion
pictures in theaters, which could negatively aftbet Company’s revenues. The Company’s failuredtegt and exploit the value of its
content, while responding to and developing newrtetogy and business models to take advantagevaihadments in technology and the
latest consumer preferences, could have a signifmdverse effect on the Company’s businessed, aases and results of operations.

Labor Disputes May Have an Adverse Effect on thag@am's Business.

In a variety of the Company’s businesses, the Compad its partners engage the services of writémsctors, actors and other talent,
trade employees and others who are subject toctiokebargaining agreements, including employeat®Company’s film and television
studio operations. If the Company or its partneesusmable to renew expiring collective bargainiggegments, it is possible that the affected
unions could take action in the form of strikesvark stoppages. Such actions, as well as highdés a@gonnection with these collective
bargaining agreements or a significant labor dispcould have an adverse effect on the Compangmess by causing delays in production o
by reducing profit margins.
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Changes in U.S. or Foreign Regulations May Havédwerse Effect on the Company’s Business.

The Company is subject to a variety of U.S. andifpr regulations in the jurisdictions in which litssinesses operate. In general, the
television broadcasting and multichannel video progning and distribution industries in the Unitedt8s are highly regulated by federal I
and regulations issued and administered by vafederal agencies, including the FCC. The FCC gdlyaegulates, among other things, the
ownership of media, broadcast and multichannelosfglegramming and technical operations of broada@stsees. Our program services and
online properties are subject to a variety of lad regulations, including those relating to isssiesh as content regulation, user privacy and
data protection, and consumer protection, amonerstlirurther, the United States Congress, the FdGtate legislatures currently have ur
consideration, and may in the future adopt, nevs]aegulations and policies regarding a wide vaméimatters, including technological
changes and measures relating to privacy and dataity, which could, directly or indirectly, affethe operations and ownership of the
Company’s U.S. media properties. Similarly, newdaw regulations or changes in interpretationgaf ér in regulations imposed by
governments in other jurisdictions in which the Quamy, or entities in which the Company has an @stgroperate could require changes in th
operations or ownership of these international m@doperties. In addition, laws in non-U.S. jurgitins which regulate, among other things,
licensing arrangements, local content requiremeaisiage requirements regarding pricing and dhistion, and limitations on advertising tin
may impact the operations and results of our ironal businesses.

In addition, changes in tax laws, regulations erititerpretations thereof in the U.S. and othdsglictions in which the Company has
operations could affect the Company’s results @frafions.

U.S. Citizenship Requirements May Limit CommonkS@mnership and Voting Rights.

The Company owns broadcast station licensees inemion with its ownership and operation of U.$e\ision stations. Under U.S.
law, no broadcast station licensee may be ownesidnyrporation if more than 25% of its stock is odioe voted by non-U.S. persons, their
representatives, or by any other corporation omghunder the laws of a foreign country. The CorgjsaRestated Certificate of Incorporation
authorizes the Board of Directors to prevent, arrmitigate the effect of stock ownership aboveahplicable foreign ownership threshold by
taking any action including: refusing to permit argnsfer of common stock to or ownership of commstmtk by a non-U.S. stockholder;
voiding a transfer of common stock to a non-U.8clgholder; suspending rights of stock ownershipeifd by a non-U.S. stockholder; or
redeeming common stock held by a non-U.S. stocldnold order to maintain compliance with U.S. las,of October 2013, the suspension of
voting rights of the Class B Common Stock held by+.S. stockholders was 35%. This suspensionreiitiain in place for as long as the
Company deems it necessary to maintain compliatitteapplicable U.S. law, and may be adjusted byAhdit Committee as it deems
appropriate. The Company is not able to predicttirdrat will need to adjust the suspension or whetdditional action pursuant to its
Restated Certificate of Incorporation may be nemgs§he FCC could review the Company’s complianith applicable U.S. law in
connection with its consideration of the Compamgisewal applications for licenses to operate tloadicast stations the Company owns.

The Company and News Corp Face Investigations RiégpAllegations of Phone Hacking, Illegal Data &ss, Inappropriate Payments to
Public Officials and Other Related Matters and RetbCivil Lawsuits

U.S. regulators and governmental authorities anelecting investigations relating to the U.K. NewspaMatters. The Company is
cooperating with these investigations. It is noggible at this time to estimate the liability, ifya of the Company relating to these
investigations.

In connection with the Separation, the Companyldeds Corp agreed in the Separation and Distribuligreement that the Company
will indemnify News Corp, on an after-tax basis, fayments made after the Separation arising odgitvidfclaims and investigations relating to
the U.K. Newspaper Matters, as well as legal anfegsional fees and expenses paid in connectidntidt related criminal matters, other than
fees, expenses and costs relating to employeeswehoot (i) directors, officers or certain desigua¢mployees or (ii) with respect to civil
matters, co-defendants with News Corp.

It is possible that these proceedings and any advessolution thereof, including any fines or othenalties associated with any plea,
judgment or similar result could damage the Com’s reputation, impair its ability to conduct itsdiness and adversely affect its results of
operations and financial condition.
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Risks Related to the Separation

If the Separation, Together with Certain Relatedniactions, Were Ultimately Determined to be Taxdlhnsactions for U.S. Federal Inco
Tax Purposes, then We Could Be Subject to Signtfitax Liability.

The Company received (i) a private letter rulingnirthe IRS substantially to the effect that, amotiger things, the distribution of
Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock afsNeorp qualifies as tax-free under Sections 3@B3&% of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) except feln caceived in lieu of fractional shares of NewspCsiock and (i) an opinion from the law
firm of Hogan Lovells US LLP confirming the tax-&etatus of the distribution for U.S. federal ineotax purposes, including confirming the
satisfaction of the requirements under Section8&8355 of the Code not specifically addressetienRS private letter ruling. The opinion of
Hogan Lovells US LLP will not be binding on the IRBthe courts, and there is no assurance thdRtBer a court will not take a contrary
position.

The private letter ruling and the opinion rely @rtain facts and assumptions, and certain reprasems from the Company and News
Corp regarding the past and future conduct of espective businesses and other matters. Notwitlisigithe receipt of the private letter ruling
and the opinion, the IRS could determine on atndit the distribution or the internal transactionsudd be treated as taxable transactions if it
determines that any of these facts, assumptiopsssentations or undertakings is not correct obleas violated, or that the distribution or the
internal transactions should be taxable for oteasons, including as a result of a significant gean stock or asset ownership after the
distribution. If the distribution ultimately is d=imined to be taxable, the distribution could leated as a taxable dividend or capital gain for
U.S. federal income tax purposes, and U.S. stodiensland certain non-U.S. stockholders could is@rificant U.S. federal income tax
liabilities. In addition, if the internal reorgaitton and/or the distribution is ultimately detenel to be taxable, the Company would recogniz
gains on the internal reorganization and/or recoggain in an amount equal to the excess of tharfaiket value of shares of the News Corp
common stock distributed to our stockholders ondis&ibution date over our tax basis in such shafeour common stock.

We Could Be Liable for Income Taxes Owed by Newg.Co

Each member of our consolidated group, which uitile 28, 2013 included News Corp and each of dwar gubsidiaries, is jointly and
severally liable for the U.S. federal income tabllity of each other member of the consolidatemligt Consequently, we could be liable in the
event any such liability is incurred, and not degjed, by any other member of our consolidatedgromder the terms of the tax sharing and
indemnification agreement that we entered intooinnection with the Separation, we will be requiteéhdemnify News Corp for any such
liability. Disputes or assessments could arisendufuiture audits by the IRS in amounts that we oagoantify.

We Might Not Be Able to Engage in Desirable Stratdgansactions and Equity Issuances Because daeRestrictions Relating to
Requirements for T-Free Distributions for U.S. Federal Income Tax poses.

Our ability to engage in significant strategic saations and equity issuances may be limited arictesd in order to preserve, for U.S.
federal income tax purposes, the tax-free natutheoflistribution. Even if the distribution othesgiqualifies for tax-free treatment under
Section 355 of the Code, it may result in corpotayel taxable gain to us under Section 355(ehefGode if 50% or more, by vote or value, of
shares of our stock or News Corp’s stock are aeduir issued as part of a plan or series of rekatedbactions that includes the distribution.

To preserve the tax-free treatment of the distiilbuand the internal transactions in connectiomhe distribution for U.S. federal
income tax purposes, under the tax sharing andrindization agreement that we entered into with N&@wrp, we will be prohibited from
taking or failing to take certain actions that npaigvent the distribution and related transactioomfbeing tax-free for U.S. federal income tax
purposes. Further, for the two-year period follogvihe distribution, we may be prohibited from:

. approving or allowing any transaction that resinta change in ownership of more than a specifexdgntage of our common
stock,

. a merger,

. a redemption of equity securities exceeding 20%safutstanding capital stock,

. a sale or other disposition of certain businessesspecified percentage of our assets, or
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. an acquisition of a business or assets with eeityrities to the extent one or more persons wacdgdire in excess of a
specified percentage of our common st

These restrictions may limit our ability to pursteategic transactions or engage in new businesther transactions that may
maximize the value of our business.

The Separation and Distribution Agreement May Retdtis From Acquiring or Owning Certain Types 0688 in the U.S.

The FCC has promulgated certain rules and regulatizat limit the ownership of radio and televisimpadcast stations, television
broadcast networks and newspapers (the “Broadease3hip Rules”). Under the FCC's rules for deterimg ownership of the media assets
described above, the Murdoch Family Trust's ownigrgiterest in both News Corp and the Company feihg the Separation would generally
result in each company’s businesses and assets &iibutable to the Murdoch Family Trust for posps of determining compliance with the
Broadcast Ownership Rules. Consequently, our futangluct, including the acquisition of any broadecegworks, or stations or any
newspapers, in the same local markets in which Nesvp owns or operates newspapers or has acqelmdsion stations, may affect News
Corp’s ability to own and operate its newspaperaryrtelevision stations it acquires or otherwismply with the Broadcast Ownership Rules.
Therefore, we and News Corp agreed in the Separatid Distribution Agreement that if the Compangares, after the Separation,
newspapers, radio or television broadcast statiomslevision broadcast networks in the U.S. ardhscquisition would impede or be
reasonably likely to impede News Casjusiness, then the Company will be requiredke trtain actions, including divesting assetsyrder
to permit News Corp to hold its media interests semdomply with such rules. This agreement wilkeetively limit the activities or strategic
business alternatives available to us if such #ietb/or strategic business alternatives implitaéeBroadcast Ownership Rules and would
impede or be reasonably likely to impede News Gobpisiness.

The Indemnification Arrangements We Entered Intth\News Corp in Connection With the Separation Raguire Us to Divert Cash to
Satisfy Indemnification Obligations to News Corp.

Pursuant to the Separation and Distribution Agre#raad certain other related agreements, the Coyrggeed to indemnify News
Corp for certain liabilities and News Corp agreedidemnify the Company for certain liabilities. Agesult, we could be required, under
certain circumstances, to indemnify News Corp agjaiertain liabilities to the extent such liabégiresult from an action we or our affiliates
take or from any breach of our or our affiliatespresentations, covenants or obligations undeSéparation and Distribution Agreement, tax
sharing and indemnification agreement or any cglgeeement entered into in connection with the Sxijoar.

Certain of Our Directors and Officers May Have Aaitor Potential Conflicts of Interest Because oeiftEquity Ownership in News Corp, a
Certain of Our Officers and Directors May Have Aaitor Potential Conflicts of Interest Because Thé¢so Serve as Officers and/or on the
Board of Directors of News Cor

Certain of our directors and executive officers ahiares of News Corp’common stock, and the individual holdings magibeificant
for some of these individuals compared to themltassets. In addition, certain of our officers dirdctors also serve as officers and/or as
directors of News Corp, including our Chairman &idef Executive Officer K. Rupert Murdoch, who sesvas News Corp’s Executive
Chairman, our Non-Executive Co-Chairman Lachlamiirdoch, who serves as News Corp’s Non-Executived@Gairman and our Group
General Counsel Gerson Zweifach, who serves as Kenss General Counsel. This ownership or sertadeoth companies may create, or
may create the appearance of, conflicts of intembsn these directors and officers are faced wettisions that could have different
implications for News Corp and us.

For example, potential conflicts of interest coalise in connection with the resolution of any digpthat may arise between News
Corp and us regarding the terms of the agreemewisrging the internal reorganization, the distributand the relationship thereafter betweer
the companies, including with respect to the indiéication of certain matters. In addition to anyet arrangements that the Company and
News Corp may agree to implement, the Company awisNCorp agreed that officers and directors wheesat both companies will recu
themselves from decisions where conflicts arisetdubeir positions at both companies.
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| TEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

| TEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Company owns and leases various real propémtiderth America, South America, Europe, Australiad Asia that are utilized in
the conduct of its businesses. Each of these piepés considered to be in good condition, adegjtatits purpose and suitably utilized
according to the individual nature and requiremefite relevant operations. The Company’s poléctoiimprove and replace property as
considered appropriate to meet the needs of theidlcl operation.

North America
The Company’s principal real properties in North éfioa are the following:

(&) The Fox Studios Lot, in Los Angeles, Califarndwned by the Company, containing sound stageduption facilities,
administrative, technical and dressing room stmastuscreening theaters and machinery, equipmeiitiés and four restauran

(b) The leased office space at Fox Plaza, located ewljac the Fox Studios Lot and the leased offick@moduction facility of Shin
America in Los Angeles, Californii

(c) The leased and owned U.S. headquarters a@ohepany, located in New York, New York which incbschome offices for Fox
News and Fox Television Stations and various obperations

(d)  The leased office and production facilities of Blsky Studios in Greenwich, Connectic
(e) The leased offices of FSN, Inc. at various locatitor studio sports broadcastir
® The leased and owned facilities of Fox TelevisitatiBns at various locations; a

(g) The leased sports broadcasting and productioritfaofl FIC in Mexico City, Mexico

South America
The Company'’s principal real properties in Southehita are the following:
(&) The owned broadcasting and transmission faciliti?1€f in Buenos Aires, Argentina; al

(b)  The leased sports broadcasting and productioritfacfiFIC in Rio de Janeiro, Braz

Europe
The Company’s principal real properties in Europethe following:
(@) The leased office and theater space of TCFF andrFL©ndon, Englanc

(b)  The leased office and production facilitiesStfine at two locations in London, England, onatimn in Copenhagen, Denmark
and one location in Stockholm, Swed

(c) The leased office space and television producti@hlaoadcasting studios of Sky lItalia in Rome yit
(d) The leased corporate offices and television pradn@nd broadcasting studios of Sky Italia in Mijlé#aly; and

(e) The leased office and production facility of Skyubschland headquarters in Unterféhring, Germ
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Australia and Asia
The Company’s principal real properties in Ausa@nd Asia are the following:

(@ The leased Fox Studios Australia Lot in Sydeaystralia, containing sound stages, productiailifees and administrative,
technical, dressing room and personnel supportcasstructures

(b) The leased premises in Hong Kong and other Asiggsaised by FIC for its television broadcasting programming operatior
and

(c) The leased and owned premises in Mumbai, India bge&RITAR India for its corporate office and programg operations

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Shareholder Litigation
Southern District of New York

On July 19, 2011, a purported class action laweaptioned Wilder v. News Corp., et al. (“Wilderibttion”), was filed on behalf of all
purchasers of the Company’s common stock betweanhvia 2011 and July 11, 2011, in the United StRisgrict Court for the Southern
District of New York. The plaintiff brought claimender Section 10(b) and Section 20(a) of the SeesifExchange Act, alleging that false and
misleading statements were issued regarding thgeadl acts of voicemail interceptionTdte News of the WorldThe suit names as defendants
the Company, Rupert Murdoch, James Murdoch and liébBrooks, and seeks compensatory damages, ieadissdamages sustained and
costs.

On June 5, 2012, the court issued an order appgitttie Avon Pension Fund (“Avon”) as lead plainéiffd Robbins Geller Rudman &
Dowd as lead counsel. Thereafter, on July 3, 282¢court issued an order providing that an amexdedolidated complaint shall be filed by
July 31, 2012. Avon filed an amended consolidatedmaint on July 31, 2012, which among other thjregiled as defendants NI Group
Limited (now known as News Corp UK & Ireland Limdeand Les Hinton, and expanded the class periatttode February 15, 2011 to
July 18, 2011. The defendants filed motions to disrthe litigation, which were granted by the cartMarch 31, 2014. Plaintiffs were
allowed to amend their complaint, and on April 3014, plaintiffs filed a second amended consolidatmplaint, which generally repeats the
allegations of the amended consolidated complaidtadso expands the class period to July 8, 200814018, 2011. The Company’s
management believes the claims in the Wilder Litaggaare entirely without merit, and intends toasigusly defend those claims.

U.K. Newspaper Matters and Related Investigatiomsld_itigation

U.S. regulators and governmental authorities caetio conduct investigations initiated in 2011 witspect to the U.K. Newspaper
Matters. The Company is cooperating with thesestigations. It is not possible at this time to msiie the liability, if any, of the Company
relating to these investigations.

In connection with the Separation, the Companydeds Corp agreed in the Separation and Distributigreement that the Company
will indemnify News Corp, on an after-tax basis, f@yments made after the Separation arising oditvdfclaims and investigations relating to
the U.K. Newspaper Matters, as well as legal anfegsional fees and expenses paid in connectidntidt related criminal matters, other than
fees, expenses and costs relating to employeesehaot (i) directors, officers or certain desigua¢mployees or (ii) with respect to civil
matters, co-defendants with News Corp.

It is possible that these proceedings and any advesolution thereof, including any fines or othenalties associated with any plea,
judgment or similar result could damage the Com’s reputation, impair its ability to conduct itsdiness and adversely affect its results of
operations and financial condition.
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Other

The Company’s operations are subject to tax inouardomestic and international jurisdictions and asatter of course, the Company
is regularly audited by federal, state and forganauthorities. The Company believes it has apatgly accrued for the expected outcome of
all pending tax matters and does not currentlycgrate that the ultimate resolution of pendingrzatters will have a material adverse effect ol
its consolidated financial condition, future reswt operations or liquidity.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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PART Il

I TEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, R ELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Since June 28, 2013, Twenty-First Century Ba®lass A Common Stock and Class B Common Stoc& begn listed and traded on
NASDAQ Global Select Marke“NASDAQ") under the symbols “FOXA” and “FOX”, respgvely. Until May 8, 2014, CHESS Depositary
Interests (“CDIs”) representing the Class A Comrtock and Class B Common Stock were traded on tistrélian Securities Exchange (the
“ASX") under the symbols “FOXLV” and “FOX,” respagtly. As a result of the delisting from the ASXweé&nty-First Century Fox is solely
listed and traded on the NASDAQ. As of June 304 @here were approximately 36,400 holders ofn&od shares of Class A Common St
and 1,400 holders of record of shares of Class Br@on Stock.

The following table sets forth, for the fiscal et$ indicated, the reported high and low saleseprior Class A Common Stock and
Class B Common Stock as reported on NASDAQ:

Class B Class A
Common Stock Common Stock
High Low Dividend @ High Low Dividend @
Fiscal Year Ended June
2013:
First Quarte $ 2227 $ 19.18 $ 0.085 $ 22.09 $ 19.04 $ 0.085
Second Quarte 23.08 20.81 - 22.51 20.42 -
Third Quartel 27.44 23.17 0.085 27.10 22.52 0.085
Fourth Quarte 29.71 26.96 - 29.56 26.79 -
2014:
First Quarte 33.40 29.34 0.125 33.51 29.21 0.125
Second Quarte 34.85 31.65 - 35.18 32.20 -
Third Quartel 35.04 30.21 0.125 35.63 30.73 0.125
Fourth Quarte 35.36 30.77 - 36.21 31.65 -
@ Cash dividend declared per she

The timing and amount of cash dividends, if anydégermined by the Company’s Board of Directore (tBoard”).

The Board has authorized a stock repurchase prognaser which the Company is currently authorizeddquire Class A Common
Stock. In August 2013, the Board authorized theirelpase of $4 billion of Class A Common Stock, agaig commissions, which replaced
remaining authorized amount under the stock re@aselprogram.

The remaining authorized amount under the Compastgk repurchase program at June 30, 2014, exgudimmissions, was
approximately $0.6 billion which was utilized inllfsubsequent to June 30, 2014. In August 2014Cimpany announced that the Board
approved an additional $6 billion authorizatiorthie Company’s stock repurchase program for therobyase of Class A Common Stock. The
Company intends to complete this stock repurchesgram by August 2015.

The program may be modified, extended, suspenddioontinued at any time.
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Below is a summary of the Company’s purchasessdfibss A Common Stock during the fiscal year erldeet 30, 2014:

Total number Average
of shares price per Total cost
purchased share of purchase
(in millions)
Total first quarter fiscal 2014 28,978,52 $ 3151 $ 91:
Total second quarter fiscal 2014 24,489,68 33.51 822
Total third quarter fiscal 2014 31,248,02 32.5¢ 1,015
Fourth quarter repurchases:
April 9,251,38: 32.4: 30C
May 9,122,051 33.3¢ 304
June 11,774,52 35.3: 41€
Total fourth quarter fiscal 2014 30,147,96 $ 1,02(
Total fiscal 2014 114,864,20 $ 3,77:

The Company did not purchase any of its Class B i@omStock during the fiscal year ended June 304201
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| TEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected consolidated financial data shouldeld in conjunction with “ltem 7 - Management's &ission and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” dteim 8 - Financial Statements and SupplementagDand the other financial informatic
included elsewhere herein.

For the years ended June 30,
2014@® 2013@ 2012 2011®) 20100
(in millions, except per share data

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA

Revenue: $ 31,867 $ 27,67 $ 25,05 $ 24,23. $ 23,97:
Income from continuing operations attributable to

Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc. stockholde 3,78¢ 6,82( 3,17¢ 2,29¢ 2,16¢
Net income attributable to Twer-First Century Fox,

Inc. stockholder 4,51« 7,097 1,17¢ 2,73¢ 2,53¢

Income from continuing operations attributable teehty-First Century Fox,

Inc. stockholders per she- basic $ 167 $ 291 $ 127 $ 087 $ 0.8
Income from continuing operations attributable teehty-First Century Fox,

Inc. stockholders per she- diluted $ 167 $ 291 $ 127 $ 087 $ 0.8
Net income attributable to Twer-First Century Fox, Inc. stockholders per st

- basic and dilute $ 19¢ $ 302 $ 047 $ 104 $ 0.9
Cash dividend per sha $ 025( $ 0.17C $ 0.18 $ 015 $ 0.13¢

As of June 30,
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(in millions)

BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 541t $ 6,65¢ $ 9.62¢ $ 12,68( $ 8,70¢
Total asset 54,79: 50,94 56,66 61,98( 54,38¢
Borrowings 19,05¢ 16,45¢ 15,45t 15,49t 13,32(
Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc. stockholders' equ 17,41¢ 16,99¢ 24,68¢ 30,06¢ 25,67¢

@ See Notes 2, 3, 4, 5, 7 and 10 to the accomparamgolidated Financial Statements of Twenty-Fiest@ry Fox, Inc. for information
with respect to significant acquisitions, disposélscontinued operations, changes in accountingairment charges, restructuring
charges and other transactions during fiscal 22043 and 2012

® In fiscal 2011, the Company recorded a goodwillamment charge of $168 million as a result of apamment assessment performed
on the Digital Media Group reporting unit and alsoorded a restructuring charge of approximateBO$hillion resulting from an
organizational restructuring to align resourcesarmosely with the digital media properti

© During fiscal 2010, the Company determined thatas more likely than not that it would sell or disp its News Outdoor and Fox
Mobile businesses. In connection with such potéstikes, the Company recognized a non-cash impatroi&rge of $200 million. The
impairment charge consisted of a write-down of §8ion in finite-lived intangible assets, a writlswn of $137 million in goodwiill
and a write-down of $11 million in fixed assetssé\|l during fiscal 2010, the Company sold the mjaf its terrestrial television
operations in Eastern Europe for $372 million, efetxpense, and recorded a gain of approximatedp $dillion.
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| TEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

This document contains statements that constitisevard-looking statements” within the meaning etfon 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended “Exchange Act”), and Section 27A of the Securiies$ of 1933, as amended. The words “expect,”
“estimate,” “anticipate,” “predict,” “believe” and similar expressions and variations thereof are muted to identify forward-looking
statements. These statements appear in a numpéaagfs in this document and include statementsrdigg the intent, belief or current
expectations of Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc.ditgctors or its officers with respect to, amonfey things, trends affecting Twenty-First
Century Fox, Inc.’s financial condition or resuti§operations. The readers of this document ardicaad that any forwardeoking statement
are not guarantees of future performance and irvoisks and uncertainties. More information regaglthese risks, uncertainties and other
factors is set forth under the headi‘Risk Factors” in Item 1A of this Annual Report &orm 10-K (the “Annual Report”). Twenty-First
Century Fox, Inc. does not ordinarily make projens of its future operating results and undertake®bligation (and expressly disclaims any
obligation) to publicly update or revise any forwaooking statements, whether as a result of ndarimation, future events or otherwise,
except as required by law. Readers should carefalliew this document and the other documents fije@wenty-First Century Fox, Inc. with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SETi)s section should be read together with the adConsolidated Financial Statements
of Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc. and related nadesforth elsewhere in this Annual Report.

INTRODUCTION

On June 28, 2013, Twenty-First Century Fox, Indl &g subsidiaries (formerly known as News Corporgt(together, “Twenty-First
Century Fox” or the “Company”) completed the separeof its business into two independent publithded companies (the “Separation”) by
distributing to its stockholders all of the outstarg shares of the new News Corporation (“News Qofthe Company retained its interests in
a global portfolio of media and entertainment asspanning six continents. News Corp holds the Gmy's former businesses including
newspapers, information services and integratedetiag services, digital real estate services, maiishing, digital education and sports
programming and pay-TV distribution in AustralichéfCompany completed the Separation by distributirits stockholders one share of
News Corp Class A common stock for every four shafdhe Compar's Class A common stock held on June 21, 2013, aadbare of Nev
Corp Class B common stock for every four sharab@Company’s Class B common stock held on Jun2@13. The Compang’stockholder
received cash in lieu of fractional shares. Foltoyihe Separation, the Company does not benejicalh any shares of News Corp Class A
common stock or News Corp Class B common stock.

Effective June 28, 2013, the Separation qualif@difscontinued operations treatment in accordantethe requirements of Financial
Accounting Standards Board’s (“FASB”) Accounting@Bdards Codification (*“ASC”) 205-20, “Discontinu€gerations” (“ASC 205-20"), and
accordingly the Company deconsolidated News Cdyalance sheet as of June 30, 2013, and presestesbitits for the fiscal year ended
June 30, (*fiscal”) 2013 and fiscal 2012 as disturgd operations on the Consolidated Statemer@pefations and Cash Flows. The
Company has reflected the Separation as a distiboh the Consolidated Statement of Equity asioe30, 2013. The footnotes to the
financial statements have also been revised acuglydior fiscal 2013 and 2012. Management'’s disicusand analysis of financial condition
and results of operations describes the Companggyeffect to the Separation, except where statkdraise.

Managemens discussion and analysis of financial conditiod egsults of operations is intended to help pro@deainderstanding of tl
Company’s financial condition, changes in financahdition and results of operations. This disaus$ organized as follows:

. Overview of the Company’s Busines3his section provides a general description ofGbenpany’s businesses, as well as
developments that occurred either during fisca2xlearly fiscal year ending June 30, 2015 thatGbmpany believes are
important in understanding its results of operatiand financial condition or to disclose known ti!
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. Results of Operation- This section provides an analysis of the Comparegsits of operations for fiscal 2014, 2013 and201
This analysis is presented on both a consolidatddaasegment basis. In addition, a brief descnpsgrovided of significant
transactions and events that impact the compatabflithe results being analyze

. Liquidity and Capital Resource- This section provides an analysis of the Compaog&h flows for fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012,
as well as a discussion of the Company’s outstgndébt and commitments, both firm and contingdatt éxisted as of June 30,
2014. Included in the discussion of outstanding ikeh discussion of the amount of financial cafyaavailable to fund the
Compan’s future commitments and obligations, as well dseussion of other financing arrangeme

. Critical Accounting Policies This section discusses accounting policies consienportant to the Company’s financial
condition and results of operations, and which megsignificant judgment and estimates on the prmhanagement in
application. In addition, Note 2 to the accompagy@onsolidated Financial Statements of Twenty-Fettury Fox summarizes
the Compan’s significant accounting policies, including théical accounting policy discussion found in thecon.

OVERVIEW OF THE COMPANY'S BUSINESS

The Company is a diversified global media and ¢ait@ment company, which manages and reports itaésses in the following five
segments:

. Cable Network Programming, which principally consists of the production dingénsing of programming distributed through
cable television systems, direct broadcast satedfierators and telecommunication companies priyriarthe U.S., Latin
America, Europe and Asi

. Television, which principally consists of the broadcastingnefwork programming in the U.S. and the operatib®8 full powet
broadcast television stations, including 10 du@mlin the U.S. (of these stations, 18 are afitlavith the FOX Broadcasting
Company “FOX") and 10 are affiliated with Master Distribution Ses; Inc. “MyNetworkTV")).

. Filmed Entertainment , which principally consists of the production awdjuisition of live-action and animated motion piets
for distribution and licensing in all formats il ehtertainment media worldwide, and the productiod licensing of television
programming worldwide

. Direct Broadcast Satellite Television which consists of the distribution of programmaegvices via satellite, cable and
broadband directly to subscribers in Italy, Germang Austria

. Other, Corporate and Eliminations , which principally consists of corporate overhead eliminations and other businesses.

Cable Network Programming and Television

The Company’s cable networks, which target varideimographics, derive a majority of their revenuemfmonthly affiliate fees
received from multi-channel video programming disttors (“MVPDs") based on the number of their subscribers. Affilfagerevenues are r
of the amortization of cable distribution investrtefcapitalized fees paid to U.S. MVPDs to typigdiicilitate the carriage of a domestic cable
network). The Company defers the cable distribuitwestments and amortizes the amounts on a stritighbasis over the contract period.
Cable television and direct broadcast satellitecareently the predominant means of distributiothef Companys program services in the U
Internationally, distribution technology varies i@gby region.

The television operations derive revenues primdrdyn the sale of advertising, and to a lesserrgxtetransmission consent revenue.
Adverse changes in general market conditions feedising may affect revenues.

U.S. law governing retransmission consent revemaeigles a mechanism for the television stationseximoy the Company to seek and
obtain payment from MVPDs who carry the Companytsalcast signals. Retransmission consent revemsést® of per subscriber-based
compensatory fees paid to the Company by MVPDsdistiibute the signals of the Company’s owned aperated television stations. The
Company also receives compensation

40




from independently-owned television stations thatadfiliated with FOX and receive retransmissiomsent fees from MVPDs for their
signals.

The most significant operating expenses of the €Rligitwork Programming segment and the Televisigmsat are the acquisition and
production expenses related to programming anéxpenses related to operating the technical feslitf the cable network or broadcaster.
Other expenses include promotional expenses relat@sproving the market visibility and awarene$she cable network or broadcaster and
its programming. Additional expenses include saamissions paid to the in-house advertising dale®, as well as salaries, employee
benefits, rent and other routine overhead expenses.

The profitability of U.S. national sports contraatsd international sports rights agreements iscbarghe Company’s best estimates at
June 30, 2014 of attributable revenues and casts; sstimates may change in the future and suahgelsamay be significant. Should revenues
decline from estimates applied at June 30, 201ditiadal amortization of rights may be recordedo@Ht revenues improve as compared to
estimated revenues, the Company may have imprasedts related to the contract, which may be reizegihover the remaining contract term.

Filmed Entertainment

The Filmed Entertainment segment derives reverara the production and distribution of liaetion and animated motion pictures i
television series. In general, motion pictures posdl or acquired for distribution by the Compars exhibited in U.S. and foreign theaters,
followed by home entertainment, including sale esnttal of DVDs and Blu-rays, licensing through thgdistribution platforms, premium
subscription television, network television andibasible and syndicated television exploitationeVision series initially produced for the
networks and first-run syndication are generatbetised to domestic and international markets cosctly and subsequently released in
seasonal DVD and Blmay box sets and made available via digital digtidn platforms. More successful series are latadigated in domesti
markets. The length of the revenue cycle for tslewvi series will vary depending on the number asas a series remains in active productio
and, therefore, may cause fluctuations in operatisglts. License fees received for television litioin (including international and U.S.
premium television and basic cable television)raomrded as revenue in the period that licensetsfdr programs are available for such
exhibition, which may cause substantial fluctuagiamoperating results.

The revenues and operating results of the FilmedrEzinment segment are significantly affectedhs/timing of the Company’s
theatrical and home entertainment releases, thdawuaf its original and returning television settieat are aired by television networks and
cable channels and the number of its televisiolesén off-network syndication. Theatrical and hoemtertainment release dates are
determined by several factors, including timingza€ation and holiday periods and competition inrttegketplace. The distribution windows
for the release of motion pictures theatrically amdarious home entertainment products and ses\(ioeluding subscription rentals, rental
kiosks and digital distribution platforms), haveehecompressing and may continue to change in tiiesfuA further reduction in timing
between theatrical and home entertainment releaméd adversely affect the revenues and operagisglts of this segment.

The Company enters into arrangements with thirtigsato co-produce many of its theatrical produtdioThese arrangements, which
are referred to as co-financing arrangements,‘akieus forms. The parties to these arrangementsda studio and non-studio entities, both
domestic and foreign. In several of these agreesnettier parties control certain distribution rgghithe Filmed Entertainment segment record
the amounts received for the sale of an econornecdat as a reduction of the cost of the film hasihvestor assumes full risk for that portiol
the film asset acquired in these transactions.slibstance of these arrangements is that the thitg-mvestors own an interest in the film and,
therefore, receive a participation based on thgets/e third-party investor’s interest in the pt®br losses incurred on the film. Consistent
with the requirements of FASB ASC 926, “EntertaimtreFilms” (*“ASC 926"), the estimate of a third-paitvestor’s interest in profits or
losses on the film is based on total estimatedhalt® revenues.

Operating costs incurred by the Filmed Entertainnsegment include: exploitation costs, primarilgatrical prints and advertising and
home entertainment marketing and manufacturingscastortization of capitalized
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production, overhead and interest costs; and [jaations and talent residuals. Selling, generaladministrative expenses include salaries,
employee benefits, rent and other routine overhead.

Direct Broadcast Satellite Television

The Direct Broadcast Satellite Television (“DBS&gsnent derives revenues principally from subsciibes. The Company believes
that the quality and variety of programming, auaiml interactive programming including personal sidecorders, quality of picture including
high definition channels, access to services, oustservice and price are the key elements forirgguand maintaining market share.

The DBS segment’s most significant operating exeemsge those related to the acquisition of entartant, movie and sports
programming and subscribers and the expensesdettgperating the technical facilities. Operatingenses related to sports programming
generally recognized over the course of the relgpent season, which may cause fluctuations iroffegating results of this segment.

The continued challenging economic environmenturolge has contributed to a reduction in consumendipg and has posed
challenges for subscriber retention and growtthiff trend continues, it could have a materialafée the operating results of the DBS
segment.

Other, Corporate and Eliminations

The Other, Corporate and Eliminations segment stsiprimarily of corporate overhead and eliminagiand other businesses.

Other Business Developments
Cable Network Programming

In September 2013, the Company acquired the 228tgisit it did not already own in Latin America PajéVision (“LAPTV"), an
entity that distributes premium and basic televistbannels in Latin America, for approximately $illion in cash. As a result of this
transaction, the Company now owns 100% of LAPTV.

On February 28, 2014, the Company acquired aniaddlt31% interest in the Yankees Entertainment&palrts Network (“YES
Network"), a Regional Sports Network (“RSN”) primarily tadcasting pre-season and regular season gamée fdetv York Yankees and the
Brooklyn Nets, for approximately $680 million, raftcash acquired. As a result of this transacti@yinning March 2014, the Company
consolidated the balance sheet and operating sesfulthie YES Network, including $1.7 billion in dehs it owns an 80% controlling interest.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014, the Compangared the 13% interest it did not already owr\gianet Communications Limited
(“Asianet Communications”), an entity in India tHabadcasts and operates the Malayalam languagaelsaAsianet and Asianet Plus and the
Kannada language channel Suvarna television, foroagmately $50 million in cash. As a result oistiransaction, the Company now owns
100% of Asianet Communications.

Television

In June 2014, the Company entered into an agreaimacguire two San Francisco-Bay area televisiatioms from Cox Media Group
in exchange for the Company’s FOX affiliated sta®WHBQ-TV FOX 13 and WFXT-TV FOX 24, located iretMemphis and Boston
markets, respectively. The transaction is subectgulatory approvals and other closing conditions

Filmed Entertainmer

In May 2014, the Company and certain funds manage&ipollo Global Management (“Apollo”) entered irdgpreliminary agreement,
subject to a number of conditions, to form a jei@nture to which the Company will contribute itseirests in the Shine Group. The joint
venture is expected to be comprised of the ShimeiGrEndemol, and the CORE Media Group and wijblogly owned and managed by the
Company and the funds managed by Apollo. If the
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transaction is completed, the Shine Group will ¢ladter cease to be a consolidated subsidiary oEtmepany. There can be no assurance that
the proposed transaction will be completed.

Other

In March 2014, the Company received approval frimstockholders, and subsequently, the ASX for rerhof its full foreign listing
from the ASX. Delisting from the ASX occurred on Y&, 2014 and, effective as of that date, all ofhty-First Century Fox’s Class A
common stock and Class B common stock is listegl\soin the NASDAQ.

In fiscal 2014, the Company sold its remaining liB%rest in Phoenix Satellite Television Holdingsl.L(“Phoenix”)for approximatel
$210 million.

In fiscal 2014, through separate transactionsCthimpany sold its 47% interest in CMC-News Asia htodd Limited, its 50% interest
in STATS LLC and its 50% interest in STAR CJ Netlwémdia Pvt. Ltd, all equity method investees, daiotal consideration of approximately
$255 million.

Subsequent Events

In July 2014, the Company sold its entire intene®ona Film Group for approximately $70 million gash.

In July 2014, the Company entered into agreemeitksBritish Sky Broadcasting Group plc (“BSkyB”) gell its 100% and 57% (on a
fully diluted basis) ownership stakes in Sky ltalied Sky Deutschland AG (“Sky Deutschland”), resipety, for approximately $9.3 billion
(based on foreign currency exchange rates as afateeof the agreements) comprised of approxim&@I§ billion in cash and the transfer to
the Company of BSkyB’s 21% interest in NGC Netwbrternational LLC and NGC Network Latin America LL(€ollectively “NGC
International”), increasing the Company’s ownersdtgke to 73% in NGC International. In connectiathwhis transaction, the Company
participated in BSkyB’s equity offering in July 20by purchasing additional shares in BSkyB for agpnately $900 million and maintained
the Company’s 39% ownership interest. The agreesrametsubject to regulatory approvals, the approvBISkyB stockholders and customary
closing conditions.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Results of Operatior—Fiscal 2014 versus Fiscal 2013
The following table sets forth the Company’s opiamtesults for fiscal 2014, as compared to fiHl 3.

For the years ended June 30,
2014 2013 Change % Change
(in millions, except %)

Revenues

Affiliate fees $ 8,98« $ 7,67¢ % 1,30¢ 17 %

Subscriptior 5,46 4,07¢ 1,39: 34 %

Advertising 8,21¢ 7,63¢ 584 8 %

Content 8,59¢ 7,871 72E 9 %

Other 602 41¢ 184 44 %
Total revenue: 31,86 27,67¢ 4,197 15 %
Operating expense (21,109 (17,49¢) (3,612 21 %
Selling, general and administrati (4,129 (4,007%) (122 3 %
Depreciation and amortizatic (1,147) (797) (34%) 43 %
Impairment charge - (35) 35 *x
Equity earnings of affiliate 622 65E (33 (5) %
Interest expense, n (1,127 (1,067) (58) 5 %
Interest incomt 26 57 (31) (54) %
Other, ne 174 3,741 (3,579 (95) %
Income from continuing operations before income

tax expense 5,18¢ 8,73¢ (3,547 (41) %

Income tax expens (1,277) (1,690 41€ (25) %
Income from continuing operations 3,917 7,04¢ (3,129 (44) %
Income from discontinued operations, net of 72¢ 277 452 *x
Net income 4,64¢ 7,328 (2,677 (37 %

Less: Net income attributable to noncontrollingenests (132) (22€) 94 (42) %
Net income attributable to Twenty-First Century

Fox stockholders $ 4514 $ 7,097 $ (2,587 (36) %

** not meaningfu

Overview— The Company’s revenues increased 15% for fiscad 284 compared to fiscal 2013, primarily due taéases in
subscription, affiliate fees, content and advartjgievenues. The increase in subscription revewasgrimarily due to the effect of the
consolidation of Sky Deutschland from January 201 increase in affiliate fees for fiscal 2014 yasicipally attributable to higher average
rates per subscriber across most cable channelgding the conversion and related launch of neanalels, and the acquisition of majority
interests in the YES Network, Fox Sports Asia (ferlm ESPN Star Sports) and Eredivisie Media & M#érgCV (“EMM”) (collectively the
“Acquisitions”). Also contributing to the increageaffiliate fees for fiscal 2014 were higher resaission consent revenues. The increase in
content revenues was primarily due to higher safléslevision and motion picture productions. Therease in advertising revenue for fiscal
2014 was principally attributable to revenues agdrom the broadcast &uper Bowl XLVIIin February 2014, growth at the Cable Network
Programming segment including the conversion alada@ launch of new channels, Fox Sports 1, STARtSmetworks and FXX, and the
Acquisitions. The strengthening of the U.S. doélgainst local currencies (non-Euro) resulted ievenue decrease of approximately $285
million for fiscal 2014, as compared to fiscal 20partially offset by the effect of the weakenirfglee U.S. dollar against the Euro of
approximately $225 million.

Operating expenses increased 21% for fiscal 2Gldompared to fiscal 2013, primarily due to theéases at the DBS, Cable Network
Programming and Filmed Entertainment segments pfoegimately $1,490 million, $1,070 million and $9i8llion, respectively. The
operating expense increase at the DBS segmentnmaariy
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due to the effect of the consolidation of Sky Debtand from January 2013. The increase at the Qédteork Programming segment for fis
2014 was primarily related to higher programmingtspthe continued investments in the new chankebs Sports 1, STAR Sports networks
and FXX, and the Acquisitions. The increase atRiraed Entertainment segment was primarily reldatedn increase in production
amortization and participation costs related totdtevision programming and motion picture produttusinesses and higher theatrical
marketing costs as a result of the increase imtimeber of significant theatrical releases in fi@l4, as compared to fiscal 2013.

Selling, general and administrative expenses ise@&% for fiscal 2014, as compared to fiscal 2@tiyarily due to the increases at
the Cable Network Programming and DBS segmentpmfoximately $85 million and $75 million, respe&ldy. The increase at the Cable
Network Programming segment for fiscal 2014 wamgrily due to higher personnel costs and the efietiie Acquisitions. The increase at
DBS segment was primarily due to the effect ofdblsolidation of Sky Deutschland from January 2013.

Depreciation and amortization, including the anzation of acquired identifiable intangible assatsreased 43% for fiscal 2014, as
compared to fiscal 2013, primarily due to the cdidstion of Sky Deutschland and the acquisitiorihef majority interest in the YES Network.

Equity earnings of affiliates- Equity earnings of affiliates decreased $33 millionfiscal 2014, as compared to fiscal 2013, duthé
decreases at the DBS equity affiliates primarilpted to lower results and gains at BSkyB, pastiaffset by the absence of equity losses di
the consolidation of Sky Deutschland from Janu&3¥3 The gains from the Company’s participatioB8kyB’s share repurchase program
declined by approximately $170 million during fis@@14. Partially offsetting the net decreasefatDBS equity affiliates were increases at
the Other equity affiliates, led by Hulu LLC (“Htily and the Cable channel equity affiliates. Hultésults benefited from higher subscription
and advertising revenues and the effect of thegasarecorded during fiscal 2013 for the redemptiRrovidence Equity Partners’ equity
interest in October 2012. The increase at the Gaidenel equity affiliates was led by higher cdnitions from the YES Network, which was
an affiliate until the date of its acquisition.

For the years ended June 3(

2014 2013 Change % Change
(in millions, except %)
DBS equity affiliates $ 60¢ $ 826 $ (2179) (26) %
Cable channel equity affiliate 29 (52 81 *x
Other equity affiliate: (16€) (119) 10z 87 %
Equity earnings of affiliate $ 622 $ 655 $ (33 (5) %

** not meaningfu

Interest expense, netinterest expense increased $58 million for fis€Hl42 as compared to fiscal 2013, primarily duehwohigher
average debt outstanding as a result of the detsintidated in connection with the acquisition of thajority interest in the YES Network and
the consolidation of Sky Deutschland and the isseam September 2013 of $300 million of 4.00% Sehiotes due 2023 and $700 million of
5.40% Senior Notes due 2043.
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Other, net—

For the years ended June 3(

2014 2013
(in millions)
Gain on Sky Deutschland transact(@ $ - % 2,06¢
(Loss) gain on sale of investment in NI®) (30) 1,44¢
Gain on sale of investment in Phoe(®) 19¢ 81
Gain on Fox Sports Asia transacti@ - 174
Gain on sale of investment in STA(P) 112 -
Shareholder litigation settleme(©) 111 -
Venezuela foreign currency devaluat(® (104) -
Loss on sale of Baltimore stati(@ - (92
Investment impairmer(b) (69) (20
Restructuring® (52 (13
Change in fair value of securiti@ (4) 86
Other 11 16
Other, ne $ 174 $ 3,741
@ See Note 3 — Acquisitions, Disposals and Other Saations to the accompanying Consolidated Finag&ta&bements of Twenty-First
Century Fox
® See Note - Investments to the accompanying Consolidated Finh8tatements of Twer-First Century Fox
© See Note 1+~ Commitments and Contingencies to the accompanyos@idated Financial Statements of TweFirst Century Fox
@ See Note 2— Additional Financial Information to the accompanyi@onsolidated Financial Statements of Tw-First Century Fox
© See Note - Restructuring Programs to the accompanying CoragliiFinancial Statements of Twe-First Century Fox

Income tax expense The Company’s tax provision and related effectaserate of 25% for fiscal 2014 was lower than ttadutory
rate of 35% primarily due to a 7% rate reductiamnirour foreign operations due to tax credits ardlidéons arising from a corporate
restructuring as well as the effect of income latttéble to non-controlling interests. The balanicine difference in the rate was primarily
attributable to the Company’s ability to utilizeetdomestic production activities deduction andrid@gnition of a deferred tax asset for
additional tax basis.

In connection with the pending disposition of Stalih and Sky Deutschland pursuant to sale agretsméth BSkyB, the Company
plans to use most of its U.S. capital loss carmyéods and foreign tax credits carryforwards to etffs substantial amount of the gain which is
likely to be recognized. A benefit equal to theslearryforwards and foreign tax credit carryforwautilized is expected to be recognized at
that time, as a valuation allowance is currentborded against these assets. The agreements ggetsalyegulatory approvals, the approval of
BSkyB stockholders and customary closing conditions

The Companys tax provision and related effective tax rate @¥alfor fiscal 2013 was lower than the statutorg @t35% primarily du
to a 7% rate reduction as a result of adjustmemtmluation allowances for the utilization of fageitax credit carryforwards in connection with
the NDS Group Limited (“NDS”) transaction and thransolidation of Sky Deutschland, which, in accoawith ASC 740, “Income
Taxes” (“ASC 740"), reduced income tax expensetdube removal of a historical valuation allowankceaddition, there is a 4% rate
reduction resulting from the sale of interestsubsidiaries and the non-taxable gain on the caatidin of Fox Sports Asia, as well as a 2%
rate reduction from our foreign operations dueatodredits and deductions arising from a corpard&ucturing. The effect of foreign
operations was lower than in fiscal 2012 as a teguhe substantial increase in income from caritig operations.
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Income from discontinued operations, net of taxFor fiscal 2014, the Company recorded Income fragnahtinued operations of $7
million as compared to income of $277 million iadal 2013. The change was primarily due to therafgsef income from discontinued
operations as a result of the Separation in fi20aB and the recognition in fiscal 2014 of a tekmd paid to News Corp and then transferre
the Company in accordance with the tax sharingimaemnification agreement. A subsidiary of News [;qrior to the Separation, had filed
for refunds to claim certain losses in a foreigtsydiction. During fiscal 2014, the foreign juristion notified News Corp that it had accepte
claims and refunded the taxes plus interest to Nearp.

Net income— Net income decreased for fiscal 2014, as comparéiddal 2013, primarily due to the absence ofghim recorded upon
the consolidation of Sky Deutschland in fiscal 2@h8l the absence of the gain related to the s&&, partially offset by an increase in Tt
Segment OIBDA (as defined in “Segment Analysis”).

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interestsNet income attributable to noncontrolling interedtsreased for fiscal 2014, as
compared to fiscal 2013, primarily due to the st of the noncontrolling interests’ share of E}gutschland’s net losses on its
consolidation.

Results of Operatior—Fiscal 2013 versus Fiscal 2012
The following table sets forth the Company’s opiamtesults for fiscal 2013, as compared to fitHl 2.

For the years ended June 3(
2013 2012 Change % Change
(in millions, except %)

Revenues

Affiliate fees $ 7,67¢ % 6,331 % 1,347 21 %

Subscriptior 4,07¢ 3,40¢ 66€ 20 %

Advertising 7,63¢ 7,55:¢ 81 1%

Content 7,871 7,26( 611 8 %

Other 41¢ 49¢ (81) (16) %
Total revenue: 27,67¢ 25,05! 2,62¢ 10 %
Operating expenst (17,496 (15,667 (1,839 12 %
Selling, general and administrati (4,007) (3,719 (28¢) 8 %
Depreciation and amortizatic (797) (717) (86) 12 %
Impairment charge (35) (207) 16€ (83) %
Equity earnings of affiliate 65E 63€ 19 3 %
Interest expense, n (1,067) (1,039 (32) 3 %
Interest incomt 57 77 (20 (26) %
Other, ne 3,741 25 3,722 *
Income from continuing operations before income

tax expense 8,73¢ 4,46: 4,27: 96 %

Income tax expens (1,690 (1,099 (59€) 54 %
Income from continuing operations 7,04¢ 3,36¢ 3,671 *x
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, neg 277 (1,999 2,27¢ *x
Net income 7,328 1,372 5,951 *x

Less: Net income attributable to noncontrollingenetsts (22€) (199 (33) 17 %
Net income attributable to Twenty-First Century

Fox stockholders $ 7,097 % 1,17¢ $ 5,91¢ e

** not meaningfu

Overview— The Company’s revenues increased 10% for fiscaB284 compared to fiscal 2012, as a result of higfidiate fee,
subscription and content revenues. The increaafiliate fee revenues was attributable to
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higher average rates per subscriber across maoshelsathe consolidations of Fox Sports Asia arnd Fan American Sports LLC, doing
business as Fox Sports Latin America (“FSLA"), #uguisition of EMM and higher retransmission comgemenues. The increase in
subscription revenue was due to the consolidati@kg Deutschland in January 2013, partially oftsgiower subscription revenue at Sky
Italia. The higher content revenue was due to arease in worldwide theatrical revenues. The sthemng of the U.S. dollar against local
currencies resulted in a revenue decrease of ajppately $370 million for fiscal 2013, as comparediscal 2012.

Operating expenses increased 12% for fiscal 2GL8pmpared to fiscal 2012, primarily due to inceeagperating expenses at the D
Cable Network Programming and Filmed Entertainnsegiments of $850 million, $770 million and $210liwrl, respectively. The increase at
the DBS segment was primarily the result of thesatidation of Sky Deutschland and higher prograntngasts while the increase at the Ce
Network Programming segment was primarily due eodbnsolidations of Fox Sports Asia and FSLA, tbguésition of EMM, new cricke
contracts in India and the launch of new chanféis. increase at the Filmed Entertainment segmestpwiearily due to higher theatrical
marketing costs.

Selling, general and administrative expenses ise@&% for fiscal 2013, as compared to fiscal 2@titqarily due to increased
expenses at the Cable Network Programming, FilmedrEainment and Television segments of approxilp&e60 million, $70 million and
$36 million, respectively. The increase at the @aletwork Programming segment was primarily duthéoconsolidations of Fox Sports Asia
and FSLA, the acquisition of EMM and the launcmetv channels. The increase at the Filmed Entereihiand Television segments was
primarily due to higher personnel costs and hidbgal expenses for cases relating to the protectidhe Company’s intellectual property
rights.

Depreciation and amortization increased 12% faali2013, as compared to fiscal 2012, primarily ttueonsolidations of Sky
Deutschland, Fox Sports Asia and FSLA and the adéni of EMM.

Impairment charges- During fiscal 2013 and 2012, the Company recordedecash goodwill impairment charges of $35 millaord
$201 million, respectively, related to the sal@dfusiness in its Digital Media Group in fiscal 301

Equity earnings of affiliates- Equity earnings of affiliates increased $19 millfon fiscal 2013, as compared to fiscal 2012, prima
due to improved results at the DBS equity affilkaté $168 million partially offset by losses at thtber equity affiliates. The improvement in
the DBS equity affiliates’ results was driven b tibsence of approximately $85 million in lossea essult of the consolidation of Sky
Deutschland and improved results of approximatély fillion from BSkyB. These improvements were jadlst offset by lower contributions
of approximately $70 million from Hulu, as a resofithe redemption of Providence Equity Partnecglity interest in October 2012 and the
absence of approximately $55 million in equity @ags resulting from the sale of the Company’s itwvesnt in NDS in July 2012.

For the years ended June 3(

2013 2012 Change % Change
(in millions, except %)
DBS equity affiliates $ 82¢ $ 65¢ $ 16€ 26 %
Cable channel equity affiliate (52 (39 (18 (53) %
Other equity affiliate: (119) 12 (1317) i
Equity earnings of affiliate $ 655 $ 63€ $ 19 3 %

** not meaningfu

Interest expense, netinterest expense, net increased $31 million faafi2013, as compared to fiscal 2012, primarily tiuthe
issuance of $1.0 billion of 3.00% Senior Notes @022 in September 2012 and increased interest sgpetated to the consolidation of Sky
Deutschland debt.
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Other, net—

For the years ended June 30,

2013 2012
(in millions)
Gain on Sky Deutschland transact(® $ 2,06¢ $ =
Gain on sale of investment in NL(®) 1,44¢ -
Gain on Fox Sports Asia transacti@ 174 -
Gain on sale of investment in Phoe(®) 81 -
Loss on sale of Baltimore stati(@ (92 -
Gain on FSLA transactic@ - 15¢
Restructuring©) (13 (41)
Change in fair value of securiti@ 86 (61)
Investment impairmer® (20 (34)
BSkyB termination fed®)(d - (63)
Gain on sale of investment in Hathway Ce®) - 23
Other 16 43
Other, ne $ 3,741 $ 25
@ See Note 3 — Acquisitions, Disposals and Other Saations to the accompanying Consolidated Finast&tbments of Twenty-First
Century Fox
® See Note - Investments to the accompanying Consolidated Finh8tatements of Twer-First Century Fox
(e See Note - Restructuring Programs to the accompanying CorestglgdFinancial Statements of Twe-First Century Fox.

(d) See Note 2~ Additional Financial Information to the accompanyi@onsolidated Financial Statements of Tw-First Century Fox

Income tax expense The Company’s tax provision and related effectaserate of 19% for fiscal 2013 was lower than ttadutory
rate of 35% primarily due to a 7% rate reductiomassult of adjustments to valuation allowancegHe utilization of foreign tax credit
carryforwards in connection with the NDS transatt#md the consolidation of Sky Deutschland, whiclaccordance with ASC 740, reduced
income tax expense due to the removal of a histbvialuation allowance. In addition, there was aré® reduction resulting from the sale of
interests in subsidiaries and the non-taxable gaithe consolidation of Fox Sports Asia, as weth @96 rate reduction from the Company’s
foreign operations due to tax credits and dedustatsing from a corporate restructuring. The éftédoreign operations was lower than in
fiscal 2012 primarily as a result of the substdiritiarease in Income from continuing operations.

The Company’s tax provision and related effectaserate of 25% for fiscal 2012 was lower than th8.$tatutory rate of 35%
primarily due to a 6% rate reduction from the Compa foreign operations due to tax credits and d&daos arising from a corporate
restructuring as well as a 4% rate reduction regpfrom the sale of interests in subsidiaries #ednon-taxable gain on the consolidation of
FSLA.

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, nettak — For fiscal 2013, the Company recorded Income frisnahtinued operations
of $277 million as compared to a loss of $1,997iamilin fiscal 2012. This improvement was due tawédo restructuring and impairment char
and a non-taxable gain from News Corp’s revaluabbits previously held equity interest in Foxtes a result of the acquisition of
Consolidated Media Holdings Ltd. These improvemerese partially offset by transaction costs reldtethe Separation.

Net income- Net income increased for fiscal 2013, as compardistal 2012, primarily due to the gain on the Slgutschland
transaction as well as the gains on the sale oEtmpany’s investment in NDS and improved resutimfcontinuing and discontinued
operations.

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interestsNet income attributable to noncontrolling interdstseased for fiscal 2013, as
compared to fiscal 2012, primarily due to highesules at the Company’s majority-
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owned businesses and the issuances of additionabntrolling interests at the Company’s cable besses. These increases were partially
offset by the noncontrolling interests’ share of leutschland’s net losses.

Segment Analysi:

The Company’s operating segments have been detdrmraccordance with the Company’s internal mamesgé structure, which is
organized based on operating activities. The Compaaluates performance based upon several factord)ich the primary financial measi
is Segment OIBDA. Due to the integrated naturéhefdperating segments, estimates and judgmenisate in allocating certain assets,
revenues and expenses.

Segment OIBDA is defined as Revenues less Operakipgnses and Selling, general and administratipereses. Segment OIBDA
does not include: Amortization of cable distributiovestments, Depreciation and amortization, Impant charges, Equity earnings of
affiliates, Interest expense, net, Interest incoBtler, net, Income tax expense and Net incomibatiible to noncontrolling interests.
Management believes that Segment OIBDA is an apiatepmeasure for evaluating the operating perfogaaf the Company’s business
segments because it is the primary measure ust#teliyompany’s chief operating decision maker tduate the performance of and allocate
resources within the Company’s businesses.

Management believes that information about Totgin$ent OIBDA assists all users of the Company’s Glidated Financial
Statements by allowing them to evaluate chang#eimperating results of the Company’s portfolido$inesses separate from raperatione
factors that affect Net income, thus providing gigiinto both operations and the other factors éffatct reported results. Total Segment
OIBDA provides management, investors and equityyatma measure to analyze the operating performahthe Company’s business and its
enterprise value against historical data and coitepgtdata, although historical results, including Segn@iBDA and Total Segment OIBD/
may not be indicative of future results (as opamperformance is highly contingent on many factorsluding customer tastes and
preferences).

Total Segment OIBDA is a non-GAAP measure and ghbalconsidered in addition to, not as a substfarteNet income (loss), cash
flow and other measures of financial performang®red in accordance with U.S. generally acceptedanting principles (“GAAP”). In
addition, this measure does not reflect cash avail® fund requirements and excludes items, saddepreciation and amortization and
Impairment charges, which are significant composiémtaissessing the Company’s financial performance.
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Fiscal 2014 versus Fiscal 2013

The following table reconciles Total Segment OIBBAncome from continuing operations before incdmeexpense for fiscal 2014,
as compared to fiscal 2013.

For the years ended June 3(

2014 2013 Change % Change
(in millions, except %)

Revenue: $ 31867 $ 27,67 $ 4,19: 15 %
Operating expense (21,109 (17,496 (3,617 21 %
Selling, general and administrati (4,129 (4,007 (122 3%
Amortization of cable distribution investmet 85 89 (4) (4) %
Total Segment OIBD/ 6,71% 6,261 454 7 %
Amortization of cable distribution investmet (85) (89 4 (4) %
Depreciation and amortizatic (1,142 (797) (34%) 43 %
Impairment charge - (35 35 *x
Equity earnings of affiliate 622 65E (33 (5) %
Interest expense, n (1,127 (1,069 (58) 5%
Interest incom 26 57 (31 (54) %
Other, ne 174 3,74 (3,579 (95) %
Income from continuing operations before income tax

expenst $ 518¢ $ 8,73t $ (3,54) (41) %

** not meaningful

The following tables set forth the Company’s Revanand Segment OIBDA for fiscal 2014, as compavdistal 2013.

For the years ended June 30,
2014 2013 Change % Change
(in millions, except %)

Revenues:

Cable Network Programmir $ 12,27: % 10,881 % 1,392 13 %
Television 5,29€ 4,86C 436 9 %
Filmed Entertainmer 9,67¢ 8,642 1,037 12 %
Direct Broadcast Satellite Televisir 6,03C 4,43¢ 1,591 36 %
Other, Corporate and Eliminatio (1,417) (1,147) (264) (23) %
Total revenue: $ 31,867 $ 27678 $ 4,19z 15 %

For the years ended June 30,
2014 2013 Change % Change
(in millions, except %)

Segment OIBDA:

Cable Network Programmir $ 4,407 $ 4,177 $ 230 6 %
Television 882 855 27 3 %
Filmed Entertainmer 1,35¢ 1,30¢ 50 4 %
Direct Broadcast Satellite Televisii 424 397 27 7 %
Other, Corporate and Eliminatio (356) (476) 120 25 %
Total Segment OIBD/ $ 6,71t  $ 6,261 $ 454 7 %
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Cable Network Programming39% of the Company’s consolidated revenues irafigd14 and 2013)

For fiscal 2014, revenues at the Cable Network Rrmgiing segment increased $1,392 million, or 13%gamnpared to fiscal 2013,
primarily due to higher affiliate fee and adverigirevenues as shown below:

Fiscal 2014
% Increase

Affiliate fees 15 %
Advertising 9 %
Other 3%
Total 13 %

The 13% increase in total Cable Network Programmgmgment revenue is net of a 2% decline due tettkagthening of the U.S.
dollar against local currencies, and the absencistibutor credits recorded in fiscal 2013.

Domestic affiliate fee revenues increased 14%ifmaf 2014, as compared to fiscal 2013. Over 55%@increase during fiscal 2014
was due to higher average rates per subscribessnrost channels led by the RSNs, Fox News Ch#ti@X News”), FX Networks, LLC
(“FX™), which includes FXX, and the conversion aredated launch of Fox Sports 1. In addition, ove¥6lof the increase in affiliate fee
revenues during fiscal 2014 was due to growth bsstibers, led by the conversion and related lawfictew channels. The balance of the
growth was primarily attributable to the impactuiisg from the acquisition of the majority intet@s the YES Network in February 2014 and
the absence of distributor allowances resultingnftbe 2012-2013 National Hockey League (“NHL”) locit in fiscal 2013. Domestic
advertising revenues increased 8% for fiscal 2Gldompared to fiscal 2013. Approximately 65% ofitierease in domestic advertising
revenues is primarily due to higher pricing anduwog, at FX, which includes FXX, at the National Gephic Channels and the conversion
and related launch of Fox Sports 1. The baland¢beofrowth in domestic advertising revenue was arily attributable to the contributions
from the YES Network and additional NHL games stél 2014.

For fiscal 2014, international affiliate fee revestncreased 19% and international advertisingmas® increased 9% as compared to
fiscal 2013. For fiscal 2014, the increase in inéional affiliate fee revenues was substantia&tyhy local currency growth, primarily at Fox
International Channels (“FIC"), as a result of leglpricing in Latin America and increase in suldsers in Latin America and Asia. The
increase in international advertising revenuessicel 2014 was significantly driven by local curegrgrowth at FIC and STAR due to higher
pricing and volume in Latin America, higher priciagSTAR’s entertainment channels and STAR Spbrizadcast of the Asia Cup and
International Cricket Council cricket tournameritso contributing to the increase in internatioatlliate fee and advertising revenues for
fiscal 2014 was the conversion and related lauf@TAR Sports, the consolidation of Fox Sports Aamia the acquisition of EMM. The
international affiliate fee and advertising reveimmeases in local currencies, for fiscal 2014renmartially offset by the adverse impact of the
strengthening of the U.S. dollar against local encies, primarily in India and Latin America.

For fiscal 2014, Segment OIBDA at the Cable Netwragramming segment increased $230 million, or &/ompared to fiscal
2013, primarily due to the revenue increases nabedve, partially offset by higher expenses of $2 dfilion, or 17% as compared to fiscal
2013. Operating expenses increased by approxim®&1te0d70 million for fiscal 2014. Approximately omedf of this increase was due to the
continued investment in new channels and the Adipris. The remaining increase was primarily duither programming costs at FIC, the
RSNs and FX. These increases were due to a congriridtcontinued investment in new shows and sgaagramming and additional NHL
games broadcast by the RSNs in fiscal 2014. Seljageral and administrative expenses increasdibéal 2014 by approximately $85
million primarily due to higher personnel costs did effect of the Acquisitions. The increase igi8ent OIBDA for fiscal 2014, as compared
to fiscal 2013, is net of a decrease of approxitpa@&30 million due to the strengthening of the Ld8llar against local currencies.
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Television(17% and 18% of the Company'’s consolidated reveituscal 2014 and 2013, respectively)

For fiscal 2014, revenues at the Television segimenéased $436 million, or 9%, as compared t&fig013, primarily due to higher
advertising revenues and affiliate fees. Advergjsievenues increased 5% for fiscal 2014, as cordparfscal 2013, primarily due to the
revenues arising from the broadcassaper Bowl XLVIlin February 2014 of approximately $350 million dr@m higher pricing and ratings
driven by the strong National Football League (“NFtegular and post season and the Major Leaguelidis(“MLB”) post season, including
the two additional MLB World Series games in fis2@ll4. These increases were partially offset byeffect of lower primetime ratings, led by
declines aAmerican IdolandX-Factor,and lower political advertising due to the absewitihe benefit in fiscal 2013 from the 2012 elecso
Affiliate fee revenues increased as a result oidigetransmission consent revenues for fiscal 284 4ompared to fiscal 2013.

For fiscal 2014, Segment OIBDA at the Televisiogi®@ent increased $27 million, or 3%, as compardistal 2013, primarily due to
the revenue increases noted above partially difgéiigher expenses of $409 million, or 10%, as camag to fiscal 2013. Operating expenses
increased by approximately $365 million for fisefill4. This increase was primarily due to the braatlofSuper Bowl XLVIlin February
2014 and higher primetime programming costs lethbseased licensing fees for returning series aghken programming costs related to the
new season &4 andGang Related Also contributing to the increase were highereatising and marketing costs to support the fall20
launch of new television series and higher spadgq@amming costs primarily related to the two aiddi&l MLB World Series games in fiscal
2014. Selling, general and administrative expemsgeased by approximately $45 million for fisc@ll2, as compared to fiscal 2013, prima
due to higher legal fees and costs associatedtheéttelevision station transactions.

Filmed Entertainment(30% and 31% of the Company’s consolidated revemmufiscal 2014 and 2013, respectively)

For fiscal 2014, revenues at the Filmed Entertaimrsegment increased $1,037 million, or 12%, aspeoed to fiscal 2013. The
increase in revenues was primarily due to highatdwide theatrical revenues, an increase in netvamitk syndication revenues, led Mypdern
Family, and higher digital distribution revenues from lisensing of television productions. The increasdigital distribution revenue was
primarily due to the licensing of online and molilghts for various productions led by the licemsof series to Amazon, which includ24
andThe Americandgriscal 2014 revenues included the worldwide thealtsuccess of-Men: Days of Future PasindRio 2and the worldwid
theatrical, home entertainment and pay televisenfiopmance offhe Wolverin@ndThe Heat as compared to fiscal 2013 which included the
worldwide theatrical and home entertainment sucoéks Age: Continental Drift, Life of RindTaken 2and the worldwide theatrical success
of The Croods

For fiscal 2014, Segment OIBDA at the Filmed Ertiernent segment increased $50 million, or 4%, aspawed to fiscal 2013,
primarily due to the revenue increases noted apavigally offset by higher expenses of $987 million 13%, as compared to fiscal 2013.
Operating expenses increased by approximately #8iibn for fiscal 2014 primarily due to increasiesproduction amortization and
participation costs, largely due to the mix of thieal films released in fiscal 2014, as compauetidcal 2013, as well as increases related to
television productions. Also contributing to thesogiting expense increase was higher theatricaletingkcosts as a result of the increase in th
number of significant theatrical releases in fi*@l4, as compared to fiscal 2013, includiiylen: Days of Future PasRio 2, The Secret
Life of Walter Mittyand DreamWorks Animation’sMr. Peabody and ShermamdHow To Train Your Dragon 2

Direct Broadcast Satellite Televisic(19% and 16% of the Company’s consolidated reveituéscal 2014 and 2013, respectively)

For fiscal 2014, revenues at the DBS segment iserk&1,591 million, or 36%, as compared to fis€dlR primarily due to the
inclusion of revenues resulting from the consolmabf Sky Deutschland from January 2013 and grezetribution from Sky Italia primarily
due to the broadcast of the 2014 International fegie of Football Association (“FIFA”) World Cuhe weakening of the U.S. dollar agains
the Euro also contributed to a revenue increas@pfoximately $225 million for fiscal 2014, as caamgd to fiscal 2013.
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Sky ltalia’s ending and average subscriber bage7omillion subscribers for fiscal 2014 decreagedif4.8 million subscribers in fiscal
2013. The total churn for fiscal 2014 was approxetya495,000 subscribers, as compared to a chuapmfoximately 684,000 subscribers in
fiscal 2013. Sky Deutschland’s ending subscribselfar fiscal 2014 was 3.8 million subscribers assalt of a net increase of approximately
360,000 subscribers during fiscal 2014. The tdtare for fiscal 2014 was approximately 368,000 subsrs on an average subscriber base o
3.6 million subscribers as compared to a churrppf@aximately 179,000 subscribers on an averagecsibles base of 3.4 million subscribers in
fiscal 2013. Subscriber churn for the period repnés the number of subscribers whose service veasmiected during the period.

Sky ltalia’s average revenue per subscriber (“ARP&I approximately €43 per month for fiscal 2014reased from approximately£
per month in fiscal 2013, primarily due to higheicing and upgrades in services. Sky DeutschlaA&BU of approximately €35 per month
for fiscal 2014 increased from approximately €34 mpenth in fiscal 2013, primarily due to upgradeseérvices. ARPU is calculated by
dividing total subscriber-related revenues forpkeod by the average subscribers for the periaddividing that amount by the number of
months in the period. Subscriber-related reventes@mprised of total subscription revenue, payypew revenue and equipment rental
revenue, if any, for the period. Average subscslaee calculated for the respective periods byragtiie beginning and ending subscribers for
the period and dividing by two.

Sky ltalia’s subscriber acquisition costs per stibsc (“SAC”) of approximately €410 for fiscal 201dcreased from approximately
€350 for fiscal 2013, primarily due to increased extiging and marketing costs on a per subscribeisb8AC is calculated by dividing total
subscriber acquisition costs for a period by thealper of gross subscribers added during the pefiodscriber acquisition costs include the
of the commissions paid to retailers and otheribistors, the cost of equipment sold directly tbstribers and the costs related to installation
and acquisition advertising net of any upfront\ation fee. SAC excludes the value of equipmenitabged under equipment lease programs,
as well as payments and the value of returned ewnprelated to disconnected lease program sulessrib

For fiscal 2014, Segment OIBDA at the DBS segmeattgiased $27 million, or 7%, as compared to fig04al3, primarily due to the
revenue increases noted above partially offsetifiyen expenses of $1,564 million, or 39%, as combao fiscal 2013. Operating expenses
increased by approximately $1,490 million for fis2@14 primarily due to the full year inclusion 8ky Deutschland. Also contributing to the
operating expense increase were higher programausty associated with the Bundesliga soccer rigfdsthe broadcasts of the Sochi
Olympics, the FIFA World Cup and Formula One, @digtioffset by the absence of costs associated thélbroadcast of the London Olympics
in fiscal 2013. Selling, general and administrax@enses increased by approximately $75 milliorfisgal 2014, as compared to fiscal 2013,
primarily due to the inclusion of Sky DeutschlaRdr fiscal 2014, the weakening of the U.S. dollgaiast the Euro contributed approximately
$20 million to increase Segment OIBDA, as compaofiscal 2013.

Other, Corporate and Elimination$(5)% and (4)% of the Company’s consolidated reesrin fiscal 2014 and 2013, respectively)

For fiscal 2014, the change in revenues at therO@mrporate and Eliminations segment, as comp@arédcal 2013, was primarily due
to intercompany transactions and the absence efites from the Company’s digital media businesg,vaas disposed in the third quarter of
fiscal 2013.

For fiscal 2014, the improvement in the Segment@ABesults at the Other, Corporate and Eliminatisegment, as compared to fis
2013, was primarily due to lower compensation espsrand legal and professional fees.
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Fiscal 2013 versus Fiscal 2012

The following table reconciles Total Segment OIBBAncome from continuing operations before incdmeexpense for fiscal 2013,

as compared to fiscal 2012.

Revenue:

Operating expenst

Selling, general and administrati
Amortization of cable distribution investmel
Total Segment OIBD/

Amortization of cable distribution investmel
Depreciation and amortizatic

Impairment charge

Equity earnings of affiliate

Interest expense, n

Interest incom

Other, ne

Income from continuing operations before income tax
expenst

** not meaningful

The following tables set forth the Company’s Revanand Segment OIBDA for fiscal 2013, as compavdistal 2012.

Revenues:

Cable Network Programmir
Television

Filmed Entertainmer

Direct Broadcast Satellite Televisir
Other, Corporate and Eliminatio

Total revenue:

Segment OIBDA:

Cable Network Programmir
Television

Filmed Entertainmer

Direct Broadcast Satellite Televisii
Other, Corporate and Eliminatio

Total Segment OIBD/

For the years ended June 3(

2013 2012 Change % Change
(in millions, except %)
$ 27,67t $ 25,05 % 2,62¢ 10 %
(17,496 (15,669 (1,839 12 %
(4,007 (3,719 (28¢€) 8 %
89 88 1 1%
6,261 5,757 504 9 %
(89) (88) (1) 1 %
(797) (712) (86) 12 %
(35) (202 16€ (83) %
65¢& 63€ 19 3%
(1,069 (1,037 (31) 3%
57 77 (20) (26) %
3,74 25 3,722 *x
$ 8,73¢ $ 4,46 $ 4,27: 96 %
For the years ended June 30,
2013 2012 Change % Change
(in millions, except %)
$ 10,881 $ 9324 % 1,557 17 %
4,86C 4,80¢< 57 1%
8,642 8,363 279 3%
4,43¢ 3,74C 699 19 %
(1,147 (1,179 32 3 %
$ 27,67t  $ 25,051 $ 2,624 10 %
For the years ended June 3(
2013 2012 Change % Change
(in millions, except %)
$ 4177 % 354¢ % 628 18 %
855 791 64 8 %
1,30¢ 1,312 (4) - %
397 561 (164) (29) %
(476) (456) (20) (4) %
$ 6,261 $ 5757 $ 504 9 %
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Cable Network Programming39% and 37% of the Company’s consolidated reveiuiscal 2013 and 2012, respectively)

For fiscal 2013, revenues at the Cable Network Rrmgiing segment increased $1,557 million, or 178gamnpared to fiscal 2012,
primarily due to higher net affiliate fee revenaéspproximately $1,075 million and advertisingeaues of approximately $300 million,
partially offset by unfavorable foreign exchangecfuations at FIC and STAR. The strengthening efuls. dollar against local currencies
resulted in a revenue decrease of approximatel$ $iillion for fiscal 2013, as compared to fiscall20

Domestic affiliate fee revenues increased 12%ifmaf 2013, as compared to fiscal 2012, primarilg tb higher average rates per
subscriber across most channels, additional sulessrdue to the acquisition of an RSN in Ohio ddlaunch of Fox Sports San Diego. For
fiscal 2013, domestic advertising revenues incrg&8é, as compared to fiscal 2012, primarily dubkigher pricing and ratings at FX and the
National Geographic Channels, which comprised 80%egrowth.

For fiscal 2013, international affiliate fee revestncreased 35% and international advertisingmas® increased 20%, as compared tc
fiscal 2012. Over half of the international affibafee revenues’ increase and three-quarters onhtbational cable channels’ advertising
revenues’ growth were due to local currency groattthe non-sports channels at FIC and STAR. Thanloal of the growth was attributable to
the international sports channels, including FSE&x Sports Asia, EMM, the launch of new channels$ e new contracts to broadcast cri
matches in India. These increases in internatiadegrtising revenues and international affiliate fevenues were partially offset by an 8% an
7% adverse impact from the strengthened U.S. daoblapectively.

For fiscal 2013, Segment OIBDA at the Cable Netwr@gramming segment increased $628 million, or J@%compared to fiscal
2012, primarily due to the revenue increases nabexve, partially offset by expense increases 09$8®lion. This increase was due to higher
operating expenses primarily due to increased progring costs from the inclusion of expenses from $ports Asia, FSLA and EMM and |
new cricket contracts in India which accounted@d%s of this increase. The launch of new channslsoted above, and higher programming
costs accounted for 30% of this increase. The higrmgramming cost was a result of new shows laedan FX and new contracts for mixed
martial arts matches, U.S. college football ganmeskagher National Basketball Association (“NBA'9sts due to the NBA lockout in fiscal
2012, partially offset by reduced NHL costs resigjtirom the NHL lockout in fiscal 2013. The balamfd¢he increase was due to higher sel
general and administrative expenses primarily eelad higher personnel costs as a result of tharesipn of the business. The strengthening ¢
the U.S. dollar against local currencies resulted Segment OIBDA decrease of approximately $80anifor fiscal 2013, as compared to
fiscal 2012.

Television(18% and 19% of the Company’s consolidated reveirufiscal 2013 and 2012, respectively)

For fiscal 2013, revenues at the Television segimenéased $57 million, or 1%, as compared to fi2642, primarily due to higher
affiliate fee revenues resulting from higher resmission consent revenues which more than doubledmparison to fiscal 2012, partially
offset by decreased advertising revenues of apmrabely $190 million. The decrease in advertisingereies was due to lower primetime
ratings driven by declines AtFactorandAmerican Idol.

For fiscal 2013, Segment OIBDA at the Televisiogreent increased $64 million, or 8%, as comparddséal 2012, primarily due to
the revenue increases noted above and lower opgetpenses of $43 million due to reduced entertaim programming costs as a result of
the final season dfiousein fiscal 2012 and lower licensing fees for retamseries. This decrease was partially offset binerease in selling,
general and administrative expenses of $36 mifliomarily due to higher legal expenses for caskging to the protection of the Company’s
intellectual property rights.

Filmed Entertainment(31% and 33% of the Company’s consolidated reveimufiscal 2013 and 2012, respectively)

For fiscal 2013, revenues at the Filmed Entertaimtrsegment increased $279 million, or 3%, as coetpty fiscal 2012, primarily due
to higher worldwide theatrical revenues of appraadiety $420 million. These revenue
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increases were partially offset by decreased hartertainment revenues of approximately $135 milliiscal 2013 included the worldwide
theatrical and home entertainment success of e 8gntinental Drift, Life of Pi andlaken 2the worldwide theatrical successTdfe
Croods, a product of the Company’s DreamWorks Animatigsiribution deal, and the worldwide home entertaénirand pay television
performance oPrometheus as compared to fiscal 2012 which included thesssful worldwide theatrical and home entertainmeletase of
Rise of the Planet of the AgandAlvin and the Chipmunks: Chipwreckethe worldwide theatrical successRibmetheusnd the home
entertainment and pay television performanceRiofindX-Men: First Class

For fiscal 2013, Segment OIBDA at the Filmed Emtiernent segment was consistent with fiscal 201#h@asevenue increases were
offset by higher expenses. Operating expensesaseteby approximately $210 million primarily duehigher theatrical marketing costs
associated with the theatrical releases noted ahoveell as the initial pre-launch costs Wéolverine, and the distribution ofurbofor
DreamWorks Animation. Selling, general and admiaibie expenses increased by approximately $70amifirimarily due to higher persont
costs.

Direct Broadcast Satellite Televisic(16% and 15% of the Company’s consolidated reveiufiscal 2013 and 2012, respectively)

For fiscal 2013, revenues at the DBS segment iseck&699 million, or 19%, as compared to fiscalZ@timarily due to the inclusion
of $900 million in revenues resulting from the colidation of Sky Deutschland, partially offset bgecrease of approximately $200 million in
revenues at Sky ltalia. The decrease at Sky Medisiprimarily due to the strengthening of the Wdi@&lar against the Euro, which resulted in a
revenue decrease of approximately $120 millionaaspared to fiscal 2012 and the balance of the aharap primarily due to a decrease in
activation, advertising and subscription revenues.

Sky ltalia had a net decrease of approximatelyd@Bsubscribers during fiscal 2013, which decre&gditalia’s total subscriber base
to 4.8 million at June 30, 2013, reflecting the tommed challenging economic environment in ItalipeTotal churn for fiscal 2013 was
approximately 684,000 subscribers on an averagecsbler base of 4.8 million, as compared to chidirmpgproximately 641,000 subscribers on
an average subscriber base of 4.9 million in fi2€dl2. During fiscal 2013, Sky Deutschland hadtanmm@ease of approximately 90,000
subscribers, which increased Sky Deutschland’s$ sotascriber base to 3.5 million. The total chwnffscal 2013 was approximately 179,000
subscribers on an average subscriber base of 8idmas compared to churn of approximately 150,60bscribers on an average subscriber
base of 3.1 million in fiscal 2012.

Sky ltalia’s ARPU of approximately €42 per monthfiscal 2013 remained relatively consistent with tdorresponding period of fiscal
2012. Sky Deutschland’s ARPU of approximately €84 month in fiscal 2013 increased from approxima&32 per month reported in fiscal
2012, primarily due to a higher incremental inceeastotal subscriber-related revenues.

Sky ltalia’s SAC of approximately €350 in fiscalZdecreased from approximately €400 in fiscal 202 to lower commissions and
installation costs on a per subscriber basis. et commissions were a result of a change indlesshannel mix and the lower installation
costs were a result of fewer customers taking eduh subscription offer.

For fiscal 2013, Segment OIBDA at the DBS segmewtehsed $164 million, or 29%, as compared tolfd@a2, primarily due to
higher programming expenses of approximately $1Bidomat Sky lItalia associated with the broadaafsthe Olympics and expanded UEFA
Champions and Europa League, and Formula One qvefais decrease in Segment OIBDA was partiallgatfoy the consolidation of Sky
Deutschland. During fiscal 2013, the strengthemifithe U.S. dollar against the Euro resulted iregrBent OIBDA decrease of approximately
$12 million as compared to fiscal 2012.

Other, Corporate and Eliminationg(4)% of the Company’s consolidated revenues icafi013 and 2012)

The Other, Corporate and Eliminations segment égosithe Company’s corporate entities and intercomdiminations and other
businesses. For fiscal 2013 revenues related fodmssactivities at the Other, Corporate and
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Eliminations segment decreased as compared td 8842, due to the exclusion of revenues from tispasition of the Company’s digital
media businesses in the third quarter of fisca3201

For fiscal 2013, Segment OIBDA related to busires#vities at the Other, Corporate and Eliminatisagment decreased, as compare
to fiscal 2012, primarily due to higher compensaxpense.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Current Financial Condition

The Company’s principal source of liquidity is imally generated funds. The Company also has ayfaae unused $2 billion revolving
credit facility, which expires in May 2017, and hesess to various film garoduction alternatives to supplement its cash low addition, th
Company has access to the worldwide capital marketgect to market conditions. As of June 30, 264 Company was in compliance with
all of the covenants under the revolving creditlityc and it does not anticipate any violationsafch covenants. The Company’s internally
generated funds are highly dependent upon the altéite advertising markets and public acceptatfidts éilm and television productions.

As of June 30, 2014, the Company’s consolidateetagscluded $5.4 billion in cash and cash equivaleof which $1.1 billion was
held by the Company’s foreign subsidiaries. The gany earns income outside the U.S., which is dedambd permanently reinvested in
certain foreign jurisdictions. The Company doesawtently intend nor foresee a need to repattiaee funds. Should the Company require
more capital in the U.S. than is generated by ailable to its domestic operations, the Companyccelect to repatriate funds held in foreign
jurisdictions which may result in higher effectitax rates and higher cash paid for income taxethioCompany

The principal uses of cash that affect the Compahguidity position include the following: invesents in the production and
distribution of new motion pictures and televisfmograms; the acquisition of and payments undegnaraming rights for entertainment and
sports programming; operational expenditures innly@mployee costs; capital expenditures; integgpenses; income tax payments;
investments in associated entities; dividends; s@tipns; debt repayments; and stock repurchases.

The Company entered into a separation and distvibaigreement with News Corp (“Separation and bigtion Agreement”) pursuant
to which the Company agreed to provide a cash ibaniton to News Corp, immediately prior to the Segi@n, so that as of the Separation,
News Corp would have approximately $2.6 billiorcaéh on hand. Accordingly, immediately prior to 8eparation, the Company distribu
approximately $2.4 billion to News Corp, which wamsnprised of $1.6 billion in cash funding and apimrately $800 million that was held by
News Cor|'s subsidiaries immediately prior to the Separatibme Company made a final cash distribution of&gilllion in September 2013,
pursuant to the Separation and Distribution Agregme

In July 2014, the Company participated in BSkyRjsiigy offering by purchasing approximately $900lmii of additional shares in
BSkyB and maintained the Company’s 39% ownershgrést. BSkyB’s share repurchase program was sdegdén July 2014. (See Note 3 —
Acquisitions, Disposals and Other Transactionfiéosiccompanying Consolidated Financial Statemdritaienty-First Century Fox)

In addition to the acquisitions, sales and possibtguisitions disclosed elsewhere, the Compangbhalsiated, and expects to continue
to evaluate, possible acquisitions and dispositafreertain businesses. Such transactions may kerialaand may involve cash, the Company’
securities or the assumption of additional indehésg.
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Sources and Uses of Ca— Fiscal 2014 vs. Fiscal 2013
Net cash provided by operating activities for fis2@14 and 2013 was as follows (in millions):

For the years ended June 3( 2014 2013
Net cash provided by operating activit $ 2,96¢ $ 3,002

Net cash provided by operating activities for fis2@14 was relatively consistent with net cash jmed by operating activities in fiscal
2013. During fiscal 2014, higher receipts, primarélated to increases in affiliate fees and suptgon collections, were offset by higher
programming spending, production spending and @patiion payments.

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activifasfiscal 2014 and 2013 was as follows (in mits):

For the years ended June 3( 2014 2013
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activi $ 935 % 86

The change in net cash used in investing activiiesiscal 2014, as compared to fiscal 2013, wamarily due to the absence of cash
proceeds from the sale of NDS in fiscal 2013.
Net cash used in financing activities for fiscall2Gnd 2013 was as follows (in millions):

For the years ended June 3( 2014 2013
Net cash used in financing activiti $ (3,770 % (4,57))

The change in net cash used in financing activibegiscal 2014, as compared to fiscal 2013, was grily due to the absence of the
$2.6 billion cash contribution, in fiscal 2013,NMews Corp as part of the Separation partially offisean increase in cash used for share
repurchases of approximately $1.7 billion.

In August 2014, the Company announced that thedBapproved an additional $6 billion authorizatiorthe Company’s stock
repurchase program for the repurchase of ClassrAn@an Stock. The Company intends to complete thiskstepurchase program by August
2015.

The program may be modified, extended, suspenddisoontinued at any time.

The total dividends declared related to fiscal 2fEsults were $0.25 per share of Class A CommockStnd Class B Common Stock.
In August 2014, the Company declared the finalddiaid on fiscal 2014 results of $0.125 per shar€fass A Common Stock and Class B
Common Stock. This together with the interim divideof $0.125 per share of Class A Common StockGlads B Common Stock, paid in
April 2014, constitute the total dividend relatitmyfiscal 2014.

Based on the number of shares outstanding as ef3u2014 and a similar dividend rate as in fi@€dl4, the total aggregate cash
dividends expected to be paid to stockholderssiceli 2015 is approximately $550 million.

Sources and Uses of Ca~ Fiscal 2013 vs. Fiscal 2012
Net cash provided by operating activities for fls2@13 and 2012 was as follows (in millions):

For the years ended June 3( 2013 2012
Net cash provided by operating activit $ 3,00: $ 2,83¢

The increase in net cash provided by operatingitie8 during fiscal 2013, as compared to fiscal20vas primarily due to higher
receipts at the Cable Network Programming segmever by higher Segment OIBDA of $628 million, lomgension contributions of $112
million and higher cash distributions received fraffiliates of $43 million. This increase was pallfi offset by higher payments for film and
television production costs in the Filmed Ententaémt segment, higher sports program rights paynierke Television segment, higher
program
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rights payments in the DBS segment principally fritwe consolidation of Sky Deutschland and highshdaxes paid of $164 million.

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activifasfiscal 2013 and 2012 was as follows (in mits):

For the years ended June 3( 2013 2012
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi $ 86 $ (76€)

The increase in net cash provided by investing/iiets during fiscal 2013, as compared to fiscal20vas primarily due to the sale of
the 49% investment in NDS for approximately $1.18dgi in total consideration, partially offset bgditional cash utilized for acquisitions,
property, plant and equipment and the purchased@f& equity interest in the YES Network.

Net cash used in financing activities for fiscall3Gnd 2012 was as follows (in millions):

For the years ended June 3( 2013 2012
Net cash used in financing activiti $ 457) % (5,107

The decrease in net cash used in financing aetbvitir fiscal 2013 as compared to net cash usédancing activities in fiscal 2012
was primarily due to lower share repurchases of@amately $2.6 billion and an increase in net baring of approximately $550 million.
These sources of cash were partially offset bycttsh contribution to News Corp in connection wiite Separation.

Debt Instruments
The following table summarizes cash from borrowiagd cash used in repayments of borrowings foalfig014, 2013 and 2012.

For the years ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
(in millions)

Borrowings
Notes due September 2023 and due September(®) $ 987 $ - $ -
Notes due September 20(@) - 987 -
New revolving credit facility (Sky Deutschlan(® - 29z -
Bank loans® 16€ - -
All other - (3 -

Total borrowings $ 1,158 $ 1,277 $ =
Repayments of borrowings
A$ Notes due February 20:@) $ (139 $ - 3 =
Notes due February 20:@ - (279 -
Bank loans® (162) - (32)
All other (©) - (481) (3)

Total repayment of borrowing $ (296¢) $ (754 $ (35)
@ See Note 1- Borrowings to the accompanying Consolidated Firgrfgiatements of Twer-First Century Fox
® The fiscal 2014 activity includes $168 million infibowings and $143 million in repayments underYiS Network secured revolving

credit facility. The balance of the repayments weated to the YES Network term loan facili

© The repayment of borrowings includes debt acquimgtie Sky Deutschland transaction which was sultesatty repaid in full during th

third quarter of fiscal 2013. (See Note 3 — Acdiosis, Disposals and Other Transactions to therapanying Consolidated Financial
Statements of Twen-First Century Fox
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Ratings of the Public Del
The table below summarizes the Company'’s creditgatas of June 30, 2014.

Rating Agency Senior Debt Outlook
Moody's Baal Stable
S&P BBB+ Stable

Revolving Credit Agreeme

In May 2012, 21st Century Fox America, Inc. (forflgdnown as News America Incorporated) (“21CFA)tered into a credit
agreement (the “Credit Agreement”), among 21CFBasower, the Company as Parent Guarantor, thesksnthmed therein, the initial
issuing banks named therein, JPMorgan Chase BaAk,(NPMorgan Chase”) and Citibank, N.A. as Co-Adistrative Agents, JPMorgan
Chase as Designated Agent and Bank of America, &s/Ayndication Agent. The Credit Agreement provi@é?2 billion unsecured revolving
credit facility with a sub-limit of $400 million ats equivalent in Euros) available for the isstapf letters of credit and a maturity date of
May 2017. Under the Credit Agreement, the Compaay request an increase in the amount of the ciadlity up to a maximum amount of
$2.5 billion and the Company may request that theunity date be extended for up to two additions-gear periods. Borrowings are issuable
in U.S. Dollars only, while letters of credit assiiable in U.S. Dollars or Euros. The material seofithe agreement include the requirement
that the Company maintain specific leverage radius limitations on secured indebtedness. Fees thedredit Agreement will be based on
the Company’s long-term senior unsecured non-cexdiinced debt ratings. Given the current debtgsiti2Z1 CFA pays a facility fee of
0.125% and an initial drawn cost of LIBOR plus Bh%2

Commitments and Guarantees

The Company has commitments under certain firmractual arrangements (“firm commitmentsd)make future payments. These f
commitments secure the future rights to varioustasand services to be used in the normal coursparations. The following table
summarizes the Company’s material firm commitmestsf June 30, 2014.

As of June 30, 201:
Payments due by perioc

After 5
Total 1 year 2-3 years 4-5 years years
(in millions)
Contracts for capital expenditu $ 131 % O 23 % - $ =
Operating leases and service agreem
Land and building: 2,21( 311 517 451 931
Transponder service agreements and ¢ 2,51z 46¢ 841 611 59¢
Other commitment
Borrowings 18,98¢ 79¢ 788 3,027 14,37¢
Sports programming righ 52,80( 6,13¢ 12,05: 9,12: 25,48¢
Entertainment programming rigt 4,61¢ 2,06¢ 1,852 59C 107
Other commitments and contractual obligati 5,73: 1,611 2,45¢ 68¢ 97t

Total commitments, borrowings and contractual alilins $ 8699 $ 1150 $ 1852t $ 14490 $ 4247¢
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The Company also has certain contractual arrangsnmenelation to certain investees that would regithe Company to make
payments or provide funding if certain circumstanoecur (“contingent guarantees”). The Company do¢&xpect that these contingent
guarantees will result in any material amounts ¢@aid by the Company in the foreseeable future.tithing of the amounts presented in the
table below reflect when the maximum contingentrgntees will expire and does not indicate thatGbenpany expects to incur an obligation
to make payments during that time frame.

As of June 30, 2014
Amount of guarantees expiration per period

Contingent guarantees: Total 1 year 2-3 years 4-5 years After 5 years
(in millions)

Sports programming righ $ b5¢  $ 387 $ 17z $ - $ =

Hulu indemnity 11t - - 11t -

Letters of credit and othi 50 50 - - -

Total contingent guarante $ 724 $ 437 % 17z $ 118 $ -

Operating leases and service agreements

The transponder service agreements represent apyateky $1.9 billion of the total amounts commitizad the balance includes leases
for office facilities, equipment and microwave tsamtters used to carry broadcast signals. Theseseavhich are classified as operating le:
expire at certain dates through fiscal 2050. Inetlioh the total amounts committed of $2.2 billiare approximately $315 million of office
facilities that have been sub-leased to News Corp.

Sport programming rights
Under the Company’s contract with the NFL, remainfiature minimum payments for program rights todatcast certain football

games are payable over the remaining term of theaxt through 2022.

The Company'’s contract with the MLB gives the Compeghts to broadcast certain regular season asttgeason games, as well as
exclusive rights to broadcast MLB’s World Seriesl &l-Star Game through the 2021 MLB season.

The Company’s contracts with the National Assooratif Stock Car Auto Racing (“NASCAR”) give the Cpamy rights to broadcast
certain races and ancillary content through calepdar 2024.

Under the Compang’contracts with certain collegiate conferencewaiaing future minimum payments for program rigiotéroadcas
certain sporting events are payable over the rantaterms of the contracts.

Under the Company’s contract with Italy’s Natiohelgue Football, remaining future minimum payméatgrogramming rights to
broadcast National League Football matches arelymyarer the remaining term of the contract throQgh8.

Under the Company’s contract with the Board of @arfor Cricket in India (“BCCI”), remaining futureninimum payments for
program rights to broadcast international and déimescket matches and series are payable overetin@aining term of the contract through
2018. In connection with the agreement with BC8& €ompany was required to obtain a bank guaraeegring its programming rights
obligation.

In addition, the Company has certain other locattspbroadcasting rights including the right toddtoast the New York Yankees pre-
season and regular season games through the 20BZ&Hson.
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Other commitments and contractual obligations

Primarily includes obligations relating to distrttan agreements, marketing agreements and televiating services.

Hulu indemnity

See Note 16 — Commitments and Contingencies tadbempanying Consolidated Financial Statementsaafity-First Century Fox.

Pension and other postretirement benefits and urgoized tax benefit

The table excludes the Company’s pension, othdargiodement benefits (“OPEB”) obligations and tlress unrecognized tax benefits
for uncertain tax positions as the Company is unaireasonably predict the ultimate amount andhmrhe Company made contributions of
$100 million and $95 million to its pension plansfiscal 2014 and 2013, respectively. The majasftthese contributions were voluntarily
made to improve the funding status of the plansurféuplan contributions are dependent upon actaal gsset returns, interest rates and
statutory requirements. Assuming that actual ptse@returns are consistent with the Company’saggeplan returns in fiscal 2015 and
beyond, and that interest rates remain constamtCtdmpany would not be required to make any matesidributions to its U.S. pension plans
for the immediate future. Required pension plartidontions for the next fiscal year are not expddtebe material but the Company may nr
voluntary contributions in future periods. Paymaedhig to participants under the Company’s pensiangéare primarily paid out of underlying
trusts. Payments due under the Company’s OPEB plenisot required to be funded in advance, bupai@ as medical costs are incurred by
covered retiree populations, and are principallyashelent upon the future cost of retiree medicaébenunder the Company’s pension plans.
The Company does not expect its net OPEB paymettts taterial in fiscal 2015. (See Note 1Pension and Other Postretirement Benefi
the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statemanfsventy-First Century Fox for further discussiofithe Company’s pension and OPEB
plans)

Contingencies

Other than as disclosed in the notes to the accoympg Consolidated Financial Statements of TweritgtfCentury Fox, the Company
is party to several other purchase and sale ama@igis which become exercisable by the Companyeocdhinter-party to the agreement. None
of these arrangements that become or are exereisatiie next twelve months are material. Equitschase arrangements that are exercisable
by the counter-party to the agreement, and thabatisde the sole control of the Company, are agialifor in accordance with ASC 480-10-
S99-3A, “Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity.” écordingly, the fair values of such equity purchasangements are classified in
redeemable noncontrolling interests.

U.S. regulators and governmental authorities caetio conduct investigations initiated in 2011 witspect to the U.K. Newspaper
Matters. The Company is cooperating with thesestigations. It is not possible at this time to mstie the liability, if any, of the Company
relating to these investigations.

In connection with the Separation, the Companydeds Corp agreed in the Separation and Distributigreement that the Company
will indemnify News Corp, on an after-tax basis, f@yments made after the Separation arising oditvdfclaims and investigations relating to
the U.K. Newspaper Matters, as well as legal anfegsional fees and expenses paid in connectidntiat related criminal matters, other than
fees, expenses and costs relating to employeeswehoot (i) directors, officers or certain desigua¢mployees or (ii) with respect to civil
matters, co-defendants with News Corp (the “Indéytin{See Note 16 — Commitments and Contingenadabé accompanying Consolidated
Financial Statements of Twenty-First Century Fdfdditional information becomes available angpbagments are made, the Company will
update the liability provision for the Indemnitynj changes to the liability provision for the Indaitg in the future will impact the results of
operations for that period.

The Company establishes an accrued liability fgalelaims when the Company determines that aisdssth probable and the amount
of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Oncelis$iad, accruals are adjusted from
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time to time, as appropriate, in light of additibimdormation. The amount of any loss ultimatelgimred in relation to matters for which an
accrual has been established may be higher or lth@arthe amounts accrued for such matters. kissiple that these proceedings and any
adverse resolution thereof, including any feesgegps, fines, penalties, judgments or settlememishwnight be incurred by the Company in
connection with the various proceedings could darthg Company’s reputation, impair its ability timduct its business and adversely affect
its results of operations and financial condition.

The Company'’s operations are subject to tax inousrdomestic and international jurisdictions and agatter of course, the Company
is regularly audited by federal, state and for¢anauthorities. The Company believes it has apjatgly accrued for the expected outcome of
all pending tax matters and does not currentlycgrgte that the ultimate resolution of pendingreatters will have a material adverse effect ol
its consolidated financial condition, future resuf operations or liquidity.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

An accounting policy is considered to be critidat is important to the Company’s financial condlit and results and if it requires
significant judgment and estimates on the part ahagement in its application. The development ahetton of these critical accounting
policies have been determined by management cCtimepany and the related disclosures have beenwegiwith the Audit Committee of the
Company'’s Board of Directors. For the Company’s siary of significant accounting policies, see Note ummary of Significant
Accounting Policies to the accompanying Consolidd&tmancial Statements of Twenty-First Century Fox.

Use of Estimates

See Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting &tefi to the accompanying Consolidated FinancidgkBtants of Twenty-First
Century Fox.

Revenue Recoghnitio

Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidenae afrangement exists, the fees are fixed or detertoté, the product or service has
been delivered and collectability is reasonablyess The Company considers the terms of eachgagnaent to determine the appropriate
accounting treatment.

Cable Network Programming, Television and Direcb&icast Satellite Television

Advertising revenue is recognized as the commereiad aired, net of agency commissions. Subsdelesrreceived from MVPDs for
Cable Network Programming and Television are retzaghas affiliate fee revenue in the period ses/iee provided. Direct Broadcast
Satellite Television subscription and pay-per-viewenues are recognized when programming is breatitaubscribers, while fees for
equipment rental are recognized as revenue omiglstiine basis over the contract period.

The Company classifies the amortization of cabdérithution investments (capitalized fees paid toRDé to facilitate carriage of a
cable network) against affiliate fee revenue inoagance with ASC 605-50, “Revenue Recognition—QustioPayments and Incentives.” The
Company defers the cable distribution investmentsamortizes the amounts on a straight-line bagis ihe contract period.

Filmed Entertainmer

Revenues from distribution of motion pictures asl@vision programming are recognized in accordavite ASC 926. Revenues from
the theatrical distribution of motion pictures ageognized as they are exhibited, and revenues limme entertainment sales, net of a reserve
for estimated returns, are recognized on the dateDdVVD and Blu-ray units are made widely availdolesale by retailers or when made
available for viewing via digital distribution pfatms and all Company-imposed restrictions on #ie sr availability have expired. Revenues
from television distribution are recognized whea thotion picture or television program is made latéé to the licensee for broadcast.
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Management bases its estimates of ultimate reviemwesach film on the historical performance of danfilms, incorporating factors
such as the past box office record of the leadraetnd actresses, the genre of the film, pre-relewgket research (including test market
screenings) and the expected number of theatevhich the film will be released. Management updatezh estimates based on information
available on the actual results of each film thioiig life cycle.

License agreements for the broadcast of motiomp@stand television programming in the broadcatstar, syndicated television and
cable television markets are routinely entered imtadvance of their available date for broado@ash received and amounts billed in
connection with such contractual rights for whielienue is not yet recognizable is classified asrded revenue. Because deferred revenue
generally relates to contracts for the licensintheftrical and television productions which halveaaly been produced, the recognition of
revenue for such completed product is principalily@ependent upon the commencement of the avhiyapériod for broadcast under the
terms of the related licensing agreement.

The Company earns and recognizes revenues asibudiat on behalf of third parties. In such casktermining whether revenue
should be reported on a gross or net basis is lasathnagement’s assessment of whether the Conggtsgs the principal or agent in the
transaction. To the extent the Company acts aprtheipal in a transaction, revenues are reported gross basis. Determining whether the
Company acts as principal or agent in a transadatiesives judgment and is based on an evaluatiomha&fther we have the substantial risks
rewards of ownership under the terms of an arraegém

Filmed Entertainment Costs and Programming Rights

Accounting for the production and distribution obtion pictures and television programming is inadance with ASC 926, which
requires management’s judgment as it relates & tevenues to be received and costs to be inctliredghout the life of each program or its
license period. These judgments are used to daterthe amortization of capitalized filmed ententaégmt and television programming costs,
the expensing of participation and residual coss®aiated with revenues earned and any fair valjustnents.

In accordance with ASC 926, the Company amortideel entertainment and television programming £asing the individual-film-
forecast method. Under the individual-film-forecastthod, such programming costs are amortizeddcn &lm or television program in the
ratio that current period actual revenue for sittd bears to management’s estimated ultimate nex@s of the beginning of the current fiscal
year to be recognized over approximately a six pegiod or operating profits to be realized frotmaédia and markets for such tit
Management bases its estimates of ultimate reviemeach film on factors such as historical perfante of similar films, the star power of -
lead actors and actresses and, once released, r@stults of each film. For each television programanagement bases its estimates of ultimat
revenue on the performance of the television prognang in the initial markets, the existence of fetfirm commitments to sell additional
episodes of the program and the past performansindfr television programs. Management regulegljiews, and revises when necessar
total revenue estimates on a title-by-title basisich may result in a change in the rate of amatitim and/or a write-down of the asset to fair
value.

Original cable programming is amortized on an aaregéd basis. Management regularly reviews, arideswhen necessary, its total
revenue estimates on a contract basis, which nsatri@ a change in the rate of amortization and/arite-down of the asset to fair value.

The costs of national sports contracts at FOX Aechational sports channels are charged to ex@emnsallocated to segments based o
the ratio of each current period’s attributableeraye for each contract to the estimated total neimgiattributable revenue for each contract.
Estimates can change and accordingly, are revigsaddically and amortization is adjusted as neagss$Such changes in the future could be
material.

The costs of local and regional sports contraata fgpecified number of events are amortized oevent-byevent basis, while costs 1
local and regional sports contracts for a speciieglson are amortized over the season on a sttaighitasis.
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Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The Company has a significant amount of intangilsieets, including goodwill, film and televisionrlibies, Federal Communications
Commission (“FCC") licenses, MVPD affiliate agreameeand relationships and trademarks and otherigggd products. Intangible assets
acquired in business combinations are recorddteatéstimated fair value at the date of acquisit®oodwill is recorded as the difference
between the consideration paid to acquire an eatitithe estimated fair values assigned to itsittéangnd identifiable intangible net assets an
is assigned to one or more reporting units for pses of testing for impairment. The judgments niadketermining the estimated fair value
assigned to each class of intangible assets adqtiireir reporting unit, as well as their usefukb can significantly impact net income.

The Company accounts for its business combinatiodgr the acquisition method of accounting. Thal todst of acquisitions is
allocated to the underlying net assets, basedainréspective estimated fair values. The excesseopurchase price over the estimated fair
values of the tangible net assets acquired is decoas intangibles. Amounts recorded as goodvélbasigned to one or more reporting units.
Determining the fair value of assets acquired atallities assumed requires management’s judgmahbéten involves the use of significant
estimates and assumptions, including assumptiotiisrespect to future cash inflows and outflowscdist rates, asset lives and market
multiples, among other items. Identifying reportingts and assigning goodwill to them requires judgt involving the aggregation of
business units with similar economic charactesstiod the identification of existing business uttits benefit from the acquired goodwill. The
Company allocates goodwill to disposed businessig)uhe relative fair value method.

Carrying values of goodwill and intangible asseithundefinite lives are reviewed at least annuédliypossible impairment in
accordance with ASC 350 “Intangibles—Goodwill antth€.” The Company’s impairment review is basedamopng other methods, a
discounted cash flow approach that requires sicarii management judgments. The Company uses gmgmt in assessing whether assets
may have become impaired between annual valuatindigators such as unexpected adverse economarsacinanticipated technological
change or competitive activities, loss of key pars and acts by governments and courts, may sigaahn asset has become impaired.

The Company uses direct valuation methods to vidiemtifiable intangibles for acquisition accountiagd impairment testing. The
direct valuation method used for FCC licenses meguiamong other inputs, the use of published ingldata that are based on subjective
judgments about future advertising revenues imihekets where the Company owns television statibhis. method also involves the use
management’s judgment in estimating an appropdisteount rate reflecting the risk of a market maptnt in the U.S. broadcast industry. The
resulting fair values for FCC licenses are sensitovthese long-term assumptions and any variatmeach assumptions could result in an
impairment to existing carrying values in futurgipds and such impairment could be material.

During fiscal 2014, the Company determined thatgbedwill and indefinite-lived intangible assetsliuded in the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheet of Twenty-First Cenfury as of June 30, 2014 were not impaired. The Gmppletermined there are no
reporting units with goodwill considered to beiakrand will continue to monitor its goodwill angtangible assets for possible future
impairment.

See Note 10 — Goodwill and Other Intangible Asgethe accompanying Consolidated Financial StatésnafiTwenty-First Century
Fox for further discussion on the annual impairnrentew.

Income Taxes

The Company is subject to income taxes in the Bh8.numerous foreign jurisdictions in which it cgtess. The Company computes its
annual tax rate based on the statutory tax ratgs$earnplanning opportunities available to it in thaious jurisdictions in which it earns income.
Tax laws are complex and subject to different mtetations by the taxpayer and respective govertahtaxing authorities. Significant
judgment is required in determining the Com(’s tax expense and in evaluating its tax positiochkiding evaluating uncertainties under ASC
740.

66




The Company records valuation allowances to redeéerred tax assets to the amount that is morbyltkan not to be realized. In
making this assessment, management analyzes fataile income, reversing temporary differencesa@rgbing tax planning strategies.
Should a change in circumstances lead to a chanjgelgment about the realizability of deferred éassets in future years, the Company woulc
adjust related valuation allowances in the perf@d the change in circumstances occurs, alongamitrresponding increase or charge to
income.

Employee Cost

The measurement and recognition of costs of thepgaoyis various pension and OPEBs require the usgnificant management
judgments, including discount rates, expected nedur plan assets, future compensation and otheaat assumption:

The Company participates in and/or sponsors vapeusion, savings and postretirement benefit ptamering a significant number of
its employees and retirees. The major pension @adpostretirement benefit plans are closed topeaticipants (with the exception of grot
covered by collective bargaining agreements). lmeation with the Separation, the Company enteredan Employee Matters Agreement
defined in Note 4 — Discontinued Operations togbeompanying Consolidated Financial Statementsv@ity-First Century Fox) with News
Corp which provides that employees of News Corfonger participate in benefit plans sponsored antamed by the Company as of the
Separation date. Upon Separation, the Company's pitansferred assets and obligations to News @sudting in a net decrease in sponsorec
pension and postretirement plan obligations of $%58Bon. Additionally, as a result of the Sepacatj deferred items of approximately $500
million were transferred to News Corp.

For financial reporting purposes, net periodic pemgxpense is calculated based upon a numbertwdiréed assumptions, including a
discount rate for plan obligations, an expected adtreturn on plan assets and mortality. The Compgansiders current market conditions,
including changes in investment returns and inteadss, in making these assumptions. In develofiiagxpected long-term rate of return, the
Company considered the pension portfaipast average rate of returns, and future retxpactations of the various asset classes. The teq
long-term rate of return is based on an assetatitmt assumption of 48% equity securities, 37%dikecome securities and 15% in cash and
other investments. The mortality assumption refl¢ise experience of recent studies which indicaf@ovements in mortality. The assumption
selected by the Company assumes there will bercomis improvement in future mortality.

The discount rate reflects the market rate for gjghlity fixed-income investments on the Compamrisual measurement date of
June 30 and is subject to change each fiscal yeardiscount rate assumptions used to accounefosipn and other postretirement benefit
plans reflect the rates at which the benefit obiges could be effectively settled. The rate watedmined by matching the Compasyexpecte
benefit payments for the primary plans to a hypithéyield curve developed using a portfolio ofeeal hundred higlauality corporate bonc
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The key assumptions used in developing the Compdiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 net periodic pensikperse for its plans consist of
the following:

2014 2013 2012
(in millions, except %)

Discount rate used to determine net periodic benefit 5.2% 4.2% 5.7%

Assets:

Expected rate of retul 7.C% 7.C% 7.C%

Expected retur(@ $ 118 % 11C % 18t

Actual return@ 197 11€ 68

Gain/(Loss) $ 84 % 6 $ (117)

One year actual retul 12.€% 7.8% 2.E%

Five year actual retur 9.1% 4.4% 2%

@ Due to the Separation in fiscal 2013, informatioesgnted for fiscal 2014 and 2013 does not haveeapgcted returns or actual returns

related to discontinued operations. Fiscal 201Rides expected returns and actual returns fronodiswed operations of $82 million
and $39 million, respectivel

The weighted average discount rate is volatile fg@ar to year because it is determined based upprevailing rates in the U.S. and
Europe as of the measurement date. The Companytilitie a weighted average discount rate of 4.6%ailculating the fiscal 2015 net
periodic pension expense for its plans. The Compélyse a weighted average long-term rate ofmretaf 7.0% for fiscal 2015 based
principally on a combination of asset mix and hiisi@l experience of actual plan returns. The acdatad net pre-tax losses on the Company’s
pension plans at June 30, 2014 were $794 millioichvimcreased from approximately $625 million andd0, 2013. This increase of $169
million was primarily due to the change in the digit rate partially offset by higher asset perfanoga The accumulated pre-tax net losses at
June 30, 2014 were primarily the result of charigeliscount rates and deferred asset losses. Ldiseount rates increase present values of
benefit obligations and increase the Company’srdeddosses and also increase subsequent-yeaopangense. Higher discount rates
decrease the present values of benefit obligafodsreduce the Company’s accumulated net losslaadiacrease subsequent-year pension
expense. These deferred losses are being systalyateognized in future net periodic pension exgeein accordance with ASC 715,
“Compensation—Retirement Benefits.” Unrecognizeshés in excess of 10% of the greater of the maekated value of plan assets or the
plans’ projected benefit obligation (“PBO”) are ognized over the average future service of the paticipants or average future life of the
plan participants.

The Company made contributions of $100 million, $88ion, and $255 million to its pension plansfiscal 2014, 2013, and 2012,
respectively of which $100 million, $95 million, @$207 million related to continuing operationspectively. The majority of these
contributions were voluntarily made to improve faeding status of the plans which were impactedheyeconomic conditions noted above.
Future plan contributions are dependent upon aplaal asset returns, statutory requirements aeddst rate movements. Assuming that actu:
plan returns are consistent with the Company’s ebggeplan returns in fiscal 2015 and beyond, aadititerest rates remain constant, the
Company would not be required to make any matstéltory contributions to its primary U.S. pensgians for the immediate future. The
Company will continue to make voluntary contribusoas necessary to improve funded status.
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Changes in net periodic pension expense may ondbeifuture due to changes in the Company’s erpeeite of return on plan assets
and discount rate resulting from economic evertte fbllowing table highlights the sensitivity oftiCompany’s pension obligations and
expense to changes in these assumptions, assulinitigest assumptions remain constant:

Impact on Annual

Changes in Assumptior Pension Expenst Impact on PBO
0.25 percentage point decrease in discount Increase $10 millio Increase $112 milliol
0.25 percentage point increase in discount Decrease $10 millio Decrease $105 millio
0.25 percentage point decrease in expected ragturh on asse Increase $5 milliot -
0.25 percentage point increase in expected ratetafn on asse Decrease $5 millio -

Fiscal 2015 net periodic pension expense for the@my’'s pension plans is expected to be approximn&gd million, as compared
with the $108 million for fiscal 2014. The decre#@serimarily due to improved asset performance glad changes which more than offset the
impact of the change in discount rates.

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

See Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting &e$ to the accompanying Consolidated Financiak8tants of Twenty-First
Century Fox for discussion of recent accountingiptomcements.
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| TEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

The Company has exposure to several types of masketthanges in foreign currency exchange ramésrest rates and stock prices.
The Company neither holds nor issues financiatumsénts for trading purposes.

The following sections provide quantitative infortioa on the Company’s exposure to foreign curremashange rate risk, interest rate
risk and stock price risk. The Company makes usepsitivity analyses that are inherently limitedstimating actual losses in fair value that
can occur from changes in market conditions.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

The Company conducts operations in two principalencies: the U.S. dollar and the Euro. These ogies operate as the functional
currency for the Company’s U.S., and European djpers, respectively. Cash is managed centrallywioolly owned subsidiaries, within each
of the two regions with net earnings reinvestedllgcand working capital requirements met from @xig liquid funds. To the extent such ful
are not sufficient to meet working capital requiemts, draw downs in the appropriate local curreareyavailable from intercompany
borrowings. Up to June 30, 2014, earnings of themm@any’s European operations were expected to heasied in those businesses
indefinitely. Accordingly, the Company has not bistally hedged its investment in the net assethade foreign operations. In July 2014, the
Company entered into agreements with BSkyB toalktif its ownership interests in Sky Italia andySkeutschland whose functional currency
is the Euro (See Note 3 — Acquisitions, Disposats @ther Transactions to the accompanying Condelileinancial Statements of Twenty-
First Century Fox, Inc. for further information)h@& Company may enter into derivative instrumentimection with the proposed sale.
Information on financial instruments with expostwdoreign currency exchange rate risk is presehetow:

As of June 30,

2014 2013
(in millions)
Notional Amounti
Foreign currency purchas $ 606 $ 694
Foreign currency sale 90 12
Foreign currency denominated d(@ - 137
Aggregate notional amou $ 69 $ 843
Fair Value
Total fair value of financial instruments with faga currency exchange rate risk: liabil $ 4 3 (139
Sensitivity Analysis
Potential change in fair values resulting from &l&dverse change in quoted foreign currency exe¥
rates: los: $ 35 $ (79
@ The change in fair value of the Company'’s finanriatruments with exposure to foreign currency exge rate risk is primarily due to

the repayment of the foreign currency denominatdat th February 201:

Interest Rates

The Company's current financing arrangements agilities include $17.0 billion of outstanding fixedte debt and approximately $2.0
billion of outstanding variable and fixed-rate batdbt (see Note 11 — Borrowings to the accompan@imigsolidated Financial Statements of
Twenty-First Century Fox for further discussiofhe Company also entered into interest rate swapaxts during fiscal 2014. As of June 30,
2014, the notional amount of interest rate swapraeots outstanding was $578 million, and the falue of the interest rate swap contracts
outstanding was $(6) million.
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Fixed and variable rate debts are impacted diftgrdry changes in interest rates. A change in merést rate or yield of fixed rate debt
will only impact the fair market value of such debhile a change in the interest rate of variatdbtdvill impact interest expense, as well as
amount of cash required to service such debt. Akiné 30, 2014, substantially all of the Compafigancial instruments with exposure to
interest rate risk were denominated in U.S. Dollbrformation on financial instruments with expasto interest rate risk is presented below:

As of June 30,

2014 2013
(in millions)
Fair Value
Total fair value of financial instruments with exqume to interest rate rigi:
liability $ (22,699 $ (18,750
Sensitivity Analysis
Potential change in fair values resulting from &ol#idverse change in quoted interest rates; $ (859 $ (865)
@ The change in fair value of the Company'’s finanmatruments with exposure to interest rate righrimarily due to the acquisition of

the majority interest in the YES Netwol

Stock Prices

The Company has common stock investments in sepabdicly traded companies that are subject to eigpkice volatility. These
investments principally represent the Company’'stgquethod affiliates. Information on the Companifisestments with exposure to stock
price risk is presented below:

As of June 30.

2014 2013
(in millions)
Fair Value
Total fair value of common stock investme(® $ 958 % 7,831
Sensitivity Analysis
Potential change in fair values resulting from &olédverse change in quoted market prices:® $ (95¢) $ (789)
@ The change in fair value of the Company'’s finanmatruments with exposure to stock price riskriggrily due to the appreciation in
market prices
® A hypothetical decrease would not result in a maltéefore tax decrease in comprehensive incomangshanges in fair value of the

Compan’s equity method affiliates are not recognized wsemed oth-thar-temporary.

Credit Risk

Cash and cash equivalents are maintained with alefireincial institutions. Deposits held with bankay exceed the amount of
insurance provided on such deposits. Generallgetldeposits may be redeemed upon demand and areimed with financial institutions of
reputable credit and, therefore, bear minimal ¢nesk.

The Company’s receivables did not represent sicaniti concentrations of credit risk at June 30, 2812013 due to the wide variety of
customers, markets and geographic areas to whicBdmpany’s products and services are sold.

The Company monitors its positions with, and theddrquality of, the financial institutions whicheacounterparties to its financial

instruments. The Company is exposed to credititofise event of nonperformance by the counterpattghe agreements. At June 30, 2014,
the Company did not anticipate nonperformance lyyodithe counterparties.

71




| TEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
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MANAGEMENT’'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANC |IAL REPORTING

Management of Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc. isp@ssible for establishing and maintaining adequrgggnal control over financial
reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d)1&{der the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asratad. Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc.’s
internal control over financial reporting is a pess designed to provide reasonable assurance iregyéd reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for extiepoiaposes in accordance with accounting princigkserally accepted in the United States of
America. The Company'’s internal control over fin@hceporting includes those policies and procesltnat:

. pertain to the maintenance of records that, inaralsle detail, accurately and fairly reflect thengactions and dispositions of
assets of Twen-First Century Fox, Inc.

. provide reasonable assurance that transactione@eded as necessary to permit preparation ofifiahstatements in
accordance with accounting principles generallyepted in the United States of Ameri

. provide reasonable assurance that receipts andéxpes of Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc. are lgemade only in accordance
with authorization of management and directorswéiity-First Century Fox, Inc.; ar

. provide reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, osalisposition of assets tt
could have a material effect on the consolidatedrfcial statement

Internal control over financial reporting includég controls themselves, monitoring and internditing practices and actions taken to
correct deficiencies as identified.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting, no matter how well ged, may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Accordingly, even effective intecwitrol over financial reporting can provide onyasonable assurance with respect to
financial statement preparation. Also, the assessofahe effectiveness of internal control overaficial reporting was made as of a specific
date. Projections of any evaluation of effectiventesfuture periods are subject to the risk thatmis may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of canpé with the policies or procedures may detemorat

Management, including the Company’s principal exigewfficer and principal financial officer, conched an assessment of the
effectiveness of Twenty-First Century Fox, Incrigeirnal control over financial reporting as of J&9 2014, based on criteria for effective
internal control over financial reporting describedhe 1992 ‘Internal Control — Integrated Frameworkssued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commisditanagement’s assessment included an evaluatitireafesign of Twenty-First
Century Fox, Inc.’s internal control over financiaporting and testing of the operational effeat®®s of its internal control over financial
reporting. Management reviewed the results ofsseasment with the Audit Committee of Twenty-F@shtury Fox, Inc.’s Board of Directors.

Based on this assessment, management determirigdgiud June 30, 2014, Twenty-First Century Fog, maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting.

Ernst & Young LLP, the independent registered puaticounting firm who audited and reported on thas@lidated Financial

Statements of Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc. inéddn the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fisgaar ended June 30, 2014, has audited
the Company’s internal control over financial repag. Their report appears on the following page.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Twefitst Century Fox, Inc. (formerly News Corporatjo

We have audited Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc.t®inal control over financial reporting as of J@@e 2014, based on criteria
established in the Internal Control—Integrated Feewaork issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgditias of the Treadway Commission
(1992 Framework) (the COSO criteria). Twenty-FEsintury Fox, Inc.’s management is responsible faintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting, and for its assessmernhefeffectiveness of internal control over finaheceporting included in the accompanying
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Fitarigeporting. Our responsibility is to expressoginion on the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightri8q&nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet dndbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®is:. audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etésting and evaluating the design and operatifegéfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstancefeliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableaaesuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting princip

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiincludes those policies and procedures thai€ftpin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseocfompany; (2) provide reasonable assuranc
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatg@aparation of financial statements in accor@anwith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely deteatfauinauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssaubject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc. miimed, in all material respects, effective intégmtrol over financial reporting as
of June 30, 2014, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Twenty-First Cerffowy Inc. as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and {agetkconsolidated statements of
operations, comprehensive income, cash flows, goiyefor each of the three years in the periodeghdune 30, 2014 and our report dated
August 13, 2014 expressed an unqualified opinienethn.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

New York, New York
August 13, 2014
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Twefitst Century Fox, Inc. (formerly News Corporatjo

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc. asunieJ30, 2014 and 2013, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, celmepsive income, cash flows, and equity for ed¢heothree years in the period ended
June 30, 2014. These financial statements areeiponsibility of the Company’s management. Ouraasibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstials of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenenelaas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@alove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated financial position of
Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc. at June 30, 2014 2083, and the consolidated results of its opematand its cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended June 30, 2014, in confpmith U.S. generally accepted accounting pritesp

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), Twenty-
First Century Fox, Inc.’s internal control overdimcial reporting as of June 30, 2014, based oeriestablished in the Internal Control-
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSping Organizations of the Treadway Commissi@®P1Framework) and our report
dated August 13, 2014 expressed an unqualifiedapthereon.
/sl Ernst & Young LLP

New York, New York
August 13, 2014
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TWENTY-FIRST CENTURY FOX, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

Revenue:

Operating expense

Selling, general and administrati
Depreciation and amortizatic
Impairment charge

Equity earnings of affiliate
Interest expense, n

Interest incomt

Other, ne

Income from continuing operations before incomeaspenst
Income tax expens
Income from continuing operatiol
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, neg
Net income
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrollingeneists
Net income attributable to Twer-First Century Fox, Inc.
stockholder:

Earnings per share data
Income from continuing operations attributable teehty-First
Century Fox, Inc. stockholde- basic

Income from continuing operations attributable teehty-First
Century Fox, Inc. stockholde- diluted

Income from continuing operations attributable teehty-First
Century Fox, Inc. stockholders per st- basic and dilute

Net income attributable to Twer-First Century Fox, Inc.
stockholders per sha- basic and dilute

For the years ended June 3(

2014 2013 2012
$ 31,861 $ 2767 $ 25,05;
(21,109 (17,496 (15,66%)
(4,129 (4,007) (3,719
(1,142 (797) (712)
: (35) (207)
622 65E 63€
(1,129) (1,069) (1,037)
26 57 77
174 3,74 25
5,18¢ 8,73¢ 4,46:
(1,279) (1,690 (1,099
3,917 7,04¢ 3,36¢
72¢ 277 (1,999
4,64¢ 7,32: 1,372
(132) (226) (199
$ 451 $ 7,097 $ 1,17¢
$ 3,78 $ 6,82( $ 3,17¢
$ 3,78 $ 6,817 $ 3,17¢
$ 167 $ 291 $ 1.27
$ 1.9¢ $ 3.0: $ 0.47

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheslited consolidated financial statements.
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TWENTY-FIRST CENTURY FOX, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(IN MILLIONS)
For the years ended June 3(
2014 2013 2012
Net income $ 4,64¢ $ 7,32: $ 1,37
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of
Foreign currency translation adjustme 59¢ (874) (1,099
Unrealized holding losses on securi (849 (45) (12)
Benefit plan adjustmen (107) 303 (517)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of 407 (61€) (1,616
Comprehensive income (los 5,05: 6,701 (249
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrollingenetst<(@ (132) (226) (193
Less: Other comprehensive (income) loss attribatedhoncontrolling interes (122) (15) 5
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Twefitgt
Century Fox, Inc. stockholde $ 4,79¢ 3§ 6,46¢ $ (432)

@

The accompanying notes are an integral part oethesited consolidated financial statements.
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TWENTY-FIRST CENTURY FOX, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

As of June 30,

2014 2013
Assets:
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 541 $ 6,65¢
Receivables, ne¢ 6,46¢ 5,45¢
Inventories, ne 3,092 2,78¢
Other 401 66¢
Total current asse 15,37¢ 15,56
Non-current assett
Receivable: 454 437
Investments 2,85¢ 3,70¢
Inventories, ne 6,44 5,371
Property, plant and equipment, | 2,931 2,82¢
Intangible assets, n 8,072 5,064
Goodwill 18,05: 17,25¢
Other nol-current assetl 607 717
Total asset $ 54,79 $ 50,94«
Liabilities and Equity
Current liabilities:
Borrowings $ 79¢ % 137
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other tligdeilities 4,18: 4,43¢
Participations, residuals and royalties pay: 1,54¢ 1,66
Program rights payab 1,63¢ 1,524
Deferred revenu 69C 677
Total current liabilities 8,85¢ 8,43¢
Non-current liabilities:
Borrowings 18,25¢ 16,32
Other liabilities 3,507 3,26¢
Deferred income taxe 2,72¢ 2,28(
Redeemable noncontrolling intere 541 51¢
Commitments and contingenci
Equity:
Class A common stoc(® 14 15
Class B common stoc®) 8 8
Additional paic-in capital 15,04: 15,84(
Retained earning 2,38¢ 1,454
Accumulated other comprehensive |i (34) (319)
Total Twent-First Century Fox, Inc. stockholders' eqt 17,41¢ 16,99¢
Noncontrolling interest 3,48: 3,127
Total equity 20,90! 20,12¢
Total liabilities and equit $ 54,790 $ 50,94«

@ Class A common stocl, $0.01 par value per share, 6,000,000,000 shatksrized, 1,408,305,942 shares and 1,517,670 /T&®s issued ar
outstanding, net of 123,687,371 treasury sharparaat June 30, 2014 and 2013, respecti

(®) Class B common stocl, $0.01 par value per share, 3,000,000,000 shatherized, 798,520,953 shares issued and outsignun of
356,993,807 treasury shares at par at June 30,£012013

The accompanying notes are an integral part obtheslited consolidated financial statements.
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TWENTY-FIRST CENTURY FOX, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(IN MILLIONS)
For the years ended June 3(
2014 2013 2012
Operating activities
Net income $ 4,64t $ 7,32 3% 1,37
Less: Income (loss) from discontinued operatioes of tax 72¢ 271 (1,99))
Income from continuing operatiol 3,917 7,04¢ 3,36¢
Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing rapiens
to cash provided by operating activiti
Amortization of cable distribution investmetr 85 89 88
Depreciation and amortizatic 1,14 797 711
Impairment charge - 35 201
Equity earnings of affiliate (622) (65E) (63€)
Cash distributions received from affiliat 35¢ 324 281
Other, ne (179 (3,747 (25)
Change in operating assets and liabilities, netcofuisitions
Receivables and other ass (790 (127) (739
Inventories, ne (1,057 (1,035 (399)
Accounts payable and other liabiliti 10t 27E (28)
Net cash provided by operating activities from gaibg operation: 2,96/ 3,00z 2,83¢
Investing activities
Property, plant and equipme (67¢) (622) (564)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquir (692) (60€) (450)
Investments in equity affiliate (29 (502) 25
Other investment (64) (152) (181)
Proceeds from dispositiol 51¢ 1,96¢ 404
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activifiesn continuing operatior (93E) 86 (76€)
Financing activities
Borrowings 1,15k 1,277 -
Repayment of borrowing (29€) (759) (35)
Issuance of share 66 20z 167
Repurchase of shar (3,772) (2,026 (4,589
Dividends paic (792) (613) (580)
Purchase of subsidiary shares from noncontrolliterest (127) (169) (65)
Sale of subsidiary shares to noncontrolling inte - 93 -
Distribution to News Corporatic (10) (2,588 -
Net cash used in financing activities from contirguoperation: (3,776 (4,577) (5,107)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisditent
discontinued operatiot 571 (1,437 28¢
Net decrease in cash and cash equiva (1,17¢) (2,919 (2,746
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of 6,65¢ 9,62¢ 12,68(
Exchange movement on cash balar (68) (53) (30¢)
Cash and cash equivalents, end of ) $ 541t $ 6,65¢ $ 9,62¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part obtheslited consolidated financial statements.
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Balance, June 30, 20:

Net income

Other comprehensive lo
Dividends declare

Shares (purchased) issued, ()
Other

Balance, June 30, 20:

Net income

Other comprehensive (loss) incol
Distribution to News Cor|
Dividends declare

Shares (purchased) issued, ®)
Acquisitions(©)

Other

Balance, June 30, 20:

Net income

Other comprehensive incor
Dividends declare

Shares (purchased) issued, ()
Acquisitions(©

Other

Balance, June 30, 20:

@

(b)
©

TWENTY-FIRST CENTURY FOX, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

(IN MILLIONS)
Retained
Earnings and
Accumulated Total
Class A Class B Additional Other Twenty-First
Century Fox,

Common Stock Common Stock Paid-In Comprehensive Inc. Noncontrolling Total

Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital (Loss) Income Equity Interests @ Equity
1,82¢ $ 18 79¢ % 8 $ 1743t % 12,60¢ $ 30,06¢ $ 57¢ $ 30,64
- - - - - 1,17¢ 1,17¢ 158 1,33
- - - - - (1,617 (1,611 (5) (1,616
- - - - - (45%) (455) - (455)
(243 (©) - - (1,477 (2,867 (4,34)) - (4,347
- - - - 17€ (339 (157) (225) (382)
158 $ 15 79¢ % 8 $ 16,14( $ 8,521 $ 24,68 $ 501 $ 25,18¢
- - - - - 7,097 7,097 13Z 7,23(
- - - - - (637) (637) 15 (61€)
- - - - 13 (12,02¢) (12,01Y (110 (12,129
- - - - - (39¢) (399 - (39¢)
(69) - - - (259 (1,472 (1,725 - (1,725
- - - - - - - 2,61¢ 2,61¢
- - - - (60) 46 (14) (31) (45)
151¢ $ 15 79¢ % 8 $ 1584( $ 1,138 $ 16,99¢ $ 3,127 $ 20,12t
- - - - - 4,51¢ 4,51¢ 37 4,557
- - - - - 28t 28t 122 407
- - - - - (56¢) (56¢) - (56¢)
(208 Q) - - (611) (2,990 (3,609 - (3,602
- - - - - - - 38t 38t
- - - - (18¢) (21) (209) (18¢) (397)
1,406 $ 14 79¢ $ 8 $ 1504 $ 2,35t 3 17,41¢ $ 3,487 $ 20,90:

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interestsludes $95 million, $93 million and $75 millieelating to redeemable noncontrolling intere

which is reflected in temporary equity for the fisgears ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012, tasgecNet income attributable to noncontrolling
interests included nil for the fiscal years endede]30, 2014 and 2013 and $35 million for the figear ended June 30, 2012 relating to discontinued
operations. Other activity attributable to noncolitng interests excludes $73 million, $215 milliand $324 million relating to redeemable
noncontrolling interests for the fiscal years endede 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respecti

Shares repurchased are retit

See Note -~ Acquisitions, Disposals and Other Transacti

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheslited consolidated financial statements.

80




TWENTY-FIRST CENTURY FOX, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc., a Delaware corpiomat (formerly known as News Corporation) and itbsidiaries (together, “Twenty-
First Century Fox” or the “Company”) is a diversifi global media and entertainment company, whichages and reports its businesses in
five segments: Cable Network Programming, which@pally consists of the production and licensifigimgramming distributed through
cable television systems, direct broadcast s&€lliRBS”) operators and telecommunication compapi@sarily in the U.S., Latin America,
Europe and Asia; Television, which principally cists of the broadcasting of network programminthimU.S. and the operation of 28 full
power broadcast television stations, including w6pblies, in the U.S. (of these stations, 18 afitaaéd with the Fox Broadcasting Company
(“FOX”) and 10 are affiliated with Master Distribah Service, Inc. (“MyNetworkTV") programming digtution service); Filmed
Entertainment, which principally consists of theguiction and acquisition of live-action and anindateotion pictures for distribution and
licensing in all formats in all entertainment mediarldwide, and the production of original telewisiprogramming worldwide; Direct
Broadcast Satellite Television, which consistshef distribution of programming services via sakelind broadband directly to subscribers in
Italy, Germany and Austria; and Other, Corporate Bliminations, which principally consists of corpte overhead and eliminations and othe
businesses.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include tkeunts of all majority-owned and controlled submigs. In addition, the Company
evaluates its relationships with other entitieglentify whether they are variable interest ergites defined by Financial Accounting Standards
Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codificatiol®AGC”) 810-10, “Consolidation” (“ASC 810-10") and wther the Company is the
primary beneficiary. Consolidation is required @tb of these criteria are met. All significant irdempany accounts and transactions have be
eliminated in consolidation, including the interquemny portion of transactions with equity methodeistees.

Any change in the Company’s ownership interestd@omsolidated subsidiary, where a controlling fitciahinterest is retained, are
accounted for as a capital transaction. When thragamy ceases to have a controlling interest imaaalated subsidiary, the Company will
recognize a gain or loss in net income upon dedimadmn.

On September 19, 2013, the Company changed itd fisar from a 52-53 week fiscal year ending onShaday closest to June 30 to a
fiscal year ending on June 30 of each year. Thepgamyis 2013 fiscal year ended on June 30, 2013 Cidrepany made this change to better
align its financial reporting with the media andertainment assets retained following the separatfdats business into two independent
publicly traded companies (the “Separation”) bytrdisiting to its stockholders all of the outstargihares of the new News Corporation
(“News Corp”) on June 28, 2013. (See Note 4 — Difiooed Operations)

Reclassifications and adjustments

Certain fiscal 2013 and 2012 amounts have beeagsied to conform to the fiscal 2014 presentatima result of the Separation,
News Corp has been classified as discontinued tipesaor all periods presented (See No— Discontinued Operations). Unless indicated
otherwise, the information in the notes to the @tidated Financial Statements relates to the Cowipantinuing operations.
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TWENTY -FIRST CENTURY FOX, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Use of estimates

The preparation of the Company’s Consolidated Fiisrstatements in conformity with generally acegpaccounting principles in the
U.S. ("GAAP”) requires management to make estimatesassumptions that affect the amounts thatem@ted in the Consolidated Financial
Statements and accompanying disclosures. Althduggetestimates are based on management’s bestekiyandf current events and actions
that the Company may undertake in the future, dctsalts may differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on lmhtharketable securities with original maturitiéshwee months or less.

Concentration of credit risk

Cash and cash equivalents are maintained with alefiileancial institutions. The Company has depdsitsl with banks that exceed the
amount of insurance provided on such deposits. @pethese deposits may be redeemed upon denmehdra maintained with financial
institutions of reputable credit and, thereforearbminimal credit risk.

Receivables, net

Receivables, net are presented net of an allowanceturns and doubtful accounts, which is anneste of amounts that may not be
collectible.

The allowance for doubtful accounts is estimatesktaon historical experience, receivable agingeotireconomic trends and specific
identification of certain receivables that areisl of not being paid. In determining the allowaf@ereturns, management analyzes historical
returns, current economic trends and changes tomes demand and acceptance of the Company’s piadd@sed on this information,
management reserves a percentage of each dofaodiict sales that provide the customer with thbtrof return.

The Company has receivables with original matwgitieeater than one year in duration principallgted to the Company’s sale of
program rights in the television syndication maskeithin the Filmed Entertainment segment. Allowestor credit losses are established
against these non-current receivables as necegsaof.June 30, 2014 and 2013, these allowances marmaterial.

Receivables, net consist of:

As of June 30.

2014 2013
(in millions)
Total receivable $ 7,731 % 6,79¢
Allowances for returns and doubtful accou (81F) (899)
Total receivables, nt 6,922 5,89¢
Less: current receivables, r (6,469 (5,459
Non-current receivables, n $ 454 $ 437

Inventories
Filmed Entertainment Cos

In accordance with ASC 926, “Entertainment—Film$$C 926”), Filmed Entertainment costs include talEed production costs,
overhead and capitalized interest costs, net ofaamyunts received from outside investors. Thestscas well as participations and talent
residuals, are recognized as operating expensas ividual motion picture or television seriesbd on the ratio that current year’s gross
revenues for such film or
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TWENTY -FIRST CENTURY FOX, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

series bear to managemeng'stimate of its total remaining ultimate groseneies. Television production costs incurred ineegmf the amou
of revenue contracted for each episode in theainitiarket are expensed as incurred on an episo@pibpde basis. Estimates for initial
syndication and basic cable revenues are not irdlinithe estimated lifetime revenues of networleseuntil such sales are probable.
Television production costs incurred subsequetti¢cestablishment of secondary markets are cagithiind amortized. Marketing costs and
development costs under term deals are chargegeasating expenses as incurred. Development castgdfects not produced are written-off
at the earlier of the time the decision is madetoatevelop the story or after three years.

Filmed Entertainment costs are stated at the l@vanamortized cost or estimated fair value onralividual motion picture or
television series basis. Revenue forecasts for imation pictures and television series are contipuaviewed by management and revised
when warranted by changing conditions. When estmaf total revenues and other events or changascimstances indicate that a motion
picture or television series has a fair value thd¢ss than its unamortized cost, a loss is reizegrcurrently for the amount by which the
unamortized cost exceeds the film or televisiomeséfair value.

Programming Right

In accordance with ASC 920, “Entertainment—Broatlas’ costs incurred in acquiring program rightpeducing programs for the
Cable Network Programming, Television and Direa&fcast Satellite Television segments are capgthlind amortized over the license
period or projected useful life of the programmiRgogram rights and the related liabilities areorded at the gross amount of the liabilities
when the license period has begun, the cost giribgram is determinable and the program is acceptddavailable for airing. Television
broadcast network and original cable programmirgaanortized on an accelerated basis. The Compangifigle and multi-year contracts for
broadcast rights of programs and sporting everitteast annually, the Company evaluates the reatléy of the unamortized costs
associated therewith, using total estimated admgiand other revenues attributable to the progreerial. The recoverability of sports rig
contracts for content broadcast on the nationattsmphannels is assessed on an aggregate basige Whevaluation indicates that these multi-
year contracts will result in an asset that isreobverable, additional amortization is providede Tosts of national sports contracts at FOX
the national sports channels are charged to exartsallocated to segments based on the ratiochf @arent period’s attributable revenue for
each contract to the estimated total remainingpbatable revenue for each contract. Estimates bange and, accordingly, are reviewed
periodically and amortization is adjusted as neagssSuch changes in the future could be material.

The costs of local and regional sports contraata fegpecified number of events are amortized oevant-by-event basis while costs for
local and regional sports contracts for a speciiealson are amortized over the season on a sttaighitasis.

Investments

Investments in and advances to equity or jointwess in which the Company has significant influerne less than a controlling voti
interest, are accounted for using the equity metBaghificant influence is generally presumed tsewhen the Company owns an interest
between 20% and 50% and exercises significanténtie.

Under the equity method of accounting, the Compaaludes its investments and amounts due to amd fi®equity method investees
in its Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Compangfs@lidated Statements of Operations include thagamy’s share of the investees’
earnings (losses) and the Company’s Consolidat@igents of Cash Flows include all cash receivam for paid to the investees.

The difference between the Company’s investmentitarghare of the fair value of the underlying ass$ets of the investee is first
allocated to either finite-lived intangibles or éfuhite-lived intangibles and the balance is atttéal to goodwill. The Company follows ASC
350, “Intangibles—Goodwill and Other” (“ASC 350%)hich requires that equity method finite-lived in¢gbles be amortized over their
estimated useful life while indefinite-lived intabtgs and goodwill are not amortized.
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TWENTY -FIRST CENTURY FOX, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investments in which the Company has no significafiience (generally less than a 20% ownershigrett) are designated as
available-for-sale investments if readily deternbileamarket values are available. If an investmdiaitsvalue is not readily determinable, the
Company accounts for its investment at cost. The@my reports available-for-sale investments ataiue based on quoted market prices.
Unrealized gains and losses on available-for-salestments are included in Accumulated other cohgmsive (loss) income, net of applicable
taxes and other adjustments until the investmesald or considered impaired. Dividends and oth&ridutions of earnings from available-for-
sale investments and cost method investments elteded in Interest income in the Consolidated $tetes of Operations when declared.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cagird2iation is provided using the straifjhe method over an estimated useful life «
to 40 years. Leasehold improvements are amortigad)uhe straight-line method over the shortehefrtuseful lives or the life of the lease.
Costs associated with the repair and maintenanpeopkrty are expensed as incurred. Changes imnegtances, such as technological
advances, or changes to the Company’s business miockpital strategy, could result in the actusdful lives differing from the Company’s
estimates. In those cases where the Company deestiat the useful life of buildings and equiprsdrdguld be shortened, the Company
would depreciate the asset over its revised remginseful life, thereby increasing depreciationemnge.

Gooduwill and intangible assets

The Company has a significant amount of intangiisieets, including goodwill, film and televisionrlibies, Federal Communications
Commission (“FCC") licenses, multi-channel videogmramming distributor (“MVPD”) affiliate agreemerdsd relationships and trademarks
and other copyrighted products. Goodwill is recdree the difference between the considerationtpagetquire entities and amounts assigned
to their tangible and identifiable intangible neseats. In accordance with ASC 350, the Companydsigdl and indefinite-lived intangible
assets, which primarily consist of FCC licenses,tasted annually for impairment or earlier if egemccur or circumstances change that woul
more likely than not reduce the fair value belosvdarrying amount. Intangible assets with finited are generally amortized over their
estimated useful lives. The impairment assessnfantefinite-lived intangibles compares the faituaof these intangible assets to their
carrying value.

The Company’s goodwill impairment reviews are deieed using a twetep process. The first step of the process isttpare the fa
value of a reporting unit with its carrying amountluding goodwill. If the fair value of a repartj unit exceeds its carrying amount, the
goodwill of the reporting unit is not impaired at: second step of the impairment review is noessary. If the carrying amount of a
reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the secdeg sf the goodwill impairment review is requir@dbe performed to estimate the implied fair
value of the reporting unit's goodwill. The impliéair value of the reporting unit's goodwill is c@ared with the carrying amount of that
goodwill. If the carrying amount of the reportingits goodwill exceeds the implied fair value o&ttgoodwill, an impairment loss is
recognized in an amount equal to that excess.

When a business within a reporting unit is dispasfiedoodwill is allocated to the disposed busingsiag the relative fair value meth

Asset impairments
Investment:

Equity method investments are regularly reviewadrfgairment by initially comparing their fair vauo their respective carrying
amounts each quarter. The Company determinesitheafae of its public company investments by refere to their publicly traded stock
prices. With respect to private company investmehts Company makes its estimate of fair valuednsiering other available information,
including recent investee equity transactions,alisted cash flow analyses, estimates based on cabipgublic company operating multiples
and, in certain situations, balance sheet liquidetialues. If the fair value of the investment tespped below the carrying amount,
management considers several factors when detemgniviiether an other-than-temporary decline in ntarBkie has occurred, including the
length of the time and extent to which the marledtie has been below cost, the financial conditimh rrear-term prospects of the issuer, the
intent and ability of the
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Company to retain its investment in the issuerfperiod of time sufficient to allow for any anpeied recovery in market value and other
factors influencing the fair market value, suctyaseral market conditions.

The Company regularly reviews available-for-salestment securities for other-than-temporary impaint based on criteria that
include the extent to which the investment’s cargyalue exceeds its related market value, thetidaraf the market decline, the Company’s
ability to hold until recovery and the financiatestigth and specific prospects of the issuer osdwairity.

The Company regularly reviews investments accoufuedt cost for other-than-temporary impairmerdgdzhon criteria that include the
extent to which the investment’s carrying valueeads its related estimated fair value, the duraifdhe estimated fair value decline, the
Company’s ability to hold until recovery and thedncial strength and specific prospects of theeissfithe security.

Longlived assets

ASC 360, “Property, Plant, and Equipment,” and AZS0 require that the Company periodically review ¢arrying amounts of its
long-lived assets, including property, plant andipment and finite-lived intangible assets, to deiae whether current events or
circumstances indicate that such carrying amouiatg mot be recoverable. If the carrying amount efdlset is greater than the expected
undiscounted cash flows to be generated by sueh, assimpairment adjustment is recognized if theying value of such asset exceeds its
value. The Company generally measures fair valueomgidering sale prices for similar assets oribgalinting estimated future cash flows
using an appropriate discount rate. Considerableagement judgment is necessary to estimate thedhie of assets; accordingly, actual
results could vary significantly from such estinzatassets to be disposed of are carried at therloieir financial statement carrying amo
or fair value less their costs to sell.

Guarantees

The Company follows ASC 460, “Guarantees” (“ASC )68.SC 460 requires a guarantor to recognizehatimception of a guarantee,
a liability for the fair value of the obligation dartaken in issuing certain guarantees. Subsequémd! initial liability recognized for the
guarantee is generally reduced as the Companieizsed from the risk under the guarantee. The Coynpeariodically reviews the facts and
circumstances pertaining to its guarantees in deténg the level of related risk.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidenae afrangement exists, the fees are fixed or detertoteé, the product or service has
been delivered and collectability is reasonablyess The Company considers the terms of eachgagnaent to determine the appropriate
accounting treatment.

Cable Network Programming, Television and Direcb&lcast Satellite Television

Advertising revenue is recognized as the commereiad aired, net of agency commissions. Subsdelesrreceived from MVPDs for
Cable Network Programming and Television are retzaghas affiliate fee revenue in the period ses/iee provided. Direct Broadcast
Satellite Television subscription and pay-per-viewenues are recognized when programming is breatiztaubscribers, while fees for
equipment rental are recognized as revenue omiglstiine basis over the contract period.

The Company classifies the amortization of cabdérithution investments (capitalized fees paid toRDs to facilitate carriage of a
cable network) against affiliate fee revenue inoagance with ASC 605-50, “Revenue Recognition—QustioPayments and Incentives.” The
Company defers the cable distribution investmentsamortizes the amounts on a straight-line baas the contract period.
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Filmed Entertainmer

Revenues from the distribution of motion pictures Becognized in accordance with ASC 926. Revefroes the theatrical distribution
of motion pictures are recognized as they are éeliband revenues from home entertainment sadts)fra reserve for estimated returns, are
recognized on the date that DVD and Béy-units are made widely available for sale bwgitets or when made available for viewing via dit
distribution platforms and all Company-imposedriegbns on the sale or availability have expirBeévenues from television distribution are
recognized when the motion picture or televisiomneseis made available to the licensee for broadcas

Management bases its estimates of ultimate reviemwesach motion picture on the historical performenf similar motion pictures,
incorporating factors such as the past box offem®rd of the lead actors and actresses, the gétite motion picture, pre-release market
research (including test market screenings) anéxpected number of theaters in which the film Wélreleased. Management updates such
estimates based on information available on theehcésults of each film through its life cycle.

License agreements for the broadcast of theatiudltelevision series in the broadcast networkdisgted television and cable
television markets are routinely entered into imeate of their available date for broadcast. Cashived and amounts billed in connection
with such contractual rights for which revenueads yet recognizable is classified as deferred rageBecause deferred revenue generally
relates to contracts for the licensing of motioctynies and television series which have already peeduced, the recognition of revenue for
such completed product is principally only dependgron the commencement of the availability pefmdoroadcast under the terms of the
related licensing agreement.

The Company earns and recognizes revenues asibudiat on behalf of third parties. In such casktermining whether revenue
should be reported on a gross or net basis is lasathnagement’s assessment of whether the Conagdsas the principal or agent in the
transaction. To the extent the Company acts aprtheipal in a transaction, revenues are reported gross basis. Determining whether the
Company acts as principal or agent in a transaatieslives judgment and is based on an evaluatiomhather the Company has the substantie
risks and rewards of ownership under the termsafreangement.

Direct Broadcast Satellite Television programming gpense and subscriber acquisition costs

Programming expenses of the Direct Broadcast 8at@klevision segment are the fees paid to venolisense the programming
distributed to customers. These programming exgeaierecognized at the time the Company distribiliie related programming. Contracts
with vendors are generally multi-year agreemerds phovide for the Company to make payments atejogon rates based on the number of
subscribers.

Subscriber acquisition costs in the Direct Broat&asellite Television segment primarily consistiafounts paid for third-party
customer acquisitions, which consist of the costarhmissions paid to authorized retailers and de#&be subscribers added through their
respective distribution channels and the cost odware and installation subsidies for subscrib&lscosts, including hardware, installation ¢
commissions, are expensed upon activation. Howeuwegre legal ownership is retained in the equipimet cost of the equipment is
capitalized and depreciated over the useful lifddifional components of subscriber acquisition astlude the cost of print, radio and
television advertising, which are expensed as neclr

Advertising expenses

The Company expenses advertising costs as incun@dding advertising expenses for theatrical sievision productions in
accordance with ASC 720-35, “Other Expenses—Adsiagi Cost.” Advertising expenses recognized tot&2@ billion, $2.2 billion and $1.9
billion for the fiscal years ended June 30, 20B4,32and 2012, respectively.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign subsidiaries and affiliates are translatealU.S. Dollars using the current rate methodemeby trading results are converted at
the average rate of exchange for the period aretsaand liabilities are converted at
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the closing rates on the period end date. Thetiegulanslation adjustments are accumulated asrgonent of Accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss). Gains and losses fiwogeign currency transactions are included in inedor the period.

Income taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeASC 740, “Income Taxes” (“ASC 740"). ASC 74€quires an asset and
liability approach for financial accounting and ogfing for income taxes. Under the asset and ligtdpproach, deferred taxes are provided fo
the net tax effects of temporary differences betwtbe carrying amounts of assets and liabilitiedifancial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for income tax purposes. Valuatimwalhces are established where management deterthaigsis more likely than not that
some portion or all of a deferred tax asset witllm@ realized. Deferred taxes have not been prdwaethe cumulative undistributed earning
foreign subsidiaries to the extent amounts arevesited indefinitely.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share for the Class A commarkspar value $0.01 per share (“Class A CommonlS}pand Class B common
stock, par value $0.01 per share (“Class B Comntook®) is calculated by dividing Net income attrtbble to Twenty-First Century Fox
stockholders by the weighted average number otanding shares of Class A Common Stock and Clag@emBmon Stock. Diluted earnings
per share for Class A Common Stock and Class B Gamtock is calculated similarly, except that thkalation includes the dilutive effect
of the assumed issuance of shares issuable urel@otimpany’s equity based compensation plans.

Equity based compensation

The Company accounts for share-based paymentsandance with ASC 718, “Compensation—Stock Comptgmsa(“ASC 718).
ASC 718 requires that the cost resulting from ladirebased payment transactions be recognized in thedlidated Financial Statements. A
718 establishes fair value as the measurementtolger accounting for shargased payment arrangements and requires all coegpmappl
a fair-value-based measurement method in accoufairgenerally all share-based payment transactiotisemployees. (See Note 14£quity
Based Compensation)

Financial instruments and derivatives

ASC 815, “Derivatives and Hedging” (“ASC 815"), téres every derivative instrument (including certderivative instruments
embedded in other contracts) to be recorded obhdlence sheet at fair value as either an asseliaibity (See Note 8 — Fair Value). ASC 815
also requires that changes in the fair value ofnéed derivatives be recognized currently in egysinnless specific hedge accounting criteria
are met.

The carrying value of the Company'’s financial ingstents, including cash and cash equivalents artdro@stments, approximate fair
value. The fair value of financial instruments éngrally determined by reference to market valasalting from trading on a national
securities exchange or in an over-the-counter nharke

The Company uses financial instruments designatesh flow hedges to hedge its limited exposurésreign currency exchange
risks associated with the costs for producing guamg films and television programming abroadl édsh flow hedges are recorded at fair
value on the Consolidated Balance Sheets (See8\eteair Value). The effective changes in fair eatd derivatives designated as cash flow
hedges are recorded in Accumulated other comprateefisss) income with foreign currency translatajustments. Amounts are reclassified
from Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) incarhen the underlying hedged item is recognized iniags. If derivatives are not
designated as hedges, changes in fair value avedegtin earnings as Other, net in the Consolidgtatements of Operations.

Derivative instruments embedded in other contratish as convertible debt securities and exchatgeaburities, are separated into
their host and derivative financial instrument camgnts. The derivative component is
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recorded at its estimated fair value in the Consdéid Balance Sheets with changes in estimateddhie recorded in Other, net in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Recently Adopted and Recently Issued Accounting Gdance
Adopted

In February 2013, the FASB issued Accounting Steaslblpdate (“ASU”) 2013-02, “Comprehensive Incormegic 220): Reporting of
Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Caghpnsive Income” (“ASU 2013-02"), which requires thompany to provide
information about the amounts reclassified outagfuanulated other comprehensive income by compoheatdition, it requires the Company
to present, either on the face of the statementevhet income is presented or in the notes, siamfiamounts reclassified out of accumulated
other comprehensive income by the respective teras of net income but only if the amount reclasgifs required under GAAP to be
reclassified to net income in its entirety in tlaene reporting period. For other amounts that ateetuired under GAAP to be reclassified in
their entirety to net income, the Company is regplito cross-reference to other disclosures requinelér GAAP that provide additional detail
about those amounts. ASU 2013-02 became effeativihé Company for interim reporting periods begignjuly 1, 2013. The adoption of
ASU 2013-02 resulted in the disclosure of addition®Brmation within the notes to the Consolidatédancial Statements. (See Note 13 —
Stockholders’ Equity)

Issued

In March 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-05, “Fane@urrency Matters (Topic 830): Parent’s Accountimgthe Cumulative
Translation Adjustment upon Derecognition of Certaubsidiaries or Groups of Assets within a Foréigtity or of an Investment in a Forei
Entity” (“ASU 2013-05"). The objective of ASU 20135 is to resolve the diversity in practice regagdime release of the cumulative
translation adjustment into net income when a paeither sells a part or all of its investment ifoeeign entity or no longer holds a controlling
financial interest in a subsidiary or group of as®& a business within a foreign entity. ASU 2@E3is effective for the Company for interim
reporting periods beginning July 1, 2014. The Comygda currently evaluating the impact ASU 2013-08 kave on its Consolidated Financial
Statements.

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-08, “Prdsd¢inon of Financial Statements (Topic 205) and Brop Plant, and Equipment
(Topic 360)" (“ASU 2014-08"). The amendments in AQ014-08 provide guidance for the recognition atdntinued operations, change the
requirements for reporting discontinued operation8SC 205-20, “Discontinued Operations” (“ASC 206%) and require additional
disclosures about discontinued operations. ASU 28l effective on a prospective basis for the @any for interim reporting periods
beginning July 1, 2015. Early adoption is permitt&abject to certain conditions. The Company isantty evaluating the impact ASU 2008
will have on its Consolidated Financial Statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, “Revefiam Contracts from Customers (Topic 606)” (“ASU12009"). The core
principle of ASU 2014-09 is that an entity shouddagnize revenue to depict the transfer of promigemtls or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to whichahtity expects to be entitled in exchange for ¢hgsods or services. ASU 2014-09 is
effective for the Company for interim reporting joeis beginning July 1, 2017. Early adoption is petmitted. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact ASU 2014-09 will have onGensolidated Financial Statements.

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-12, “Comaims—Stock Compensation (Topic 718): AccountimgShare-Based
Payments When the Terms of an Award Provide tiRgréormance Target Could be Achieved after the RéguService Period” (“ASU 2014-
12"). The amendments in ASU 2014-12 require tha¢rformance target that affects vesting and thaldcloe achieved after the requisite
service period be treated as a performance conditiSU 2014-12 is effective for the Company foenit reporting periods beginning July 1,
2016, however early adoption is permitted. The Camypdoes not expect the adoption of ASU 2014-T#ate a significant impact on the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NOTE 3. ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND OTHER TRANSACTI ONS

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the fizmy completed a number of acquisitions as mohe fidscribed below. All of the
Company’s acquisitions were accounted for under 88%&, “Business Combinations” (“ASC 805iyhich requires, among other things, tha
acquirer (i) remeasure any previously held equitgrest in an acquiree at its acquisition dateviaiue and recognize any resulting gains or
losses in earnings and (ii) record any noncontrglinterests in an acquiree at their acquisiticle f&ir values. Accordingly, several of the
transactions described below resulted in the retiogrof remeasurement gains since the Companyigtjgontrol of an acquiree in stages.
Further, other transactions described below invebie Company acquiring control with an ownershégikes of less than 100%. In those
instances, the allocation of the excess purchase mflects 100% of the fair value of the acquinélh the noncontrolling interests recorded at
fair value.

The below acquisitions all support the Companyrategic priority of increasing its brand presened eeach in key international and
domestic markets, acquiring greater control of gtrents that complement its portfolio of business®bcreating new pay-TV sports
franchises. For those acquisitions where the adowyfor the business combination is based on giomal amounts and the allocation of the
excess purchase price is not final, the amountsatied to intangibles and goodwill, the estimafasseful lives and the related amortization
expense are subject to change pending the completifinal valuations of certain assets and lidieili. A change in the purchase price
allocations and any estimates of useful lives coedallt in a change in the value allocated to tit@nigible assets that could impact future
amortization expense.

Fiscal 2015
Dispositions
Sky Italia and Sky Deutschland

In July 2014, the Company entered into agreemeitksBritish Sky Broadcasting Group plc (“BSkyB”) gell its 100% and 57% (on a
fully diluted basis) ownership stakes in Sky Italied Sky Deutschland AG (“Sky Deutschland”), resipety, for approximately $9.3 billion
(based on foreign currency exchange rates as afateeof the agreements) comprised of approxim&@I§ billion in cash and the transfer to
the Company of BSkyB’s 21% interest in NGC Netwbrternational LLC and NGC Network Latin America LL(€ollectively “NGC
International”), increasing the Company’s ownersdtgke to 73% in NGC International. In connectiathwhis transaction, the Company
participated in BSkyB’s equity offering in July 20by purchasing additional shares in BSkyB for agpnately $900 million and maintained
the Company’s 39% ownership interest. The agreesrametsubject to regulatory approvals, the approvBISkyB stockholders and customary
closing conditions.

Fiscal 2014
Acquisitions
Latin America Pay Televisic

In May 2012, the Company acquired an interest pf@gamately 23% in Latin America Pay Television ARPTV"), an entity that
distributes premium and basic television chanmelsatin America, for $64 million in cash. As a réaf this transaction, the Company
increased its interest in LAPTV to approximatelya8om the 55% it owned at June 30, 2011. In Sep&r013, the Company acquired the

remaining 22% interest in LAPTV for approximatelySpmillion in cash. As a result of this transactitime Company now owns 100% of
LAPTV. These transactions were accounted for aptinehase of subsidiary shares from noncontrolliterests.

Yankees Entertainment and Sports Networks

In December 2012, the Company acquired a 49% equéyest in the Yankees Entertainment and Spostsvdrk (“YES Network”), a
Regional Sports Network (“RSN”) primarily broaddagtpre-season and regular season games for theYlekwyankees and the Brooklyn
Nets, for $584 million. Simultaneous with the chagiof this transaction, the Company also paid apprately $250 million of upfron
programming costs on behalf of the YES Network. Tloenpany accounted for its investment in the YE8MWdek under the equity method of
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accounting. The Company’s total investment of $884ion was allocated between tangible and intatggéssets in accordance with ASC 323,
“Investments — Equity Investments.”

On February 28, 2014, the Company acquired aniaddlt31% interest in the YES Network, increasing €Company’s ownership
interest to 80%, for approximately $680 milliont nécash acquired, and subsequent to the acaquisitie Company has consolidated the
balance sheet and operating results of the YES dtkfwncluding $1.7 billion in debt. The remaini2@% of the YES Network not owned by
the Company has been recorded at fair value ofoappately $385 million based on the Company’s psmnal valuation of the YES Network
business using a market approach (a Level 3 maasnteas defined in Note 8 — Fair Value). The cagyamount of the Compars/previously
held equity interest in the YES Network was revdlteits provisional fair value of approximately@Bmillion as of the acquisition date. The
aggregate excess purchase price has been prelimeliocated, based on a provisional valuatiod 0% of the YES Network, as follows:
approximately $1.7 billion to intangible assetssisting of MVPD affiliate agreements and relatiapstwith useful lives of 20 years and
advertiser relationships with useful lives of 6 ggeand the indefinite-lived YES Network trade namggproximately $1.7 billion to debt;
approximately $1.6 billion representing the gootlail the transaction; and other net assets. Thdwitiaeflects the synergies and increased
market penetration expected from combining the atpmns of the YES Network and the Company. Subsggoehe acquisition, the Company
paid approximately $160 million of upfront prograimg costs on behalf of the YES Network.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the inengmhrevenues and Segment OIBDA (as defined ir Bt— Segment Information)
related to the YES Network included in the Compargdnsolidated results of operations were not rizter

San Francisco-Bay Area Television Stations

In June 2014, the Company entered into an agreaimacguire two San Francisco-Bay area televisiatioms from Cox Media Group
in exchange for the Company’s FOX affiliated sta®WHBQ-TV FOX 13 and WFXT-TV FOX 24, located iretMemphis and Boston
markets, respectively. The transaction is subjecégulatory approvals and other closing conditions

Fiscal 2013
Acquisitions
Eredivisie Media & Marketing

In November 2012, the Company acquired a contiphlih% ownership stake in Eredivisie Media & MarkgtCV (“EMM”) for
approximately $350 million, of which $325 millionas cash and $25 million was contingent consideraiM is a media company that
holds the collective media and sponsorship righte@Dutch Premier League. The remaining 49% ofMEMhich is owned by the Dutch
Premier League and the global TV production compamgemol, has been recorded at its acquisitionfdatealue. The excess purchase price
based on a valuation of 100% of EMM, of approxirhe$670 million has been allocated as follows: $8@8ion to amortizable intangible
assets, primarily customer relationships, with ukkfes ranging from 6 to 20 years, and approxehe$345 million representing the goodwill
on the transaction. The goodwill reflects the sgies and increased market penetration expecteddoonbining the operations of EMM and
the Company. The contingent consideration relatgmyments that are contingent upon the achieveaierrtain performance objectives and
was valued using an income approach using a priityaleighted discounted cash flow method. The auggnt consideration is remeasured tc
fair value at each reporting date until the corgimgy is resolved.

Fox Sports Asia (formerly ESPN Star Spo

In November 2012, the Company acquired the remgit%o interest in ESPN Star Sports, now operatingoex Sports Asia, that it d
not already own for approximately $220 million, métash acquired. Fox Sports Asia is a leadingtspgwoadcaster in Asia and the Company
now, through its wholly owned subsidiaries, own8%0of Fox Sports Asia. The carrying amount of tlwnPany’s previously held equity
interest in Fox Sports Asia was revalued to falueas of the acquisition date, resulting in a teotable gain of $174 million which was
included
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in Other, net in the Consolidated Statement of @jpans for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.a0uygegate excess purchase price of $1
million, including the revalued previously held astment of $280 million and contract-related ligie of approximately $450 million, has
been allocated as follows: $190 million to amothieaintangible assets, primarily MVPD affiliate agments and relationships, with useful
lives ranging from 8 to 15 years, and approxima$&0 million representing the goodwill on the sBaction. The goodwill reflects the
synergies and increased market penetration exp&ammdcombining the operations of Fox Sports Asid the Company.

SportsTime Ohio

In December 2012, the Company acquired SportsTifie,@ RSN serving the Cleveland, Ohio marketafoestimated total purchase
price, including post-closing costs, of approxinha®&285 million, of which $135 million was in cashihe balance of the purchase price
represents the fair value of deferred paymentspagthents that are contingent upon the achieveniamrtain performance objectives. The
excess purchase price of approximately $275 milias been allocated as follows: $135 million to ginable intangible assets, primarily
MVPD affiliate agreements and relationships, wisiefull lives ranging from 8 to 20 years, and apprately $140 million representing the
goodwill on the transaction. The goodwill reflettie synergies and increased market penetratiorceeghé'om combining the operations of the
RSN and the Company. The contingent considerateswalued using an income approach using a pratyabitéighted discounted cash flow
method and is remeasured to fair value at eachrtiegalate until the contingency is resolved.

Sky Deutschland

During fiscal 2013, the Company acquired, througlombination of a private placement and a rightsrofg, approximately 92 million
additional shares of Sky Deutschland increasingXvapany’s ownership interest to 55%. The remaidisig of Sky Deutschland not owned
by the Company has been recorded at fair valupmfoximately $2.3 billion, based on the closingprof its shares on the Frankfurt Stock
Exchange on the date control was acquired (a Lewetasurement as defined in Note 8 — Fair Valued. dggregate cost of shares acquired b
the Company was approximately €410 million (appmadely $550 million). The carrying amount of then@many’s previously held equity
interest in Sky Deutschland was revalued to faiueas of the acquisition date, resulting in a gdiapproximately $2.1 billion which was
included in Other, net in the Consolidated Statamé@peration for the fiscal year ended June 803 The aggregate excess purchase price
has been allocated as follows: approximately $ilidito intangible assets, primarily consistinfysoibscriber relationships, with a useful life
of 11 years, and the indefinite-lived Sky trade raapproximately $4.3 billion representing the geiticon the transaction and the related
deferred tax liabilities. As a result of these saations, the Company has the power to controllBgtschland and the results of Sky
Deutschland were included in the Company’s conatdid results of operations beginning in Januarng2Ptior to the acquisition of the
additional 5% ownership interest, the Company astalifor its investment in Sky Deutschland underebuity method of accounting and the
Company’s investment consisted of common stockyedible bonds and loans.

The Company has guaranteed Sky Deutschland’s €8060mfapproximately $410 million) five-year bardkedit facility, of which
€225 million ($308 million) has been utilized andrisluded in Borrowings. In connection with the sohidation of Sky Deutschland, the
Company assumed approximately $480 million in baelst, which Sky Deutschland repaid in full durimgcél 2013. Additionally, the
Company is the guarantor to the German Footbaljuedor Sky Deutschland’s Bundesliga broadcastoenke for the 2013-2014 to 2016-
2017 seasons in an amount up to 50% of the lickesper season and the Company has also agregtttm éhe maturity of existing
shareholder loans that were issued before it becacomsolidated subsidiary.

In January 2011, the Company purchased a conwetidohd from Sky Deutschland for approximately $&tion. The Company
currently has the right to convert the bonds irR®5million underlying Sky Deutschland shares, sabjo certain black-out periods. If not
converted, the Company will redeem the bonds fehegon their maturity in January 2015. The convlerbonds were separated into their
host and derivative financial instrument componeRt®r to Sky Deutschland becoming a consolidatdssidiary, both the host and derivative
financial instrument components were recordedeit #stimated fair value in Investments in the @didated Balance Sheets. The change in
estimated fair value of the security (derivativetinment) resulted in a gain of $58 million anassl of $61 million and were recorded in Otl
net in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of @joas
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for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2@%pectively. Subsequent to becoming a consolidatbdidiary, the derivative instrument \
effectively settled as a pre-existing relationghiyler the provisions of ASC 805-10-25-21 “Busin€ssnbinations—Determining What Is Part
of the Business Combination Transaction” with taerying amount of the asset for the derivative congmt written off as a settlement loss
which was included in Other, net in the Consolide¢atement of Operations for the fiscal year erigek 30, 2013.

Other

In May 2012, the Company renewed its existing F@ffiation agreement with a major FOX affiliate gnp (“Network Affiliate”). As
part of the transaction, the Company received caskideration of $50 million and the Network Affite had an option to buy the Company’s
Baltimore station. Network Affiliate exercised dption to purchase the Baltimore television statiad the Company recognized a loss on the
transaction of $92 million which was included irh@t, net in the Consolidated Statement of Operationthe fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
The Company is amortizing the $50 million receifien the Network Affiliate over the term of the itiition agreement.

In fiscal 2013, the Company increased its interesgtsianet Communications Limited (“Asianet Comntations”), an entity in India
that broadcasts and operates the Malayalam langiesgmels Asianet and Asianet Plus and the Kanlaad@age channel Suvarna television,
to 87% from the 75% it owned at June 30, 2012 fpraximately $160 million in cash. In the fourthagter of fiscal 2014, the Company
acquired the 13% interest it did not already owAsmnet Communications for approximately $50 miilin cash. As a result of this
transaction, the Company now owns 100% of Asiamgh@unications. These transactions were accounteakfthe purchase of subsidiary
shares from noncontrolling interests.

Fiscal 2012
Acquisitions

In December 2011, the Company acquired the 67%\epierest it did not already own in Fox Pan Amarn Sports LLC, doing
business as Fox Sports Latin America (“FSLA”), &pproximately $400 million. FSLA, an internatiosglorts programming and production
entity, which owns and operates Fox Sports LatireAoa network, a Spanish and Portuguese-languagesspetwork distributed to
subscribers in certain Caribbean and Central amthSdmerican nations, and partially through its enghip in FSLA, a 53% interest in Fox
Deportes, a Spanish-language sports programmingsaetistributed in the U.S. As a result of thisrtsaction, the Company now owns 100%
of FSLA and Fox Deportes. Accordingly, the Compahginged its accounting for FSLA from an equity métmvestment to a consolidated
subsidiary beginning in December 2011. The acqorsitf FSLA supports the Compasystrategic priority of increasing its brand preseanc
reach in key international markets.

The carrying amount of the Company'’s previoushdreduity interest in FSLA was revalued to fair \eaht the acquisition date,
resulting in a non-taxable gain of $158 million wiiwas included in Other, net in the Consolidatiede®nent of Operations for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2012. The aggregate excess pupmties&as been allocated as follows: approxima#2B0 million to finite-lived intangible
assets with useful lives ranging from 5 to 15 yeard approximately $320 million representing thedeill on the transaction. The goodwill
reflects the synergies and increased market peiogtrexpected from combining the operations of FSind the Company.

Dispositions

In July 2011, the Company sold its majority int¢iadts outdoor advertising businesses in RussthRomania (“News Outdoor
Russia”) for cash consideration of approximatelgG#illion. In connection with the sale, the Compaapaid $32 million of News Outdoor
Russia debt. The Company recorded a gain relatdtbtsale of this business, which was includedthe@ net in the Consolidated Statemer
Operations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2042.gain on the sale and the net income, assigities and cash flow attributable to the
News Outdoor Russia operations were not materigdgdCompany in any of the periods presented aiwbrdingly, have not been presen
separately.
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Other

In fiscal 2012, the Company entered into an asggiiaition agreement with a third party in exchafgyea noncontrolling ownership
interest in one of the Company’s majority-owned BSNe noncontrolling shareholder has a put optidated to its ownership interest that is
exercisable beginning in March 2015. Since redesnpdif the noncontrolling interest is outside of doatrol of the Company, the Company
accounted for this put option in accordance withCAB0-10-S99-3A, “Distinguishing Liabilities fromghity” (“ASC 480-10-S99-3A"), and
has recorded the put option at its fair value Redeemable noncontrolling interest in the Constdidi@alance Sheets. (See Note 8 — Fair
Value)

NOTE 4. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Separation of News Corp

On June 28, 2013, the Company completed the Sépauditits business into two independent publicgded companies by distributing
to its stockholders all of the outstanding shafdsews Corp. The Company retained its intereses ghobal portfolio of media and
entertainment assets spanning six continents. Nkas holds the Company’s former businesses inctudewspapers, information services
and integrated marketing services, digital reatesservices, book publishing, digital educatiod sports programming and pay-TV
distribution in Australia. The Company completed 8eparation by distributing to its stockholders share of News Corp Class A common
stock for every four shares of the Company’s CRaR€&ommon Stock held on June 21, 2013, and one stiddews Corp Class B common
stock for every four shares of the Company’s CBa&ommon Stock held on June 21, 2013. The Compatgtkholders received cash in lieu
of fractional shares. Following the Separation,Gleenpany does not beneficially own any shares afs\€orp Class A common stock or Ne
Corp Class B common stock.

Effective June 28, 2013, the Separation qualif@diiscontinued operations treatment in accordantte ASC 205-20 and accordingly
the Company deconsolidated News Corp’s balance sisesf June 30, 2013, and presented its resulthddiscal years ended June 30, 2013
and 2012 as discontinued operations on the CordelidStatements of Operations and the Consolidtsdments of Cash Flows. The
footnotes to the financial statements have alsa bedsed accordingly.

The Company entered into a separation and distoibaigreement with News Corp (the “Separation arsribution Agreement”)
pursuant to which the Company agreed to providash contribution to News Corp immediately priottie Separation, so that as of the
Separation, News Corp would have approximately $2lién of cash on hand. Accordingly, immediatelyor to the Separation, the Company
distributed approximately $2.4 billion to News Cpwhich was comprised of $1.6 billion in cash furgland approximately $800 million that
was held by News Corp’s subsidiaries immediatelgrgp the Separation. The Company made a findl distribution of $217 million in
September 2013, pursuant to the Separation andhigbn Agreement.

Separation and Distribution Agreemel

The Separation and Distribution Agreement sethf@itnong other things, the parties’ agreementsdegathe principal transactions
necessary to effect the Separation. It also pravidat the Company will indemnify News Corp, onadtier-tax basis, for payments made after
the Separation arising out of civil claims and istigations relating to the U.K. Newspaper Mattas defined below), as well as legal and
professional fees and expenses paid in conneciithrtiee related criminal matters, other than fespenses and costs relating to employees
who are not (i) directors, officers or certain d@sited employees or (ii) with respect to civil raegt co-defendants with News Corp. U.K.
Newspaper Matters refers to ongoing investigatlmnt).K. and U.S. regulators and governmental aitiesrmrelating to phone hacking, illec
data access and inappropriate payments to pulficaté atThe News of the WorlshdThe Surand related matters. In addition, the Separatiol
and Distribution Agreement governs the Companyt ldews Corp’s agreements with regard to each maatyility to comply with certain
statutes or rules and regulations promulgated &yBC. (See Note 16 — Commitments and Contingencies
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Tax Sharing and Indemnification Agreement

The Company entered into a tax sharing and indecatibn agreement with News Corp that governs tbmgany’s and News Corp’s
respective rights, responsibilities and obligatiwith respect to tax liabilities and benefits, tributes, tax contests and other matters
regarding income taxes, non-income taxes and tetatereturns. Under the tax sharing and indematifien agreement, News Corp will
generally indemnify the Company against taxestaitable to News Corp’s assets or operations fdaalperiods or portions thereof after the
Separation. For taxable periods or portions thepeiof to the Separation, the Company will gengradtdemnify News Corp against U.S.
consolidated and combined taxes attributable th peciods, and News Corp will indemnify the Compagginst News Corp’s separately filed
U.S. state and foreign taxes and foreign cons@@tland combined taxes for such periods.

A subsidiary of News Corp, prior to the Separatiwa filed for refunds to claim certain losses fioreign jurisdiction. In accordance
with the tax sharing and indemnification agreemth#,refund (plus interest) is to be paid to thenPany, net of certain taxes. At June 30,
2013, News Corp did not recognize an asset foclies since such amounts were being disputeddfotteign tax authority and the
resolution was not determinable at that time. Dyithre fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the forjeigsdiction notified News Corp that it had
accepted its claims and would refund the taxesiplasest to News Corp. As of June 30, 2014, theam®unt that the Company received,
pursuant to the tax sharing and indemnificatioreagrent with News Corp, is approximately $720 millivhich has been included in Income
(loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxhie Consolidated Statement of Operations forideafyear ended June 30, 2014.

Employee Matters Agreeme

The Company entered into an employee matters agmeimt governs the Company’s and News Corp’gabbtns with respect to
employment, compensation, benefits and other iklat&tters for employees of certain of News Corp'S.thased businesses (the “Employee
Matters Agreement”). In general, the Employee Matgreement addresses matters relating to empddyaesferring to News Corp’s U.S.
businesses and former News Corp employees of thasaesses that participated in the Company’seragént plans (including postretirement
benefits) and welfare programs, which were retalmethe Company following the distribution. The Hoyee Matters Agreement also
addresses equity compensation matters relatingpdogees of both companies.

Summarized Financial Information
Revenues and Income (loss) from discontinued opeatelated to News Corp were as follows:

For the years ended June 3(

2014 2013 2012
(in millions)

Revenue! $ - $ 8,891 $ 8,65¢

Income (loss) before income tax ben $ 69t $ 24C  $ (2,25])

Income tax benefi $ 31 $ 36 $ 28¢

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, neag (@) $ 72¢ % 277 $ (1,999

@ Includes the net tax refund from News Corp, asdtabove, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 20aparoximately $720 million
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Cash flows from discontinued operations relateNews Corp were as follows:

For the years ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
(in millions)
Net cash provided by operating activities from digmued operation $ 571 $ 50€ $ 95¢€
Net cash used in investing activities from discoméid operation - (1,679 (655)
Net cash used in financing activities from disconéd operation - (263) (13)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisditent discontinued operatio $ 571 $ (1,43) $ 28¢

News Corp Transactions Prior to the Separati

Prior to the Separation, the Companformer businesses that are now subsidiaries w&N&orp entered into the following transactic

Fiscal 2013
Acquisitions

In July 2012, News Corp acquired Thomas Nelson, e of the leading Christian book publisherthinU.S., for approximately $2!
million in cash.

In November 2012, News Corp acquired Consolidatedi&lHoldings Ltd. (“CMH"), a media investment coamy that operates in
Australia, for approximately $2 billion in cash aassumed debt of approximately $235 million. CMHed a 25% interest in Foxtel through
its 50% interest in FOX SPORTS Australia. The asitjon doubled News Corp’s stakes in FOX SPORT Stralia and Foxtel to 100% and
50%, respectively.

The carrying amount of the News Corp’s previousidrequity interest in FOX SPORTS Australia, throwghich News Corp held its
indirect 25% interest in Foxtel, was revalued tio ¥alue as of the acquisition date, resulting imoa-taxable gain of approximately $1.2 billion
which was included in Income (loss) from disconsidwperations, net of tax in the Consolidated 8tatd of Operations for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2013. The fair value of News Cqesiously held equity interest of $1.6 billion wadstermined using an income approach
(discounted cash flow analysis) adjusted to rensvassumed control premium. Significant unobsesvadguts utilized in the income
approach valuation method were discount rates ngnigpm 9.5% to 10.5%, based on weighted averageafaapital for FOX SPORTS
Australia and Foxtel using the capital asset pgeirodel, and long-term growth rates of approxinya2eb%, reflecting News Corp’s
assessment of the long-term inflation rate for falit.

Dispositions

In March 2013, News Corp sold its 44% equity ins¢ie SKY Network Television Ltd. for approximatehp75 million and recorded a
gain of $321 million which was included in Incontes§) from discontinued operations, net of taxhie €onsolidated Statement of Operations
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.

News Corp Impairment:

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013, as pdrNews Corp’s long-range planning process in prafyan for the distribution, News
Corp adjusted its future outlook and related sgnatarincipally with respect to its News and Infoina Services business in Australia and
secondarily with respect to its News and Informat8ervices businesses in the U.S. which resultedr-@duction in expected future cash flows
As a result, News Corp determined that the fainealf these reporting units declined below thespeetive carrying values and recorded an
impairment charge of approximately $1.4 billion @billion, net of tax) in the fiscal year endedhéB0, 2013. The charges primarily consit
of a write-down of News Corp’s goodwill of $494 fiwh, a write-down of intangible assets (primarigwspaper mastheads) of $862 million,
and a write-down of fixed assets of $46 million.
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The impairment charges also include $42 millionectfng the potential sale of assets at valuesvb#teir carrying values.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012, News Cogporded non-cash impairment charges of approgin&e.6 billion ($2.2 billion,
net of tax) related to discontinued operations. dterges consisted of a write-down of News Corpadyvill of approximately $1.3 billion and
a write-down of the indefinite-lived intangible as (primarily newspaper mastheads and distributeiworks) of approximately $1.3 billion.

NOTE 5. RESTRUCTURING PROGRAMS
Fiscal 2014

In fiscal 2014, the Company recorded net restrirmgucharges from continuing operations of $52 millreflecting $81 million in
contract termination costs related to cost strecaifficiency enhancement initiatives primarily la¢ Direct Broadcast Satellite Television
segment partially offset by an adjustment to factiérmination obligations.

Fiscal 2013

In fiscal 2013, the Company recorded restructucimgrges from continuing operations of $13 milliomarily reflecting a charge for
accretion on facility termination obligations.

Fiscal 2012

In fiscal 2012, the Company recorded restructucingrges from continuing operations of $41 millieflacting $29 million in one-time
termination benefits and a $12 million charge foeration on facility termination obligations.

Changes in the program liabilities were as follows:

One time Facility costs Total
termination and continuing Discontinued
benefits license fees operations operations Total
(in millions)

Balance, June 30, 20: $ 4 $ 197 % 201 $ 33 % 234
Additions 29 12 41 156 197
Payment: (16) (32) (48) (117) (165)
Other (4) - (4) (13) (17)
Balance, June 30, 20: $ 13 $ 177 $ 190 $ 59 $ 249
Additions 3 10 13 - 13
Payment: (12) (29) (42) - (42)
Separation of News Col - - - (59) (59)
Balance, June 30, 20: $ 4 $ 158 $ 162  $ = $ 162
Additions 3 89 92 - 92
Payment: (5) (72) (77) - (77)
Other® - (40) (40) - (40)
Balance, June 30, 20: $ 2 % 135 % 137 $ = $ 137
@) Primarily related to a change in assumptions rdltdehe facility termination obligations of the @pany’s formerly owned digital

media properties

Restructuring charges are recorded in Other, riftarConsolidated Statements of Operations (See Rt Additional Financial
Information). The Company expects to record antafdil $22 million of restructuring charges, pripaily related to accretion on facility
termination obligations through fiscal 2021. AsJahe 30, 2014, restructuring liabilities of $34lioi were included in Current liabilities and
the balance of the accrual was

96




TWENTY -FIRST CENTURY FOX, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

included in Non-current Other liabilities. Amourtgluded in Non-current Other liabilities primarilglate to facility termination obligations,
which are expected to be paid through fiscal 2021.

NOTE 6. INVENTORIES
The Company’s inventories were comprised of thiv¥ahg:

As of June 30,

2014 2013
(in millions)
Programming right $ 581: $ 4,99¢
DVDs, Blu-rays, and other merchand 81 69
Filmed entertainment cost
Films:
Release( 1,02t 80¢€
Completed, not releast 317 10
In production 81¢ 95¢
In development or preproductit 151 19z
2,312 1,967
Television productions
Release( 862 69¢€
In production 46% 42¢
In development or preproductit 4 2
1,32¢ 1,12¢
Total filmed entertainment costs, less accumulatadrtization(® 3,641 3,09(
Total inventories, ne 9,53¢ 8,15¢
Less: current portion of inventories, 1(b) (3,097) (2,784)
Total nor-current inventorie $ 6,44: $ 5,371

@ Does not include $335 million and $366 million @ftintangible film library costs as of June 30, 2@hd 2013, respectively, which
were included in intangible assets subject to airaiitn in the Consolidated Balance She

® Current portion of inventories as of June 30, 28id 2013 was comprised of programming rights ($8@illion and $2,715 million,
respectively), DVDs, Bl-rays, and other merchandi:

As of June 30, 2014, the Company estimated thabappately 60% of unamortized filmed entertainmeosts from the completed
films are expected to be amortized during fiscdl®2and approximately 93% of released filmed entamant costs will be amortized within 1
next three fiscal years. During fiscal 2015, therany expects to pay $1,109 million in accruedipgtion liabilities, which are included in
Participations, residuals and royalties payabkaéConsolidated Balance Sheets. As of June 3@, 2@huired film and television libraries t
remaining unamortized film costs of $28 million, isfhare generally amortized using the individubthfforecast method over a remaining
period of approximately 3-7 years.
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NOTE 7. INVESTMENTS

The Company’s investments were comprised of tHeviahg:

Ownership
percentage
as of As of June 30.
June 30, 2014 2014 2013
(in millions)
Equity method investment
British Sky Broadcasting Group (@& U.K. DBS operato 39% $ 2,35¢ $ 1,97¢
YES Network®) RSN - 825
Other equity method investmer various 197 386
Fair value of availab-for-sale investment various 124 268
Other investment various 179 247
Total investment $ 285¢ $ 3,704

@ The Company’s investment in BSkyB had a marketevalu$9.5 billion at June 30, 2014 and was valugdgithe quoted market price
on the London Stock Exchange (a Level 1 measureasedéfined in Note 8 — Fair Value). For the fisezdrs ended June 30, 2014 and
2013, the Company received dividends from BSkyB3#7 million and $272 million, respective

® As of June 30, 2014, YES Network was a majority edvoonsolidated subsidiary of the Company. (See RetAcquisitions, Disposa
and Other Transaction

The cost basis, accumulated unrealized gains anddlae of available-for-sale investments arefggh below:
As of June 30.

2014 2013
(in millions)
Cost basis of availat-for-sale investmeni(® $ 90 $ 36
Accumulated unrealized gai(®) 34 232
Total fair value of availab-for-sale investment $ 124 $ 268
Net deferred tax liabilit $ 12 $ 81

@ Bona Film Group (“Bona”) and Phoenix Satellite é$gon Holdings Ltd. (“Phoenix”) were the significtavailable-for-sale
investments at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respect

® Approximately $200 million of the unrealized gamaf June 30, 2013 relates to the Compsairywestment in Phoenix which was sol
November 2013 and recognized in Other, net in thesGlidated Statement of Operations for the figeal ended June 30, 20:

The Company reclassified gains from Accumulate@iotomprehensive (loss) income to the Consolidgtatements of Operations,
based on the specific identification method. (Ne& 13 — Stockholders’ Equity for further discassgi
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Equity Earnings of Affiliates
The Company’s share of the earnings of its equftljates was as follows:

For the years ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
(in millions)
DBS equity affiliates $ 609 $ 826 $ 658
Cable channel equity affiliate 29 (52) (34)
Other equity affiliate: (16) (119) 12
Total equity earnings of affiliate@ $ 622 $ 655 $ 636
@ The Company'’s investment in several of its affdmexceeded its equity in the underlying net assetpproximately $1.3 billion and

$2.6 billion as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respelyti which represented the excess cost over timep@ay’s proportionate share of its
investments’ underlying net assets. This excessallasated between finite-lived intangible asseidefinite-lived intangible assets and
goodwill. In fiscal 2014, the finite-lived intandéassets primarily represented tradenames andrigaslists. In fiscal 2013, the finite-
lived intangible assets primarily represented MVéffiliate agreements and relationships, trade naamnédssubscriber lists. The
weighted average useful lives of these finite-livedngible assets as of June 30, 2014 and 2018 ¥3and 18 years, respectively. The
YES Network was an equity affiliate as of June Bl .3 and subsequently became a subsidiary in Fgh2044 upon acquisition of the
majority ownership interest.

In accordance with ASC 350, the Company amortiz&&ligillion and $39 million in fiscal 2014 and 2018spectively, related to
amounts allocated to fin-lived intangible assets. Such amortization is otéld in Equity earnings of affiliate

BSkyB

BSkyB'’s shareholders and board of directors hatleaized a share repurchase program. Since BSkyBiket purchases of shares is
subject to shareholder authorization, favorableketaconditions and availability in the market, thenber of shares repurchased may vary
period to period. The current authorization is effee until the 2014 annual general meeting of BSkhareholders. However, BSkyB'’s share
repurchase program was suspended in July 2014C@hgany entered into an agreement with BSkyB undhéch, following any market
purchases of shares by BSkyB, the Company willtediSkyB sufficient shares to maintain its appnoaie 39% interest subsequent to those
market purchases, for a price equal to the pride IpaBSkyB in respect of the relevant market pasgs. BSkyB began repurchasing shares ¢
part of this share repurchase program during fiR0&R. As a result, the Company received cash derations of approximately $170 million,
$385 million and $335 million for the fiscal yeamsded June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectidélg. Company recognized gains of $134
million, $306 million and $270 million during thés€al years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 20X atsely, which were included in Equity
earnings of affiliates in the Company’s Consolidaftatements of Operations.

In July 2014, the Company participated in BSkyBjsliey offering by purchasing approximately $900Iroil of additional shares in
BSkyB and maintained the Company’s 39% ownershigrést. (See Note 3 — Acquisitions, Disposals atieéOlransactions)

NDS

In July 2012, the Company sold its 49% investmeriDS Group Limited (“NDS") to Cisco Systems Inor fipproximately $1.9
billion, of which approximately $60 million was s&tide in escrow to satisfy any indemnificationigdions. The Company recorded a gain of
approximately $1.4 billion on this transaction whigas included in Other, net in the Consolidatete3hent of Operations for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2013. During fiscal 2014, uponébelution of the indemnification obligations, treeew was released. The Company
received approximately $30 million of the amourttasgde in escrow and has recorded a charge faethaining amount. The charge was
included in Other, net in the Consolidated Statemé@perations for the fiscal year ended June2Ba4.
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Other

In fiscal 2014, through separate transactionsCihimpany sold its 47% interest in CMC-News Asia htodd Limited, its 50% interest
in STATS LLC and its 50% interest in STAR CJ Netlwtmdia Pvt. Ltd., all equity method investees, &aiotal consideration of approximately
$255 million. The Company recorded a gain on thesesactions which was included in Other, net en@wonsolidated Statement of Operations
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. (See Ridte Additional Financial Information)

In fiscal 2013, the Company sold a portion of itierest in Phoenix, for approximately $90 millioncash, decreasing its ownership
interest to 12% from 18% at June 30, 2012. The Gompecorded a gain of $81 million on this transaxctvhich was included in Other, net in
the Consolidated Statement of Operations for teafiyear ended June 30, 2013. In fiscal 2014Ctmapany sold its remaining 12% interes
Phoenix for approximately $210 million. The Compaagorded a gain, net of expenses, of $199 mibhieithis transaction which was included
in Other, net in the Consolidated Statement of @jpans for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014.

In fiscal 2013, the Company invested approxima$19 million for a minority equity interest in Vidéoldings Inc., a digital media
company, and the Company accounts for this investiatecost.

In fiscal 2012, the Company sold its 17% interadtlathway Cable and Datacom Limited for $71 millamd recorded a gain of $23
million on the sale which was included in Othert inethe Consolidated Statement of Operationstferfiscal year ended June 30, 2012. In
fiscal 2012, the Company also acquired a 17% isteneBona, a film distributer in China, for appmmately $70 million in cash. In July 2014,
the Company sold its entire interest in Bona fgeragimately $70 million in cash.

Impairments of investments

The Company regularly reviews investments for impants based on criteria that include the extemthizh the investment’s carrying
value exceeds its related market value, the duraticthe market decline, the Company’s ability tddhits investment until recovery and the
investment’s financial strength and specific praspeln the fiscal years ended 2014, 2013 and 20&2Company wrote down certain
investments and as a result recorded losses of#i@n, $20 million and $34 million, respectivelyhe write-downs are reflected in Other, ne
in the Consolidated Statements of Operations ard ve&en as a result of either the deterioratingricial position of the investee or due to a
permanent impairment resulting from sustained wssel limited prospects for recovery. (See Note 28lditional Financial Information)

100




TWENTY -FIRST CENTURY FOX, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summarized financial information

Summarized financial information for a significatjuity affiliate, determined in accordance with Rlagjon S-X of the Securities and
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, accounted faerthd equity method was as follows:

For the years ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
(in millions)
Revenue: $ 12402 $ 11342 $  10,75¢
Operating incom: 1,887 2,024 1,96¢
Income from continuing operatiol 1,332 i,58E 1,43t
Net income 1,332 1,53¢ 1,43¢

As of June 30,

2014 2013
(in millions)
Current assel $ 4401 $ 3,90¢
Non-current assel 7,67¢ 6,67¢
Current liabilities 4,30¢ 3,524
Non-current liabilities 4,88¢ 4,58¢

NOTE 8. FAIR VALUE

In accordance with ASC 820, “Fair Value Measurenidair value measurements are required to be as&d using a three-tiered fair
value hierarchy which distinguishes market partioipassumptions into the following categoriesinfjuts that are quoted prices in active
markets (“Level 1); (ii) inputs other than quotpdces included within Level 1 that are observalmeluding quoted prices for similar assets ol
liabilities (“Level 2"); and (iii) inputs that redre the entity to use its own assumptions abouketgrarticipant assumptions (“Level 37).

The tables below present information about findressaets and liabilities carried at fair value areeurring basis:

Fair value measurements
As of June 30, 201«
Quoted prices in

active markets for Significant other Significant
identical instruments observable inputs unobservable inputs
Description Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(in millions)

Assets

Available-for-sale securitie@ $ 124 3% 124 % - $ -
Liabilities

Derivatives®) (10) - (10) -

Contingent consideratic(c) (134 - - (134
Redeemable noncontrolling intere() (541) - - (541)
Total $ (561) $ 124 $ (100 $ (675)
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As of June 30, 201
Quoted prices in

active markets for Significant other Significant
identical instruments observable inputs unobservable inputs
Description Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(in millions)
Assets
Available-for-sale securitie@ $ 266 $ 26 $ - $ -
Derivatives(®) 3 - 3 -
Liabilities
Contingent consideratic(c) (84) - - (84)
Redeemable noncontrolling intere() (51€) - - (519)
Total $ (332) $ 26t $ 3 3 (6039)
@ See Note - Investments
® Primarily represents derivatives associated withGompany’s foreign currency forward contracts iaterest rate swap contracts
designated as cash flow hedc
© Represents contingent consideration related to Ei SportsTime Ohio. (See Note 3 — AcquisitionspbDsals and Other
Transactions
@ The Company accounts for redeemable noncontralitegests in accordance with ASC 480-10-3%9because their exercise is outs

the control of the Company. The redeemable nonobiny interests recorded at fair value are puaagements held by the
noncontrolling interests in certain of the Companyiajority-owned sports networks.

The Company utilizes the market, income or cost@gghes or a combination of these valuation teclesdor its Level 3 fair value
measures. Inputs to such measures could includenaide market data obtained from independent sswach as broker quotes and
recent market transactions for similar assets. thhé Company’s policy to maximize the use of obgle inputs in the measurement of
its Level 3 fair value measurements. To the extéservable inputs are not available, the Compaitigeg unobservable inputs based
upon the assumptions market participants wouldrusaluing the asset. Examples of utilized unobable inputs are future cash flows,
long term growth rates and applicable discountstate

Significant unobservable inputs used in the falueaneasurement of the Company’s redeemable namdiony interests are operating
income before depreciation and amortization (“OIBDgrowth rates (3%-6% range) and discount ratés)(&Bignificant increases
(decreases) in growth rates and multiples, assunonghange in discount rates, would result in ai@antly higher (lower) fair value
measurement. Significant decreases (increase&douht rates, assuming no changes in growth eateésnultiples, would result in a
significantly higher (lower) fair value measurement

The fair value of the redeemable noncontrollingiiests in two of the sports networks were primatéyermined by (i) applying a
multiples-based formula that is intended to apprate fair value for one of the sports networks @indising a discounted OIBDA
valuation model, assuming an 8% discount rateffiotlger sports network. As of June 30, 2014, oneoritinshareholder’s put right is
currently exercisable and another minority shardéids put right will become exercisable in MarcHLB0The remaining redeemable
noncontrolling interest is currently not exercigsahhd is not materic
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The changes in contingent consideration class#getevel 3 measurements were as follows:

For the years ended June 30,

2014 2013
(in millions)
Beginning of perioc $ (84) $ =
Additions - (83)
Payment: 1 -
Measurement adjustmer (51) (1)
End of perioc $ (134) $ (84)
The changes in redeemable noncontrolling intedassified as Level 3 measurements were as follows:
For the years ended June 30,
2014 2013
(in millions)
Beginning of perioc $ (519 $ (641)
Net income attributable to redeemable noncontrgliimierest: (95) (93)
Distributions and othe(® 73 215
End of perioc $ (541) $ (519)
@ The redeemable noncontrolling interest in Asian@in@unications was redeemed in fiscal 2013 andrasudt, $186 million was

reclassified out of Redeemable noncontrolling iesés.

Financial Instruments

The carrying value of the Company’s financial instents, including cash and cash equivalents, rabksg, payables and cost method
investments, approximates fair value.

The aggregate fair value of the Company’s borrowiagJune 30, 2014 was $22,692 million comparel avitarrying value of $19,058
million and, at June 30, 2013, was $18,756 miltompared with a carrying value of $16,458 milliGair value is generally determined by
reference to market values resulting from tradin@mational securities exchange or in an overctheyter market (a Level 1 measurement).

Foreign Currency Forward Contrac

The Company uses financial instruments primariliieédge certain exposures to foreign currency exgdasks associated with the ¢
of producing or acquiring films and television praghming. The Company'’s foreign currency forwardtcacts are valued using an income
approach based on the present value of the forméedess the contract rate multiplied by the n@l@amount. The notional amounts of foreigr
currency forward contracts designated as cashHiedges with foreign currency risk outstanding aeJ80, 2014 and 2013 were $393 million
and $578 million, respectively. As of June 30, 2@hd 2013, the fair values of the foreign currefecward contracts designated as cash flow
hedges of $(3) million and $3 million, respectiveljere recorded along with the underlying hedgddrzzs. The notional amounts of foreign
currency forward contracts, not designated as flashhedges, but used as economic hedges withdor@irrency risk outstanding at June 30,
2014 and June 30, 2013 were $305 million and $1#®m respectively. As of June 30, 2014 and 20th@, fair values of the foreign currency
forward contracts used as economic hedges wenmmaiatrial and were recorded along with the undeglyiadged balances. For the fiscal year:
ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the changes inithaliaes of foreign currency forward contractsttage not designated as cash flow hedges
were not material. These changes were recordearnings each period and are presented net withierGn the table below. As of June 30,
2014 and 2013, the fair values of all foreign coeseforward contracts outstanding were $(4) andn#Bon, respectively.
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Interest Rate Swap Contrac

The Company uses financial instruments to heddeioezxposures to interest rate risks associatddagrtain borrowings. The
Company’s interest rate swap contracts are valsgajuan income approach. The notional amountstefést rate swap contracts with interest
rate risk outstanding as of June 30, 2014 and 2&%8 $578 million and nil, respectively. As of JBBG 2014 approximately $310 million of
the total notional amount of interest rate swapremts outstanding was designated as cash flowdseddne fair value of the interest rate swap
contracts as of June 30, 2014 and the changerindhie for the year ended June 30, 2014 was appately $(6) million and was recorded
along with the underlying hedged balance. For degag cash flow hedges and economic hedges, tingesan fair value were recorded in
Accumulated other comprehensive loss and earniegpgectively, and are presented net in the talimbhe

The following table shows the changes in fair valfiderivatives designated as cash flow hedgeotrat derivatives:

For the years ended June 30,

2014 2013
(in millions)

Beginning of perioc $ 3 % 17
Changes in fair value recorded in accumulated atberprehensive loss,

net of settlemen (24) (2)
Reclassified losses (gains) from accumulated atbemprehensive loss to net inco 14 (13)
Other (3) 1
End of perioc $ (10) $ 3

The ineffective changes in fair values of derivasidesignated as cash flow hedges were immat€hialeffective changes in the fair
values of derivative contracts designated as dashifedges are reclassified from Accumulated otleenprehensive loss to Net income when
the underlying hedged item is recognized in easifitpe Company expects to reclassify the cumulatiamges in fair values of the foreign
currency forward contracts, included in Accumuladgiter comprehensive loss, within the next 24 marfdor interest rate swaps, the Comg
expects to reclassify changes in fair values inetlith Accumulated other comprehensive loss to egsniluring the relevant period as interest
payments are made until the expiration of the seaagracts occurs at various dates until fiscal 2@a&h flows from the settlement of these
derivative contracts offset cash flows from theemdng hedged item and are included in operatictiyiies in the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on &onrecurring Basis

The Company’s assets measured at fair value omi@aarring basis include investments, long-livesess, indefinite-lived intangible
assets and goodwill. The Company reviews the gagrgmounts of such assets whenever events or changiecumstances indicate that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable or at lEastially as of June 30 for indefinite-lived intdrlg assets and goodwill. Any resulting
asset impairment would require that the assetdmded at its fair value. The resulting fair valneasurements of the assets are considered t
be Level 3 measurements.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Cash and cash equivalents are maintained with alefiileancial institutions. The Company has depdsitisl with banks that exceed the
amount of insurance provided on such deposits. Gpethese deposits may be redeemed upon denmghdra maintained with financial
institutions of reputable credit and, thereforearbminimal credit risk.

The Company'’s receivables did not represent sicarifi concentrations of credit risk at June 30, 28¥12013 due to the wide variety of
customers, markets and geographic areas to whicBdmpany’s products and services are sold.
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The Company monitors its positions with, and thedlirquality of, the financial institutions whicheacounterparties to its financial
instruments. The Company is exposed to creditifoise event of nonperformance by the counterpattighe agreements. At June 30, 2014,
the Company did not anticipate nonperformance lyyadithe counterparties.

NOTE 9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

As of June 30.

Useful lives 2014 2013
(in millions)
Land $ 142 $ 142
Buildings and leaseholc 3 to 40 year: 1,372 1,307
Machinery and equipme 3to 15 year: 6,571 5,72€
8,08¢ 7,17¢
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortize (5,300 (4,480
2,78¢€ 2,69t
Construction in progres 145 134
Total property, plant and equipment, $ 2,931 $ 2,82¢

Depreciation and amortization related to Properignt and equipment was $741 million, $614 millaord $585 million for the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012, resglgcfinis includes depreciation of -top boxes in the Direct Broadcast Satellite Tedmri
segment of $308 million, $240 million and $221 ioifl for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014, 20182012, respectively.

Total operating lease expense was approximatel$ $@ion for the fiscal year ended June 30, 20td $385 million for the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2013 and 2I

NOTE 10. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The changes in the carrying values of the Compainyesmgible assets and related accumulated ambativavere as follows:

Intangible assets not Amortizable intangible
subject to amortization assets, ne
MVPD affiliate Other Total
agreements intangible intangible
FCC and assets, assets,
licenses Other Total relationships @ net () Total net
(in millions)
Balance, June 30, 20: $ 239% $ 1,028 $ 342: $ 708 $ 933 $ 1,641 $ 5,064
Acquisitions - 191 191 1,464 82 1,54¢ 1,737
Foreign exchang - 7 7 - 63 63 70
Amortization - - - (90) (311) (401) (401)
Adjustments - 240 240 - 1,362 1,362 1,602
Balance, June 30, 20: $ 239 $ 1462 $ 3,861 $ 208z $ 2,12¢ $ 4211 $ 8,072

(@) Net of accumulated amortization of $367 million &&¥7 million as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respagt The average useful life «
the MVPD affiliate agreements and relationshipgesnfrom 10 to 20 year

®) Net of accumulated amortization of $791 million &%51 million as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respagt The average useful life |
other intangible assets ranges from 5 to 20 y

The increase in MVPD affiliate agreements and i@hahips is attributable to the acquisition of thajority interest in the YES Netwc
in February 2014. The increase in other intangalskets, net is attributable to the
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finalization of the allocation of excess purchasegfor Sky Deutschland. (See Note 3 — Acquisgiddisposals and Other Transactions)

Amortization related to amortizable intangible asseas $401 million, $183 million and $126 millior the fiscal years ended June
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Based on the current amount of amortizable intdagibsets, the estimated amortization expenseafdr ef the succeeding five fiscal
years is as follows

For the year ending June 30,

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
(in millions)
Estimated amortization exper® $ 401 % 381 $ 355 % 345  $ 343
@ These amounts may vary as acquisitions and disposalr in the future and as purchase price allmtatre finalized

The changes in the carrying value of goodwill, bgraent, are as follows:

Direct
Broadcast Other,
Cable Network Filmed Satellite Corporate and
Programming Television Entertainment Television Eliminations Total Goodwill
(in millions)

Balance, June 30, 20: $ 7,75 % 1,882 $ 1537 $ 6,05z $ CH 17,25¢
Acquisitions 1,62C - - - - 1,62C
Foreign exchange movemel 19 - 57 281 - 357
Adjustments 159 - - (1,339 - (1,180
Balance, June 30, 20: $ 9551 $ 1,882 $ 1594 $ 4994  $ 31 % 18,052

The carrying amount of goodwill at June 30, 201d 2613 was net of accumulated impairments of $3illiom

The increase in the carrying value of the Cablenddt Programming segment goodwill during fiscal 2as attributable to the
preliminary allocation of the excess purchase prétated to the acquisition of the majority inteériasthe YES Network in February 2014 and
the finalization of the allocation of excess pumssharice related to Fox Sports Asia. The decreatieei carrying value of Direct Broadcast
Satellite Television segment goodwill during fis2all4 was primarily due to the finalization of @iéocation of excess purchase price, for Sky
Deutschland, from goodwill to acquired identifialidéangible assets of approximately $1.7 billiomtjadly offset by deferred tax liabilities of
approximately $0.4 billion. (See Note 3 — Acquits, Disposals and Other Transactions)

Annual Impairment Review
Goodwill

The Company’s goodwill impairment reviews are deieed using a twatep process. The first step of the process istpare the fa
value of a reporting unit with its carrying amountluding goodwill. In performing the first stefhe Company determines the fair value of a
reporting unit by primarily using a discounted célsiv analysis and market-based valuation approaethodologies. Determining fair value
requires the exercise of significant judgmentsluding judgments about appropriate discount rdtegy-term growth rates, relevant
comparable company earnings multiples and the atrendhtiming of expected future cash flows. Thendé®wvs employed in the analyses are
based on the Company’s estimated outlook and vaugoawth rates have been assumed for years beleridrig-term business plan period.
Discount rate assumptions are based on an assdssities risk inherent in the future cash flowdtod respective reporting units. In assessing
the reasonableness of its determined fair valbesCompany evaluates its results against otheevatlicators, such as comparable public
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company trading values. If the fair value of a mtpg unit exceeds its carrying amount, goodwiltleé reporting unit is not impaired and the
second step of the impairment review is not necgsEahe carrying amount of a reporting unit egds its fair value, the second step of the
goodwill impairment review is required to be penfizd to estimate the implied fair value of the réipgrunit’s goodwill. The implied fair valt
of goodwill is determined in the same manner astheunt of goodwill recognized in a business comtiim. That is, the estimated fair value
of the reporting unit is allocated to all of thesets and liabilities of that unit (including anyrecognized intangible assets) as if the reporting
unit had been acquired in a business combinatidrtfamestimated fair value of the reporting uniswe purchase price paid. The implied fair
value of the reporting unit's goodwill is companith the carrying amount of that goodwill. If tharcying amount of the reporting unit’'s
goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that dwdll, an impairment loss is recognized in an antaqual to that excess.

FCC license:

The Company performs impairment reviews consisbing comparison of the estimated fair value of@oenpany’s FCC licenses with
their carrying amount on a station-by-station basisg a discounted cash flow valuation methodjragsg a hypothetical start-up scenario for
a broadcast station in each of the markets the @agnpperates in. The significant assumptions usetha discount rate and terminal growth
rates and operating margins, as well as industty ola future advertising revenues in the marketsre/the Company owns television stations.
These assumptions are based on actual historidarp@nce in each market and estimates of futurtopeance in each market.

Fiscal 2014

During fiscal 2014, the Company determined thatgtbedwill and indefinite-lived intangible assetslided in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2014 were not impaired

Fiscal 2013 and 201

The Company recorded goodwill impairment charge®3& million and $201 million in fiscal 2013 and12) respectively, related to a
business in its Digital Media Group, which was soldiscal 2013.

NOTE 11. BORROWINGS

Weighted
average Outstanding
interest rate Due date as of as of June 30,
Description as of June 30, 201 June 30, 201« 2014 2013
(in millions)
Bank loans $ 1434 $ 293
Public debt
- Predecessor indentur 7.02% 2014- 2096 11,52¢ 11,66
- Senior notes issued under August 2009 inder 5.11% 2020- 2043 5,50C 4,50(
Total public deb 17,02¢ 16,16¢
Other borrowing: June 201¢ 595 -
Total borrowings 19,05¢ 16,45¢
Less: current portio (799) (137)
Long-term borrowings $ 18,25¢ $ 16,321
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Bank loans

In January 2013, Sky Deutschland, a majority owsugasidiary of the Company, entered into a crediéagent, with major financial
institutions, that 21st Century Fox America, Iforfnherly known as News America Incorporated) (“2£C); a wholly-owned subsidiary, and
the Company have both guaranteed. The credit agmegmnovides a €300 million unsecured credit facilith a sub-limit of €75 million
revolving credit facility available for cash drawdos or the issuance of letters of credit and a ritgtdate of February 2018. Sky Deutschland
may request that the maturity date be extendedrferyear. The material terms of the agreementdeclimitations on liens and indebtedness.
Fees under the credit agreement are based on thpay’s long-term senior unsecured non-credit eoddudebt ratings. Given the current
debt ratings of the Company, Sky Deutschland pdgsility fee of 0.125% and interest of EurocurrgiRate plus 1.125%. As of June 30,
2014, €225 million ($308 million) was outstandingder this credit agreement and €73 million waslake for either additional financing or
letters of credit. The proceeds were used to repsting Sky Deutschland debt. In fiscal 2014, Sleutschland amended its credit agreement
to increase the size of its revolving credit fagithy €78.5 million. Sky Deutschland intends towdi@nd utilize funds from the enhancement for
the development of production capabilities. If $kgutschland does not draw and utilize the fundSégytember 30, 2014, this amendment to
the credit agreement will be rescinded. The amemndaied not materially change the terms of the ordicredit facility entered into in January
2013.

In connection with the acquisition of the majoriitiyerest in the YES Network in February 2014, tlmrpany consolidated $1.1 billion,
the aggregate outstanding under a term loan faaititl a secured revolving credit facility, colleely (the “YES Credit Agreement”), with a
sub-limit available for the issuance of letters#dit. The material terms of the YES Credit Agreementudelvarious financial and restricti
covenants. The YES Credit Agreement is collateedlilzy a substantial portion of the real and pelsomgperty assets of the YES Networlt
the election of the YES Network, the YES Credit égment bears interest at (i) one, two, three omgirth LIBOR plus the applicable LIBOR
margin, or (ii) the Base Rate plus a Base Rate imangargins reset quarterly based on the speciéeerage ratio of YES Network. The YES
Network pays a facility fee of 0.50%. Principal pagnts with respect to the term loan are requiredtguy. Additionally, an annual exce
cash flow payment is required as mandatory prepaywiguture amortization obligations, subject &tain leverage ratio conditions. The Y
Credit Agreement also provides for the establisitroéadditional credit facilities provided certagrms and provisions are met. As of June 3C
2014, the outstanding balance on the term loarsandred revolving credit facility was $1.07 billiand $60 million, respectively. The total
amount available under the secured revolving crfaditity is $305 million.

Public debt- Predecessor indentures

These notes are issued under previous indentwwesipplemented, by and among 21CFA, the CompaRwi@nt Guarantor and the
trustees. These notes are direct unsecured obingatf 21CFA and rank pari passu with all othereensed indebtedness of 21CFA.
Redemption may occur, at the option of the holdsrd01% of the principal plus an accrued inteaesbunt in certain circumstances where a
change of control is deemed to have occurred. Thews are subject to certain covenants, whichngnother things, restrict secured
indebtedness to 10% of tangible assets and inicaitaumstances limit new senior indebtedness.

Included in the predecessor indentures as of JOn2M®.3 was A$150 million ($137 million) of 8.6258&nior Notes which were retir
in February 2014. The Company will not issue any debt under the predecessor indentures.

Public debi- Senior notes issued under August 2009 indenture

These notes are issued under the Amended and &kbtdenture dated as of August 25, 2009, as soguited, by and among 21CFA,
the Company, as Parent Guarantor, and The BanlewfYbrk Mellon, as Trustee (the “2009 Indentur@fese notes are direct unsecured
obligations of 21CFA and rank pari passu with #les unsecured indebtedness of 21CFA. Redemptignoerzur, at the option of the holders,
at 101% of the principal plus an accrued intergsdant in certain circumstances where a changemntfalds deemed to have occurred. These
notes are subject to certain covenants, which, gmotimer things, limit the Company’s ability and
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the ability of the Company’s subsidiaries, to ced&ns and engage in a merger, sale or consaiatnsaction. The 2009 Indenture does nof
contain any financial maintenance covenants.

Under the August 2009 indenture, the Company récbat the following issuances:

In September 2013, 21CFA issued $300 million 00%0Senior Notes due 2023 and $700 million of 5.488hior Notes due 2043. T
net proceeds of $987 million were used for genevgborate purposes.

In September 2012, 21CFA issued $1.0 billion 0D%05enior Notes due 2022. The net proceeds of 88i@n were used for general
corporate purposes.

Other borrowings

Other borrowings include the Senior Subordinatetebloconsolidated in connection with the acquisittbthe majority interest of the
YES Network, issued in June 2008 with a principabant of $525 million pursuant to an indenture agrent and note purchase agreement.
These notes are direct unsecured obligations of Bt Network and rank pari passu with all otheramsed indebtedness of the YES Netw
Redemption may occur after a specified date, inlerboin part, at the option of the Company, atghacipal plus any redemption fees,
otherwise the principal amount is due at matufiityese agreements contain various customary afiiwmand negative covenants. On
acquisition of the majority interest in the YES Wetk, the Company recorded a preliminary fair veddgustment to increase the carrying vi
of the Senior Subordinated Notes to the acquisiliate fair value of approximately $605 million yglg an effective interest rate of 5.75%.
The adjustment is being amortized as a reductiontefest expense over the remaining term of tHigation.

Current borrowings

Included in Borrowings within current liabilities @f June 30, 2014, was 5.30% Senior Notes of $8i®dn and principal payments «
the YES Network term loan of $49 million that isedim the next 12 months.

Original Currencies of Borrowings

Borrowings are payable in the following currencies:

As of June 30,

2014 2013
(in millions)
U.S. Dollars $ 18,75C $ 16,02¢
Euros® 308 293
Australian Dollars - 137
Total borrowings $ 19,05¢ $  16,45¢

@ Sky Deutschland credit agreement.

Revolving Credit Agreement

In May 2012, 21CFA entered into a credit agreen(ibrg “Credit Agreement”), among 21CFA as Borrowhe Company as Parent
Guarantor, the lenders named therein, the ingmling banks named therein, JPMorgan Chase BaAk(NPMorgan Chase”) and Citibank,
N.A. as C-Administrative Agents, JPMorgan Chase as DesighaAgent and Bank of America, N.A. as SyndicatioreAg The Credit
Agreement provides a $2 billion unsecured revoharggit facility with a sub-limit of $400 millionof its equivalent in Euros) available for the
issuance of letters of credit and a maturity datéay 2017. Under the Credit Agreement, the Compaay request an increase in the amount
of the credit facility up to a maximum amount of $billion and the Company may request that theunitstdate be extended for up to two
additional one-year periods. Borrowings are isseiablJ.S. Dollars only, while letters of credit assuable in U.S. Dollars or Euros. The
material terms of the agreement include the requere that the Company maintain specific leveragiesand limitations on secured
indebtedness.
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Fees under the Credit Agreement will be based erCttmpany’s long-term senior unsecured non-crediiaeced debt ratings. Given the
current debt ratings, 21CFA pays a facility fe®df25% and an initial drawn cost of LIBOR plus B%2

NOTE 12 . FILM PRODUCTION FINANCING

The Company enters into arrangements with thirtigsato co-produce certain of its theatrical prdouts. These arrangements, which
are referred to as co-financing arrangements,\takeus forms. The parties to these arrangemeaklsde studio and non-studio entities both
domestic and international. In several of theseaments, other parties control certain distributights. The Filmed Entertainment segment
records the amounts received for the sale of ana@ui interest as a reduction of the cost of thne, fas the investor assumes full risk for that
portion of the film asset acquired in these tratisas. The substance of these arrangements ighildhird-party investors own an interest in
the film and, therefore, receive a participatiosdzhon the third-party investor’s contractual iegtiin the profits or losses incurred on the film.
Consistent with the requirements of ASC 926, thienade of the third-party investor’s interest irofits or losses on the film is based on total
estimated ultimate revenues.

NOTE 13. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred Stock and Common Stor

Under the Twenty-First Century Fox Restated Cesti# of Incorporation, the Board of Directors (tBeard”) is authorized to issue
shares of preferred stock or common stock at ang,tvithout stockholder approval, and to deternaithéhe terms of those shares, including
the following:

(i) the voting rights, if any, except that the iaaae of preferred stock or series common stockwitities holders thereof to more tl
one vote per share requires the affirmative vothetholders of a majority of the combined votirayver of the then outstanding shares
of the Company’s capital stock entitled to voteeyatly in the election of directors;

(i) the dividend rate and preferences, if any,chhthat preferred stock or common stock will hasmpared to any other class; and

(iii) the redemption and liquidation rights and ferences, if any, which that preferred stock or own stock will have compared to &
other class.

Any decision by the Board to issue preferred stmckommon stock must, however, be taken in accaelarnth the Board's fiduciary
duty to act in the best interests of the Compasigskholders. The Company is authorized to iss@0DD,000 shares of preferred stock, par
value $0.01 per share. The Board has the autheritigout any further vote or action by the stocktesk, to issue preferred stock in one or r
series and to fix the number of shares, designatiahative rights (including voting rights), pregaces, qualifications and limitations of such
series to the full extent permitted by Delaware.law

The Company has two classes of common stock teawghorized and outstanding, non-voting Class Afon Stock and voting
Class B Common Stock.

As of June 30, 2014, there were approximately 3bitflders of record of shares of Class A Commorksamd 1,400 holders of recc
of Class B Common Stock.

In the event of a liquidation or dissolution of tiempany, or a portion thereof, holders of ClagsoAnmon Stock and Class B
Common Stock shall be entitled to receive all @f tbmaining assets of the Company available fdribligion to its stockholders, ratably in
proportion to the number of shares held by Clagdofmon Stock holders and Class B Common Stock hgldespectively. In the event of
any merger or consolidation with or into anothetitgnthe holders of Class A Common Stock and thielérs of Class B Common Stock shall
be entitled to receive substantially identical glesire consideration.
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Stockholder Rights Agreemel

During fiscal 2013, the Board adopted a stockholidgts agreement. Each right entitled the holdgsurchase from the Company one
one-thousandth of a share of Series A Junior Raatiog Preferred Stock upon the occurrence obaettiggering events. The rights never
became exercisable and expired on May 24, 2014.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive (Loss) Inco
The following table summarizes the components afuheulated other comprehensive (loss) income agvist!

As of June 30.

2014 2013 2012

(in millions)
Foreign currency translation adjustme $ 43C $ 46) $ 871
Unrealized holding gains on securit 67 151 19¢
Benefit plan adjustmen (531) (424) (1,04¢)
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) incomephix $ (34) $ (319 $ 22

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income is reported in the ConsolitiStatements of Comprehensive Income and condistetancome and other gai
and losses, including foreign currency transladdjustments, unrealized holding gains and lossesourities, and benefit plan adjustments,
which affect shareholders’ equity, and under GAARR, excluded from Net income.

The following table summarizes the activity witt@ther comprehensive income (loss):

For the year ended June 30, 201

Tax
(provision)
Before tax benefit Net of tax
(in millions)
Foreign currency translation adjustme
Unrealized gain $ 664 $ (74) $ 590
Amount reclassified on hedging activ@® 14 (6) 8
Other comprehensive incor(®) $ 678 $ 80) $ 598
Gains and losses on securit
Unrealized gain $ 71 % (25) $ 46
Amount reclassified on sale of Phoe(© (200) 70 (130)
Other comprehensive lo $ (129) $ 45 % (84)
Benefit plan adjustmen
Unrealized losse $ (2100 $ 75 3 (135)
Reclassification adjustments realized in net inc(d 45 a7 28
Other comprehensive lo $ (165 $ 58 $ (107)
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Foreign currency translation adjustme
Unrealized losse
Amount reclassified on hedging activ@®
Amount reclassified on the sale of NI©)

Other comprehensive lo(®)(€)
Gains and losses on securit
Unrealized losse
Other comprehensive lo(®)
Benefit plan adjustmen
Unrealized gain
Reclassification adjustments realized in net inc(@

Other comprehensive incor(®)

For the year ended June 30, 201

(provision)
Before tax benefit Net of tax
(in millions)
$ (877) $ 2 $ (875)
(13) 4 9)
10 - 10
$ (880) $ 6 $ (874)
$ (7)) $ 26 $ (45)
$ (71) $ 26 $ (45)
$ 374 % (138) $ 236
103 (36) 67
$ 477 $ (174) $ 303

For the year ended June 30, 201

(provision)
Before tax benefit Net of tax
(in millions)
Foreign currency translation adjustme
Unrealized losse $ (999 $ 83 % (1,082)
Amount reclassified on hedging activ@® (19) 7 (12)
Other comprehensive lo®) $ (1,018 $ (76) $ (1,099
Gains and losses on securit
Unrealized losse $ a7n $ 6 $ (11)
Other comprehensive lo $ an $ 6 $ 1)
Benefit plan adjustmen
Unrealized losse $ (833) $ 293 % (540)
Reclassification adjustments realized in net inc(@ 42 (13) 29
Other comprehensive lo $ (791) $ 280 $ (511)
@ Reclassifications of amounts related to hedginiyi#gtre included in Operating expenses or Sellggneral and administrative

expenses, as appropriate, in the Consolidatednsats of Operations for the fiscal years ended 30n2014, 2013 and 2012. (See

Note 8- Fair Value for additional information regarding lgéty activity)

® Foreign currency translation adjustments includ22#illion, $15 million and $(5) million for thedecal years ended June 30, 2014,
2013 and 2012, respectively, relating to noncohmiglinterests
© Reclassifications of amounts related to the saléhoenix and NDS are included in Other, net inGoasolidated Statements of

Operations for the fiscal years ended June 30, 208142013

@ Reclassifications of amounts related to benefit gldjustments are included in Selling, generaladinistrative expenses in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Ifigears ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012. (SexlNoe- Pension And Other

Postretirement Benefits for additional informati

© Other comprehensive income (loss) in fiscal 2018usles amounts related to the Separation of $(28pm $(3) million and $321
million for foreign currency translation adjustmgntinrealized holding gains on securities and lieplein adjustments, respective
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Stock Repurchase Progral

The Board has authorized a stock repurchase prognader which the Company is currently authorizeddquire Class A Common
Stock. In August 2013, the Board authorized theirepase of $4 billion of Class A Common Stock, adalg commissions, which replaced
remaining authorized amount under the stock re@aselprogram.

The remaining authorized amount under the Compastgk repurchase program at June 30, 2014, exgudimmissions, was
approximately $0.6 billion which was utilized inlifaubsequent to June 30, 2014. In August 2014Cmpany announced that the Board
approved an additional $6 billion authorizatiortte Company’s stock repurchase program for therobse of Class A Common Stock. The
Company intends to complete this stock repurchesgram by August 2015.

The program may be modified, extended, suspenddioontinued at any time.

Below is a summary of the Company’s purchasessafiaiss A Common Stock:

For the years ended June 30,

2014 2013®@ 2012@
(in millions)
Total cost of purchast $ 3,77z $ 2,02¢ $ 4,58¢
Total number of shares purcha: 115 81 258

@ During fiscal 2013 and 2012, the shares repurchased Class A Common Stock of the Company then knasvNews Corporatio

The Company did not purchase any of its Class B i@omStock during the three fiscal years ended 30n2014.

Dividends
For the years ended June 30,
2014 2013 2012
Cash dividend paid per she $ 0.25C $ 0.17C $ 0.18C

Subsequent to June 30, 2014, the Company declatiztland of $0.125 per share on both the ClassoAm@on Stock and the Class B
Common Stock, which is payable on October 15, 20h4.record date for determining dividend entitletsds September 10, 2014.

Temporary Suspension of Voting Rights Affecting N@hS. Stockholders

On April 18, 2012, the Company announced thatspsuded 50% of the voting rights of the Class B @om Stock held by
stockholders who are not U.S. citizens (“Non-U.®c8holders”) in order to maintain compliance witts. law which states that no broadcast
station licensee may be owned by a corporatiorpifenthan 25% of that corporation’s stock was owniedoted by Non-U.S. Stockholders,
their representatives, or by any other corporati@anized under the laws of a foreign country. Tleenpany owns broadcast station licensees
in connection with its ownership and operation o Lielevision stations. As of October 2013, thepsmsion of voting rights of shares of Clas:
B Common Stock held by Non-U.S. Stockholders wa%.3bhis suspension of voting rights will remairpilace for as long as the Company
deems it necessary to maintain compliance withiegple U.S. law, and may be adjusted by the Audin@ittee as it deems appropriate.

Voting Agreement with the Murdoch Family Interests

On April 18, 2012, the Murdoch Family Trust andRupert Murdoch (together the “Murdoch Family Ints) entered into an
agreement with the Company, whereby the Murdochillydmerests agreed to limit their voting rightarthg the voting rights suspension
period. Under this agreement, the Murdoch Famitgrists will not vote or provide voting instructiowith respect to a portion of their shares
of Class B Common Stock to the
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extent that doing so would increase their percentdgoting power from what it was prior to the pession of voting rights. Currently, as a
result of the suspension of voting rights, the aggte percentage vote of the Murdoch Family Intsriesat 39.4% of the outstanding shares of
Class B Common Stock not subject to the suspemdivating rights, and the percentage vote may lpaeséedd as provided in the agreement
with the Company.

Delisting from the Australian Securities Exchang

In March 2014, the Company received approval frtsnstockholders and subsequently the Australian@exs Exchange (the “ASX")
for removal of its full foreign listing from the AS Delisting from the ASX occurred on May 8, 20I#aeffective as of that date, all of
Twenty-First Century Fox’s Class A Common Stock &alss B Common Stock is listed solely on the NASD@&Ilobal Select Market
(“NASDAQ").

NOTE 14. EQUITY BASED COMPENSATION
2013 Long-Term Incentive Plan

In October 2013, the Company adopted the 2013 I@rga Incentive Plan (the “2013 Plan”), under whitjuity based compensation,
including stock options, performance stock uniB3Us"), restricted stock, restricted stock uniBUs”) and other types of awards, may be
granted. The Company’s employees and directorslaible to participate in the 2013 Plan. The Congadion Committee of the Board (the
“Compensation Committee”) determines the recipieptse of award to be granted and amounts of awartle granted under the 2013 Plan.
Stock options awarded under the 2013 Plan willia@tgd at exercise prices which are equal to ceeckthe market price at the date of grant.
The 2013 Plan replaced the 2005 Long-Term IncerRlae (the “2005 Plan”) (collectively the “Plansifyder which no additional stock
options, PSUs, restricted stock or RSUs will benggd. The maximum number of shares of Class A Com&tock that may be issued under
the 2013 Plan is 87.5 million shares plus any tesdidhares remaining under the 2005 Plan. At JOn&@BL4, the remaining number of shares
available for issuance under the 2013 Plan wasoappately 87.4 million. The Company will issue netares of Class A Common Stock u
vesting of stock settled RSUs and PSUs. The Compamgntly has no stock options outstanding.

The fair value of equitypased compensation under the 2013 Plan is caldudatording to the type of award issued. Casheskttivard
are marked-to-market at each reporting period.

Performance Stock Unit:

PSUs are fair valued on the date of grant and esqeknsing a straight-line method as the awardsvet at the end of the three-year
performance period. The Company also estimatesuh#er of shares expected to vest which is basedamagement’s determination of the
probable outcome of the performance condition, iwinemjuires considerable judgment. The Company dscaicumulative adjustment in
periods that the Comparsyestimate of the number of shares expected tachasiges. Additionally, the Company ultimately atuthe expen:
recognized to reflect the actual vested sharesviitig the resolution of the performance conditioftse number of shares that will be issued
upon vesting of PSUs can range from 0% to 200%it@ito 150% for certain executives) of the tamgeard, based on the Company’s three-
year total shareholder retur‘'TSR”) as measured against the three-year TSReoEtimpanies that comprise the Standard and Pda®'snslex
(excluding financial and energy sector companies)@her performance measures. The fair valueeoT®R condition is determined using a
Monte Carlo simulation model.

In fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012, participants ingifem received a grant of PSUs that has a threepsgrésrmance measurement period
beginning in July 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectivEhe awards are subject to the achievement obongore pre-established objective
performance measures determined by the Compensadiommittee. The majority of the awards issued béllsettled in shares of Class
A Common Stock upon vesting and are subject tgp#rcipants’ continued employment with the Compalwyy person who holds PSUs shall
have no ownership interest in the shares of Cla€@#imon Stock to which such PSUs relate until arldas shares of Class A Common St
are delivered to the holder. All shares of Clagsammon Stock reserved for cancelled or forfeiteditgepased compensation awards become
available for future grants. Certain of these awdralve a graded vesting provision and the expesgnition is accelerated.
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The PSUs were awarded under the Company’s Plafischl 2014, 2013 and 2012, a total of approxitlya4ed million, 8.2 million and
9.1 million PSUs were granted, respectively, ofehh@pproximately 3.9 million, 6.3 million and 6.9llion, respectively, will be settled in
shares of Class A Common Stock. The PSUs grantfisciml 2014 include a minor adjustment due toatieial performance level achieved for
PSUs granted in fiscal 2011 that vested duringafi2014. PSUs granted to executive directors ardioeawards granted to employees in
certain foreign locations are settled in cash. Byfiscal 2014, approximately 2.1 million cashdeettPSUs vested. Cash paid for vested cash
settled PSUs was $67 million in the fiscal yearezhdune 30, 2014 before statutory tax withholdibhNgsPSUs vested during fiscal 2013 and
2012.

Restricted Stock Unit

RSU awards are grants that entitle the holder &meshof Class A Common Stock or the value of shafr€ass A Common Stock as-
award vests, subject to the Plans and such ottrastend conditions as the Compensation Committgeasiablish. RSUs issued under the
Plans are fair valued based upon the fair markeevaf Class A Common Stock on the grant date. pengon who holds RSUs shall have no
ownership interest in the shares of Class A Com8tork to which such RSUs relate until and unlesseshof Class A Common Stock are
delivered to the holder. All shares of Class A Camnrstock reserved for cancelled or forfeited egbiged compensation awards become
available for future grants. Certain RSU awardssattled in cash and are subject to terms and tionsliof the Plans and such other terms anc
conditions as the Compensation Committee may asitabl

Certain executives, who are not named executivieerf of the Company, responsible for various kessrunits within the Company
had the opportunity to earn a grant of RSUs undePians in fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012. These an#nd “Performance Awards”) were
conditioned upon the attainment of pre-determingerating profit goals for fiscal 2014, 2013 and 20¥ the executive’s particular business
unit. If the actual fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 atiag profit of the executive’s business unit ampared to its pre-determined target metrics
for the fiscal year was within a certain performagoal range, the executive was entitled to recaigeant of RSUs pursuant to a Performance
Award. To the extent that it was determined thatlibsiness unit’s actual fiscal 2014, 2013 and 20&g&ics fell within the performance goal
range for that fiscal year, the executive recemgrrcentage of his or her annualized base satarging from 0% to 100%, in time-vested
RSUs, generally settled in shares of Class A Com8tonk upon vesting and are subject to the pastidi continued employment with the
Company.

During fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012, approximate8/million, 1.4 million and 6.7 million RSUs wereagted, respectively, which
primarily vest over four years. Outstanding RSUsfatune 30, 2014 are to be settled in sharesafsCA Common Stock, upon vesting, exceg
for a nominal amount of RSUs that will be settliedash. During fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012, appreaséhy 0.6 million, 0.9 million and 1.2
million cash-settled RSUs vested, respectively hGesd for vested cash-settled RSUs was $18 mjl$@2 million and $19 million in fiscal
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, before statutoeyithholdings.

Separatior-Related Adjustments

In connection with the Separation, the Companyredtéto an Employee Matters Agreement with NewspCwhich generally
provides that employees of News Corp no longeli@gate in benefit plans sponsored or maintainetheyCompany. Pursuant to the
Employee Matters Agreement, the Company made oextfjustments to the exercise price and numbdreo€ompany’s share-based
compensation awards, using the closing price ofatimpany’s Class A Common Stock on the final dayrading prior to the effective date of
the Separation and the volumetric weighted-avepaiges for the first day of trading for the Compammediately following the Separation,
with the intention of preserving the intrinsic valaf the awards immediately prior to the Separafidrese adjustments are summarized as
follows and are reflected in the activity of theleabelow:

. All equity based awards that had a vesting, payraeekpiration date, as applicable, on or priobezember 31, 2013 continued
under the Company’s 2005 Plan and have been séitled by reference to, the Company’s Class A Cami8tock, as adjusted
to reflect the Separatio
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. All other equity based awards that have a vespagment or expiration date, as applicable, afterebeber 31, 2013 were
converted to awards over equity of the -Separation employer, as adjusted to reflect the@épn.

. All equity based awards were adjusted in termsxef@se price and number of shares to preservimttiasic value of the awar:
immediately prior to the Separatic

The Separatiomelated adjustments did not have a material impadatither compensation expense or the potentidliyivk securities t
be considered in the calculation of diluted earsipgr share of common stock.

The following table summarizes the activity relatedhe Company’s RSUs and target PSUs to be deéttlstock (RSUs and PSUs in
thousands):

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2012
Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average
Number grant- Number grant- Number grant-
of date fair of date fair of date fair
shares value shares value shares value
RSUs and PSUs
Unvested units at beginning of the y: 17,79¢  $ 16.1¢ 18,197 $ 14.51 13,377 % 13.04
Grantec 4,677 35.3: 7,68C 24.21 13,38¢ 15.12
Vested®) (5,680 15.57 (6,20€) 14.9C (7,859 13.0¢
Cancellec (609) 18.8¢ (1,077) 15.5¢ (710) 14.44
Separation of News Col - - (2,58€) 20.34 - -
Shares granted in conversion, as a result
of the Separatio - - 1,782 16.1¢ - -
Unvested units at the end of the y®) 16,18: $ 22.22 17,79¢  $ 16.1¢ 18,197 $ 14.51

@ The fair value and intrinsic value of the Compari®SUs that vested during fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2042$160 million, $147 million
and $132 million, respectively. The fair value anttinsic value of the Company’s PSUs that vestedng fiscal 2014 was $21 million
and nil for fiscal 2013 and 2012. Included in themer of shares vested in fiscal 2014 was apprdrima million shares issued to
News Corp employee

(0) The intrinsic value of unvested RSUs and target #&June 30, 2014 was approximately $570 mill

2004 Stock Option Plan and 2004 Replacement Stockp@on Plan

As a result of the Company’s reorganization in Noker 2004, all the underlying preferred limitedimgtordinary shares for the
Company’s issued stock options were cancelled iarekchange, the option holders received stoclooptfor shares of Class A Common
Stock on a one-for-two basis with no change inatiginal terms under the 2004 Stock Option Plan 20@4 Replacement Stock Option Plan
(collectively, the “2004 Plan™)n addition, all other outstanding stock optiongtwchase preferred limited voting ordinary shavese adjuste
to be exercisable into shares of Class A CommookStabject to the one-for-two share exchange rBtimr to the Company’s reorganization
in November 2004, stock options were granted toleyegs with Australian dollar exercise prices.

Under the 2004 Plan, equity grants generally vest a four-year period and expire ten years froendthte of grant. The equity awards
were granted with exercise prices that are equat txceed the market price at the date of grashinsere valued, in Australian dollars. The
2004 Plan automatically terminated in fiscal 20lde Company had no stock options outstanding & 30n2014. The intrinsic value of
options outstanding at June 30, 2013 and 2012 2@srillion and $39 million, respectively.
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The following table summarizes the Company’s eghéged compensation:

For the years ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
(in millions)
Equity-based compensation from continuing operat $ 205 $ 241 $ 198
Cash received from exercise of eq-based compensatic $ 35 $ 181 $ 147
Total intrinsic value of stock options exerci<@) $ 32 $ 73 % 34
@ The total intrinsic value of options exercised tethto discontinued operations for fiscal 2014,28amd 2012 was $9 million, $23

million and $12 million, respectivel

At June 30, 2014, the Company'’s total compensatimt, not yet recognized, related to non-vested $:&id PSUs for all plans
presented was approximately $120 million and iseeigd to be recognized over a weighted averagecbdtween one and two years.

The Company recognized a tax benefit of $89 mill86 million and $35 million for fiscal 2014, 2048d 2012, respectively, on
vested PSUs and RSUs and on the exercise of spticie.

At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the liability for casltied awards was approximately $165 million an83tillion, respectively.

NOTE 15. RELATED PARTIES
Director transactions

In connection with the Separation in fiscal 201® €ompany undertook a series of internal reorgdioiz transactions to facilitate the
transfers of entities and the related assets abdilies. As part of those transactions, the Comyp@deemed 7,600 shares of preferred stock c
Fox Television Holdings, Inc. (the “Preferred Stdclan indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, from Mr.IR. Murdoch, the Company’s Chairman
and CEO. Mr. K.R. Murdoch initially was issued teeferred Stock in connection with the Company’'st facquisition of broadcast television
stations in the U.S., at a time when the Compary deemiciled in Australia. The Preferred Stock wsssied to Mr. K.R. Murdoch, a U.S.
citizen, to enable compliance with federal law &®IC rules regulating foreign ownership of broadtiashsees. The structure was no longer
necessary under federal law or FCC rules. The tetl@mption of approximately $875,000 consisted $760,000 repurchase at par value,
accrued and unpaid dividends of approximately $10®% (based on a $12 per share annual dividend)aftwaint paid was pursuant to the
terms of the Preferred Stock and no premium was @aithe shares.

Freud Communications, which is controlled by Matitfereud, Mr. K.R. Murdoch’s son-in-law, providedtesnal support to certain
press and publicity activities of the Company dgfiiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012. The fees pattidoCompany to Freud Communications
were $142,000, $138,000 and $195,000 in fiscalsyeaded June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Mr. Stanley Shuman, who resigned as Director Em&ioh June 28, 2013, and Mr. Kenneth Siskind, $dtroArthur M. Siskind,
Director Emeritus and Senior Advisor to the Chainmeare Managing Directors of Allen & Company LLCU&. based investment bank, wh
provided investment advisory services to the Comp@ntal fees paid to Allen & Company LLC were B million and nil in fiscal 2014,
2013 and 2012, respectively.
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Other related entities

In the ordinary course of business, the Compangrsiiito transactions with related parties, suchoasty affiliates, to purchase and/or
sell advertising, the sale of programming, admiatste services and supplying digital technology aervices for digital pay television
platforms. The following table sets forth the retenue from related parties included in the Codatdid Statements of Operations:

For the years ended June 30,
2014 2013 2012

(in millions)
Related party revenue, net of expe $ 546 3% 398 % 317

The following table sets forth the amount of acdsurceivable due from and payable to relatedgmautstanding on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets:

As of June 30,

2014 2013
(in millions)
Accounts receivable from related part $ 223 % 254
Accounts payable to related part(@) 165 456
@ Balances as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 include asmenpected to be covered by the Indemnity (See llét— Commitments and

Contingencies). Also included in fiscal 2013 wae filmal cash distribution to News Col

Rotana

The Company has an approximate 19% interest infRdtilding FZ-LLC (“Rotana”), a diversified mediarapany in the Middle East
and North Africa. A significant stockholder of t@@mpany, who owns more than 5% of the Company’s<BCommon Stock, owns a
controlling interest in Rotana. The Company alse &aoption to sell its interest in Rotana in fisesar 2015 at the higher of the price per s
based on a bona-fide sale offer or the originakstiption price plus interest.

In January 2014, the Company terminated its licenarrangement with Rotana Media Services (“RM&3Yubsidiary of Rotana,
whereby RMS had licensed two English-language - tioe@r general entertainment channels from the @amg for distribution in the Middle
East. In connection with the termination, the Conmypagreed to settle all outstanding receivablesdiscount and RMS agreed to provide the
Company with continued satellite transponder cdpagarvices for two years. In addition, the Comphag provided a shareholder loan to the
Rotana venture. None of the amounts between thep@oynand RMS in connection with the terminatiornhaf licensing agreement is material
to the Company either individually or in the aggrey
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NOTE 16. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company has commitments under certain firmrachial arrangements (“firm commitmentsd)make future payments. These f
commitments secure the future rights to varioustasand services to be used in the normal coursperitions. The following table
summarizes the Company’s material firm commitmestsf June 30, 2014:

As of June 30, 201-
Payments due by period

After 5
Total 1 year 2-3 years 4-5 years years
(in millions)
Contracts for capital expenditu $ 131 % 108 $ 23 $ - $ =
Operating leases and service agreem
Land and building: 2,21C 311 517 451 931
Transponder service agreements and ¢ 2,518 465 841 611 596
Other commitment
Borrowings 18,98¢ 799 783 3,027 14,37¢
Sports programming righ 52,80( 6,13¢ 12,051 9,125 25,48¢
Entertainment programming rigt 4,61¢ 2,06¢ 1,852 590 107
Other commitments and contractual obligati 5,733 1,611 2,45¢ 688 975

Total commitments, borrowings and contractual alilisns $ 86,99 $ 11501 $ 1852¢ $ 14,490 $  42,47¢

The Company also has certain contractual arrangsnmenelation to certain investees that would regithe Company to make
payments or provide funding if certain circumstanoecur (“contingent guarantees”). The Company dot¢&xpect that these contingent
guarantees will result in any material amounts ¢@aid by the Company in the foreseeable future.tithing of the amounts presented in the
table below reflect when the maximum contingentrgntees will expire and does not indicate thatGbenpany expects to incur an obligation
to make payments during that time frame.

As of June 30, 2014
Amount of guarantees expiration per period

Contingent guarantees: Total 1 year 2-3 years 4-5 years After 5 years
(in millions)

Sports programming righ $ 559 $ 387 $ 172 $ - $ =

Hulu indemnity 115 - - 115 -

Letters of credit and othi 50 50 - - -

Total contingent guarante $ 724 $ 437 $ 172 $ 115 $ -

Operating leases and service agreements

The transponder service agreements represent apateky $1.9 billion of the total amounts commitizad the balance includes leases
for office facilities, equipment and microwave tsamtters used to carry broadcast signals. Theseseavhich are classified as operating lez
expire at certain dates through fiscal 2050. Inetlih the total amounts committed of $2.2 billiare approximately $315 million for office
facilities that have been sub-leased to News Corp.

Sport programming rights

Under the Company’s contract with the National BaditLeague, remaining future minimum paymentspiargram rights to broadcast
certain football games are payable over the remgitérm of the contract through 2022.

119




TWENTY -FIRST CENTURY FOX, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s contract with the Major League BaétidLB") gives the Company rights to broadcastizén regular season and
post-season games, as well as exclusive rightotrbast MLB's World Series and All-Star Game thglothe 2021 MLB season.

The Company’s contracts with the National Assooratif Stock Car Auto Racing (“NASCAR”) give the Cpamy rights to broadcast
certain races and ancillary content through calepdar 2024.

Under the Compang’contracts with certain collegiate conferenceasaiaing future minimum payments for program rigiotdroadcas
certain sporting events are payable over the rantaterms of the contracts.

Under the Company’s contract with Italy’s Natiohelgue Football, remaining future minimum payméatgrogramming rights to
broadcast National League Football matches arelymygarer the remaining term of the contract throQgh8.

Under the Company’s contract with the Board of €arfor Cricket in India (“BCCI”), remaining futursminimum payments for
program rights to broadcast international and déimescket matches and series are payable overetin@ining term of the contract through
2018. In connection with the agreement with BC8& €ompany was required to obtain a bank guaraaegring its programming rights
obligation.

In addition, the Company has certain other localtspbroadcasting rights including the right todmioast the New York Yankees pre-
season and regular season games through the 20BZ&Hson.

Other commitments and contractual obligations

Primarily includes obligations relating to distrttan agreements, marketing agreements and televiating services.

Hulu indemnity

The Company owns an equity interest in Hulu LLC (i), which is considered a variable interest gniinder ASC 81&0. However
the Company is not the primary beneficiary and keaerounts for its investment under the equity puktin October 2012, Hulu redeemed
Providence Equity Partners’ equity interest for G2dillion. In connection with the transaction, Huhcurred a charge primarily related to
employee equity-based compensation. Accordingly Gbmpany recorded approximately $60 million tdefits share of the charge in the
second quarter of fiscal 2013. The Company hasagtreed $115 million of Hulu’s $338 million fivgear term loan which was used by Hult
part, to finance the transaction. The fair valu¢hef guarantee was calculated using Level 3 ingntswas included in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet in Other liabilities. In July 2018 Company invested an additional $125 million iddHand has committed to invest an
additional $125 million in Hulu to maintain its oenrship percentage of approximately 33%. The Compdlhgontinue to account for its
interest in Hulu as an equity method investment.

Pension and other postretirement bene

In accordance with ASC 715, “Compensation—RetirenBEmefits” (“ASC 715"), the total accrued net béniability for pension and
other postretirement benefit plans recognized aksioé 30, 2014 was $773 million (See Note 17 —iBermnd Other Postretirement Benefits).
This amount is affected by, among other itemsustey funding levels, changes in plan demograpaies assumptions and investment returns
on plan assets. Because of the current overalifiistatus of the Company’s material plans, theugctliability does not represent expected
near-term liquidity needs and, accordingly, thioant is not included in the contractual obligatidaisle.
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Contingencies
Shareholder Litigation
Delaware

Reference is made to the Amalgamated Bank Litigatioe New Orleans Employees’ Retirement Litigatitie Mass. Laborers
Litigation and the Cohen Litigation which were parged stockholder derivative actions consolidatethe Delaware Court of Chancery (the
“Consolidated Action”) and previously describedthg Company in the 2013 Form 10-K. The plaintiffeird Amended Complaint in the
Consolidated Action alleged claims against dirediefendants for breach of fiduciary duty arisingnirthe Company’s purchase of Shine and
from their purported failure to investigate allegads of voicemail interception ahe News of the Worlghe “NoW Matter”) and allegedly
permitting the Company to engage in a cover ugadlto the Now Matter. The Third Amended Complamight a declaration that the
defendants violated their fiduciary duties, damages- and post-judgment interest, fees and costs.

On June 26, 2013, the Court approved the settlemgminciple that the parties reached on April 2613, and entered a final judgment
dismissing the Consolidated Action. Pursuant toi¢hens of that settlement, the parties agreedttigadlirector defendants in the Consolidated
Action would cause to be paid on their behalf thmant of $139 million to the Company, minus $28liaril in attorneys’ fees and expenses
awarded by the Court to the plaintiffs’ counsel. 8dockholder objected to either the settlemenhermtroposed fee award. The settlement
became effective on August 16, 2013, because #mbtlate, the dismissal of the Consolidated Actisnvell as the dismissals of each of the
Shields Litigation, the Iron Workers Litigation atfte Stricklin Litigation (each as described in #4.3 Form 10-K under the heading
“Shareholder Litigation—Southern District of New &) were no longer subject to appeal. The abovewmwas paid from an escrow
account created for the benefit of the directoeddénts pursuant to an agreement reached betwedeféndants and their directors’ and
officers’ liability insurers for the payment of inance proceeds, subject to a claims release,@uddingly the Company recorded the net
settlement of $111 million in Other, net in the Golidated Statement of Operations for the fiscarynded June 30, 2014. In addition to the
payment to the Company, the settlement contemptlazeéshe Company will build on corporate goverreaand compliance enhancements
which the Company has implemented. These shalliremaffect at least through December 31, 2016, wifl be applicable to both the
Company and News Corp.

Southern District of New York

On July 19, 2011, a purported class action laweaptioned Wilder v. News Corp., et al. (“Wilderig#tion”), was filed on behalf of all
purchasers of the Company’s common stock betweexhvi 2011 and July 11, 2011, in the United StBistrict Court for the Southern
District of New York. The plaintiff brought claimender Section 10(b) and Section 20(a) of the StesExchange Act, alleging that false and
misleading statements were issued regarding the Nialiter. The suit names as defendants the Comgpaumpert Murdoch, James Murdoch
and Rebekah Brooks, and seeks compensatory damageission for damages sustained, and costs. @n5]W2012, the court issued an order
appointing the Avon Pension Fund (“Avon”) as ledaintiff and Robbins Geller Rudman & Dowd as leadiiesel. Thereafter, on July 3, 2012,
the court issued an order providing that an amerdedolidated complaint shall be filed by July 2@12. Avon filed an amended consolidatec
complaint on July 31, 2012, which among other thjreglded as defendants NI Group Limited (now knas/ilews Corp UK & Ireland
Limited) and Les Hinton, and expanded the clas®gdo include February 15, 2011 to July 18, 200He defendants filed motions to dismiss
the litigation, which were granted by the courtMarch 31, 2014. Plaintiffs were allowed to ameneirticomplaint, and on April 30, 2014,
plaintiffs filed a second amended consolidated damp which generally repeats the allegationshef@mended consolidated complaint and
also expands the class period to July 8, 20091y018) 2011. The Company’s management believesltims in the Wilder Litigation are
entirely without merit, and intends to vigorouskfend those claims.

U.K. Newspaper Matters and Related Investigatiomsld_itigation

U.S. regulators and governmental authorities comtito conduct investigations initiated in 2011 witspect to the U.K. Newspaper
Matters. The Company is cooperating with thesestigations. It is not possible at this time to mstie the liability, if any, of the Company
relating to these investigations.
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In connection with the Separation, the Companydeds Corp agreed in the Separation and Distributigreement that the Company
will indemnify News Corp, on an after-tax basis, fayments made after the Separation arising oditvidfclaims and investigations relating to
the U.K. Newspaper Matters, as well as legal anfegsional fees and expenses paid in connectidntidt related criminal matters, other than
fees, expenses and costs relating to employeeswehoot (i) directors, officers or certain desigua¢mployees or (ii) with respect to civil
matters, co-defendants with News Corp (the “IndéytiniAs of June 30, 2013, the Company recognizegiraximately $150 million as its
obligation under the Indemnity, of which approxielgt$40 million related to the amounts accrued leyvisl Corp as of the date of the
Separation and approximately $110 million for thi falue of expected future payments to be madiewuthne Indemnity. Pursuant to ASC 4
the amount provided for future payments is beingrized in a systematic pattern that reflects tease from the underlying risks and is
included in Income (loss) from discontinued op@madi, net of tax, in the Consolidated Statemen@parations. As of June 30, 2014, the
Company has recognized approximately $80 milliofisasbligation under the Indemnity, of which apgroately $65 million relates to
amounts payable to News Corp and approximatelyn§illion for the remaining unamortized fair valuee{pected future payments to be mad
under the Indemnity. Pursuant to the Indemnity,Gloenpany made payments of $79 million to News Ghnpng fiscal 2014. If additional
information becomes available and as payments adenthe Company will update the liability provisior the Indemnity. Any changes to
liability provision for the Indemnity in the futuneill impact the results of operations for thatipdr The liability provision for the Indemnity
was estimated by probability weighting expectednpants to be made to News Corp under such Agreeamehdiscounting probability-
weighted expected payments to the valuation dategwa discount rate based on the Company’s ca uif

It is possible that these proceedings and any advesolution thereof, including any fines or othenalties associated with any plea,
judgment or similar result could damage the Com’s reputation, impair its ability to conduct itssiness and adversely affect its results of
operations and financial condition.

Other

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in the notdst@onsolidated Financial Statements, the Compapgirty to several other purchase
and sale arrangements which become exercisabldalmv@ext ten years by the Company or the courdgspo the agreement. None of these
arrangements that become or are exercisable inetkitwelve months are material. Equity purchasgrgements that are exercisable by the
counter-party to the agreement, and that are authiel sole control of the Company, are accountethfaccordance with ASC 480-10-S99-3A.
Accordingly, the fair values of such equity purahasrangements are classified in Redeemable nandory interests.

The Company’s operations are subject to tax inouardomestic and international jurisdictions and asatter of course, the Company
is regularly audited by federal, state and forg¢anauthorities. The Company believes it has apatgly accrued for the expected outcome of
all pending tax matters and does not currentlycgrgte that the ultimate resolution of pendingreatters will have a material adverse effect ol
its consolidated financial condition, future resuf operations or liquidity.

The Company establishes an accrued liability fgalelaims when the Company determines that ai$dssth probable and the amount
of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Oncelis$iad, accruals are adjusted from time to timeg@wopriate, in light of additional
information. The amount of any loss ultimately irmed in relation to matters for which an accrua baen established may be higher or lower
than the amounts accrued for such matters. Any éegenses, fines, penalties, judgments or settitswehich might be incurred by the
Company in connection with the various proceedomsd affect the Company’s results of operatiors famancial condition. For the
contingencies disclosed above for which there Isat a reasonable possibility that a loss mapdered, other than the accrual provided, the
Company was unable to estimate the amount of losange of loss.
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NOTE 17. PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Company participates in and/or sponsors vapeusion, savings and postretirement benefit plEins.major pension plans and
postretirement benefit plans are closed to newigigaints (with the exception of groups covered blective bargaining agreements). In
connection with the Separation, the Company entietecan Employee Matters Agreement with News Gehich provides that employees of
News Corp no longer participate in benefit plansngored or maintained by the Company as of theragpa date. Upon separation, 1
Company’s plans transferred assets and obligatmhews Corp resulting in a net decrease in speaspension and postretirement plan
obligations of $558 million. Additionally, as a wdsof the Separation, deferred items of approxetya$500 million were transferred to News
Corp.

The Company has a legally enforceable obligatiorotatribute to some plans and is not required tdrdmute to others. The plans in 1
U.S. include both defined benefit pension plansemgloyee non-contributory and employee contribusmrcumulation plans covering all
eligible employees. The Company makes contributioraecordance with applicable laws or contraangeimn each jurisdiction in which the
Company operates. The Company’s benefit obligaiaalculated using several assumptions which trag&ny reviews on a regular basis.

The funded status of the plans can change fromtgegzar, but the assets of the funded plans hage bufficient to pay all benefits t
came due in each of fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012.

The Company uses a June 30 measurement date fanallon and postretirement benefit plans. Thewotig table sets forth the
change in the projected benefit obligation, chaingbe fair value of plan assets and funded stituthe Company’s benefit plans:
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Pension benefits Postretirement benefits
As of June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(in millions)
Projected benefit obligation, beginning of the y $ 2,09t $ 3,85t % 14€ $ 377
Service cos 73 10t 4
Interest cos 10€ 101 6 6
Benefits paic (53 (571) (8) @)
Settlement(@) (39) (66) - -
Actuarial loss (gain(®) 28¢ (279 5 (3)
Foreign exchange rate chany 16 () - -
Other 7 (39 - -
Separation of News Corp pla - (1,539 - (237)
Projected benefit obligation, end of the y 2,49¢ 2,09t 152 14¢€
Change in the fair value of plan assets for the
Compan’s benefit plans
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of the 1,657 2,77z - -
Actual return on plan asse 197 11€ - -
Employer contribution 10C 9t 8 7
Benefits paic (53 (52) (8 @)
Settlement«(®) (39) (66) - -
Foreign exchange rate chany 12 (©)] - -
Amendments, transfers and ot - 1 - -
Separation of News Corp pla - (1,187 - -
Payable to News Corp pla - (20 - -
Fair value of plan assets, end of the y 1,87¢ 1,657 - -
Funded statu(©) $ (620) $ (43¢) $ (153 $ (146€)
@ Amounts related to payments made to former empbireéull settlement of their deferred pension bise
® Actuarial losses (gains) primarily related to chesin the discount rate and the strengtheningeofitbrtality tables utilized in
measuring plan obligations at June 30, 2014 an@,2@&pectively
© The Company has established an irrevocable grémistr(the “Trust”), administered by an independemstee, with the intention of

making cash contributions to the Trust to fundaierfuture pension benefit obligations of the Compalhe assets in the Trust are
unsecured funds of the Company and can be usedisfyshe Company’s obligations in the event afikraiptcy or insolvency. The fair
value of the assets in the Trust at June 30, 2084613 was approximately $210 million and $20diam| respectively

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance tShamsist of:

Pension benefits Postretirement benefits
As of June 30.
2014 2013 2014 2013
(in millions)
Pension/postretirement ass $ 34 $ - $ - $ =
Accrued pension/postretirement liabiliti (654) (438) (153) (14€)
Net amount recognize $ (620) $ (43¢) $ (15%) $ (14€)
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Amounts recognized in Accumulated other comprelvensiss, before tax, consist of:

Pension benefits Postretirement benefits
As of June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(in millions)
Actuarial losse! $ 794 % 625 $ 45 3 42
Prior service cos 7 9 - -
Net amounts recognize $ 801 $ 634 $ 45 $ 42

Amounts in Accumulated other comprehensive losErbdax, expected to be recognized as a compaferdt periodic pension cost
fiscal 2015:

Pension Postretirement
benefits benefits
As of June 30.
2014 2014
(in millions)
Actuarial losse! $ 3¢ 3 3
Prior service cos 1
Net amounts recognize $ 37 $ 3

Accumulated pension benefit obligations at June28@4 and 2013 were $2,191 million and $1,843 anillirespectively. Below is
information about funded and unfunded pension plans

Funded plans Unfunded plans
As of June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(in millions)
Projected benefit obligatic $ 2,16t $ 1,807 $ 32¢ % 28¢
Accumulated benefit obligatic 1,87: 1,56: 31¢ 28C
Fair value of plan asse 1,874 1,657 - @ -
@ The Company has established a Trust to fund cefuuine pension benefit obligations of the Compdrtye assets in the Trust are

unsecured funds of the Company and can be usedisfyshe Company’s obligations in the event afikraiptcy or insolvency. The fair
value of the assets in the Trust at June 30, 2Gistapproximately $210 milliol

Below is information about pension plans in whikk ficcumulated benefit obligation exceeds fairevalithe plan assets.

Funded plans Unfunded plans
As of June 30.
2014 2013 2014 2013
(in millions)
Projected benefit obligatic $ 1,31¢ $ 411 $ 32¢ % 28¢
Accumulated benefit obligatic 1,02t 38¢€ 31¢ 28C
Fair value of plan asse 99z 37C - @ -
@ The Company has established a Trust to fund cefuuine pension benefit obligations of the Compdrtye assets in the Trust are

unsecured funds of the Company and can be usedisfyshe Company’s obligations in the event afikraiptcy or insolvency. The fair
value of the assets in the Trust at June 30, 2Gistapproximately $210 milliol
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The components of net periodic benefits costs ftontinuing operations were as follows:

Pension benefits Postretirement benefits

For the years ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
(in millions)
Service cost benefits earned during the pe $ 73 % 105 $ 78 3 4 % 4 % 3
Interest costs on projected benefit obligati 106 101 103 6 6 6
Expected return on plan ass (113) (110 (103) - - -
Amortization of deferred losst 41 79 32 3 3 -
Other 1 2 6 - - (2)
Net periodic benefits costs from continuing openas $ 108 $ 177 $ 116 $ 13 8 13 8 7
Pension benefits Postretirement benefits

For the years ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012

Additional information related to continuing operations:
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine bdite

obligations
Discount rate 4.5 % 52% 4.3 % 4.3 % 4.8 % 3.8%
Rate of increase in future compensal 4.6 % 4.4 % 6.2 % N/A N/A N/A
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine ngtriodic

benefit cost
Discount rate 52% 4.3 % 57% 4.8 % 3.8% 53%
Expected return on plan ass 7.0 % 7.0 % 7.0 % N/A N/A N/A
Rate of increase in future compensal 4.4 % 6.2 % 6.1 % N/A N/A N/A

N/A — not applicable

The following assumed health care cost trend @tdsine 30 were also used in accounting for pasme¢nt benefits:

Postretirement benefits

Fiscal 2014 Fiscal 2013
Health care cost trend re 6.4 % 6.8 %
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed tiinggthe ultimate trend rat 45 % 5.0%
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend 202¢ 201¢

Assumed health care cost trend rates could haigndisant effect on the amounts reported for tlestpetirement health care plan. The
effect of a one percentage point increase and ereeptage point decrease in the assumed healtlcastreend rate would have the following
effects on the results for fiscal 2014:

Service and Benefit
interest costs obligation
(in millions)
One percentage point incree N/A $ 5
One percentage point decre: N/A  $ 4)

N/A — not applicable
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The following table sets forth the estimated bemeyments and estimated settlements for the nexfifcal years and in aggregate for
the five fiscal years thereafter. These paymer®atimated based on the same assumptions useshtura the Company’s benefit obligation
at the end of the fiscal year and include benefit$butable to estimated future employee service:

Expected benefit payment:

Pension Postretirement
benefits benefits
(in millions)
Fiscal year:

2015 $ 101 $ 7
2016 100 7
2017 107 8
2018 111 9
2019 115 9
202(-2024 682 49

The above table shows expected benefits paymentisefgostretirement benefits net of U.S. Medicanasidy receipts which are
anticipated to be less than $1 million per year.

Plan Assets

The Company applies the provisions of ASC 715, Whexjuired disclosures include: (i) investmentgie and strategies; (ii) the me
categories of plan assets; (iii) the inputs andatbn techniques used to measure plan assetshéeffect of fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs on changes in pkaets for the period; and (v) significant conadidns of risk within plan assets.
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The table below presents the Company’s plan abgdtssel within the fair value hierarchy, as desed in Note 8 — Fair Value, as of
June 30, 2014 and 2013:

As of June 30, 2014 As of June 30, 2013
Fair value measurements at reporting Fair value measurements at reporting
date using date using
Description Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in millions)
Assets
Pooled funds@
Money market fund $ 117 $ - 8 117 $ - $ 22 $ - % 22 3 =
Domestic equity fund 17z 17z - - 14€ 14€ - -
International equity fund 30¢ 25t 54 - 264 214 50 -
Domestic fixed income func 164 164 - - 27¢ 27¢ - -
International fixed income func 161 1 16C - 32 - 32 -
Balanced fund 334 17z 161 - 297 15t 14z -
Common stock®)
U.S. common stock 36C 36C - - 30C 30C - -
Government and agency obligatic(©
Domestic government obligatio 24 - 24 - 35 - 35 -
Domestic agency obligatior 33 - 33 - 67 - 67 -
International government obligatio - - - - 66 - 66 -
Corporate obligation(© 84 - 84 - 75 - 75 -
Partnership interes(d) 37 - 37 - 38 - 38 -
Other 79 (12) 89 1 37 (12 48 1
Total $ 187« $ 111 $ 75¢ $ 1 $ 165: $ 1081 $ 57¢  $ 1
@ Open-ended pooled funds that are registered and#siable to the general public are valued at thily ¢ghublished net asset value
(“NAV™). Other pooled funds are valued at the NAV providedhe fund issuel
(0) Common stocks that are publicly traded are valueleaclosing price reported on active markets liiclv the individual securities are
traded.
©) The fair value of corporate, government and ag@idigations are valued based on a compilation mh@ry observable market

information or a broker quote in a r-active market
(d) The fair values of partnerships that are not pliptimded are based on the fair value obtained filtegeneral partne

The Company’s investment strategy for its pensiangis to maximize the long-term rate of returrptan assets within an acceptable
level of risk in order to minimize the cost of pidwng pension benefits while maintaining adequatedfng levels. The Comparsypractice is t
conduct a periodic strategic review of its asslecation. The Company'’s current broad strategigdts are to have a pension asset portfolio
comprising of 48% equity securities, 37% fixed immsecurities and 15% in cash and other investmientieveloping the expected long-term
rate of return, the Company considered the perasset portfolio’s past average rate of returnsfatudte return expectations of the various
asset classes. A portion of the other allocatioeserved in short-term cash to provide for exgkbenefits to be paid in the short-term. The
Company’s equity portfolios are managed in suclag as to achieve optimal diversity. The Compani¥ed income portfolio is investment
grade in the aggregate. The Company does not mamgassets internally.

128




TWENTY -FIRST CENTURY FOX, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s benefit plan weighted-average adleetions, by asset category, are as follows:

Pension benefits
As of June 30.

2014 2013
Asset Category:
Equity securitie: 46% 43%
Debt securitie: 29 37
Other, including cas 25 20
Total 100% 100%

Required pension plan contributions for the nesddl year are not expected to be material; howewtual contributions may be
affected by pension asset and liability valuatibarges during the year. The Company will contimuaéke voluntary contributions as
necessary to improve funded status.

Multiemployer Pension and Postretirements Plans

The Company contributes to various multiemploydmgel benefit pension plans under the terms ofectilve-bargaining agreements
that cover certain of its union-represented empeyerimarily at the Filmed Entertainment segmé&he risks of participating in these
multiemployer pension plans are different from rgmployer pension plans such that (i) contrimgimade by the Company to the
multiemployer pension plans may be used to probiteefits to employees of other participating emetsy (i) if the Company chooses to stop
participating in certain of these multiemployer giem plans, it may be required to pay those plansraount based on the underfunded stat
the plan, which is referred to as a withdrawaliligh and (iii) actions taken by a participatinghgloyer that lead to a deterioration of the
financial health of a multiemployer pension planymesult in the unfunded obligations of the mult@ayer pension plan to be borne by its
remaining participating employers. While no multidoyer pension plan that the Company contributeid todividually significant to the
Company, the Company was listed on four Form 5%80sroviding more than 5% of total contributionsdzhon the current information
available. The financial health of a multiemplopéan is indicated by the zone status, as definetthéyension Protection Act of 2006, which
represents the funded status of the plan as eettify the plan’s actuary. Plans in the red zondeagethan 65% funded, the yellow zone are
between 65% and 80% funded, and green zone azasitd0% funded. The most recent available funtidssof the four plans in which the
Company was listed as providing more than 5% @l tmbntributions are all green. Total contributionade by the Company to multiemployer
pension plans were $70 million for the fiscal yeaded June 30, 2014 and $66 million for the figears ended June 30, 2013 and 2012.

The Company also contributes to various other mmlloyer benefit plans that provide health and avelbenefits to active and retired
participants, primarily at the Filmed Entertainmsagment. Total contributions made by the Comparthidse other multiemployer benefit
plans for the fiscal years ended June 30, 20143,24id 2012 were $85 million, $80 million and $6iMlion, respectively.

Defined Contribution Plans

The Company has defined contribution plans forbieefit of substantially all employees meetingaiereligibility requirements.
Employer contributions to such plans were $69 onilli$195 million and $198 million for the fiscalgrs ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012
respectively, of which nil, $134 million and $141llion related to discontinued operations, respesii.
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NOTE 18. INCOME TAXES
Income from continuing operations before incomedgpense was attributable to the following jurisidics:

For the years ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
(in millions)
U.S. (including exports $ 537t $ 8,11t $ 3,861
Foreign (18€) 621 602
Income from continuing operations before incomeespenst $ 518¢ $ 8,73t $ 4,46%

Significant components of the Company’s provisioniicome taxes from continuing operations wertolsws:

For the years ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
(in millions)

u.S.

Federa $ 1,17¢ % 1,022 % 867

State & local 7€ 93 16
Foreign 57 93 49
Total current 1,311 1,21( 932
Deferred (39 48(C 162
Provision for income taxes from continuing opernasi $ 127 $ 1,69C $ 1,09¢

The reconciliation of income tax attributable totiouing operations computed at the statutory t@iacome tax expense was:
For the years ended June 3(
2014 2013 2012

U.S. federal income tax ra 35% 35% 35%
Sale of interest in subsidiari - 4) 4
State and local taxe 1 1 1
Effect of foreign operation (5) 2 (6)
Resolution of tax mattel - @ -
Non-deductible goodwill on asset impairme - - 2
Valuation allowance movemer - @) 1
Nontaxable income attributable to noncontrollintenests 2 (1) 2
Domestic production activities deducti 2 (D) 3
Other (2) (1) 1
Effective tax rate for income from continuing op@yas 25% 1% 25%
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The following is a summary of the components ofdeéerred tax accounts:

As of June 30,

2014 2013
(in millions)

Deferred tax asset

Net operating loss carryforwar $ 284 % 1,10¢
Capital loss carryforwarc 1,36( 1,67¢
Foreign tax credit carryforwart 561 474
Accrued liabilities 733 653
Other 29z 231
Total deferred tax asse 3,231 4,14:
Deferred tax liabilities

Basis difference and amortizati (2,899 (2,449
Revenue recognitio (52¢) (50%)
Sports rights contrac (13€) (128)
Total deferred tax liabilitie (3,56)) (3,089
Net deferred tax (liability) asset before valuatalowance (330 1,061
Less: valuation allowanc (2,339 (3,289
Total net deferred tax liabilitie $ (2,66¢) $ (2,227)

At June 30, 2014, there were no net current defdee assets recorded by the Company. At June@(, Zhere were $9 million of net
current deferred tax assets recorded.

The Company had non-current deferred tax asséi§lomillion and $48 million at June 30, 2014 and20espectively. The Company
also had non-current deferred tax liabilities of &8 million and $2,280 million at June 30, 2014 2013, respectively.

At June 30, 2014, the Company had approximately$8ilion attributable to net operating loss caoryfards available to offset future
taxable income. The majority of these net operdtisg carryforwards have an unlimited carryforwpediod, however, in accordance with
ASC 740, a valuation allowance of $216 million vestablished against these operating losses tetéfieir realizable value. In addition, at
June 30, 2013, a net deferred tax asset of $lidrbitith a corresponding valuation allowance ofi$hillion was recorded with respect to net
operating losses, primarily due to the consolidatibSky Deutschland. The valuation allowance vem®rded because Sky Deutschland had &
history of net operating losses and the Companynhadle a determination that it was not more likBbntnot that there would be sufficient
future taxable income to recognize these net opgradss carry forwards. In fiscal 2014, the deddrasset and the valuation allowance have
been adjusted pending the completion of a confiongirocess prescribed under German tax law wisiexpected to commence in the seconc
half of calendar 2014.

At June 30, 2014, the Company had approximatel9 BiBion of gross capital loss carryforwards aghlk to offset future taxable
income. The majority of these losses are subjeatfiee year carryforward period. It is not moreely than not that the Company will generate
capital gain income in the normal course of busin&kerefore, a valuation allowance of $1.3 billlas been established to reflect the expt
realization of these capital loss carryforwardefadune 30, 2014, in accordance with ASC 740.

At June 30, 2014, the Company has approximatelyl $8ilion of foreign tax credit carryovers availatib offset future income tax
expense. Foreign tax credit carryforwards may delwtilized to offset the portion of the Compang&nings in the U.S. which are considered
foreign source. The Company has concluded thatrtare likely than not that these foreign tax drediryforwards will not be realized. In
accordance with ASC 740, a full valuation allowahes been established.
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As discussed in Note 3 — Acquisitions, Disposal$ @ther Transactions, in connection with the pegdiisposition of Sky Italia and
Sky Deutschland pursuant to sale agreements wikyB3he Company expects to use most of its U.Bitadoss carryforwards and foreign
tax credits carryforwards to offset a substantiabant of the gain which is likely to be recognized.

The following table sets forth the change in theegngnized tax benefits, excluding interest anchjiiers:

For the years ended June 3(

2014 2013 2012
(in millions)

Balance, beginning of peric $ 200 $ 173 $ 140
Additions for prior year tax positior 1 60 32
Additions for current year tax positio 13 4 14
Reduction for prior year tax positio (70) (37) (13)
Balance, end of period from continuing operati 144 200 173
Balance, end of period from discontinued operat - - 116
Balance, end of peric $ 144 3 200 $ 289

The Company recognizes interest and penalty chaedged to unrecognized tax benefits as incomexgense, which is consistent
with the recognition in prior reporting periods.eT8@ompany recorded liabilities for accrued intecést29 million and $44 million as of June
30, 2014 and 2013, respectively and the amouritg@rfest income/expense recorded in each of tlee thears ending June 30, 2014 were not
material.

The Company is subject to tax in various domestitiaternational jurisdictions and, as a matteorafinary course, the Company is
regularly audited by Federal, state and foreigraiathiorities. The Company believes it has apprtadyiaaccrued for the expected outcome c
other pending tax matters and does not currentigipate that the ultimate resolution of other pegdax matters will have a material adverse
effect on its consolidated financial condition,urg results of operations or liquidity. The U.Selmal Revenue Service has concluded its
examination of the Company’s returns through fiseslr 2009. Additionally, the Company'’s income taturns for fiscal years 2000 through
2014 are subject to examination in various forgigisdictions. The Company does not expect sigaificchanges to these positions over the
next 12 months. As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, appedely $144 million and $200 million, respectiyelvould affect the Company’s
effective income tax rate, if and when recognizetuture fiscal years.

A foreign subsidiary of News Corp prior to the Segpian filed for refunds to claim certain lossesiforeign jurisdiction. Pursuant to
the tax sharing and indemnification agreementptioeeeds of such claims, net of applicable taxesrned by News Corp, are to be paid to the
Company. During fiscal 2014, these claims werelvesb (See Note 4 — Discontinued Operations)

The Company has not provided for U.S. taxes ongtributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries as treyconsidered to be reinvested
indefinitely. Calculation of the unrecognized deéertax liability for temporary differences relatedthese earnings is not practicable.
Undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiarieshef €Company considered to be indefinitely reinvesimdunted to approximately $851 million
at June 30, 2014.

NOTE 19. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company is a diversified global media and ¢ait@ment company, which manages and reports itaésses in the following five
segments:

. Cable Network Programming, which principally consists of the production diegénsing of programming distributed through
cable television systems, direct broadcast satedfierators and telecommunication companies priyriarthe U.S., Latin
America, Europe and Asi
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. Television, which principally consists of the broadcastingnefwork programming in the U.S. and the operatib®8 full powet
broadcast television stations, including 10 du@mlin the U.S. (of these stations, 18 are afitlavith the FOX Broadcasting
Company “FOX") and 10 are affiliated with Master Distribution Sesy Inc. “MyNetworkTV")).

° Filmed Entertainment , which principally consists of the production axjuisition of live-action and animated motion piess
for distribution and licensing in all formats il ehtertainment media worldwide, and the productiod licensing of television
programming worldwide

. Direct Broadcast Satellite Television which consists of the distribution of programmsegvices via satellite, cable, and
broadband directly to subscribers in Italy, Germangl Austria

. Other, Corporate and Eliminations , which principally consists of corporate overhead eliminations and other busines:

The Company’s operating segments have been dedrmraccordance with the Company’s internal mamesgé structure, which is
organized based on operating activities. The Compaaluates performance based upon several factord)ich the primary financial measi
is Segment OIBDA. Due to the integrated naturénese operating segments, estimates and judgmentsaate in allocating certain assets,
revenues and expenses.

Segment OIBDA is defined as Revenues less Operakipgnses and Selling, general and administratipereses. Segment OIBDA
does not include: Amortization of cable distributiovestments, Depreciation and amortization, Impant charges, Equity earnings of
affiliates, Interest expense, net, Interest incodtler, net, Income tax expense and Net incomibatiible to noncontrolling interests.
Management believes that Segment OIBDA is an apiatepmeasure for evaluating the operating perfogaaf the Company’s business
segments because it is the primary measure ust#teliyompany’s chief operating decision maker tduate the performance of and allocate
resources within the Company’s businesses.

Management believes that information about Totgin$ent OIBDA assists all users of the Company’s Glidated Financial
Statements by allowing them to evaluate chang#eimperating results of the Company’s portfolido$inesses separate from raperatione
factors that affect net income, thus providingghsiinto both operations and the other factors alfffact reported results. Total Segment OIE
provides management, investors and equity anadystsasure to analyze the operating performandeec€ompany’s business and its
enterprise value against historical data and coitepgtdata, although historical results, including Segn@iBDA and Total Segment OIBD/
may not be indicative of future results (as opamperformance is highly contingent on many factmrsluding customer tastes and
preferences).
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Total Segment OIBDA is a non-GAAP measure and shbalconsidered in addition to, not as a substfartenet income, cash flow
and other measures of financial performance regantaccordance with GAAP. In addition, this meastdoes not reflect cash available to fi
requirements and excludes items, such as Depi@tiatid amortization and Impairment charges, whietsmnificant components in assessing

the Company'’s financial performance.

Revenues
Cable Network Programmir
Television
Filmed Entertainmer
Direct Broadcast Satellite Televisir
Other, Corporate and Eliminatio

Total revenue

Segment OIBDA
Cable Network Programmir
Television
Filmed Entertainmer
Direct Broadcast Satellite Televisi
Other, Corporate and Eliminatio

Total Segment OIBD/

Amortization of cable distribution investmel
Depreciation and amortizatic

Impairment charge

Equity earnings of affiliate

Interest expense, n

Interest incom

Other, ne

Income from continuing operations before incomeeapenst
Income tax expens

Income from continuing operatiol
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, natg

Net income
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrollingeneists

Net income attributable to Twer-First Century Fox stockholde
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For the years ended June 3(

2014 2013 2012
(in millions)

12,270 $ 10,88: % 9,32¢
5,29¢ 4,86( 4,80:%
9,67¢ 8,64: 8,36:
6,03( 4,43¢ 3,74C
(1,417 (1,147 (1,179
31,867 $ 27,678 $ 25,05
4,407 $ 4171 $ 3,54¢
882 85¢E 791
1,35¢ 1,30¢ 1,31z
424 397 561
(356) (476) (45€)
6,71% 6,261 5,757
(85) (89) (88)
(1,147) (797) (712
5 (35) (201)
622 65E 63€
(1,129 (1,06 (1,032
2€ 57 77
174 3,74 25
5,18¢ 8,73¢ 4,46:
(1,277) (1,690) (1,099
3,917 7,04¢ 3,36¢
72¢ 2717 (1,997
4,64¢ 7,32: 1,372
(132) (226) (199
451¢ $ 7,097 $ 1,17¢
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Intersegment revenues, generated by the FilmedtEmment segment, of $1,292 million, $979 milliand $1,061 million for the fisc
years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012, resgigctiave been eliminated within the Other, Corfmexnd Eliminations segment. Segm
OIBDA generated by the Filmed Entertainment segroé8(18) million for the fiscal years ended Jufle 3014 and 2013, and $51 million for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, have beeinaliet within the Other, Corporate and Eliminatisegment.

For the years ended June 3(

2014 2013 2012
(in millions)
Depreciation and amortizatio
Cable Network Programmir $ 232 % 197 $ 16€
Television 10t 93 85
Filmed Entertainmer 13: 13z 12¢
Direct Broadcast Satellite Televisi 657 35E 307
Other, Corporate and Eliminatio 15 20 24
Total depreciation and amortizati $ 1,14:  $ 797 $ 711
Capital expenditure:
Cable Network Programmir $ 131 $ 88 $ 83
Television 9C 10¢ 72
Filmed Entertainmer 61 63 50
Direct Broadcast Satellite Televisi 36¢ 344 29¢
Other, Corporate and Eliminatio 28 24 61
Total capital expenditure $ 67¢ $ 622 $ 564

As of June 30.

2014 2013
(in millions)
Total assets
Cable Network Programmir $ 22,42; $ 17,83(
Television 6,44¢ 6,41°F
Filmed Entertainmer 10,41¢ 9,411
Direct Broadcast Satellite Televisii 9,14« 8,63¢
Other, Corporate and Eliminatio 3,50( 4,94¢
Investment: 2,85¢ 3,704
Total asset $ 54,79 $ 50,94«
Goodwill and intangible assets, n
Cable Network Programmir $ 12,85: % 9,44«
Television 4,282 4,28
Filmed Entertainmer 2,441 2,43¢
Direct Broadcast Satellite Televisi 6,451 6,051
Other, Corporate and Eliminatio 96 96
Total goodwill and intangible assets, | $ 26,12 $  22,31¢
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Revenues by Component

For the years ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
(in millions)
Revenues
Affiliate fees $ 8,984 $ 767¢ $ 6,331
Subscriptior 5,467 4,074 3,40¢
Advertising 8,21¢ 7,634 7,55
Content 8,59¢ 7,871 7,26(
Other 602 418 499
Total revenue $ 31,867 $ 27,67 $ 25,051

Geographic Segments

For the years ended June 3(

2014 2013 2012
(in millions)
Revenues
U.S. and Canac® $ 1784z $ 15,937 $  15,20C
Europe® 9,74% 7,717 6,72¢
Other(©) 4,28( 4,021 3,12¢
Total revenue $ 31861 $ 2767 $ 25051
@ Revenues include approximately $17.4 billion, $1&lon and $14.9 billion from customers in theSJin fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively
® Revenues include approximately $2.4 billion, $lilBom and $0.3 billion for fiscal 2014, 2013 an@12, respectively, from customers
in Germany, as well as approximately $3.9 billi$8,6 billion and $3.8 billion from customers inljtén fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively
© Revenues include approximately $2.2 billion, $2ltlam and $1.6 billion from customers in Asia iis¢al 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively

As of June 30,

2014 2013
(in millions)
Long-lived assets@
U.S. and Canac $ 7,951 $ 6,85t
Europe 1,78¢ 1,752
Other 634 700
Total lon¢-lived asset: $ 10,37 $ 9,307
@ Reflects Total assets less Current assets, Goodimidhgible assets, Investments and -current deferred tax asse

There is no material reliance on any single custoRevenues are attributed to countries basedaatitm of customers.
Other primarily consists of Asia and South America.
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NOTE 20. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following tables set forth the computation asiz and diluted earnings per share under ASC“E&0nings per Share”:

For the years ended June 3(

2014 2013 2012
(in millions, except per share amounts

Income from continuing operatiol $ 391 $ 7,046 $ 3,36¢
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrollingeneists (132 (22€) (199
Income from continuing operations attributable teehty-First Century Fox stockholde- basic $ 3,78 % 6,82( $ 3,17¢
Other - (3) (2)
Income from continuing operations attributable teehty-First Century Fox stockholders -

diluted $ 3,788 $ 6,817 $ 3,17¢
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, neagfattributable to Twenty-First Century Fox

stockholders basic and dilute 72¢ 277 (1,999
Net income attributable to Twer-First Century Fox stockholde- basic 4,51¢ 7,091 1,17¢
Other - (3) (2)
Net income attributable to Twer-First Century Fox stockholde- diluted $ 4514 $ 7,09¢ $ 1,17i
Weighted average shar- basic 2,26 2,331 2,49¢
Shares issuable under eq-based compensation pla@ 4 4 5
Weighted average shar- diluted 2,26¢ 2,341 2,50¢
Income from continuing operations attributable teehty-First Century Fox stockholders per

share- basic and dilute $ 167 $ 291 $ 1.2
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, naawfattributable to Twenty-First Century Fox

stockholders per sha- basic and dilute $ 032 % 01z $ (0.80)
Net income attributable to Twer-First Century Fox stockholders per sh- basic and dilute  $ 19¢ $ 3.0 % 0.47
@ Weighted average common shares include the incraingmares that would be issued upon the assunexdiss of stock options and

vesting of RSUs and PSUs if the effect is diluti
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NOTE 21. QUARTERLY DATA (UNAUDITED)

For the three months endec

reported on the NASDAQ under the symt*FOXA” and“FOX”, respectively
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September 30 December 31 March 31, June 30,
(in millions, except per share amounts
Fiscal 201¢
Revenue: $ 7,061 $ 8,16 $ 8,21¢ $ 8,42¢
Income from continuing operations attributable teehtyFirst Century Fo
stockholders 76¢ 982 1,06¢ 96¢€
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, neag (@) 487 22¢ (16) 33
Net income attributable to Twelr-First Century Fox stockholde $ 1,258 $ 1,207 $ 1,05 $ 99¢
Income from continuing operations attributable teefityFirst Century Fo
stockholders per sha- basic and dilute $ 03: % 04: $ 047 $ 0.4
Net income attributable to Twer-First Century Fox stockholders per
share- basic and dilute $ 054 % 05 $ 047 $ 0.4t
Stock price<®
Class A- High $ 3351 $ 35.1¢ $ 35.6: $ 36.21
Class A- Low $ 29.21 % 32.2C $ 30.7¢  $ 31.6¢
Class B- High $ 334C $ 3488 $ 35.0¢ $ 35.3¢
Class B- Low $ 29.3¢ % 3165 $ 30.21 $ 30.71
Fiscal 201%
Revenue: $ 6,00 $ 7,107 $ 7,357 $ 7,21%
Income from continuing operations attributable teehty-First Century Fo
stockholder 2,25: 1,057 2,53: 977
(Loss) income from discontinued operations, near (@ (20) 1,32¢ 321 (1,349
Net income (loss) attributable to Twe-First Century Fox stockholde  $ 223: % 2,381 $ 285 % (37))
Income from continuing operations attributable teefityFirst Century Fo
stockholders per sha- basic and dilute 09t $ 0.4t $ 1.0¢ $ 0.4z
Net income (loss) attributable to Twe-First Century Fox stockholders g
share- basic $ 092 $ 1.0z $ 12: $ (0.1¢)
Net income (loss) attributable to Twe-First Century Fox stockholders g
share - diluted $ 09 % 1.01 $ 12z $ (0.1¢)
Stock price<®
Class A- High $ 22.0¢ $ 2251 $ 27.1C $ 29.5¢
Class A- Low $ 19.0¢ $ 204z $ 2252 $ 26.7¢
Class B- High $ 2227 % 23.0¢ $ 27.4¢  $ 29.7]
Class B- Low $ 19.1¢ % 2081 $ 2317 $ 26.9¢
@ In the quarter ended June 30, 2013, the Compawyded impairment charges and restructuring chasfjapproximately $1.5 billion
related to discontinued operations. (See N¢— Discontinued Operation:
® The stock prices reflect the reported high and étaging sales prices for the Class A Common Stock@ass B Common Stock, as
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NOTE 22. VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Balance as Acquisitions Balance as
of beginning and Foreign of end of
of year Additions disposals Utilization exchange year
(in millions)
Fiscal 201¢
Allowances for returns and doubtful
accounts $ 899 % (8900 $ - $ 9243 3 31 % (815)
Deferred tax valuation allowan: (3,289 (172) 938 218 (39) (2,33¢)
Fiscal 201:
Allowances for returns and doubtful
accounts (800) (1,07¢) 5 994 (20) (899)
Deferred tax valuation allowan: (1,519 (156) (2,0549) 392 48 (3,289
Fiscal 2012
Allowances for returns and doubtful
accounts (872 (1,11¢€) 7 1,13¢ 43 (800)
Deferred tax valuation allowan: (1,410 (162 - 58 - (1,514

NOTE 23. ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Supplemental Cash Flows Informatio

For the years ended June 3(

2014 2013 2012
(in millions)
Supplemental cash flows informatic
Cash paid for income tax(@) $ (1,441 $ (1,267 $ (1,109
Cash paid for intere: (1,140 (2,080 (1,043
Sale of other investmen 1 3 37
Purchase of other investme (65) (155) (218)
Supplemental information on businesses acqu
Fair value of assets acquir 2,832 5,39¢ 795
Cash acquire 3 684 19
Liabilities assumei (1,769 (2,179 (92)
Decrease in deferred considerat 7 - -
Noncontrolling interest (increase) decre (385) (2,619 19
Cash paic (695) (1,290 (469)
Fair value of equity instruments issued to thirctipa - - 273
Issuance of subsidiary common ur - - (273)
Fair value of equity instruments considera $ - 8 - $ =

@ Cash paid for income taxes related to discontirapEtations for the fiscal years ended June 30,,22043 and 2012 was nil, $104

million and $88 million, respectivel
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Other, net
The following table sets forth the components diédt net included in the Consolidated Statemen@pafrations:

For the years ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
(in millions)
Gain on Sky Deutschland transact(® $ - 8 2,066 $ =
(Loss) gain on sale of investment in NI®) (30) 1,44¢€ -
Gain on sale of investment in Phoe(®) 199 81 -
Gain on Fox Sports Asia transacti@ - 174 -
Gain on sale of investment in STA'®) 112 - -
Shareholder litigation settleme(©) 111 - -
Venezuela foreign currency devaluat(®) (104) - -
Loss on sale of Baltimore stati(@ - (92) -
Gain on FSLA transactio@ - - 158
Change in fair value of securiti@® 4) 86 (61)
Investment impairmer® (69) (20) (34)
Restructuring® (52) (13) (41
BSkyB termination fe(b)() - - (63)
Gain on sale of investment in Hathway Ce®) - - 23
Other 11 16 43
Total other, ne $ 174 $ 3,747 $ 25

(@)
(b)
©
(d)

(e)
®

See Note - Acquisitions, Disposals and Other Transactic

See Note - Investments

See Note 1+~ Commitments and Contingencit

The Company’s business activities in Venezuelaatpdan a highly inflationary economy. Recently,rthbave been significant changes
to the foreign currency exchange rate environmeMsanezuela governing the conversion of VenezuBlaivars (“Bolivars”) to U.S.
Dollars. Companies generally have used the offei@hange rate controlled by Venezuela’s Commisfiothe Administration of
Foreign Exchange (“CADIVI"), which is 6.3 Bolivaper U.S. Dollar unless they had transactions oewaenong the entities the
Venezuelan government had specifically authoripaalse the Supplementary Foreign Currency AdministieBystem (“SICAD”)
auction rate. In January 2014, the Venezuelan govent significantly expanded the use of the SICAfe and, more recently, in Mar
2014, the Venezuelan government created a thimdiecy exchange mechanism called SICAD 2 and samyjt be used by all entities
for all transactions. Until March 31, 2014, the Gamy’s Venezuelan Bolivar denominated net monedasgts were translated at the
official exchange rate of 6.3 Bolivars per U.S. lanlDuring the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014, thempany was able to use the SICA
mechanism to convert a portion of its VenezuelalivBodenominated cash to U.S. Dollars. Accordingfhe Company remeasured all
its Venezuelan Bolivar denominated net monetargtasa the SICAD 2 exchange rate resulting in aldetion loss of $104 million for
the year ended June 30, 20

See Note - Restructuring Program

The Company paid a termination fee to BSkyB indl2012 as a result of the Company revoking ishafer for the shares of BSkyB
that it did not already owi
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NOTE 24. SUPPLEMENTAL GUARANTOR INFORMATION

In May 2012, 21CFA entered into the Credit Agreetnamong 21CFA as Borrower, the Company as Pareataator, the lenders
named therein, the initial issuing banks namedeihedPMorgan Chase and Citibank, N.A. as Co-Adstiiafive Agents, JPMorgan Chase as
Designated Agent and Bank of America, N.A. as Sgaiithn Agent. The Credit Agreement provides a $ibhiunsecured revolving credit
facility with a sub-limit of $400 million (or itsquivalent in Euros) available for the issuanceetiers of credit and a maturity date of May
2017. Under the Credit Agreement, the Company raguest an increase in the amount of the crediitiaap to a maximum amount of $2.5
billion and the Company may request that the migtdiate be extended for up to two additional onaryeeriods. Borrowings are issuable in
U.S. Dollars only, while letters of credit are iable in U.S. Dollars or Euros. The material terihthe agreement include the requirement that
the Company maintain specific leverage ratios anddtions on secured indebtedness. Fees und&ridit Agreement will be based on the
Company’s long-term senior unsecured non-crediaeobd debt ratings. Given the current debt rati2§€FA pays a facility fee of 0.125%
and an initial drawn cost of LIBOR plus 1.125%.

The Parent Guarantor presently guarantees thergauntitic indebtedness of 21CFA and the guarantédliand unconditional. The
supplemental condensed consolidating financiakrimédion of the Parent Guarantor should be readmjunction with these Consolidated
Financial Statements.

In accordance with rules and regulations of the SB€ Company uses the equity method to accounthéoresults of all of the non-
guarantor subsidiaries, representing substantdlligf the Company’s consolidated results of operes, excluding certain intercompany
eliminations.

The following condensed consolidating financiatestaents present the results of operations, finaposition and cash flows of

21CFA, the Company and the subsidiaries of the Gmyand the eliminations and reclassifications ssmey to arrive at the information for
the Company on a consolidated basis.
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Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Statement ofg@rations

For the year ended June 30, 2014

(in millions)
Twenty-First
Reclassifications Century Fox
21st Century Twenty-First and
Fox America, Inc. Century Fox Non-Guarantor Eliminations Subsidiaries
Revenue! $ 1 3 - $ 31,86¢ $ - $ 31,86
Expense: (34%) - (26,039 - (26,379
Equity earnings of affiliate 1 - 621 - 622
Interest expense, n (1,567 (519 47 1,00(¢ (1,127
Interest incom 3 3 1,02( (1,000 26
Earnings (losses) from subsidiary entit 1,43t 4,20( - (5,63%) -
Other, ne 59( 82 (49¢) - 174
Income (loss) from continuing operations
before income tax expen 124 3,77: 6,92¢ (5,63 5,18¢
Income tax (expense) bene (30) - (1,699 457 (1,277)
Income (loss) from continuing operatic 94 3,77: 5,22¢ (5,17¢) 3,917
(Loss) income from discontinued
operations, net of ta (13 742 - - 72¢
Net income (loss 81 4,51¢ 5,22¢ (5,17¢) 4,64¢
Less: Net income attributable to
noncontrolling interest - - (132) - (132)
Net income (loss) attributable to Twe-
First Century Fox stockholde $ 81 451 $ 5097 $ (5,178 $ 4,51
Comprehensive income (loss) attributabl
Twenty-First Century Fox stockholde $ 234 4,79¢ $ 527¢ $ (5,519 $ 4,79¢

See notes to supplemental guarantor information
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Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Statement ofg@rations
For the year ended June 30, 2013

(in millions)
Twenty-First
Reclassifications Century Fox
21st Century Twenty-First and and
Fox America, Inc. Century Fox Non-Guarantor Eliminations Subsidiaries
Revenue! $ 1 3 - $ 27,67¢ $ - $ 27,67¢
Expense: (467) - (21,869 - (22,33
Equity earnings of affiliate 1 - 654 - 65E
Interest expense, n (1,55) (497 10¢ 87C (1,069
Interest incom 137 6 921 (1,007%) 57
Earnings (losses) from subsidiary entit 4,65( 4,92: - (9,577) -
Other, ne 26¢ 2,76¢ 71C - 3,74
Income (loss) from continuing operations
before income tax expen 3,04( 7,20¢ 8,20( (9,709 8,73¢
Income tax (expense) bene (58¢) - (1,586 484 (1,690
Income (loss) from continuing operatic 2,452 7,20t 6,61¢ (9,22%) 7,04¢
Income (loss) from discontinued operatio
net of tax 663 (109) 96€ (1,246 277
Net income (loss 3,11¢ 7,097 7,58 (10,477) 7,32:
Less: Net income attributable to
noncontrolling interest - - (22€) - (226)
Net income (loss) attributable to Twe-
First Century Fox stockholde $ 3,11t $ 7,097 $ 7,35¢ $ (10,47) $ 7,097
Comprehensive income (loss) attributabl
Twenty-First Century Fox stockholde $ 2,56€ $ 6,46¢ $ 7,51¢ $ (10,08 $ 6,46¢€

See notes to supplemental guarantor information
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Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Statement ofg@rations
For the year ended June 30, 2012

(in millions)
Twenty-First
Reclassifications Century Fox
21st Century Twenty-First and and
Fox America, Inc. Century Fox Non-Guarantor Eliminations Subsidiaries
Revenue! $ 1 3 - $ 25,05( $ - $ 25,05:
Expense: (386€) - (19,909 - (20,29
Equity (losses) earnings of affiliat (5) - 641 - 63€
Interest expense, n (1,497 (410 (20 88t (1,039
Interest incom 4 7 951 (88E) 77
Earnings (losses) from subsidiary entit 1,307 1,632 - (2,939 -
Other, ne 221 (64) (132) - 25
(Loss) income from continuing operations
before income tax expen (355 1,16 6,592 (2,939 4,46:
Income tax benefit (expens 87 - (1,616 43¢ (1,099
(Loss) income from continuing operatic (26¢) 1,16¢ 4,97¢ (2,509 3,36¢
Income (loss) from discontinued operatio
net of tax 74 14 (2,085 - (1,997
Net (loss) incomi (199 1,17¢ 2,891 (2,504 1,37
Less: Net income attributable to
noncontrolling interest - - (199 - (199
Net (loss) income attributable to Twe-
First Century Fox stockholde $ (194 $ 1,17¢  $ 2,69t $ (2,509 $ 1,17¢
Comprehensive (loss) income attributabl
Twenty-First Century Fox stockholde $ (231 $ (432) $ 1,42¢ $ (1,195 $ (432)

See notes to supplemental guarantor information
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Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet

At June 30, 2014

(in millions)
Twenty-First
Reclassifications Century Fox
21st Century Twenty-First and and
Fox America, Inc. Century Fox Non-Guarantor Eliminations Subsidiaries
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivale $ 47 $ 3,12( $ 1,82 $ - 5,41¢
Receivables, ne 3 - 6,46¢ (D) 6,46¢
Inventories, ne - - 3,092 - 3,09:
Other 10 - 391 - 401
Total current asse 48€ 3,12( 11,77: (D 15,37¢
Non-current asset:
Receivable! 16 - 43¢ - 454
Inventories, ne - - 6,44: - 6,44
Property, plant and equipment, | 14t - 2,78¢ - 2,931
Intangible assets, n - - 8,07 - 8,07
Goodwill - - 18,05: - 18,05:
Other 41C - 197 - 607
Investments
Investments in associated companies
and other investmen 113 19 2,721 - 2,85¢
Intragroup investmeni 66,21: 46,49¢ - (112,71) -
Total investment 66,32¢ 46,51¢ 2,72 (112,71) 2,85¢
TOTAL ASSETS $ 67,38: $ 49,63¢ $ 50,48 $ (112,710 54,79:
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Borrowings $ 75C % - $ 48 $ - 79¢
Other current liabilitie 51€ 85 7,451 (1) 8,051
Total current liabilities 1,26¢ 8% 7,50¢ (D) 8,85¢
Non-current liabilities:
Borrowings 16,27¢ - 1,98( - 18,25¢
Other nor-current liabilities 31€ - 5,92( - 6,23¢
Intercompany 33,27¢ 32,13t (65,417) - -
Redeemable noncontrolling intere - - 541 - 541
Equity 16,24" 17,41¢ 99,94¢ (112,71) 20,90:
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 67,38: $ 49,63t $ 50,48¢ $ (112,710 54,79

See notes to supplemental guarantor information
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ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Receivables, ne
Inventories, ne
Other
Total current asse
Non-current asset:
Receivable!
Inventories, ne

Property, plant and equipment, |

Intangible assets, n
Goodwill
Other

Investments
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Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet

At June 30, 2013

Investments in associated companies

and other investmen
Intragroup investmeni
Total investment
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Borrowings
Other current liabilitie
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities:
Borrowings
Other nor-current liabilities
Intercompany
Redeemable noncontrolling intere
Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

(in millions)
Twenty-First
Reclassifications Century Fox
21st Century Twenty-First and and

Fox America, Inc. Century Fox Non-Guarantor Eliminations Subsidiaries
$ 524 $ 3,95¢ 2,17¢ % - 8 6,65¢
17 - 5,44: - 5,45¢
- - 2,784 - 2,78¢
28 20¢ 42¢ - 665
56¢ 4,165 10,83: - 15,56°
15 = 422 = 437
- - 5,371 - 5,371
132 - 2,691 - 2,82¢
- - 5,064 - 5,06¢
= = 17,25¢ = 17,25¢
361 - 35¢€ - 717
86 58 3,56( - 3,704
64,06 41,77" : (105,83) :
64,14¢ 41,83: 3,56( (105,83 3,70¢
$ 65,22 $ 45,99¢ 45,55¢ $ (105,83) $ 50,94
$ 137  $ - - % - 8% 137
551 134 7,618 - 8,29¢
68¢ 134 7,61: - 8,43¢
16,02¢ - 29z - 16,322
307 1€ 5,221 = 5,54¢
31,49¢ 28,85( (60,345 - -
- - 51¢ - 51¢
16,70¢ 16,99¢ 92,25¢ (105,83) 20,12¢
$ 65,22 $ 45,99¢ 45,55¢ $ (105,83) $ 50,94

See notes to supplemental guarantor information
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Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Statement ofaSh Flows
For the year ended June 30, 2014

(in millions)
Twenty-First
Reclassifications Century Fox
21st Century Twenty-First and and
Fox America, Inc. Century Fox Non-Guarantor Eliminations Subsidiaries
Operating activities:
Net cash (used in) provided by operat
activities from continuing operatiol $ (756) $ 2,63: $ 1,087 $ - $ 2,964
Investing activities:
Property, plant and equipme (26) - (652) - (67¢)
Investments 4 - (777 - (77%)
Proceeds from dispositiol 9 117 39z - 51¢
Net cash (used in) provided by invest
activities from continuing operatiol (22) 117 (1,03)) - (935)
Financing activities:
Borrowings 987 - 16¢ - 1,15¢
Repayment of borrowing (139 - (162) - (29¢€)
Issuance of shar¢ - 66 - - 66
Repurchase of shar - (3,772 - - (3,772
Dividends paic - (56¢) (229 - (792)
Purchase of subsidiary shares from
noncontrolling interest - - (127) - (127)
Distribution to News Corporatic - (10) - - (10)
Net cash provided by (used in) financi
activities from continuing operatiol 853 (4,284 (345) - (3,776
Discontinued operations:
Net cash (used in) provided by frc
discontinued operatior (127) 69¢ - - 571
Net decrease in cash and cash equiva (52) (83¢) (289) - (1,17¢)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of
year 524 3,95¢ 2,17¢ - 6,65¢
Exchange movement on cash balar - - (68) - (68)
Cash and cash equivalents, end of $ 47 $ 3,12( $ 1,82 $ - $ 5,41F

See notes to supplemental guarantor information

147




TWENTY -FIRST CENTURY FOX, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Statement ofaSh Flows
For the year ended June 30, 2013

(in millions)
Twenty-First
) Reclassifications Century Fox
21st Century Twenty-First and and
Fox America, Inc. Century Fox Non-Guarantor Eliminations Subsidiaries
Operating activities:
Net cash (used in) provided by operat
activities from continuing operatiol $ (625 $ 2,017 $ 161 $ $ 3,00z
Investing activities:
Property, plant and equipme (21) - (607) (622)
Investments ()] (29 (1,229 (1,260
Proceeds from dispositiol - - 1,96¢ 1,96¢
Net cash (used in) provided by invest
activities from continuing operatiol (38) (19) 142 86
Financing activities:
Borrowings 987 - 29C 1,27
Repayment of borrowing (273 - (487) (7549)
Issuance of shart - 20z - 203
Repurchase of shar - (2,026) - (2,026
Dividends paic - (39¢) (215) (613
Purchase of subsidiary shares from
noncontrolling interest - - (163) (163
Sale of subsidiary shares to noncontrolling
interests 19 - 74 93
Distribution to News Corporatic - (1,826) (762) (2,58¢)
Net cash provided by (used in) financi
activities from continuing operatiol 733 (4,047 (1,257%) (4,577)
Discontinued operations:
Net cash used in from discontinued operat (107) - (1,329 (1,43))
Net decrease in cash and cash equiva (37 (2,049 (82%) (2,919
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of 561 6,00¢ 3,06( 9,62¢
Exchange movement on cash balar - - (53 (53
Cash and cash equivalents, end of ) $ 524 $ 3,95¢ $ 2,17¢  $ $ 6,65¢

See notes to supplemental guarantor information
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TWENTY -FIRST CENTURY FOX, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Supplemental Condensed Consolidating Statement ofaSh Flows
For the year ended June 30, 2012

(in millions)
Twenty-First
Reclassifications Century Fox
21st Century Twenty-First and and
Fox America, Inc. Century Fox Non-Guarantor Eliminations Subsidiaries
Operating activities:
Net cash provided by (used in) operat
activities from continuing operatiol $ 26€ $ 3,04¢ $ (481) $ 2,83¢
Investing activities:
Property, plant and equipme (57) - (507) (564
Investments (15) - (597 (60€)
Proceeds from dispositiol 7 11 38€ 404
Net cash (used in) provided by invest
activities from continuing operatiol (65) 11 (712) (76€)
Financing activities:
Repayment of borrowing - - (35 (35)
Issuance of shart - 167 - 167
Repurchase of shar - (4,58¢) - (4,58¢)
Dividends paic - (449 (131 (580
Purchase of subsidiary shares from
noncontrolling interest - - (65) (65)
Net cash used in financing activities fr
continuing operation - (4,877 (2317) (5,102
Discontinued operations:
Net cash from discontinued operatic - - 28¢ 28¢
Net increase (decrease) in cash and
equivalents 201 (1,81)) (1,136 (2,74¢€)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of
year 36C 7,81¢ 4,50¢ 12,68(
Exchange movement on cash balar - - (30¢%) (30%)
Cash and cash equivalents, end of $ 561 $ 6,00t $ 3,06( $ 9,62¢

See notes to supplemental guarantor information
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TWENTY -FIRST CENTURY FOX, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Notes to Supplemental Guarantor Information

(1) Investments in the Company’s subsidiariespfmposes of the supplemental consolidating presentare accounted for by their parent
companies under the equity method of accountingedyeearnings of subsidiaries are reflected inréispective parent company’s investment
account and earnings.

(2) The guarantees of 21CFA’s senior public indebéss constitute senior indebtedness of the Compadyrank pari passu with all present
and future senior indebtedness of the Company. i&ectine factual basis underlying the obligatioesierd pursuant to the various facilities
other obligations constituting senior indebtedrefgfie Company differ, it is not possible to prediow a court in bankruptcy would accord
priorities among the obligations of the Company.
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| TEMO. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE.

None.

I TEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, with the participatiothefCompany’s Chairman and Chief Executive Offaed Chief Financial
Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of the @amy’s disclosure controls and procedures (as s&rahis defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of the entleoperiod covered by this Annual Report. Basedumh evaluation, the Company’s
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and Chief Ricial Officer have concluded that, as of the endunh period, the Company'’s disclosure
controls and procedures were effective in recordimgcessing, summarizing and reporting on a tinbalsis, information required to be
disclosed by the Company in the reports thatesfibr submits under the Exchange Act and weretaféein ensuring that information required
to be disclosed by the Company in the reportsittigés or submits under the Exchange Act is acolated and communicated to the
Company’s management, including the Company’s @teirand Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finan€#icer, as appropriate to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Management'’s report and the report of the indepetnegistered public accounting firm thereon atdfagh on pages 73 and 74,
respectively, and are incorporated herein by refere

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There has been no change in the Company’s inteamfol over financial reporting (as such termegied in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the Compaifiytsth quarter of the fiscal year ended June 3Q428at has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Compannternal control over financial reporting.

| TEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.

On August 12, 2014, the Company filed with theadfof the Secretary of State of the State of DelevaeCertificate of Elimination,
whereupon all matters set forth in the Certificaft®esignation with respect to the Series A JuRiarticipating Preferred Stock (the “Preferred
Stock”) were eliminated from the Company’s Restaedtificate of Incorporation. The Preferred Steas originally designated in order to be
made available upon an exercise of rights grantesiyant to the Company’s Stockholder Rights Agregmiaich expired in accordance with
its terms, on May 24, 2014.
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PART IlI

| TEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE.

The information required by this item with respecthe Company’s Directors is contained in the Rrétatement for the Company’s
2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Proxyt&taent”) to be filed with the SEC under the headifiglection of Directors” and is
incorporated by reference in this Annual Report.

The information required by this item with respectompliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchangeigcontained in the Proxy
Statement under the heading “Section 16(a) Bemfi@ivnership Reporting Compliance” and is incorpedaby reference in this Annual
Report.

The information required by this item with respecthe Company’s Standards of Business ConducCanie of Ethics governing the
Company’s employees, including its Chief Executdficer, senior financial officer and members of tBoard is contained in the Proxy
Statement under the heading “Corporate Governarateel—Standards of Business Conduct and Codehaf¥£tand is incorporated by
reference in this Annual Report.

The information required by this item with respcthe Company executive officers is containechmProxy Statement under the
heading “Executive Officers of 21st Century Foxdas incorporated by reference in this Annual Répor

The information required by this item with resptcthe procedures by which security holders magmeuend nominees to the Boart
contained in the Proxy Statement under the heddingoorate Governance Matters—Stockholder NomimaRoocedure” and is incorporated
by reference in this Annual Report.

The information required by this item with respecthe Company’s Audit Committee, including the Au@ommittee’s members and
its financial experts is contained in the Proxyt&teent under the heading “Corporate GovernanceedattCommittees and Meetings of the
Board of Directors—Audit Committee” and is incorpted by reference in this Annual Report.

| TEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

The information required by this item with respecexecutive compensation and director compensioantained in the Proxy
Statement under the headings “Compensation Dismussid Analysis,” “Executive Compensation” and ‘&itor Compensationréspectively
and is incorporated herein by reference in thisuaiiReport.

The information required by this item with respectompensation committee interlocks and insidetigipation is contained in the
Proxy Statement under the heading “Compensationraitiee Interlocks and Insider Participation” anéhisorporated by reference in this
Annual Report.

The compensation committee report required byitlm is contained in the Proxy Statement undehtfaling “Compensation
Committee Report” and is incorporated by referanahis Annual Report.

The information required by this item with respectompensation policies and practices as theyer&dathe Company’s risk
management is contained in the Proxy Statementruhddeading “Risks Related to Compensation Rediand Practices” and is incorporated
by reference in this Annual Report.

| TEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

The information required by this item with respeckecurities authorized for issuance under the@2myi's equity compensation plans
is contained in the Proxy Statement under the ngdttiquity Compensation Plan Information” and isdmporated herein by reference in this
Annual Report.
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The information required by this item with resptcthe security ownership of certain beneficial ensnand management is containe
the Proxy Statement under the heading “Security @slmip of 21st Century Fox” and is incorporateddfgrence in this Annual Report.

| TEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.
The information required by this item with respectransactions with related persons is containgtié Proxy Statement under the
heading “Certain Relationships and Related-Paran3actions” and is incorporated by reference s Amnual Report.

The information required by this item with respectirector independence is contained in the P&tagement under the heading
“Corporate Governance Matters—Board Independeneéd’isincorporated by reference in this Annual Repo

| TEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.

The information required by this item is contairiedhe Proxy Statement under the headings “FeastBdndependent Registered
Public Accounting Firm” and “Audit Committee Pre-gqpval Policies and Procedures” and is incorporateteference in this Annual Report.

PART IV

| TEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.
The following documents are filed as part of tiepart:

1. The Company’s Consolidated Financial Statemesired to be filed as part of this Annual Reortl the Report of
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm ackuded in Part II, Item 8. Financial Statementd S8applementary Dat

2. All other financial statement schedules arettadibecause the required information is not apple, or because the information
called for is included in the Compé’s Consolidated Financial Statements or the Notéiset@onsolidated Financial Stateme

3. Exhibits—T he exhibits listed on the accompanying Exhibitdxdiled or incorporated by references as parhisf Annual Repot
and such Exhibit Index is incorporated herein bgnence. On the Exhibit Index, &* identifies each management contract or
compensatory plan or arrangement required to bd &k an exhibit to this Annual Report, and sustingj is incorporated herein
by reference
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

TWENTY-FIRST CENTURY FOX, INC.
(Registrant’

By: / s/ JOHNN ALLEN
John Nallen
Senior Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Date: August 13, 2014

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélptihe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated:

Signature Title Date
/'s/ K. RUPERTM URDOCH Chairman and Chief Executive Officer August 13, 2014
K. Rupert Murdoch (Principal Executive Officer)
/S/ JOHNP. NALLEN Senior Executive Vice President and August 13, 2014
John Nallen Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office
/ s/ D ELPHINEA RNAULT Director August 13, 2014
Delphine Arnault
/ s/ JAMESW. B REYER Director August 13, 2014
James W. Breyer
/ s/ CHASEC AREY Director August 13, 2014
Chase Carey
/ s/ D avip F. DEvoOE Director August 13, 2014
David F. DeVoe
/' S/VIET D INH Director August 13, 2014
Viet Dinh
/' s/ R oDERICK|. E DDINGTON Director August 13, 2014
Roderick I. Eddington
/ s/ JamES R. M URDOCH Director August 13, 2014
James R. Murdoch
/ s/ L acHLAN K. M URDOCH Director August 13, 2014
Lachlan K. Murdoch
/ s/ JACQUESN ASSER Director August 13, 2014
Jacques Nasser
/ s/ R OBERTS ILBERMAN Director August 13, 2014

Robert Silberman
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Number

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

21

2.2

3.1

3.2
3.3

4.1
4.2
4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Separation and Distribution Agreement, dated J@ @13, between the Registrant and New Newscarnow known as News
Corporation). (Incorporated by reference to Exhihit to the Current Report of the Registrant omF8+K (File No. 001-32352)
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiodualy 3, 2013.

Tax Sharing and Indemnification Agreement, datete28, 2013, between the Registrant and New Newsnoor(Incorporated b
reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Current Reporthef Registrant on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32352)dilgith the Securities and
Exchange Commission on July 3, 201

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Ragist. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1the Annual Report of the
Registrant on Form -K (File No. 00--32352) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossioh on August 19, 201:

Certificate of Elimination.*

Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Registranto¢porated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the QuirReport of the Registrant
on Form -K (File No. 00:-32352) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on August 7, 2015

Specimen Certificate for Shares of Class A CommtoekSof the Registrant.
Specimen Certificate for Shares of Class B ComntonkSof the Registrant.

Indenture, dated as of January 28, 1993, by andchgriNews America Incorporated (formerly News Ametitadings
Incorporated), The News Corporation Limited, thieeotGuarantors named therein and U.S. Bank Natissdciation (as
successor to State Street Bank and Trust Compah¥ faa First National Bank of Boston), as Truste##h wespect to senior debt
securities. (Incorporated by reference to Exhilitt he Report of The News Corporation Limited amrf 6-K (File No. 1-9141)
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiated January 28, 199:

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 283, by and among News America Incorporated (gslyrNews America
Holdings Incorporated), The News Corporation Lirjtthe other Guarantors named therein and U.S. Blatibnal Association
(as successor to State Street Bank and Trust CongeahThe First National Bank of Boston), as Trasteith respect to senior
debt securities. (Incorporated by reference to lEkRito the Report of The News Corporation LimitsdForm 6-K (File No.1-
9141) filed with the Securities and Exchange Corsiaisdated April 26, 1993

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Aplib83, by and among News America Incorporated (éolyrNews America
Holdings Incorporated), The News Corporation Limdjtthe other Guarantors named therein and U.S. Blatikbnal Association
(as successor to State Street Bank and Trust CongmahThe First National Bank of Boston), as Trasteith respect to senior
debt securities. (Incorporated by reference to EkBito the Report of The News Corporation LimitsdForm 6-K (File No.1-
9141) filed with the Securities and Exchange Corsiaisdated April 26, 1993

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 2031 by and among News America Incorporated (folyridéews America
Holdings Incorporated), The News Corporation Limdjtthe other Guarantors named therein and U.S. Blatibnal Association
(as successor to State Street Bank and Trust CongmathThe First National Bank of Boston), as Trasteith respect to senior
debt securities. (Incorporated by reference to EikHi7 to the Registration Statement of News Ageetoldings Incorporated
(currently News America Incorporated) on Form FR@gistration No. 33-63604) and Post-Effective Anmaadt No. 1 to the
Registration Statement on Form F-3 of News AmeiHoldings Incorporated (Registration No. 33-5968)dfwith the Securities
and Exchange Commission on May 28, 19
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Number

Description

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

411

4.12

Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Mayl283, by and among News America Incorporated (foyméews America
Holdings Incorporated), The News Corporation Limdjtthe other Guarantors named therein and U.S. Blatikbnal Association
(as successor to State Street Bank and Trust CongmahThe First National Bank of Boston), as Trasteith respect to senior
debt securities. (Incorporated by reference to EikHi8 to the Registration Statement of News Agwekoldings Incorporated
(currently News America Incorporated) on Form HR@distration No. 33-63604) and Post-Effective Anmaadt No. 1 to the
Registration Statement on Form F-3 of News AmeHoldings Incorporated (Registration No. 33-5968)fwith the Securities
and Exchange Commission on May 28, 19

Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated July 21, 19§3and among News America Incorporated (formerlywBldmerica Holdings
Incorporated), The News Corporation Limited, thieentGuarantors named therein and U.S. Bank Natissdciation (as
successor to State Street Bank and Trust Compah¥ faa First National Bank of Boston), as Truste##h wespect to senior debt
securities. (Incorporated by reference to Exhilfitté the Registration Statement of News Americédiigs Incorporated
(currently News America Incorporated) on Form FR@distration No. 33-74574) filed with the Secustand Exchange
Commission on January 28, 199

Form of Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated asnbidry 25, 1994, by and among News America Incatpdr(formerly News
America Holdings Incorporated), The News Corporatiamited, the other Guarantors named therein a1 Bank National
Association (as successor to State Street BanKarsd Company and The First National Bank of Bojtas Trustee, with respe
to senior debt securities. (Incorporated by refegein Exhibit 4.7 to Amendment No. 1 to the Registn Statement of News
America Holdings Incorporated (currently News Ansarlncorporated) on Form F-3 (Registration No. 3374) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Februar934.]

Form of Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated &elofuary 4, 1994, by and among News America Iramated (formerly New
America Holdings Incorporated), The News Corporatiamited, the other Guarantors named therein argl Bank National
Association (as successor to State Street BanKarsd Company and The First National Bank of Bostas Trustee, with respe
to senior debt securities. (Incorporated by refegen Exhibit 4.8 to Amendment No. 1 to the Registn Statement of News
America Holdings Incorporated (currently News Angsarlncorporated) on Form F-3 (Registration No. 8334) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on June 1411

Form of Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated adaf 12, 1994, by and among News America Incorpaoréfimerly News
America Holdings Incorporated), The News Corporatiamited, the other Guarantors named therein arf® Bank National
Association (as successor to State Street BanK arsd Company and The First National Bank of Bostas Trustee, with respe
to senior debt securities. (Incorporated by refegein Exhibit 4.9 to Amendment No. 1 to the Registn Statement of News
America Holdings Incorporated (currently News Ansarlncorporated) on Form F-3 (Registration No. 9334) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on June 14,11

Form of Ninth Supplemental Indenture, dated asudust 1, 1995, by and among News America Incorpdréormerly News
America Holdings Incorporated), The News Corporatiamited, the other Guarantors named therein argl Bank National
Association (as successor to State Street BanKarsd Company and The First National Bank of Bojtas Trustee, with respe
to senior debt securities. (Incorporated by refeegeio Exhibit 4.10 to the Registration Statemeritiefvs America Holdings
Incorporated (currently News America Incorporated)~orm F-3 (Registration No. 33-94868) filed wiitte Securities and
Exchange Commission on July 24, 19¢
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Number

Description

4.13

414

4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

Form of Tenth Supplemental Indenture, dated asaric 2, 2000, by and among News America Incorpdrétemerly News
America Holdings Incorporated), The News Corporatiamited, the other Guarantors named therein argl Bank National
Association (as successor to State Street BanKarsd Company and The First National Bank of Bojtas Trustee, with respe
to senior debt securities. (Incorporated by refeeeio Exhibit 10.12 to the Annual Report of Foxdtdainment Group, Inc. on
Form 1(-K (File No. 1-14595) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on September 28, 200

Form of Eleventh Supplemental Indenture, dated &bruary 14, 2001, by and among News Americarpmated (formerly
News America Holdings Incorporated), The News Caaion Limited, the other Guarantors named theagid U.S. Banl
National Association (as successor to State SBaek and Trust Company and The First National BafiBoston), as Truste
with respect to senior debt securities. (Incorpatdiy reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Annual RepbFox Entertainment
Group, Inc. on Form K (File No. 1-14595) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on September 28, 200

Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Jun@Q@@3, by and among News America Incorporatedr(ésly News America
Holdings Incorporated), The News Corporation Lirdjtthe other Guarantors named therein and U.S. Blatibnal Association
(as successor to State Street Bank and Trust CongeahThe First National Bank of Boston), as Tresteith respect to senior
debt securities. (Incorporated by reference to lixHdi14 to the Annual Report of Fox Entertainm@&noup, Inc. on Form 10-K
(File No. 1-14595) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2C

Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Ninex 12, 2004, by and among News America Incorpdrdahe Registrant, T
News Corporation Limited, the other Guarantors rétherein and U.S. Bank National Association (asessor to State Stre
Bank and Trust Company and The First National BafrilBoston), as Trustee, with respect to senior debtirities. (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.19 to the Current Repbthe Registrant on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32386@)d with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on November 24, 20

Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of M&s¢ 2005, by and among News America IncorpordtedRegistrant, the
other Guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank Nalti@ssociation (as successor to State Street Batideust Company and T
First National Bank of Boston), as Trustee, witbpect to senior debt securities. (Incorporatedefigrence to Exhibit 4.20 to the
Annual Report of the Registrant on Form 10-K (Rie. 001-32352) filed with the Securities and Exd®ommission on
August 23, 2006.

Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of MadgH2005, by and among News America IncorporatediRegistrant, the oth
Guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank Nationab@agon (as successor to State Street Bank anst Dmmpany and The First
National Bank of Boston), as Trustee, with respecenior debt securities. (Incorporated by refeeein Exhibit 4.21 to th

Annual Report of the Registrant on Form 10-K (Nie. 001-32352) filed with the Securities and Exdm@ommission on
August 23, 2006.

Sixteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of M&ayYQ07, by and among News America Incorporatesigtrarantor named
therein and U.S. Bank National Association (as sssor to State Street Bank and Trust Company aad-irst National Bank of
Boston), as Trustee, with respect to senior dehirgees. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit54t@ the Annual Report of the
Registrant on Form -K (File No. 00--32352) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossioh on August 23, 2007
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Description

4.20

4.21

4.22

4.23

4.24

4.25

4.26

4.27

Amended and Restated Indenture, dated as of Marchd®3, by and among News America Incorporatean@oly News Americ
Holdings Incorporated), The News Corporation Limjtthe other Guarantors named therein and The BNlew York, as
Trustee, with respect to senior debt securitieedfiporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Amendinim 1 to the Registration
Statement of News America Holdings Incorporatedr@mtly News America Incorporated) on Form F-3 (Regtion No. 33-
59688) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on March 24, 1992

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 2031by and among News America Incorporated (folyridews America
Holdings Incorporated), The News Corporation Limjtthe other Guarantors named therein and The BNlew York, as
Trustee, with respect to senior debt securitieediiporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Begiion Statement of The News
America Holdings Incorporated (currently News Angarincorporated) on Form F-3 (Registration No. 38@4) and Post-
Effective Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Stegat of News America Holdings Incorporated on Fé#3 (Registration No.
33-59688) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on May 28, 1993

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Mag2®3, by and among News America Incorporated (foymdéews America
Holdings Incorporated), The News Corporation Lirdjtthe other Guarantors named therein and The BiNlew York, as
Trustee, with respect to senior debt securitieeqdfiporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Begiion Statement of News
America Holdings Incorporated (currently News Angarincorporated) on Form F-3 (Registration No. 38@4) and Post-
Effective Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Stetat of News America Holdings Incorporated on F&#3 (Registration No.
33-59688) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossioh on May 28, 1993

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Julyl®83, by and among News America Incorporated (folymdéews America
Holdings Incorporated), The News Corporation Limjtthe other Guarantors named therein and The BiNlew York, as
Trustee, with respect to senior debt securitieediiporated by reference to Exhibit 4.14 to AmenainiNo. 1 to the Registration
Statement of News America Holdings Incorporatedr@mntly News America Incorporated) on Form F-3 (Regtion No. 33-
98238) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on October 23, 199!

Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of OctdBet 995, by and among News America Incorporatesh@&rly News America
Holdings Incorporated), The News Corporation Limjtthe other Guarantors named therein and The BNlew York, as
Trustee, with respect to senior debt securitieediiporated by reference to Exhibit 4.15 to AmenainiNo. 1 to the Registration
Statement of News America Holdings Incorporatedr@ntly News America Incorporated) on Form F-3 (Regtion No. 33-
98238) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on October 23, 199!

Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Januaty88, by and among News America Incorporated, Né&s Corporation
Limited, the other Guarantors named therein andBdrk of New York, as Trustee, with respect to sedebt securities.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to thgiReation Statement of News America Incorporated-orm F-4 (Registration
No. 33:-8744) filed with the Securities and Exchange Corsiaison May 12, 1998

Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Marct999, by and among News America Incorporated, TédNCorporation
Limited, the other Guarantors named therein andBdrk of New York, as Trustee, with respect to sedebt securities.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to Ammual Report of Fox Entertainment Group, Inc. @nrf 10-K (File No. 1-
14595) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on September 28, 200

Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Febiar2001, by and among News America Incorporafbe, News Corporatic
Limited, the other Guarantors named therein andBdmek of New York, as Trustee, with respect to sedebt securities.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 toAmmual Report of Fox Entertainment Group, Inc. @nrf 10-K (File No. 1-
14595) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on September 28, 200
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Number

Description

4.28

4.29

4.30

4.31

4.32

4.33

4.34

4.35

4.36

Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Jun@@7¥3, by and among News America Incorporated,Né&&s Corporation
Limited, the other Guarantors named therein andBdrek of New York, as Trustee, with respect to sedebt securities.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.23 to thenfal Report of Fox Entertainment Group, Inc. omir&0-K (File No. 114595
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissartlie fiscal year ended June 30, 20!

Ninth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of NoveriBeP004, by and among News America IncorporateslReegistrant, Th
News Corporation Limited, the other Guarantors rmatherein and The Bank of New York, as Trusteehwaispect to senior de
securities. (Incorporated by reference to Exhil#84o the Current Report of the Registrant on F&fkh (File No. 001-32352)
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiNovember 24, 2004

Tenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Marct2Qd5, by and among News America Incorporatedgtieantors named
therein and The Bank of New York, as Trustee, wétpect to senior debt securities. (Incorporatecefgrence to Exhibit 4.3 to
the Quarterly Report of the Registrant on Form 10~ No. 001-32352) filed with the Securities dxthange Commission on
February 9, 2006

Eleventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of M2igt2005, by and among News America Incorporatesigtiarantors named
therein and The Bank of New York, as Trustee, wépect to senior debt securities. (Incorporatecefsrence to Exhibit 4.4 to
the Quarterly Report of the Registrant on Form 10~ No. 001-32352) filed with the Securities dxthange Commission on
February 9, 2006

Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May2Z®7, by and among News America Incorporatedgttaantor named
therein and The Bank of New York, as Trustee, wépect to senior debt securities. (Incorporatetefgrence to Exhibit 4.13 to
the Registration Statement of the Registrant omF8e+4 (File No. 333-143335) filed with the Secestand Exchange
Commission on May 29, 2007

Form of Notes representing $1.0 billion principaiaunt of 6.20% Senior Notes due 2034 and $750anilfirincipal amount of
5.30% Senior Notes due 2014 and Officer’s Certiéiaaf the Registrant relating thereto, dated De@s8b2004, pursuant to
Section 301 of the Amended and Restated Inderdated as of March 24, 1993, by and among News Awmadnicorporated
(formerly News America Holdings Incorporated), thews Corporation Limited (n/k/a News Holdings Lied), the other
Guarantors named therein and The Bank of New YasK,rustee. (Incorporated by reference to Exhiliitd the Current Report
of the Registrant on Forn-K (File No. 00:-32352) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossinn on December 3, 200.

Form of Notes representing $1.15 billion principaiount of 6.40% Senior Notes due 2035, dated Deee@8) 2005, pursuant to
Section 301 of the Amended and Restated Inderdated as of March 24, 1993, as supplemented anh@engdmpany and the
subsidiary guarantors named therein and the Baieuf York as Trustee. (Incorporated by referencéxibibit 4.1 to the
Quarterly Report of the Registrant on Form 10-Qe(RNo. 001-32352) filed with the Securities and Exege Commission on
February 9, 2006

Form of Notes representing $1 billion principal ambof 6.150% Senior Notes due 2037, dated Mar@®9@y, pursuant to
Section 301 of the Amended and Restated Inderdated as of March 24, 1993, as supplemented, aeng America, the
Registrant, as guarantor, and the other subsidiaayantors named therein and The Bank of New YasK/rustee. (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Quarterly Remdrthe Registrant on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-32382d with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on May 9, 20l

Form of Notes representing $1.25 billion principaiount of 6.65% Senior Notes due 2037, dated Noeethd, 2007, pursuant to
Section 301 of the Amended and Restated Inderdated as of March 24, 1993, as supplemented, aieng America
Incorporated, the Guarantor named therein and Hmk Bf New York, as Trustee. (Incorporated by refiee to Exhibit 4.2 to the
Quarterly Report of the Registrant on Form 10-Qe(RNo. 001-32352) filed with the Securities and Extge Commission on
February 6, 2008
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Number

Description

4.37

4.38

4.39

4.40

4.41

4.42

4.43

4.44

4.45

4.46

4.47

Form of Notes representing $700 million principadaunt of 6.90% Senior Notes due 2019, dated Fepi@r2009, pursuant to
Section 301 of the Amended and Restated Inderdated as of March 24, 1993, as supplemented, aieng America
Incorporated, the Guarantor named therein and Emk Bf New York Mellon, as Trustee. (Incorporatgd&ference to Exhibit
4.2 to the Quarterly Report of the Registrant omFa&0-Q (File No. 001-32352) filed with the Seciastand Exchange
Commission on May 7, 200¢

Form of Notes representing $300 million principadaunt of 7.85% Senior Notes due 2039, dated Fepil@&r2009, pursuant to
Section 301 of the Amended and Restated Inderdated as of March 24, 1993, as supplemented, aieng America
Incorporated, the Guarantor named therein and Emk Bf New York Mellon, as Trustee. (Incorporatgd&ference to Exhibit
4.3 to the Quarterly Report of the Registrant omF&0-Q (File No. 001-32352) filed with the Seciestand Exchange
Commission on May 7, 200¢

Indenture, dated August 25, 2009, as amended atated on February 16, 2011, by and among News idanbrcorporated, the
Registrant, as Guarantor, and The Bank of New YeKon, as Trustee, with respect to senior debtisges. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Reporthef Registrant on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32352)dilgith the Securities and
Exchange Commission on February 17, 20

Form of Notes representing $400 million principadaunt of 5.65% Senior Notes due 2020, dated Augbis2009. (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrationt@&teent of News America Incorporated on Form S-4y{Reation No. 333-
162539) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cdssion on October 16, 200¢

Form of Notes representing $600 million principadaunt of 6.90% Senior Notes due 2039, dated Augbis2009. (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the Registration@taent of News America Incorporated on Form S-4y{Reation No. 333-
162539) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cdgsion on October 16, 200¢

Form of Notes representing $1.0 billion principalaunt of 4.50% Senior Notes due 2021, dated Feprd&r2011. (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Quarterly Remdrthe Registrant on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-32382d with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on May 5, 20:

Form of Notes representing $1.5 billion principalaunt of 6.15% Senior Notes due 2041, dated Feprd&r2011. (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the Quarterly Remdrthe Registrant on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-32382d with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on May 5, 20:

Notice to Holders of the Registris Common Stock, dated April 18, 2012. (Incorpordtgdeference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Curr
Report of the Registrant on Forr-K (File No. 00:-32352) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on April 18, 2012

Notice to Holders of CHESS Depositary Interestsr@@mmon Stock (U.S. Addresses), dated April 18, 2@Incorporated b
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Current Reporthef Registrant on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32352)dilgith the Securities and
Exchange Commission on April 18, 201

Notice to Holders of CHESS Depositary Interestsr@@mmon Stock (Nc-U.S. Addresses), dated April 18, 2012. (Incorpadat
by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Current Repéthe Registrant on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32358)d with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on April 18, 201

Notice to Holders of the Registr’s Class B Common Stock, dated September 28, Z0ichrporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1
to the Current Report of the Registrant on Form @-ie No. 001-32352) filed with the Securities dxthange Commission on
September 28, 201z
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Number

Description

4.48

4.49

4.50

451

4.52

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

Form of Notes representing $1,000,000,000 prin@pabunt of 3.00% Senior Notes due 2022, dated Bégete14, 2012.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to thea@erly Report of the Registrant on Form 10-Q (Nt 001-32352) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Nove@iz012.)

Form of Rights Agreement. (Incorporated by refeestoicExhibit 99.1 to the Current Report of the Regint on Form 8-K (File
No. 002-32352) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on May 24, 2013

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Septe8M®e2013, by and among News America IncorporatesiRegistrant and J.
Morgan Securities LLC, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fen&@Smith Incorporated, Citigroup Global MarketsInGoldman, Sachs &
Co. and Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC (Incorporated bference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Quarterly Reporthaf Registrant on Form
1C-Q (File No. 00-32352) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on November 6, 201.

Form of Notes representing $300,000,000 principadant of 4.00% Senior Notes due 2023, dated Sepesth 2013.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to theaerly Report of the Registrant on Form 10-Q (Nt 001-32352) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Novegiz013.)

Form of Notes representing $700,000,000 principadant of 5.40% Senior Notes due 2043, dated Sepest) 2013.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to thea@erly Report of the Registrant on Form 10-Q (Nt 001-32352) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Novegliz013.)

Master Assignment, Assumption and Indemnity Agrestindated as of September 13, 2004, by and betiMeerNews
Corporation Limited, Carlholt Pty. Ltd. and Newsr@oration, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhif.14 to the Current
Report of the Registrant on Form 8-K (File No. B2352) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on November 24,
2004.)

2004 Stock Option Plan. (Incorporated by referendexhibit 10.12 to the Current Report of the Regist on Form 8-K (File No.
001-32352) filed with the Securities and Exchange Caossinn on November 24, 200+

2004 Replacement Stock Option Plan. (Incorporateckfierence to Exhibit 10.13 to the Current Repbthe Registrant on Form
8-K (File No. 00:-32352) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on November 24, 200+

2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan. (Incorporated brefice to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report ofRagistrant on Form 8-K
(File No. 00:-32352) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on July 7, 2005+

Amendment No. 1 to the 2005 Long-Term IncentivenP{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12h® Annual Report of
News Corporation on Form -K (File No. 00:-32352) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on August 23, 200

Amendment No. 2 to the 2005 Long-Term IncentivenP{&ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 te Quarterly Report of the
Registrant on Form -Q (File No. 00-32352) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossioh on May 10, 2013+

Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc. 2013 Long-Term Intiee Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhilbitl1to the Current Report
of the Registrant on Forn-K (File No. 00:-32352) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossioh on October 18, 201+

Form of Restricted Share Unit Agreement for C8&lttled Restricted Stock Units. (Incorporated Wgrence to Exhibit 10.2 to tt
Current Report of the Registrant on Form 8-K (Niz 001-32352) filed with the Securities and Exa@i@@ommission on
August 10, 2005
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Number

Description

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

Form of Restricted Share Unit Agreement for Stoektl&d Restricted Stock Units. (Incorporated byrefnce to Exhibit 10.3 to
the Current Report of the Registrant on Form 8-ke(No. 001-32352) filed with the Securities anccBange Commission on
August 10, 2005

Form of Performance Award Agreement Settled in €astiled Restricted Stock Units. (Incorporated bgnence to Exhibit 10.2
to the Annual Report of the Registrant on Form 1(FKe No. 001-32352) filed with the Securities dixthange Commission on
August 23, 2007 £

Form of Performance Award Agreement Settled in I6$8ettled Restricted Stock Units. (Incorporatedddgrence to Exhibit
10.24 to the Annual Report of the Registrant omi@0-K (File No. 001-32352) filed with the Secwegtiand Exchange
Commission on August 23, 200+

Summary of Terms and Conditions of the RegistraB¥scutive Officer Performance Stock Units. (Inamaded by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report of the Registi@mm Form 8-K (File No. 001-32352) filed with thecrities and Exchange
Commission on August 3, 201

Letter Agreement, dated August 2, 2010, betweemRtgistrant and K. Rupert Murdoch. (Incorporateddfgrence to Exhibit
10.3 to the Quarterly Report of the Registrant om#10-Q (File No. 001-32352) filed with the Seties and Exchange
Commission on November 4, 201+

Employment Agreement, dated as of November 15, 2004nd between News America Incorporated and dBvDeVoe.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to theaferly Report of the Registrant on Form 10-QgNb. 001-32352) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on May @52+

Amendment to the Employment Agreement, dated Deeerh®, 2008, between News America Incorporatedizandd F. DeVoe.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to theaferly Report of the Registrant on Form 10-QgNb. 001-32352) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Feba2909. )+

Letter Agreement between the Registrant and Davidleévoe, dated July 31, 2009. (Incorporated byresfee to Exhibit 10.2 to
the Quarterly Report of the Registrant on Form 10~ No. 001-32352) filed with the Securities d@xthange Commission on
November 5, 2009+

Employment Letter Agreement, dated August 2, 2@&Byeen News America Incorporated and David F. BeVimcorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly Repdithe Registrant on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-323fi21 with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on November 4, 20+

Letter Agreement, dated August 2, 2010, betweemRtgistrant and David F. DeVoe. (Incorporated lgremce to Exhibit 10.5 1
the Quarterly Report of the Registrant on Form 10~ No. 001-32352) filed with the Securities dxthange Commission on
November 4, 2010+

Letter Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2013, betvidmms America Incorporated and David F. DeVoe.dfporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report of the Rgint on Form 10-Q (File No. 0@BR2352) filed with the Securities and Excha
Commission on November 6, 201+

Summary of Key Terms of the Compensation Arrangeérfienlames R. Murdoch. (Incorporated by referendexhibit 10.1 to th
Quarterly Report of the Registrant on Form 10-Qe(RNo. 001-32352) filed with the Securities and Extge Commission on
May 8, 2008.t

Letter Agreement, dated August 2, 2010, betweemRtgistrant and James R. Murdoch. (Incorporatectfigrence to Exhibit 10.4
to the Quarterly Report of the Registrant on Fof¥QL(File No. 001-32352) filed with the Securitersd Exchange Commission
on November 4, 2010+

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, efieasvof July 1, 2010, between News America Incateorand Chase
Carey. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1he Quarterly Report of the Registrant on ForrQL(File No. 001-32352)
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioMNovember 4, 2010+
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Number

Description

10.23

10.24
10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

12.1

Amendment, dated June 11, 2012, to the AmendedRanthted Employment Agreement, effective as of 1uB010, between
News America Incorporated and Chase Carey. (Incatpd by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Curregp®t of the Registrant ¢
Form &K (File No. 00:-32352) filed with the Securities and Exchange Caossion on June 14, 201+

Letter Agreement, effective as of June 9, 2014xvbenh 21st Century Fox America, Inc. and Chase Cazx

Form of Performance Stock Unit Agreement Settle8tinck-Settled Performance Stock Units. (Incorpeatdty reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report of the Registron Form 10-Q (File No. 001-32352) filed witke tBecurities and Exchange
Commission on November 4, 201+

Form of Performance Stock Unit Agreement Settle@Gash-Settled Performance Stock Units. (Incorpdrbtereference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly Report of the Registron Form 10-Q (File No. 001-32352) filed witke tBecurities and Exchange
Commission on May 10, 2012t

Form of Bridge Award Agreement for Stock-SettleddBe Award Units (Incorporated by reference to Bihl0.25 to the Annual
Report of the Registrant on Form 10-K (File No. €B2B52) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cagsion on August 14,
2012).+

Form of Summary of Performance Stock Unit Terms @odditions for Stock-Settled Performance StocktéJrfincorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Quarterly Repéthe Registrant on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-323f2H with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on November 6, 20+

Stipulation of Settlement, dated April 12, 200&w.c@rporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to theréntrReport of the Registrant
on Form K (File No. 00:-32352) filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on April 13, 2006

Form of Credit Agreement, dated as of May 2, 2@2ong News America Incorporated, the Registrantthadhitial lenders and
initial issuing banks named therein, JPMorgan Clgesek, N.A. and Citibank, N.A. as co-administratagents, JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A. as designated agent, Bank of Americd,. lds syndication agent, J.P. Morgan Securities Ritigroup Global Marke
Inc. and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Imgorated as joint lead arrangers and joint bookeamand Deutsche Bank
Securities Inc., HSBC Bank USA, National Associatamd Lloyds TSB Bank plc, as co-documentation esgémcorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Repoithef Registrant on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32352dilwith the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 4, 201

Voting and Support Agreement, by and among the Segit and the signatory stockholders theretoddaseof July 31, 2007.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to therént Report of the Registrant on Form 8-K (File. N01-32352) filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 172

Form of Voting Agreement by and between the Regyistand the Murdoch Family Interests, dated A@ilA2012. (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Repbiftiews Corporation on Form 8-K (File No. 001-32B§d with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on April 18, 20:

Employment Agreement, effective as of FebruaryOILZ between News America Incorporated and Gerseifach.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to theaf@erly Report of the Registrant on Form 10-QgNb. 001-32352) filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Nove@\i2012.)+

Employment Agreement, effective as of July 1, 203#8ween News America Incorporated and John PeNa{lncorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly Repéthe Registrant on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-323f2H with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on November 6, 20+

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges
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Number Description

21 List of Subsidiaries.

231 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP.

31.1 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Certificati@yuired by Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14 under the 8iesuExchange Act of
1934, as amended.

31.2 S:hief Financial Officer Certification required byiRs 13a-14 and 15d-14 under the Securities Ex@&hAngof 1934, as amended.

32.1 Certification of Chairman and Chief Executive Offiand Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.SS€ction 1350, as adopted

pursuant to Section 906 of Sarbanes Oxley Act 6R2&*

101 The following financial information from the Regiatt's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscabyended June 30, 2014
formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reportingigaage): (i) Consolidated Statements of Operafionthe fiscal years end
June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012; (ii) Consolidatecdzd Sheets as of June 30, 2014 and 2013; (ii}@iolated Statements of
Cash Flows for the fiscal years ended June 30,,200¥3 and 2012; (iv) Consolidated Statements ofittf@nd Other
Comprehensive Income for the fiscal years ended 3002014, 2013 and 2012 and (v) Notes to the @iolased Financial

Statements.
* Filed herewith
*x Furnished herewitt
+ Management contract or compensatory plan or arraege
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Exhibit 3.2

CERTIFICATE OF ELIMINATION OF THE SERIES A JUNIOR P ARTICIPATING
PREFERRED STOCK OF
TWENTY-FIRST CENTURY FOX, INC.

Pursuant to Section 151(g)
of the General Corporation Law
of the State of Delaware

Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc., a corporation orgad and existing under the laws of the State da®are (the “Company”), in
accordance with the provisions of Section 151(ghefGeneral Corporation Law of the State of Delawhereby certifies as follows:

1. That, pursuant to Section 151 of the Generap@uition Law of the State of Delaware and authaygnted in the Certificate of
Incorporation of the Company, as theretofore améntee Board of Directors of the Company (the “BBarby resolution duly adopted,
authorized the issuance of a series of 9,000,08fkstof Series A Junior Participating PreferrediStpar value $0.01 per share (the “Preferre
Stock”), and established the voting powers, designs, preferences and relative, participating aifer rights, and the qualifications,
limitations or restrictions thereof, and, on JuBge 2013, filed a Certificate of Designation witlspect to such Preferred Stock in the office of
the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware.

2. That no shares of said Preferred Stock areandstg and no shares thereof will be issued subjesaid Certificate of Designation.
3. That the Executive Committee of the Board, wliiak been delegated authority by the Board hastedidipe following resolutions:

WHEREAS , by resolution of the Board of Directors (the “Bdg and by a Certificate of Designation (the “Gécate of
Designation”) filed in the office of the SecretafyState of the State of Delaware on June 28, 20E3Company authorized the issuance
of a series of 9,000,000 shares of Series A Juraaticipating Preferred Stock, par value $0.01share, of the Company (the “Preferred
Stock”) and established the voting powers, designat preferences and relative, participating aheérorights, and the qualifications,
limitations or restrictions thereof; and

WHEREAS , as of the date hereof, no shares of such Prdf&teck are outstanding and no shares of suchrRedf8tock will be
issued subject to said Certificate of Designatand

WHEREAS , it is desirable that all matters set forth in @ertificate of Designation with respect to suchfEmred Stock be
eliminated from the Certificate of Incorporatios, leeretofore amended, of the Company.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT AND IT HEREBY IS

RESOLVED , that the officers of the Company be, and herebyauthorized and directed to file a Certificat&limination (the
“Certificate of Elimination”), attached hereto apgendix A, with the office of the Secretary of State of State of Delaware setting
forth a copy of these resolutions whereupon altenatset forth in the Certificate of Designatiorithwiespect to such Preferred Stock
shall be eliminated from the Certificate of Incargiion, as heretofore amended, of the Company.

4. That, accordingly, all matters set forth in @ertificate of Designation with respect to the Bregd Stock be, and hereby are,
eliminated from the Certificate of Incorporatios, leeretofore amended, of the Company.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Twenty~irst Century Fox, Inc. has caused this Certifitatbe executed by its duly authorized officer tti
thday of August, 2014.

TWENTY-FIRST CENTURY FOX, INC

By: /s/ Janet Nov
Name Janet Nov:

Title: Executive Vice President al
Deputy Group General Coun:




AR AL 3 4, CHATICATE % T A
\ T
FOX
TWENTY-FIRST CENTURY FOX, INC.
PACORPTRATED UNDER THE LMAE OF THE STATE OF [ELAWARD
THIS CERTIFIES THAT
i Thir oamy of

FURLY-PAID AND MON-ASSESSABLE SHARES OF CLASS A QOMMON STOCK OF

Twenty-First Contury Fox, Inc. (hereinafior called the "Company™). transfirabie on the Books of the Company
in parson of by duly authodond altornay, upon sumender of this Cetficale properly endorsed. This Cerlificals and
the shanes mpresoented horoby. ans eswed and sholl ba held subject io all of the provisions of the Cestiicate of
Incorparation, &3 omended and o resialed, ard the By-Lows, o5 prrended and of restated, of the Company
{coples of which ace on fle with the Company and with the Trenster Agent), 0 35 of which each holder, by
WMM|MMMHHWMWW ard reistead by the Teanshe Agent
and !

Witness ihe facsinde Seal of the Gompany snd the facsimile signatuwes of it duly authorized officers.
OATED  SO-hem iy Ty

Cerporata Sacietury ' ————
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TWENTY-FIEST CENTURY FOX, INC.

THE COMPANY WILL FUBRNISH WITHOUT CHARGE TO EACH SHAREHOLDEE. WHO S0 REEQUESTS, A SUMMAERY OF
THE POWERS, DESIGNATIONS, PREFERENCES AND RELATIVE, PARTICIPATING, OPTIONAL OR OTHEER SPECIAL
EIGHTS OF EACH CLASS OF STOCE OF THE COMPANY AND THE QUALIFICATIONS, LIMITATIONS OF
EESTRICTIONS OF SUCH PEEFERENCES AND RIGHTS, AND THE VARIATIONS IN REIGHTS, PEEFERENCES AND
LIMITATIONS DETEEMINED FOE EACH SERIES, WHICH ARE FIXKED BY THE CEETIFICATE OF INCOEPORATION OF
THE COMPANTY, AS AMENDED AND OF EESTATED. AWD THE RESOLUTIONS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
THE COMPANTY, AND THE AUTHORITY OF THE BOAED OF DIRECTORS TO DETERMINE VARIATIONS FOR FUTUEE
SERIES. SUCH REQUEST MAY EEMADE TO THE OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF THE COMPANY O TO THE
TRANSFER AGENT. THE BOAFRD COF DIRECTOES MAY REEQUIRE THE OWNEE. OF A LOST OF. DESTEOYED S5TOCE
CERTIFICATE, OR HIS LEGAL EEPRESENTATIVES, TO GIVE THE COMPANY A BOWND TO INDEMNIFY IT AND ITS
TRANSFER AGENTS AND REGISTRARS AGAINST ANY CLAIM THAT MAY BE MADE AGAINST THEM ON ACCOUNT
OF THE ATTLEGED LOSS5 OF DESTRUCTION OF ANY SUCH CERTIFICATE.

The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription onthe face ofthis certificate, shall be construed as though they were
written out in full according to applicablelaws or regulations:

TEM COM - as tenants in common UNIFGIFTMINACT: = cicosiaisinsiaismsms Capabma a5 s R R
{Cust)
TEMEMNT - astenants bvthe antirstias undar Uniform Gifts to hinors Act.....
JIT TEN - asjointtenantswith richtef UNIF TEF MIN ACT A P Custodian {until ags
survivorshipandnot astenants in {Cust)
common

{Mines) {State)

Additional abbreviations may also be used though notin the abowve list.

PLEASE INSERT SCQCIAL SECURITY OR OTHER
IDENTIFYING NUMBEE. OF ASSIGNEE

For value received, hereby sell, assign andtransferunto

{PLEASE PRINT OF. TYPEWEITE NAME AND ADDRESS, INCLUDING POSTAL ZIP CODE, OF ASSIGNEE)

Shares

of the commeon stock representad by the withm Certificate, and do hereby wrevecably constitute and sppomt
Attorney

to tranzfer the zmd stock on the books of the within-named Compeny with full power of substitution m the premisss.

Dlatad: U

Sismaturels} Guarantsed: Madsllion Cuarantzs Stamp
THE SIGMATUEE(S) SHOULD EE GUARANTEED EY AN ELIGLBLE

Signature: GUARANTOE INSTITUTION (Banks, Stockbrokers, Savinssand Loan
G ematiire: Associations and Cradit Unions) “’ITH WENMEERSHIP IN AN
Enatura: T b ] } ;
Dloties: THesigisiniets tils Sesignment it corapind wikthe APPROVED SIGNATURE GUARANTEE MEDALLIONFROGRAN,

nama as written upon thefacs oftha cartificats, in avary PURSUANTTOS.E.C.RULE 1744 13.

particular, without sltemtion orsnlarpamant, or anvchanss
whatevar.

The IE.S requires that we report the cost basis of certam
shares acquired after Jannary 12011, H your shares were
coverad by the legislation and vou have sold or transferrad
the shares znd requested 2 specific cost basis caleulation

oy : = methed, we have processed as requested. If vou did not
SECURITY INSTRUCTIONS specify 2 cost basts caleulstion method, we have defaulted
to the first m, first out (FIFO) method. Please visit our

THIS IS WATERMARKD PAPER DO NOT ACCEPT website or consult your tax _adﬂsu}r if you need additional

WITHOUT NOTING WATERMARK. HOLD TO LIGHT miptionrioe. bk wisat S

TO VERIFY WATERMARE
If vou do not keep in contact with us or do not have any
activity in your account for the time periods specified
by state ];m', vour property could become subject to
sfate unclaimed property laws and transfe to the
appropriate state.



Exhibit 4.2

CLASS B COMMON STOCK CLASS B COMMON STOCK
PR AL BN AT zllsr T CERTERCATE & TRANM AR
4 CANPORL WA JUSLY CITY. S0 0

B 2000000000 Ut
TWENTY-FIRST CENTURY FOX, INC. v
PO CRATED UNGER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF DELASLST

THIS CERTIFIES THAT
E | CUSIP S0130A 20 0 |

T SVESRD PO LA D T

propesty
the shates repeesentod horeby, ano issued and shall by held subject 1o all of the provisions of the Certifeate of
Imcorporation, as amended and of restated, and ihe By-Laws. a3 amended and of restated, of the Company
{opies of which are on Ew with the Company and with the Transfor Agant), to all of which each holder, by
acteptance hereol, assents. This Centficate s not vabd unless countersigned and regisiered by the Transfer Agent
and Rogistrar,

Witness tha (acsimie seal of the Company and the facsiree sgnatues of its duly authonzed offecars,
OATED  CO-ummayyre

COUNTERSAGNED AND RECSTERED:

CONPUTEREHARE TRUST COMPANY. MA

TRANEFER AGENT AND REGIITRAS
Tl I sscutivy CFices :

1234567




TWENTY-FIEST CENTURY FOX INC.

THE COMPANY WILL FURNISH WITHCOUT CHARGE TO EACH SHAREHOLDER WHO 30 REQUESTS, A SUMMARY OF
THE POWEERS, DESIGNATIONS, PREFERENCES AND RELATIVE, PARTICIPATING, OPTIONAL OF OTHEE SPECIAL
RIGHTS OF EACH CLASS OF STOCK OF THE COMPANY AND THE QUALIFICATIONS, LIMITATIONS OR
EESTRICTIONS OF SUCH PEEFERENCES AND REIGHTS, AND THE VARTATIONS IN RIGHTS, PEEFERENCES AND
LIMITATIONS DETEEMINED FOE EACH SERIES, WHICH ARE FIXED EY THE CERTIFICATE OF INCOEPOEATION OF
THE COMPANY, AS AMENDED AND OF. RESTATED, AND THE RESCLUTIONS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTOES OF
THE COMPANY, AND THE AUTHORITY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO DETERMINE VARIATIONS FOR FUTURE
SERIES. SUCH REQUEST MAY BEMADE TO THE OFFICE OF THE SECEETARY OF THE COMPANY OF TO THE
TEANSFER. AGENT. THE BEOARD OF DIEECTORS MAY EEQUIRE THE OWINER OF A LOST OF. DESTEOYED STCOCE
CERTIFICATE, OR HIS LEGAT REPRESENTATIVES, TO GIVE THE COMPANY A BONWND TO INDEMNIFY IT AND ITS
TR ANSFER. AGENTS AND EEGISTRARS AGAINST ANY CLAIM THAT MAY BE MADE AGAINST THEM ON ACCOUNT
OF THE ATTEGED LOS5 OF DESTEUCTION OF ANY SUCH CERTIFICATE.

The following abbreviations, when uzed in the mzcription onthe face ofthis certificate, shall be construed as though they were
wiittern out in full according to applicablelaws or regulations:

TEN COM - &5 tenants in common IR GIFTMEACT: =asnssimiinsinnay Cs b i e ey
(Cust) (Mdinor)
TEHMENT - astenants bvthe sntirstiss under Uniforn Giftsto Minors At
{Gtat=)
JT.TEN - a&sjoint tenants with richtof UHIETEEMITACT oo Custodisn {until age:................. k .................. 3
survivorshipandnot as tanants {Cust)
in common

dinor) {Stats)

Additional abbreviations may also be used though notin the abowve list.

FLEASE INSERT S0CIAL SECURITY OR OTHER
IDENTIFYING NUMBEE. OF ASSIGNEE

For valuereceived, hereby sell, assign and transferunto

(PLEASE PRINT OF. TYPEWEITE NAME AND ADDRESS, INCLUDING POSTAL ZIP CODE, OF ASSIGNEE)

Sharss

cf the commeon stock represented by the withm Certificate, and do hereby wrevoczbly constitate and appomt
Aftomey

to tranzder the sad stock on the books of the withm-named Company with full power of substitution m the premises.

Dated: U Signaturals) Guarantsed: Medallion Guarantes Stamp
i THE SIGHNATUEER) SHOULD BE GUAEANTEED EY AN ELI(ZELE
3 ’ GUARANTORINSTITUTION (Banks, Stockbrokars. Savinss andLoan
Signaturs: Associations and Cradit Unions) WITH MEMBERESHIP IN AN
Tt : ; : o APPROVED SIGNATURE GUARANTEEMEDALLIONPROGEANL
Motica: Tha signsturato this assipnmeant must correspond weiththe = = :
name as written upon the face ofths cartificata, in avary FURSUANT TO8.E.C. RULE 17Ad-13.
particular, without alt=mtion orenlarsement, or anv changs
whataver,
The IR5 requires that we report the cost hasis of certam
shares zequired after Janmary &, 2011, If wour shares wers
coverad by the legislation and you have seld or transferred
the shares and requested 2 specific cost basis calculation
£ TEY o = method, we have processed 2 requested. If you did not
SECURITY INSTRUCTIONS specify 2 cost basis caleulation method, we have deflted
to the first in. first out (FIFOYmethod. Please wisit our
THIS IS WATERMARKD PAPER. DONOT ACCEET website or consult your tax adviser if you need additional
WITHOUT NOTING WATERMARE. HOLD TO LIGHT Eairemalion: Sk cost hask
TO VERIFY WATERMARKE.

If vou do not keep in contact with us or do not have any
activity in vour account for the time periods specified
by state law, vour property could become subject to
state unclaimed property faws and transfe to the
appropriate state.



Exhibit 10.24

June 9, 2014

Chase Carey

President and Chief Operating Officer
Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc.

1211 Avenue of the Americas

New York, NY 1003¢€

Dear Chase:

This letter agreement (the “Letter Agreement”niended to constitute a binding modification to iydmended and Restated Agreement
effective as of July 1, 2010, with 21st Century FPawrerica, Inc. (formerly known as News America Inoarated (the “Company”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of Twenty-First Century Fox, Iformerly known as News Corporation, “21CF”), asesntied on June 11, 2012 (the
“Agreement”) and shall confirm the terms and caindi which will apply to your Agreement as fromyla| 2014. All terms and conditions
set forth in the Agreement remain applicable unédébsrwise amended by the terms and conditioninedtbelow. Capitalized terms used and
not defined herein shall have the meanings giveh serms in the Agreement.

The Company and you agree that the Agreement ebliegmended as follows:

1. Term of Employment

a. Section 2 of the Agreement states that the TerBEngbloyment shall mean commencing on the Effectiageland ending
on June 30, 2014. The Company and you hereby &mgedend the Term of Employment for a period of tyears
commencing on July 1, 2014 through June 30, 20@6p&rposes of this Letter Agreement, the TermrmpByment sha
mean the period from July 1, 2010 through June8Q@6, and the Extended Term shall mean the pergod fuly 1, 2014
through June 30, 2016 (t"Extended Terr”).

b. Notwithstanding paragraph I(a) of this Letter Agrest, you may elect to conclude the Term of Empleytmo earlie
than December 31, 2015 after providing six montimsice to the Company, which notice may be giveradier than
July 1, 2015. In the event that you elect to codelthe Term of Employment, you shall agree to tegdar resignation
from 21CF's Board of Directors (“the Board”), upthre request of the Board. In addition, you shal\vie non-exclusive
consulting services to the Company through Jun2@06 (the “Consulting Term”). You agree to provile services as
agreed between the Company and you from time te tioring the Consulting Term on such days and dwsuch times
(but not on a full-time basis) as the Company stegbonably determine in consultation with you,clhinay include
travel. You shall continue to receive during then@dting Term the compensation and benefits sét farthe Agreemen
to the extent permissible under the terms of sul@hspand arrangements. You agree that during amg@ting Term you
will not, in any manner, directly or indirectly, oywmanage, operate, join, control or participatd@ownership,
management, operation or control of, engage inbaisyness with or be employed by, or connected ynnaanner with an
of the companies as shall be mutually agreed upmnagree to cooperate in seeking to avoid the 4084se taxes in
connection with your transition to a consultancgifion.

2. LongTerm Incentive Awards

a. You shall be entitled to receive the full valueaoly award that has been granted to you under 2@ ffermance-Based
LTIP prior to the Extended Term at the end of thplizable performance period of such Awe

b. Any LTIP awards granted to you during the Extendledm will not be subject to forfeiture and will payable to you in
full at the end of the performance period, exdefihe case of a termination for Cause or resignatiithout Good Reasc
in which case you shall receive a pro rata paybatioh awards based upon the number of days entthyéng the
performance perioc

3. Termination Provisions

a. If you are terminated by the Company without Calisgéng the Extended Term, Section 7(b) of the Agreet shall not
apply. In such event, you shall be entitled to nexgour Salary, Target Annual Bonus Amount, thigvalue of any
Performance-Based LTIP and any Continuing Health\&eelfare Benefits, to the extent permissible urtderterms of
such plans and arrangements, that you are entiitlesteive for the duration of the Extended Ternf &tse termination
had not occurrec

b. A resignation pursuant to paragraph I(b) of thiérAgreement shall not be considered to be gmasion without Good
Reason or a resignation for Good Reason under gineefnent




By counter-signing this letter agreement, you agkrdge and agree to be bound by the terms hereof.

Acknowledged and Agree:

/s/ Chase Care

Chase Care

Sincerely,
21st CENTURY FOX AMERICA, INC.

By: /s/ Janet Nov:

Name:JANET NOVA
Title: EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT




Guaranty

The undersigned guarantees the performance obtegding amendment in all respects.

TWENY-FIRST CENTURY FOX, INC

By: /s/ Janet Nov:

Name:JANET NOVA
Title: EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT



Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Earnings:
Income before income tax exper
Add:
Equity earnings from affiliate
Dividends received from affiliate
Fixed charges, excluding capitalized inte!
Amortization of capitalized intere

Total earnings available for fixed charg

Fixed charges
Interest on debt and finance lease cha
Capitalized interes
Interest element on rental expel
Total fixed charge

Ratio of earnings to fixed charg

Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc.

(in Millions, Except Ratio Amounts)

Exhibit 12.1

(Unaudited)
Fiscal years ended June 3(
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
$ 518¢ $ 8,73¢ $ 4,46: $ 3,09¢ $ 2,762
(622) (655) (63€) (352) (353)
35€ 324 281 252 23¢
1,267 1,217 1,18¢ 1,12¢ 1,16
40 42 37 44 62
$ 6,232 $ 9,66 $ 5331 $ 4,167 $ 3,87:
$ 1,121 % 1,06 $ 1,03: $ 96z $ 99¢
28 41 42 44 44
14¢€ 154 154 163 164
$ 1,29 $ 1,25¢ $ 1,22¢ $ 1,16¢ $ 1,20
4.8 7.7 4.3 3.6 3.2




NEW KARLHOLT HOLDINGS PTY LIMITED
21st Century Fox Investments Pty Limit

21st Century Fox QP Holdings Pty L

Carlholt (A.C.T.) Pty. Limitec

Carlholt Holdings Pty. Limite:

Carlholt Investments Australia Pty. Limit:
Carlholt Investments Pty. Limite

Carlholt Nominees Pty. Limite

Fox Film Australia No 2 Pty Lt

Karlholt Australia Pty. Limitec

Karlholt Holdings Pty Limitec

Karlholt Pty. Limited

New Karlholt Pty Limitec

QP Developments Pty. Limite

QP Finance Pty. Limite

QP Investments Pty. Limite

Queensland Press Pty. Limit

Star LLC Australia Pty. Limite:

Tejeku Pty. Limitec

Telegraph Investment Australia Pty. Limit
Telegraph Investment Co Pty. Limit
Twentieth Century Fox Film Distributors Pty Limit
Twentieth Century Fox Home Entertainment AustrBlig Limited
Twentieth Century Fox Home Entertainment South fitalety Limited
Twenty-First Century Fox Film Distributors Pty Limite
21st CENTURY FOX FILM UK HOLDINGS LIMITED
21st Century Fox Media Company Limit

21st Century Fox UK Nominees Limitt
Newscorp Finance Limite

Ordinto Investment

Sky Channel Limitec

Sky Radio A/S

SRC Holdings Limitec

Star Advertising Sales Limite

21st CENTURY FOX AMERICA, INC.

21CF Insurance Services, I

21CFlight, Inc.

21stCentury Fox (Asia) Ltd

21st Century Fox Advertising Sales Incorpore
21st Century Fox Air, Inc

21st Century Fox Boston Realty Cc

21st Century Fox Cayman 2000 Limit

21st Century Fox Cayman DTH (Mexico) L
21st Century Fox Cayman DTH Lt

21st Century Fox Cayman Holdings Limit
21st Century Fox Cayman International Limi
21st Century Fox Corporation Subsidiary, |
21st Century Fox DTH Leasing, Ir
21stCentury Fox Europe and Asia, Ir

21st Century Fox Europe LL

21st Century Fox Florida LL!

21stCentury Fox Luxembourg Finance S.a
21st Century Fox Magazines, It

21st Century Fox Real Estate, i

21st Century Fox Rotana Holdings LI

21st Century Fox Sports Programming, |
21st Century Fox Star US LL

21st Century Fox T Investments, It

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

Australia

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom
Cayman Island

United Kingdom

United Kingdom
Denmark

Cayman Island

United Kingdom

United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
Cayman Island
Cayman Island
Cayman Island
Cayman Island
Cayman Island

United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
Luxembourg

United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ

Exhibit 21




American Sky Broadcasting, L.L.t
ASkyB Holdings, Inc

Austair, Inc.

Australian Finance Company Ir
Balkan News Finance, In

BSkyB Holdco, Inc

Carlholt Investments US Sub, Ir
Cavan Publications Incorporat
DLO Corp.

EFL Licensing, Inc

epartners limite

epartners LLC

FEG Holdings, Inc

Fox Acquisition Sub, Inc

Fox Media International LL(

Fox NAPI Holdings LLC

FOX Registry, LLC

Fox Studios East, In

Fox TV 10 Holdings, Inc

Fox, Inc.

Genuine Internet, In

HEIKO, L.L.C.

Heritage Broadcasting Group, Ir
Heritage GP, Inc

HMI Broadcasting Corporatio
Karlholt US Sub, Inc

KIHT, Inc.

LJL Corp.

Murdoch Publications Incorporat:
NAHI Real Estate Corporatic
NAPI G.P. Corp

NAPI/WNS, Inc.

NAPI-TVGOS, INC.

NDS Holdco, Inc

NDS Holdings Ltd

News-MCV Holdings, Inc.

New STAR US Holdings Subsidiary, LL
News America Holdings Incorporat
News America Publishing Incorporat
News Bulgaria LLC

News Bulgaria Television, LL(
News Croatia Inc

News Delaware Corporatic

News DTH Argentina Holdings, In:
News Group Realty Corporatic
News Romania Inc

News/P+ Holdings, LL(C
NewsCore, LLC

NP 2 Inc.

Omni Holdings, Inc

Repaca, Inc

San Antonio Film Features, In
SGH Stream Sub, In:

Sky Investments U.K., In

STAR CGS Holdings, LL(C

Star Sport GP, Inc

Star US Film Holdings, Inc

STAR US Holdings Subsidiary, LL
STAR US Holdings, Inc
Supermarket Radio Network, Ir

United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
Bermudas

United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ




TENC, Inc. United States of Americ
The Expres-21st Century Fox Corporatic United States of Americ
Tl US Sub, Inc United States of Americ

STAR GROUP LIMITED

21st Century Fox PD Investments Limil
21st Century Fox Finance (HK) Limite

21st Century Fox Printing Limite

21st Century Holdings Limite

Acetic Investments Lt

All Satellite Broadcasting Company Limiti
Asia Productions Limite

Asian Cable Systems Private Limit

Asian Music Corporation Limite

Asianet Communications Limite

Buzzer Investments Lt

Channel V Music Networks Limited Partnersl
Content & Media Services Sdn Bf
Crombie International Lt

Fast Plus Limitec

Festival Books & Associates Limite
Fortune Star Entertainment (HK) Limit
Fortune Star Entertainment Limit

Fox International Channels (Thailand) Limit
Fox International Channels Hong Kong Limil
FOX INTERNATIONAL CHANNELS PHILIPPINES CORPORATIOI
Fox International Productions (HK) Limite
FOX VENTURES KOREA YH

Global Cricket Corporation PTE Limite
Greenwich Investments Limite

Indian Region Broadcasting Limite

Indya Interactive Services Private Limit
Kushmore Profits Limite:

Media Investments (Central Asia) Limit
Mulberry Investments Lt

Network Digital Distribution Services -FLLC
Pine Hill Investments Private L

Precision Components Private Limit
Quazar Investments (Mauritius) Limiti
Riddle Investments Lt

Satellite Television Asian Region Limite
SGL Entertainment Limite

Spanish Investments L

Star (China) Limitec

Star (China) Ltc

Star (Middle East) Limite:

Star (Taiwan) Limitec

Star Entertainment Holdings Limite

Star Entertainment Media Private Limit
STAR HS Ltd

Star India Private Limite

STAR International Holding (Thailand) Co., Li
Star International Movies Limite

Star ISP Ltc

Star Middle East F-LLC

Star News Broadcasting Limite

Star Regional (SEA) Pte. L

Star Television Advertising Limite

Star Television Asia Limite

Star Television News Limite

Star Television Oriental Limite

Cayman Island
British Virgin Islands
Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
Mauritius

British Virgin Islands
Mauritius

Mauritius

British Virgin Islands
India

Mauritius

Hong Kong
Malaysia

Mauritius

British Virgin Islands
Hong Kong

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands
Thailand

Hong Kong
Philippines

Hong Kong

Korea, Republic o
Singapore

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

India

British Virgin Islands
British Virgin Islands
Mauritius

United Arab Emirate
Mauritius

India

Mauritius

Mauritius

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands
Mauritius

British Virgin Islands
China

British Virgin Islands
British Virgin Islands
British Virgin Islands
India

Mauritius

India

Thailand

British Virgin Islands
Mauritius

United Arab Emirate
British Virgin Islands
Singapore

British Virgin Islands
British Virgin Islands
British Virgin Islands
British Virgin Islands




Star Television Productions Limite

Star Television Technical Services Limit
Star TV (Nominees) Limite

Star TV Filmed Entertainment (HK) Limite
Star TV Filmed Entertainment Limite
STARTV ATC Holding Limited
STARTV.COM Holdings Limitec
Starvision Hong Kong Limite

SVJ Holding Limited

Vijay Television Private Limitet

Yarraton Ltd

ESS

E. Corp. |, LLC

ESS Advertising (Mauritius) S.N.C. et Compag
ESS Asia Ltc

ESS Asian Networks Pte L

ESS Distribution Ltc

ESS Distribution (Mauritius) S.N.C. et Compag
ESS Hungary Intellectual Property Licensing Limitadbility Company
FOX Sports Asia (S) Private Lt

FOX Sports Sdn. Bhe

Scorpio Television India Private Limite
Sports Corporation Limite

Star Sports India Private Limite
Worldwide Wickets, Mauritius

21st CENTURY FOX EUROPE, INC.
Alliance Yapim Ltd

Huzur Radyo Televizyon A

TV Inwestycje Spolka Z Organiczona Odpowiedziali@
FOX SECURITIES B.V.

21st Century Fox Adelaide Holdings B.
21st Century Fox Outdoor B.

21st Century Fox Outdoor Europe B.

21st Century Fox Television B.

Channel [V] Netherlands No 1 B."
Channel [V] Netherlands No 2 B."
Creative Networks International (the NetherlandsyYE
F.I.M. International B.V

Fox Securitie B.V

International Global Networks B.\
Satellite Television Asian Region B.

Star Europe Holdings B.\

STAR India Holdings B.V

SKY DEUTSCHLAND AG

Premiere WIN Fernsehen Gmt

SCAS Satellite CA Services Gmt

Sky Deutschland Fernsehen GmbH & Co.
Sky Deutschland Service Center Gm

Sky Deutschland Verwaltun-GmbH

Sky Hotel Entertainment Gmb

Sky Media Network Gmbt

Sky Osterreich Fernsehen Gm

Sky Osterreich Verwaltung Gmk

SKY ITALIA S.R.L.

Sky ltalia Network Service S.r

Telepiu S.r.l.

FOX ENTERTAINMENT GROUP, INC.
127 Service, Inc

18 Street Productions, In

19th Holdings Corporatio

British Virgin Islands
British Virgin Islands
Hong Kong

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands
British Virgin Islands
Bermuda

Hong Kong

Mauritius

India

British Virgin Islands
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
Mauritius

Malaysia

Singapore

United States of Americ
Mauritius

Hungary

Singapore

Malaysia

India

Hong Kong

India

Mauritius

United States of Americ
Turkey

Turkey

Poland

Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherland:s
Netherland:s
Netherland:s
Netherland:s
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherland:s
Netherland:s
Netherland:s
Netherland:

Germany

Germany

Germany

Germany

Germany

Germany

Germany

Germany

Austria

Austria

Italy

Italy

Italy

United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ




21CF, Inc.

21st Century Fox Film Corporatic
21st Century Fox Limited Japi
21st Century Fox Preferred Finance, |
24 Kitchen Medya Hizmetleri Anonim Sirke
24Kitchen Television B.V

3 At The Goat Productions, LL
880 Productions Limite

99 Productions, Inc

A World of Productions, Inc
Abraham Holding, LLC

Abraham Investment, LL!
Abraham Productions, LL
ACAZ2, Inc.

AGY Service, Inc

Alfri Service, Inc.

Alienator Films, Inc

American Housewife Productions, Ir
Animal Service, Inc

Animation Domination HD, Inc
April Service, Inc.

Aqua Films Pty Limitec

ARC Holding, Ltd.

Atlantic 2.1 Entertainment Group, Ir
Baby Network Limitec

Baggin Service, Inc

Bazmark Film Il Pty Limitec
Bazmark Film Pty Limitec

BEL PR Productions, LL(

BEL US Productions, LL(

Best Marigold Films Limitec
Bestmar Limitec

Bestmar Service, In

BHC Network Partner 11, Inc
BHC Network Partner Ill, Inc
BHC Network Partner, Inc

BHC Properties, Inc

Big Ten Network Services, LL!
Big Ten Network, LLC

Bigyear Service, Inc

Blue Sky Studios, Inc

Bluebush Productions, LL
Booker Service, Inc

Breakout Kings Holdings LL(
Breakout Kings Investments LL
Breakout Kings Productions LL
Brightstar Fox Holdings LL(
Brightstar Fox Investments LL
Brightstar Fox Productions LL
BS-Fox

Cannell Entertainment, In

Can't Can't Productions, In

CCI Television Productions, In
CCl Television, Inc

Centfox Film Ges.m.b.l

Cetran Service, In

Charing Cross Entertainment, It
Chasing the Rebel Productions LI
Cinecanal S.A. de C.\
Cinemascope Products, Ir

United States of Americ
United States of Americ
Japar

United States of Americ
Turkey

Netherlands

United States of Americ
New Zealanc

United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
Australia

United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United Kingdom

United States of Americ
Australia

Australia

United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
Japar

United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
Austria

United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
Mexico

United States of Americ




Clearwater Entertainment, In
ClickDiario Networks S.A
Cotton Cage Productions, Ir
Counsel Service, In

Crota Service, Inc

D.A.W. Productions, Inc

Dave Productions, Int

Dawn Service, Inc

De Luxe Laboratories Film Storage, I
Deal Done Productions, In
Descent Service, Ini

DESS Service, Inc

DHE Productions, Inc

Diehar Service, Inc

Difive Service, Inc

Digital Leaseholds, Inc

Digital Ventures S.R.L

Dino Bones Productions, In
DirectaClick Mexico S. de R.L. de C.
DOAW Service, Inc

Done Service, Inc

Dot Fox Inc.

Dozen Canada Productions L
Drag Service, Inc

Dragonball US Productions, In
Dragons Prow Pty Limite
Drive-In Cinemas Limitec

Earth Canada Productions L
Earth US Productions, In
Elephant Service, In

Elite Sports Limitec

Emmett Street Films, Ini

Erag Service, Inc

Eredivisie Beheer B.V
Eredivisie Media & Marketing C.V
Estudios Teleméxico, S. de R.L. de C
Evergreen Television Production, It
FA Productions, Inc

Fairfax Productions, Inc

Fanvo Service, Inc

Farcrowd Service, Inc

Fastball Sports Productions, LL
FBC Sub, Inc

FF Quebec Productions Lt
FGO, LLC

FIC Portugal, Lda

FICCJM Asia Limited

Final Stretch Productions, In
Fiostar Service, Inc

FIP Global Productions 1, Ir

FIP Global Productions 2, In
FIPStar, LLC

First Class Service, In

FLAC Worldwide L.L.C.
Flashlight 21, Inc

FNB Ventures, LLC

Four Star Entertainment Cot
Four Star International, In

Fox 1440 Digital Enterprises, LL
Fox 21, Inc.

United States of Americ
Guatemal:

United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
Argentina

United States of Americ
Mexico

United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
Canade

United States of Americ
United States of Americ
Australia

Kenya

Canade

United States of Americ
United States of Americ
Gibraltar

United States of Americ
United States of Americ
Netherland:s
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Fox Animation Los Angeles, In

Fox Animation Studios, Inc

Fox Australia Investments Pty Limite
Fox Australia Productions Pty Limite
Fox Australia Pty Limitec

Fox Avatar Films, Inc

Fox B10 Channel Partner, Ir

Fox Baseball Holdings, Ini

Fox Boston Land Holdings, In

Fox Boston Land LLC

Fox Boston Seaport Land LL

Fox Broadcasting Compat

Fox Broadcasting India, In

Fox Broadcasting Sub, In

Fox BSB Holdco, Inc

Fox Cable Network Services, LL
Fox Cable Networks, Int

Fox Cable Ventures, In

Fox Center Productions, In

Fox Channels (India) Private Limit
Fox Channels Colombia Ltd

Fox Channels France SF

Fox Channels Japan, Ir

Fox Channels Middle East FZ LL
Fox Channels Venezuela, S.R

Fox Circle Productions, In

Fox College Sports, Ini

Fox Consumer Products Limitt

Fox Crime Medya Hizmetleri Anonim Sirke
Fox Daytime Prods., In

Fox Development Group, In

Fox Digital Enterprises, In

Fox Digital Entertainment, Int

Fox Dome Holding Company, In
Fox East Productions, In

Fox Factory Sr

Fox Film Australia Pty Limitec

Fox Film de la Argentina S./

Fox Film do Brasil Ltda

Fox Film Music Corporatiol

Fox Film Services, Inc

Fox Filmed Entertainment Australia Pty Limit
Fox Global Holdings, Inc

Fox Global Productions (UK) Limite
Fox Global Productions, In

Fox IFL Partner, Inc

Fox Innovation Lab LLC

Fox Interactive Media Argentina S.R.
Fox Interactive Media Brasil Internet Ltc
Fox Interactive Media Germany Gmt
Fox Interactive Media Holdings Canada, |
Fox Interactive Media LL(

Fox Interactive Media Mexico Services, S. de R& GlV.

Fox Interactive Media Mexico, S. de R.L. de C
Fox Interactive Media Poland Sp.z«

Fox Interactive, Inc

Fox International Channels (Chile) Limita

Fox International Channels (France) S

Fox International Channels (Jap:

Fox International Channels (UK) Limite
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Fox International Channels (US) Ir

Fox International Channels Africa (Pty) Limit

Fox International Channels Australia Pty Limii

Fox International Channels Bulgaria EO(

Fox International Channels Ecuador Cia. L

Fox International Channels Espafia S.L

Fox International Channels Europe Luxembourg $.
Fox International Channels Germany Gm

Fox International Channels Greece Societe Anon
Fox International Channels Guatemala Holdings |
Fox International Channels Guatemala

Fox International Channels Guatemala, Responsadbilidmitada
Fox International Channels Hungary Korlatolt Fésséqi Tarsasag
Fox International Channels Italy S.i

Fox International Channels Latin American Holdifg)¥ .
Fox International Channels Luxembourg S.a

Fox International Channels Middle East-LLC

Fox International Channels Netherlands E

Fox International Channels Netherlands Holding E
Fox International Channels Norway /

Fox International Channels C

Fox International Channels Panama S. de |

Fox International Channels Poland Sp.z

FOX International Channels Sports Europe E

Fox International Channels Sports Europe Holdingé
Fox International Channels Sports Europe US HoklihgC
Fox International Channels Sweden .

Fox International Channels Switzerland Gm

Fox International Channels Vietham Company Lim
Fox International Channels Yapim Limited Sirk

Fox International Europe Luxembourg S.C

Fox International LLC

Fox International Pictures Espana, &

Fox International Productions (Germany) Gm

Fox International Productions (Greater China) Lad
Fox International Productions (Italy) S.i

Fox International Productions (UK) Limite

Fox International Productions Italia S.

Fox International Productions Japan K

Fox International Productions Mexico, S. de R.LQ{¥.
Fox International Productions, Ir

Fox Japan Movie Channels, It

Fox Lane Productions, In

Fox LAPTV Il, SC

Fox LAPTV Media Holdings | LLC

Fox LAPTV Media Holdings Il LLC

Fox Late Night Productions, In

Fox Latin American Channel do Brasil Ltc

Fox Latin American Channel LL

Fox Latin American Channel SF

Fox Latin American Channels Peru S.F

Fox Life Medya Hizmetleri Anonim Sirke

Fox London Productions Limite

Fox Look Corporatiol

Fox Louisiana Holding LLC

Fox Louisiana Investment LL

Fox Louisiana Productions LL

Fox Media Services, In

Fox Mobile Group, Inc

Fox Mobile Holdings, LLC
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Fox Moore Park Pty Limite

Fox Motion Picture Venture No. 1, In
Fox Movie Channel, Inc

Fox Movietonews, Inc

Fox Music, Inc.

Fox Net, Inc.

Fox Networks Group Enterprises, Ll
Fox Networks Group, Inc

Fox News International, In

Fox News Network, LLC

Fox News Productions, In

Fox News Service, In

Fox Nitetime Prods., In

Fox Ohio Holdings Il, LLC

Fox Ohio Holdings, LLC

Fox Optco, LLC

Fox Pan American Sports Brazil Ltc
Fox Pan American Sports LL

Fox Partnership Investment Pty Limit
Fox Pa-PerView Services, Inc

Fox Payroll Services, Ini

Fox Production Services Pty Limits
Fox Production Services, In

Fox Québec Productions Lt

Fox Reality Channel LL(

Fox Records, Inc

Fox Rhode Island Productions, I
Fox RSNCo Holdings, LL(

Fox Searchlab, In

Fox Searchlight (UK) Limite«

Fox Searchlight Completions, Ir
Fox Searchlight Pictures, In

Fox Services, Inc

Fox Soccer Channel, LL

Fox Software, Inc

Fox Sports 1, LLC

Fox Sports 2, LLC

Fox Sports Arena, LL(

Fox Sports Baseball Holdings, Ir
Fox Sports en Espanol LL

Fox Sports Interactive Media, LL
Fox Sports International Distribution Limit
Fox Sports International, In

FOX SPORTS Japan, Co., L

Fox Sports Latin America Limite
Fox Sports Latin America S./

Fox Sports Mexico Distribution LL(
Fox Sports Middle East Lt

Fox Sports Net Arizona, LL!

Fox Sports Net Bay Area Holdings, LL
Fox Sports Net Canada Holdings, LI
Fox Sports Net Chicago Holdings, LL
Fox Sports Net Detroit, LL(

Fox Sports Net Distribution, LL!

Fox Sports Net Florida, In

Fox Sports Net National Ad Sales Holdings II, L
Fox Sports Net National Ad Sales Holdings, L

Fox Sports Net North, LL(
Fox Sports Net Ohio, LL(
Fox Sports Net Pacific Holdings, Ir
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Fox Sports Net West 2, LL
Fox Sports Net West, LL!
Fox Sports Net, Inc

Fox Sports Productions, In

Fox Sports U.S. Distribution LL!
Fox Sports World Middle East, LL
Fox Square Productions (Canada),

Fox Square Productions, Ir
Fox Stage Productions, Ir
Fox Stations Sales, In

Fox Studios Australia Pty Limite

Fox Telco Holdings Ltd

Fox Television Animation, Inc
Fox Television Group S. de R.L. de C

Fox Television Holdings, Inc
Fox Television Stations, In

Fox Television Studios Australia Pty Limit
Fox Television Studios France S,
Fox Television Studios Productions, Ii

Fox Television Studios, In
Fox Toma 1, LLC

Fox Toronto Productions Lt
Fox Town Holdco, Inc

Fox Transactional TV, Inc
Fox Tunes, Inc

Fox UK Productions Limite:

Fox Unit Investment Pty Limite

Fox US Productions 1, In

Fox US Productions 2, In

Fox US Productions 3, In

Fox US Productions 4, In

Fox US Productions 5, In

Fox US Productions 6, In

Fox US Productions 7, In

Fox US Productions 8, In

Fox US Productions 9, In

Fox US Productions 10, In
Fox US Productions 11, In
Fox US Productions 12, In
Fox US Productions 13, In
Fox US Productions 14, In
Fox US Productions 15, In
Fox US Productions 16, In
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Fox US Productions 22, In
Fox US Productions 23, In
Fox US Productions 24, In
Fox US Productions 25, In
Fox US Productions 26, In
Fox US Productions 27, In
Fox US Productions 28, In
Fox US Productions 29, In
Fox US Productions 30, In
Fox US Productions 31, In
Fox US Productions 32, In
Fox US Productions 33, In
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Fox US Productions 34, In

Fox US Productions 35, In

Fox US Productions 36, In
Fox West Pictures, In

Fox World Enterprises, In

Fox World Productions, Int
Fox World UK Limited

Fox Worldwide Productions, In
Fox/UTV Holdings, Inc
Fox-BRV Southern Sports Holdings, LL
Foxfilmes Limitade

Fox-Hulu Holdings, Inc
FOXLAB, INC.

Fox-NGC (International) Holdings, Ini
Fox-NGC (US) Holdings, Inc
Foxstar Productions, In
FoxTelecolombia, S.A
Foxvideo International Distribution, In
Foxview, Inc.

Foxwatch Productions, In
Frank Service, Inc

Fredco Property Holdings, In
FRSM Holdings LLC

FS Australia LLC

FS West Holdings, LL(

FS1 Charlotte, LLC

FS1 Los Angeles, LL(

FS1 Remote Production, LL
FS1 Studio Production, LL

FSI SPV, Inc

FSIM Corporatior

FSLA Argentina SRL

FSLA Holdings LLC

FSLA Mexico S. de R.L. de C.\

FSLA Mexico Servicios S. de R.L. de C.

FSN San Diego Holdings, LL
FSN Southern Holdings, In

FSO Productions, In

FTS Boston, Inc

FTS Investments, In

FTS Philadelphia, Inc

Fuel TV, Inc.

Future Service, Inc

Fuzzy Puppet Productions, LL

FV Productions Ltd

FVC Productions, Inc

FWA Productions, Inc

FX Medya Hizmetleri Anonim Sirke
FX Networks, LLC

FXX Network, LLC

Galaxy Way Finance Company, Ir
Galaxy Way Productions, In

Gar 2 Service, Inc

GATYV Productions, Inc

Gen Production Service, In
Genesis Video Entertainment, Ir
Giant Bowling Pin Productions, In
Glee Touring, Inc

Glen Avenue Films, Inc

Global Media Content LL(
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Gold Key Entertainment, In

Gone Fission, Inc

Greenleaves Productions, It

Guern Service, Inc

Gum Tree Productions Pty Limite

Half-Life Productions, Inc

Hangel Service, Inc

Harmon Cove Productions, Ir

Heat Service, Inc

Heavenly Kingdom Films, Inc

HEC Holdco, Inc

Hedifam SRL

Highgate Pictures, In

Highgate Productions, In

Hispano Foxfilm S.A.E

Hitt Service, Inc

Home Alone 5 Productions, In

Honk LLC

Hornrim Productions, Inc

HPR Productions, LL(

ILY Service, Inc.

Imperfect Justice Productions, Ir

Intermix Holdings LLC

Intermix Media LLC

Intermix Network, LLC

Inversoa Walcosol SR

ISP Transponder LLt¢

Just Wright Films, Inc

KCOP Television, Inc

KNSD License, Inc

KOG Entertainment Holding LL(

KOG Entertainment Investment LL

KOG Productions LLC

L.C. Holding Corp

LAPTV A Corporation

LAPTV B Corporatior

LAPTV SAS

LAPTV SpA

LAPTV LLC

Larchmont Productions, In

Latin America Finance Company, Ir

Latin American Pay Television Service de Venezzk.
Latin American Pay Television Service S.R
Leap Off Productions, In

Learning Corporation of Americ

Learning Corporation of America Films, Ir
Les Productions F«-Europa S.A

Library Holdings, Inc

Life of Pi Productions, Inc

Limited Liability Company "Fox Basic Channel
Limited Liability Company "Fox Digital Channel:
Limited Liability Company "Fox Factual Channe
Limited Liability Company "Fox International Holdjs"

Limited Liability Company "Fox International Prodigns CIS"

Limited Liability Company "Fox Television Channe
Limited Liability Company "Twentieth Century Fox €I

Limited Liability Company "Twentieth Century Foxkgiria"

Lin Service, Inc
Lincolnwood Drive, Inc
Looking Glass Studios LL!
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Russia

Russia

Russia

Russia

Russia

Russia
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Looks At Productions, Inc

Lop Service, Inc

Lovely Rita Productions, In
Marigold Service, Inc

Marone Service, Inc

Master Distribution Service, In
Max Service, Inc

Millennium Canadian Productions Lt
Mirror Pictures Corporatio
Mirrors 2 Holding LLC

Mirrors 2 Investment LLC
Mirrors 2 Productions LL(
Monet Lane Prods., Ini

Monty Two, Inc.

Moubet Service, Inc

Mounty Productions Ltc
Movietonews, Inc

Muddy Water Entetainment, In
Museum Canada Productions L
Museum US Productions, In
MVP Video Productions, Inc

My First Friend Productions, In
MyNetworkTV, Inc.

MyNT Prods., Inc

MySpace Limited Liability Compan
MySpace Russia, LL!

NA Property Holdings, Inc
National Advertising Partnel

National Geographic Channel Adventure Medya HizereA.S.

National Geographic Channel Denmark A

National Geographic Channel Medya Hizmetleri Ano@irketi
National Geographic Channel Wild Medya Hizmetleriohim Sirketi

National Sports Programmir

National Studios, Inc

Neigood Service, Inc

Netherlands Fox Film Corporation B.
Nevelet Service, Inc

New Co Comedy LLC

New Upstairs Productions Limite

New World Administratior

New World Animation, Ltd

New World Communications Group Incorpora
New World Communications of Atlanta, Ir
New World Communications of Detroit, In
New World Communications of Tampa, Ir
New World Entertainment, Lt

New World Pictures, Ltc

New World Television Incorporate

New World Television Productions, In
New World Television Programmir

New World Videc

New World/Genesis Distributio

News Germany Holding Gmb
News-USDTV Holdings, Inc

Next Speed Hosting, LL!

NGC (Netherlands) B.V

NGC China Limitec

NGC Europe Limitec

NGC Israel Limited Partnersh

NGC Network (Australia) Pty Limite
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Canade

United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
Russia
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Germany
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Netherland:s

China
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NGC Network (India) Private Limite
NGC Network (Mauritius) Holding Ltc
NGC Network Asia, LLC

NGC Network Cayman Company L1
NGC Network Europe, LL(

NGC Network International, LL(
NGC Network Korea Company Lt
NGC Network Latin America, LL(
NGC Network US, LLC

NGC Networks Middle East FZ LL!
NGC Overseas Holdings Limite
NGC Productions Singapore Pte. L
NGC UK Holdings Company Limite
NGCI Canada, Inc

Night in Vegas Holdings LL(

Night in Vegas Investments LL
Night in Vegas Productions LL
Night Service, Inc

Norgould Inc.

Notmax Service, Inc

Notor Service, Inc

NW Communications of Austin, In
NW Communications of Phoenix, Ir
NW Communications of San Diego, Ir
NW Communications of Texas, Ir
NW Management Incorporate

NW Programs Incorporate

NWC Acquisition Corporatiol

NWC Holdings Corporatio

NWC Intermediate Holdings Corporati
NWC Management Corporatic
NWC Sub | Holdings Corporatic
NWC Sub Il Holdings Corporatio
NWCG Holdings Corporatio

NWE Holdings Corporatio

NWE Sub | Incorporate

NWTYV Intermediate Holdings Corporatic

Ohio Train Films, Inc

Oregon Television, Inc

OU FOX International Channels Estol
Outlaw Productions, Inc

Outside the Box Development Company, |

Pacific 2.1 Entertainment Group, Ir
Pamco International, In

Pan American Sports Enterprises Comp

Panoramic Productions, Ir
Pere Service, In

Perja Service, Inc

Pico Films, Inc

Pinelands Broadcasting, Ir
Popcorn Entertainment, LL
Predator Planet Films, In
Prime Network LLC

Prime Time Media, Inc
Pulsa Media Consulting, S.
PuntoFox Networks LL(
Purpleleaf Productions, LL
Rags Productions, In
Ramon Service, In

Ray Tracing Films, Inc

India

Mauritius
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Cayman Island
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Singapore

United Kingdom
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Spain

United States of Americ
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Redweed Productions, LL
Responsebase Marketing, LI
Rewind Music, Inc

RSNCO LLC

SC Productions, Inc
Schrodinger's Cat Productions, |
SCI Sub I Incorporate

SCI Subsidiary Corporatic
SCPI, Inc.

Secern Service, In

Second Night Service, In
Second X Service, Ini
Setanta Africa Management Services Limi
Setanta Africa Services Limite
Setanta Sports Africa Limite
Shadows Productions Limite
Shoot The Horse Productions, |i
Sidereus Technologies, Ir
Slowmit Service, Inc

Small Cages Productions, Ir
Soundecode s.r.

Speed Channel, In

SPL Global LLC

Sports Holding Inc
SportSouth Network 11, LLC
SportSouth Network, LL(
Sprocket Music, Inc

Stars Avenue Productions, Ir
Stellem Service, Inc

STF Productions, Inc

Stoke Service, Inc

Sun UK Service, Inc
Sunlease Films, In
Sunningdale Holdings, LL!
Sunshine Network, Inc

T&T Sports Marketing, Ltd
TBG Productions, Inc

TCF Canadian TV Enterprises, Ir
TCF Digital Holdings, Inc
TCF Distributing, Inc

TCF Eastern Europe, In

TCF Hungary Film Rights Exploitation Limited Liatlif Company

TCF International Productions, Ir
TCF Music Publishing, Inc

TCF Vancouver Productions Lt
TCFTV SLO, Inc.

TCFTV UK Productions Limitet
TCFTV US Prodco #13, Int
TCFTV US Prodco #14, In
TCFTV US Prodco #15, Int
TCFTV US Prodco #16, Int
TCFTV Worldwide Productions, In
Television Media Services B.\
Television Technology, LL(
Tempco DNA Limited

Terra Nova Productions Pty Limite
The Barn Productions, In

The Fox Interactive Store, In

The Fox Store, Inc

The Killing Productions, Inc
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Australia
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Three Inches Productions, Ir

Tooth US Productions, In

Transfer NV

Transient Films, Inc

TVM Productions, Inc

Twentieth Century Fox (Beijing) Consulting Co., L
Twentieth Century Fox BD+, LL(

Twentieth Century Fox Canada Limit

Twentieth Century Fox Chile, In

Twentieth Century Fox Distributing Corporati

Twentieth Century Fox Film (East) Private Limit

Twentieth Century Fox Film (Malaya) Sendirian Bet!
Twentieth Century Fox Film Belge S..

Twentieth Century Fox Film Company (Export) Limit
Twentieth Century Fox Film Company Limiti

Twentieth Century Fox Film Corporatic

Twentieth Century Fox Film Corporation (AustralRty Limited
Twentieth Century Fox Film de Mexico S.

Twentieth Century Fox Film Netherlands B.

Twentieth Century Fox Films, S.,

Twentieth Century Fox France, Ir

Twentieth Century Fox Holding (Mauritius) Limite

Twentieth Century Fox Home Entertainment .

Twentieth Century Fox Home Entertainment

Twentieth Century Fox Home Entertainment Canadaiteih
Twentieth Century Fox Home Entertainment Espana,
Twentieth Century Fox Home Entertainment France
Twentieth Century Fox Home Entertainment Germanyb8i
Twentieth Century Fox Home Entertainment InterraicCorporatior
Twentieth Century Fox Home Entertainment ItalialS
Twentieth Century Fox Home Entertainment Japan |
Twentieth Century Fox Home Entertainment Limi

Twentieth Century Fox Home Entertainment L

Twentieth Century Fox Home Entertainment Mexico.SIA C.V.
Twentieth Century Fox Home Entertainment Retail it
Twentieth Century Fox Import Corporati

Twentieth Century Fox Inc., U.S.,

Twentieth Century Fox Innovations, Ir

Twentieth Century Fox Int-America, Inc.

Twentieth Century Fox International Corporat

Twentieth Century Fox International Limit

Twentieth Century Fox International Telecommunimasi Distribution, Inc
Twentieth Century Fox International Television Bilstition, Inc.
Twentieth Century Fox International Television,.|

Twentieth Century Fox International Theatrical Bisition, Inc.
Twentieth Century Fox Italy S.p.A. In

Twentieth Century Fox Italy S.p.A., In

Twentieth Century Fox Japan, It

Twentieth Century Fox Korea, In

Twentieth Century Fox Media, In

Twentieth Century Fox Merchandise Store,

Twentieth Century Fox Norway A

Twentieth Century Fox of Germany Gml

Twentieth Century Fox Pay Television (Australiay Pimited
Twentieth Century Fox Philippines, Ir

Twentieth Century Fox Productions Limit

Twentieth Century Fox Studio Clt

Twentieth Century Fox Telecommunications InternaioInc.
Twentieth Century Fox Television Limite

Twentieth Century Fox Thailand, In
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United States of Americ
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United Kingdom
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United States of Americ
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Italy
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United States of Americ
Korea, Republic o
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
Norway

Germany

Australia

Philippines

United Kingdom

United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United Kingdom

United States of Americ




Twentieth Century Fox Titanic Productions, |
Twentieth Century Fox Trinidad Limite

Twentieth Century Fox Worldwide Productions, |

Twentieth Century Fox, Puerto Rico It
Twentieth Century Fox, Sweden Aktiebola
Twentieth Television, Inc

Twenty-First Century Film Corporatio
Twenty-First Century Fox Film Company Limite
Twenty-First Century Fox Mexico, S.A. de C.
Twenty-First Century Fox Productions, Ir
Twenty-First Century Fox Varieties, In
TX Productions, Inc

Ultra Service, Inc

Unicorn Service, Inc

United Entertainment Group, In

United Television Sales, In

Unmatched Service, In

Unstop Service, Inc

Used Service, Inc

USSun Productions, In

Utilisima LLC

UTV of Baltimore, Inc.

UTV of Orlando, Inc

UTV of San Francisco, In

Valley Glen Entertainment, In

Van Ness Films, Inc

Venue Merchandising, In

Verde River Productions, In

Very Imaginative Pictures, In

Viajar Distribucién Television Digital, S.L.L
Vixen Studios, LLC

Voyage S.A.S

VRBW Productions, Inc

Watercooler Productions, In

WBRC and WGHP Television Corporati
Wedron Silica Compan

West End Circle Studios, In

Westgate Productions, In

WEXT, Inc.

Wilder Service, Inc

Wiley Optics, Inc.

Wolf Service, Inc

Wolven Service, Inc

Woz Productions Limite:

WT Canada Productions Lt

WWOR-TV, Inc.

XM3 Service, Inc
YankeesEntertainment and Sports Network, LI
Yardbarker, Inc

YES Network Holding Company, LL!
Zonatel SAFI

SHINE LIMITED

21CF Shine Holdings UK Limite

30 Day Productions In

Addison Productions, In

Alamo Productions, Inc

Am Glad Production

Among Giants Limitec

Amwell Inc.

Ardaban Inc
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Trinidad and Tobag
United States of Americ
United States of Americ
Sweder

United States of Americ
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United Kingdom
Mexico
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France
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Uruguay

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United States of Americ
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United States of Americ
United States of Americ
United Kingdom

United States of Americ
United States of Americ




Ardaban, LLC

Berkeley Productions, In
Better Productions, In

Big Brother AB

Big Brother KB

Bigger Productions, Inc

BL4 Productions, Inc
BOSOX Development LL(
Bossa Studios Limite
Bravura, Inc.

Brillante Digital, Inc.
Brillante Entretenimiento, In
Brillante Ficcion, Inc
Brillante Productions, Inc
Brown Eyed Boy (Vicious) Limites
Brown Eyed Boy Limitec
Catching Miliat Pty Limitec
CD Services, Inc

Central Park West Productio
ChannelFlip Media Limite:
Clark Street Productions, In
Close It

Club Productions Inc
Concord Productions, In
Crush It

Dragonfly Film & TV Limited
Dunder, Inc.

Enlighten It

Faboao

Filmlance International Al
Founding Bird Limitec
Friday TV AB

Go Faster Productions, Ir
Greenmonster Development LL
Hold It

In the Field, Inc

Ivar Productions, Inc

Ivy Productions, Inc

Karma Circle

Keeping Track Music, Inc
Kudos (Broadchurch) Limite
Kudos (Burn Up) Limitec
Kudos (Burn Up) MD Limitec
Kudos (Eternal) Limitec
Kudos (FTTH) Limited
Kudos (Hour) Limitec
Kudos (Humans) Limite:
Kudos (L&O) Limited
Kudos (Law) Limited

Kudos (Manhattan) Limite
Kudos (Morton) Limitec
Kudos (Occupation) Limite
Kudos (River) Limitec
Kudos (Scotland) Limite:
Kudos (Smoke) Limite:
Kudos (Spooks) CP Limite
Kudos (Tsunami) Limitel
Kudos (Tunnel) Limitec
Kudos (Utopia) Limitec
Kudos (WM) Limited
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Sweder

Sweder
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United Kingdom
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Australia
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United Kingdom
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United Kingdom
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United States of Americ
Sweder

United Kingdom
Sweder
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United States of Americ
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United States of Americ
United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom




Kudos Child of Mine Limitec
Kudos Film & Television Limitec
Kudos Hustle Limitec

Kudos Rights Limitec

Lafayette Productions, In
Lifestyle Productions, In
Livermore Productions Int
Living With The Enemy Pty Limite:
Lovely Day (Grantchester) Limite
Lovely Day Productions Limite
Macy Productions, Inc

Magfive Content AE

Meter Television AE
Metronome International Al
Metronome Post Al

Metronome Productions A/
Metronome Spartacus A
Metronome, LLC

Mifflin, Inc.

Mutter Media AB

Nashville Star Productions, In
NC Shine Acquisition Ltc

NC Shine US, Inc

Never Tear Us Apart Pty Limite
New Moon Rising Limitec
Newincco 1151 Limitec

NS Tours LLC

Orinda Productions, In

Presse & Co SASI

Princess Productions Limite
Renassans | Stockholm A
Reveille Consulting

Reveille LLC

Reveille Music Publishing LLI
Reveille Two, LLC

Rocilla Script AB

Rubicon Film AS

Rubicon TV AS
Schulmangruppen Al

Scranton Development, In
Shine (Aust) PTY Limitec

Shine 971 Limitec

Shine 972 Limitec

Shine America Studios, In
Shine America Studios, LL
Shine Australia Holdings PTY Limite
Shine Bossa Studios Limite
Shine Commercial (UK) Limite
Shine Creative (UK) Limite:
Shine Finland O

Shine France 360 SAS

Shine France Art de Vivre SA
Shine France Diverstissement S
Shine France Film

Shine France S.A.¢

Shine France TV du Reel S/
Shine Germany Film Und Fernsebproduktion Gn
Shine Ginkgo Limitec

Shine Hispanic, Inc

Shine Iberia SLU
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Sweder
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Sweder

Norway

Norway

Sweder
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France

France

France

France

France

France
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Spain




Shine Jet Limitec

Shine Latin America S.A.¢
Shine Midco Limitec

Shine Nordic Formats Al
Shine Nordics AE

Shine North Limitec

Shine Norway AS

Shine Pictures (UK) Limite
Shine Pictures LLI

Shine SA Limitec

Shine Sweden Al

Shine Television, LLC
SHINE TV LIMITED

Shine US Holdings, Inc
Spooks Limitec

Start Productions, In
STC-CPH Produktion AE
Studios A/S

Studios AS

Summit Entertainment Group, Ir
Take It Over, Inc

The Unofficial TV Company Limite:
Tvalkoppen AB

Ugly, Inc.

Unscrambled Development, Ir
Upper West Side Productio
Who Are You, Inc.

Yawkey Development LL(
Yemen Distributions Limitet
Yemen Productions Limite
Yucca Post, Inc
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Sweder

Sweder
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statement (Form S-4 Nos. 333-122838;131883, 333-143335, 333-
149189, 333-145925, 333-159036, 333-162539, 33335,3333-184879 and 333-192133 and Form S-8 N@& 128567 and 333-192134) of
Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc. (formerly News Coration) of our reports dated August 13, 2014, witbpect to the consolidated financial
statements of Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc., dmeleéffectiveness of internal control over financegdorting of Twenty-First Century Fox,
Inc., included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K)#enty-First Century Fox, Inc. for the year endede 30, 2014.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

New York, New York
August 13, 2014



Exhibit 31.1
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Certification

Required by Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14 under the Sedties Exchange Act of 1934, as amended

I, K. Rupert Murdoch, Chairman and Chief Execut®éicer of Twenty-First Century Fox, Inc. (“21st @ery Fox” or the “Company”)ertify

that:

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of 21st Century Fox

Based on my knowledge, this annual report do¢sontain any untrue statement of a materialdacimit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this annual re

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg other financial information included in thisnual report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows of the Company aardd, for, the periods presented in
this annual repor

The Company'’s other certifying officer and ¢ aesponsible for establishing and maintainingld&ae controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)) %(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the Company and havx

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and proesjur caused such disclosure controls and proesdoaibe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatneg to the Company, including its consolidatetisdiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this annual reqasrbeing preparec

(b) Designed such internal control over finanoggdorting, or caused such internal control oveafitial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataoce with generally accepted accounting princij

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Companigsldsure controls and procedures and presentidsimnnual report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this annu
report based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this annual report any changdénCompany’s internal control over financial repuay that occurred during the
Company’s fourth quarter of fiscal 2014 that hasemally affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the Companyg’
internal control over financial reporting; a

The Company'’s other certifying officer and vhalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluafiorieynal control over financial
reporting, to the Company’s independent registerdalic accounting firm and the Audit Committee loé tCompany’s Board of
Directors:

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Comyfsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information;
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that ined management or other employees who have aisatifole in the
Compan’s internal control over financial reportir

August 13, 2014

By: /s/ K. RUPERTM URDOCH
K. Rupert Murdoct
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 31.2
Chief Financial Officer Certification

Required by Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14 under the Sedties Exchange Act of 1934, as amended

I, John Nallen, Senior Executive Vice President @hdef Financial Officer of Twenty-First Century ¥dnc. (“21st Century Fox” or the
“Company”), certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of 21st Century Fox

Based on my knowledge, this annual report do¢sontain any untrue statement of a materialdacimit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this annual re

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg other financial information included in thisnual report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows of the Company aardd, for, the periods presented in
this annual repor

The Company'’s other certifying officer and ¢ aesponsible for establishing and maintainingld&ae controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)) %(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the Company and havx

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and proesjur caused such disclosure controls and proesdoaibe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatneg to the Company, including its consolidatetisdiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this annual reqasrbeing preparec

(b) Designed such internal control over finanoggdorting, or caused such internal control oveafitial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataoce with generally accepted accounting princij

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Companigsldsure controls and procedures and presentidsimnnual report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this annu
report based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this annual report any changdénCompany’s internal control over financial repuay that occurred during the
Company’s fourth quarter of fiscal 2014 that hasemally affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the Companyg’
internal control over financial reporting; a

The Company'’s other certifying officer and vhalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluafiorieynal control over financial
reporting, to the Company’s independent registerdalic accounting firm and the Audit Committee loé tCompany’s Board of
Directors:

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Comyfsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information;
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that ined management or other employees who have aisatifole in the
Compan’s internal control over financial reportir

August 13, 2014

By:/s/ JOHN N ALLEN
John Naller
Senior Executive Vice President a
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350SADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Twenty-Ei@entury Fox, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form KOor the fiscal year ended June 30, 2(
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the “Report”), we, the unideed officers of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 81350, as adopted pursu&#d6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, thathtoliest of our knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Ex@eAct of 1934, as amended; and
(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

August 13, 2014

By: /s/ K. RUPERTM URDOCH
K. Rupert Murdoct
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

By: /s/ JOHNN ALLEN
John Naller
Senior Executive Vice President a
Chief Financial Office




